
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




PRRIP – ED OFFICE FINAL  11/20/2014 


 


PRRIP December 2-3, 2014 GC Meeting Agenda  Page 1 of 2 
 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 


Governance Committee Meeting Agenda – December 2-3, 2014 2 


Warwick Denver Hotel – Denver, CO 3 


 4 


START TIME 
(Duration) 


TUESDAY, DECEMBER 2
nd


 (ALL TIMES MOUNTAIN) 


TOPIC, PRESENTER, & PROGRAM PURPOSE 


DOCUMENT # - 
DOCUMENT 


2:00 p.m. 
(:10) 


Welcome and Administrative 
Harry LaBonde, 2014 GC Chair 
Information, Discussion, & Action 


 Introductions/Attendance Roster 


 Agenda Modifications 


 APPROVE September 2014 & November 2014 GC 
MINUTES 


01 – GC Agenda 
 


02 – Sept. 2014 GC Minutes 
 


03 – Nov. 2014 GC Minutes 


2:10 p.m. 
(:10) 


Program Committee Updates 
Information & Discussion 


 LAC – Mark Czaplewski, CPNRD (Chair) 


 WAC – Cory Steinke, CNPPID (Chair) 


 TAC – Mike Besson, State of WY (Chair) 


 FC – Gary Campbell, BOR (Chair) 


04 – LAC Minutes 
 


05 – WAC Minutes 
 


06 – TAC Minutes 
 


07 – FC Minutes 


2:20 p.m. 
(:10) 


Program Outreach Update – Bridget Barron, ED Office 
Information & Discussion 


 Program presentations, outreach, and media 


2:30 p.m. 
(:15) 


PRRIP FY14 Budget Update 
Jerry Kenny, ED 
Information & Discussion 


 Discuss FY14 budget and contract status 


 Update on PRRIP land income and taxes 


 APPROVE 2014-2016 PRRIP PERMITTING SERVICES 
CONTRACT 


08 – PRRIP Monthly 
Financial Status Report 


 
09 – PRRIP Expenditures 


 
10 – PRRIP Land Income 


and Taxes 
 


11 – Dec. 2014 Budget 
Action Summary Table 


 
12 – PRRIP 2014-2016 
Permitting Services 


Contract 


2:45 p.m. 
(:30) 


PRRIP FY15 Budget & Work Plan 
Jerry Kenny, ED 
Information, Discussion, & Action 


 APPROVE FY 2015 PRRIP BUDGET and WORK PLAN 


 APPROVE FY 2015 ED CONTRACT 


13 – FY15 PRRIP Budget 
 


14 – FY15 PRRIP Work Plan 
 


15 – 2015 ED Contract 
 
16 – 2015 Headwaters Corp. 


Staffing Plan for EDO 


3:15 p.m. 
(1:00) 


Independent Scientific Advisory Committee (ISAC) 
Commentary 
Chad Smith, EDO/Ned Andrews, ISAC 
Information & Discussion 


 Update on 2014 State of the Platte Report (Smith) 


 Discuss ISAC responses to PRRIP questions from October 
2014 


17 – DRAFT Report Cards 
 


18 – DRAFT 2014 State of 
the Platte Report 


 
19 – November 2014 ISAC 
Responses to Questions 


4:15 (:15) BREAK 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE FINAL  11/20/2014 


 


PRRIP December 2-3, 2014 GC Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 2 
 


4:30 p.m. 
(:30) 


J2 Regulating Reservoir Update 
Don Kraus, CNPPID/Robert Huzjak, RJH 
Information & Discussion 


 Update on J2 project 


 


5:00 p.m. 
(:30) 


Hydroclimatic Indices 
Jerry Kenny, ED/John Henz, Stuart Geiger, & Dmitry Smirnov, 
Dewberry 
Information & Discussion 


 Presentation on hydroclimatic indices as a long-range 
predictor of streamflow 


20 – Hydro-Climate Indices 
Report 


5:30 p.m. ADJOURN & DINNER 


 1 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


Governance Committee Meeting Agenda – December 2-3, 2014 
Warwick Denver Hotel – Denver, CO 


 


START TIME 
(Duration) 


WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 3
rd
 (ALL TIMES MOUNTAIN) 


TOPIC, PRESENTER, & PROGRAM PURPOSE 


DOCUMENT # - 
DOCUMENT 


8:00 a.m. 
(:10) 


Welcome and Administrative 
Information & Discussion 


 Introductions/Attendance Roster 


 Elect 2015 GC Chair (Garry Campbell, BOR – designate) and Vice Chair 


8:10 a.m. (:10) PUBLIC COMMENT & BREAK 


8:20 a.m. 
(1:40) 


GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Program Land Tracts & Issues 
Bruce Sackett, EDO 
Information & Discussion 


 TBD 


 
21 – Land Objective 


Numbers 


10:00 a.m. 
(:10) 


PRRIP Executive Session Motions 
Information, Discussion, & Action 
 MOTIONS FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 


10:10 a.m. 
(:10) 


Future Meetings & Closing Business 
Information & Discussion 


 2015 GC meetings: 
o March 10-11, 2015 @ Kearney, NE 
o June 9-10, 2015 @ Cheyenne, WY 
o September 8-9, 2015 @ Kearney, NE 
o December 1-2, 2015 @ Denver, CO 


 


 2015 AMP Reporting Session: 
o October 20-22, 2015 @ Denver, CO 


10:20 a.m. GC MEETING WRAP-UP & ADJOURN 


 2 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 9 


 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 


Governance Committee Meeting Minutes 2 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO) Conference Room – Kearney, NE 3 


September 9-10, 2014 4 


 5 


Meeting Attendees 6 


 7 


Governance Committee (GC) Table   Executive Director’s Office (EDO) Staff 8 


State of Wyoming     Jerry Kenny, Executive Director (ED) 9 


Harry LaBonde – Member (Chair)   Jason Farnsworth 10 


       Bruce Sackett  11 


State of Colorado     Chad Smith 12 


Don Ament – Member      13 


Suzanne Sellers – Alternate     14 


 15 


State of Nebraska      16 


Jim Schneider – Member    Audience Members 17 


       Brock Merrill – BOR 18 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service)  Cory Steinke – CNPPID 19 


Eliza Hines – Alternate     Matt Rabbe – Service 20 


       Kevin Urie – Colorado Water Users 21 


Bureau of Reclamation (BOR)    Philip Stuckert – WY State Engineers’ Office 22 


Gary Campbell – Member    Amy Jeffrey Hill – Landowner 23 


       Dianne Jeffrey – Landowner 24 


Environmental Entities    Joe Jeffrey – Landowner 25 


Marian Langan – Member     Duane Woodward – CPNRD    26 


Bill Taddicken – Member    Pat Engelbert – HDR 27 


       Jim Jenniges – NPPD 28 


Upper Platte Water Users     Christine Reed – UNO 29 


Dennis Strauch – Member     Lori Potter – Kearney Hub   30 


George Williams – Member    Bob Wallace – Landowner 31 


        Jeff Shafer – NPPD 32 


Colorado Water Users     Tyler Krevalek – KRVN 33 


Alan Berryman – Member 34 


Deb Freeman – Alternate 35 


 36 


Downstream Water Users 37 


Brian Barels – Member 38 


Don Kraus – Member 39 


Mark Czaplewski – Member 40 


Kent Miller – Member  41 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 9 


 


 


Welcome & Administrative 42 


LaBonde called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. Central time.  The group proceeded with introductions. 43 


 44 


Berryman moved to approve the June 2014 GC minutes; Strauch seconded.  Minutes approved. 45 


 46 


Program Committee Updates 47 


Land Advisory Committee (LAC) 48 


Czaplewski provided an update on the latest LAC activities.  The LAC met on August 26 via conference 49 


call and addressed Tract 1405 and the sale of easement land at 2011001 East (both on GC agenda).  The 50 


next LC meeting is October 20 in Kearney. 51 


 52 


Water Advisory Committee (WAC) 53 


Kenny provided an update on the latest WAC activities.  The WAC met on August 12 at Lake 54 


McConaughy Visitors Center and heard updates on all Water Action Plan alternatives.  There was a 55 


presentation from Jeff Shafer at NPPD on the permit application and a discussion on replacing surface 56 


water irrigation with groundwater irrigation and the DNR will make a presentation at the next WAC 57 


meeting on how that is addressed in state regulation and process.  The WAC talked about E65 58 


groundwater recharge; Phelps groundwater recharge and active well pumping; an update on the wet 59 


meadows hydrologic monitoring project; presentation on the draft SDMF spring 2013 release; and 60 


preliminary discussions of the 2015 draft Water Plan budget.  The next WAC meeting is October 21 at 61 


Lake McConaughy. 62 


 63 


Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 64 


Sellers provided an update on the latest TAC activities.  The TAC met on June 23rd in Kearney with a 65 


regular meeting followed by a grassland vegetation management workshop.  The TAC recommended 66 


publication of the Horn response (in GC packet), approved the 2013 tern/plover monitoring report as 67 


final, and moved the tern/plover habitat synthesis chapters on to the GC for review.  The TAC also met 68 


via conference call on August 13 and approved the scope of work for peer review of the tern/plover 69 


habitat synthesis chapters.  The TAC recommended peer review panelists for the tern/plover habitat 70 


synthesis chapters.  The annual AMP Reporting Session is in Omaha October 14-15 and the TAC will be 71 


meeting jointly there with the ISAC.  There may be another TAC meeting/conference call the previous 72 


week while several TAC members are at the CAMNet Rendezvous on the Trinity River in California on 73 


October 6-8. 74 


 75 


Finance Committee (FC) 76 


Campbell provided an update on the latest FC activities.  The FC met on August 18 and approved the 77 


multi-year permitting RFP, had a discussion on a new J2 invoice, discussed securing additional funding 78 


through NRCS grant funding, and discussed negotiations for water agreements with NPPD and CNPPID.  79 


The next FC meeting is November 4. 80 


 81 


Program Outreach Update 82 


PRESENTATIONS 83 


 Jerry Kenny presented on the Program to the Walkers in the Great March for Climate Actions at the 84 


Holdrege Community Center on July 10, 2014. The group of approximately 35 walkers is walking 85 


from Los Angeles, California to Washington, D.C. to raise awareness among Americans about the 86 


country’s climate crisis. Mike Drain and John Thorburn also presented to the group. 87 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 9 


 


 


 Jerry Kenny presented on the Program to the Annual Water and Natural Resources Tour participants 88 


at the Elm Creek Complex on July 15, 2014. 89 


 Justin Brei conducted a tour of the Cottonwood Ranch complex for the Nebraska Floodplain 90 


Managers Association conference attendees on July 16, 2014.  91 


 92 


EXHIBITS/SPONSORSHIPS  93 


 The Program was a co-sponsor of the Annual Water and Natural Resources Tour, presented by the 94 


Nebraska Water Center, Central Nebraska Public Power and Irrigation District (CNPPID) and the 95 


Kearney Area Chamber of Commerce. This year the tour was of the Upper Platte River Watershed 96 


and took place from July 15-18, 2014. 97 


 Jerry Kenny, Chad Smith and Bridget Barron attended the Conference on Ecological and Ecosystem 98 


Restoration (CEER) in New Orleans, Louisiana from July 28 – August 1, 2014. Jerry moderated a 99 


session titled, “Restoration to Support Fisheries Habitat”. Bridget moderated a session titled, 100 


“Adaptive Management and Monitoring” and Chad moderated a session titled, “Collaborative 101 


Adaptive Management”. CEER is a collaborative effort of the National Conference on Ecosystem 102 


Restoration (NCER) and the Society for Ecological Restoration (SER). 103 


 The Program will be a sponsor of the CAMNet Rendezvous on the Trinity River on October 6-8, 104 


2014 in Weaverville, California. The CAMNet Rendezvous brings together innovative natural 105 


resource managers, scientists, policy makers, and citizens to share successes and challenges from 106 


programs and projects that are conducting collaborative adaptive management on the ground in order 107 


to advance the practice of CAM.  Chad Smith is a member of the CAMNet Core Group and will be 108 


presenting on the Program during a session on examples of large-scale adaptive management.  109 


Several members of the Program’s TAC will be attending the Rendezvous as well. 110 


 111 


UPCOMING PRESENTATIONS/EXHIBITS 112 


 The Program is exhibiting at Husker Harvest Days in Grand Island on September 9, 10, and 11, 2014 113 


in the Natural Resources Districts building. Husker Harvest Days is recognized as the World’s 114 


Largest Totally Irrigated Working Farm Show™ and features the most extensive state-of-the-art 115 


information and technology available for today’s agricultural producers. 116 


 The Program will be exhibiting at the Natural Resources Districts annual conference at the Younes 117 


Conference Center in Kearney, Nebraska on September 21 through the 23, 2014. 118 


 Bruce Sackett will present a Program overview at the Nebraska Natural Legacy Conference in 119 


Gering, Nebraska on October 8, 2014. 120 


 The Program will be exhibiting at the South Platte Forum on October 22 & 23, 201 in Longmont, 121 


Colorado. The Program is also a break sponsor of the event. 122 


 The Program will be exhibiting at the joint conference of the Nebraska Water Resources Association 123 


and the Nebraska State Irrigators Association on November 24 -26, 2014 in Kearney, Nebraska. 124 


 The Program will be exhibiting at the Kearney Children’s Museum annual Halloween event on 125 


October 30, 2014 in Kearney, Nebraska.  126 


 127 


MEDIA/OTHER 128 


 The Program was featured in the Kearney Hub Natural Resources weekend section on June 14 -15, 129 


2014. Dave Zorn and Dave Baasch were interviewed for the article. 130 


 The Kearney Hub featured an update on the J-2 Regulating Reservoir on August 29, 2014. The article 131 


focused on progress in design of the reservoir, needed studies, protection of cultural resources and 132 


relationships with affected landowners. Mike Drain and Cory Steinke were interviewed for the article.  133 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 9 


 


 


Other articles about the project and the historical significance of the Plum Creek area were published 134 


in the Kearney Hub on August 30, 2014. 135 


 136 


PRRIP FY14 Budget Update 137 


Kenny discussed the status of the FY14 PRRIP budget and associated expenditures and contracts.  Total 138 


expenditures to date total just under $81 million.  It looks like this year an additional invoice will not be 139 


received from CNPPID for the J2 reservoir so that budget line item will not be expended.  The net 140 


controllable conserved water line items will also not be expended, so it appears the Program will end up 141 


with expenditures of $8-$9 million in 2014 (similar to 2011).  Expenditures are caught back up and 142 


proportionate expenditures are back in effect.  Campbell asked as farmland go down in value, do taxes go 143 


down as well.  Sackett said historically over the past 10 years there were two years where taxes went 144 


down.  Now, taxes are moving upward at about 6-7%. 145 


 146 


Kenny and Farnsworth updated the GC on the status of the NET grant application for funds to assist with 147 


in-channel vegetation management.  The Program is a partner in the grant application and committed to 148 


$200,000 per year for the next three years.  The FC reviewed the draft grant application and the final 149 


application was submitted on September 3.  Farnsworth said flood flows have taken out low-lying 150 


vegetation but older vegetation remains in place and we will need to be able to get in the channel and do 151 


mechanical work, even on private land where access is granted.  A decision on the grant is expected in 152 


early 2015. 153 


 154 


Kenny and Sackett updated the GC on the opportunity afforded the Program to submit a proposal to the 155 


USDA for a one-time grant.  Sackett described the Regional Conservation Partnership Program (RCPP) 156 


and the pre-proposal submitted by the Program with other partners.  The pre-proposal described a project 157 


of $4.4 million in each of the next 5 years with the RCPP providing $1.7 million annually if awarded.  158 


The pre-proposal was submitted in late July and we received notice that the Program made the first cut.  A 159 


full application must be submitted by the end of the September.  Kenny said this would not add to the 160 


funds needed for the Program, but instead would take some pressure off funds from the Department of 161 


Interior.  Funds would be used for the same projects as planned under the Program, it would just take 162 


funds from a different source than the Department of Interior.  Campbell said there is $2.4 billion 163 


available nationally under this program. 164 


 165 


Kenny introduced the multi-year permitting RFP and Smith discussed the purposes.  Freeman asked if the 166 


timeline was realistic and what it means for the long term in regard to sediment augmentation.  Smith said 167 


the hope is that by having secured permits previously for similar work (mechanical placement of 168 


sediment, not pumping) that permits can be secured more quickly, and that mechanical placement can 169 


then be used a long-term strategy to deal with sediment deficits. 170 


 171 


Schneider moved to approve the RFP; Berryman seconded.  RFP approved. 172 


 173 


The GC appointed Hines (Service), Sellers (Colorado), and Smith (EDO) to the Proposal Selection Panel. 174 


 175 


PRRIP Peer Review & Publications 176 


Smith discussed the peer review process for the tern/plover habitat synthesis chapters, the proposed scope 177 


of work for the peer review, and the proposed peer review panel.  Schneider said he was curious as to 178 


where this gets us.  Smith discussed what the intent behind the chapters is – to synthesize large amounts 179 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 9 


 


 


of data, have them reviewed and fix any problems, cite them in future State of the Platte reports, and 180 


deliver information to the GC that can be utilized more definitively in decision-making. 181 


Campbell moved to approve the peer review scope of work and appoint the recommended peer review 182 


panel (Buenau, Catlin, Wiley, Zelt); Ament seconded.  Tern/plover habitat synthesis chapters peer 183 


review scope of work approved and peer review panel appointed.  184 


 185 


Smith discussed the response developed by the EDO to the Horn et al. article.  Berryman moved to submit 186 


the response for publication; Barels seconded.  Motion to submit response for publication approved. 187 


 188 


Target Flows 189 


Smith discussed the independent expert scope of work and objectives for that work.  Barels said he sits on 190 


said a stakeholder committee on the Missouri River and they have similar issues (species, flows, etc.) to 191 


the Platte.  The Missouri River has an independent science body as well and recommended that the 192 


Missouri River program develop an adaptive management plan around species needs, flows, and 193 


management activities.  That panel includes Dennis Murphy from the University of Nevada and he has 194 


worked on structured effects analysis.  That process applies the science that is known to the questions that 195 


are associated with the species.  The Platte has been ahead of the game on adaptive management but he 196 


wonders if that Missouri River process has merit on the Platte versus the process offered by the Platte 197 


River ISAC.  He has been impressed with the results of the effects analysis process so far and thinks it 198 


might be worth looking at on the Platte. 199 


 200 


Hines said Loftin might have familiarity with effects analysis and maybe could scope that process out for 201 


the Platte.  There is a scale difference between the Missouri and Platte that might be a complicating 202 


factor.  LaBonde said he is hearing it might be worth scoping out an effects analysis along with the 203 


original ISAC process to see what that might entail.  Barels said the Platte River ISAC could be asked to 204 


weigh in on the effects analysis process and whether it would be a useful option for the Platte to consider.  205 


Smith said this can be added to the discussion at the October AMP Reporting Session.  Hines said the 206 


effects analysis process might be a good way to broker disagreements, and there are things we could 207 


adopt from the Missouri like conceptual models and other tools.  Campbell asked what Barels was saying 208 


in terms of how the Platte looks at this process.  Barels said he is only considering the process as an 209 


example, not the entities involved.  Hines said Barels is just saying this might be a better process to use to 210 


set target flows.  Campbell said he just wants to make sure the Platte doesn’t get linked into the Missouri 211 


River.  Hines and Barels said that won’t happen. 212 


 213 


Berryman said it sounded more like an operations plan as opposed to setting up target flows.  Barels said 214 


to a certain degree what we have pulled together in the tern/plover chapters is similar to the effects 215 


analysis.  Schneider said he wanted to make the point about hydrology and the water budget and that there 216 


are practical constraints and limitations that need to be addressed.  Smith agreed and said that was 217 


definitely part of the ISAC discussion about this when they developed their recommended process. 218 


 219 


UNO Research 220 


Kenny introduced Christine Reed from UNO and she gave a presentation on her research regarding the 221 


Program.  Schneider said a main question is how the GC makes decision and how to do that most 222 


effectively.  Reed said some of the internal structures in the Program are already in place to help, and 223 


most of that is built around social capital – talking at dinner between the first day and second day of the 224 


GC meeting, for example.  Compared to what is happening in many other places, the Platte Program is 225 


really a model that her institute intends to use widely as a model of success.   Kenny asked if Reed was 226 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 9 


 


 


going to compare/contrast any other models.  Reed said it all depends on the funding and whether funds 227 


can be put together for travel and further investigations. 228 


Public Comment 229 


Diane Jeffrey spoke as a landowner along the Platte.  She asked when the Program started.  Kenny said 230 


2007.  She is interested in the J2 reservoir because it affects her.  She has been living along the Platte 231 


since 1960 and has a biology degree from Colorado State University.  She said Reed gave a good 232 


statement on balancing human needs, and not taking agriculture out of production for comments.  That 233 


needs to be considered very carefully in your decision-making. 234 


 235 


Meeting adjourned at 5:00 p.m. Central time.  236 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 9 


 


 


Wednesday, September 10, 2014 237 


 238 


Welcome and Administrative 239 


LaBonde called the meeting to order at 8:02 a.m. Central time and the group proceeded with 240 


introductions.   241 


 242 


J2 Reservoir Update 243 


Kraus and Steinke gave an update on the J2 project.  Letters are likely going to landowners in October, 244 


there can be no negotiations with landowners for 45 days after that, and there will likely be a public 245 


meeting in November.  The Nebraska DNR approved the CNPPID petition for the project.  CNPPID has 246 


been working with the counties on road realignment and there is now a preferred option for moving roads.  247 


The consultation letter from the Service is generally a positive response on the project, but there are 248 


certain items that have to be dealt with.  LaBonde asked where we are at with permitting with the State of 249 


Nebraska.  Kraus said extension of the Phelps Canal is approved.  Berryman asked about the comment 250 


considering the reservoirs as storage and not re-regulation.  Kraus said the DNR considered that but 251 


moved forward with approving the petition.  Schneider said the petition was narrow in what it was asking 252 


and that is what DNR acted on. 253 


 254 


PRRIP Procurement Policy 255 


Kenny discussed the proposed amendment to the PRRIP Procurement Policy.  The action required by the 256 


GC is approving the amendment of the policy to ensure that potential PRRIP contractors are not 257 


suspended or debarred from receiving federal funds.   258 


 259 


Taddicken moved to adopt the amendment to the PRRIP Procurement Policy; Schneider seconded.  260 


Procurement policy amendment approved. 261 


 262 


Public Comment 263 


LaBonde asked for public comment.  Diane Jeffrey said she owns Jeffrey Island that is adjacent to the J2 264 


project area.  The island has been used for many years to raise Black Angus cattle by Robb Ranch.  The 265 


island has been used since 1874.  The island is next to Canaday Steam Plant.  CNPPID will own the 266 


island within a year, so this is a perfect opportunity to put the reservoirs on the island and avoid impacts 267 


to landowners along the river in the current design of the reservoirs.  There would be wildlife benefits to 268 


having the reservoirs on Jeffrey Island.  This will allow for the benefits of the reservoir to go forward, 269 


both for endangered species and target flows.  There are 4,000 acres on this island, but the project only 270 


calls for 200 acres.  So there is plenty of room on the island and that will save time, money, and lawsuits 271 


for trying to procure other land that is now under consideration.  Diane said she was told engineers were 272 


looking at the island as a possible spot at one point and it seems like they can determine how to make it 273 


work on the island.  This would also save problems with moving roads, moving Plum Creek, and causing 274 


problems for agriculture.  The island location would also avoid conflicts with historical areas like the 275 


Oregon Trail and the cemetery burial plots.  There are ruts of the Oregon Trail on our land and they are 276 


also along the project area.  We have Oregon Trail and Pony Express followers in the area and this will be 277 


eliminated by the current project area.  This is something you should talk about when you go into 278 


Executive Session.  Thank you for letting me offer my comments. 279 


 280 


How many of you have ever recovered any of the Platte River?  There is one person that has physically 281 


done that for seven miles, and that is Joe Jeffrey.  In 1960, the only way to the island was to go to 282 


Overton and go back in because the North Channel was dry.  Mr. Jeffrey made a dike to go over to the 283 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 9 


 


 


island and that recovered 7 miles of river habitat land so the water flowed on both sides of Jeffrey Island 284 


and that led to many wildlife benefits.  Mr. Jeffrey deserves recognition for his efforts. 285 


 286 


Please take this map and talk about the option of putting the reservoirs on the island during the Executive 287 


Session.  Thank you. 288 


 289 


Joe Jeffrey said he will be conducting a tour of the damage done to the Robb Ranch by CNPPID with the 290 


county commissioners and the press.  We will talk about seepage, erosion, bridges, drainage, irrigation 291 


tubes, and will generally have an extended tour of this damage.  Until CNPPID talks to him about this 292 


damage, nothing further will be done with Robb Ranch.  This tour will be after the corn and soybeans are 293 


out and it is up to the county commissioners if they want to invite others to attend.  Thank you. 294 


 295 


Executive Session 296 


Berryman moved to enter Executive Session; Schneider seconded.  GC entered Executive Session at 297 


8:45 a.m. Central time. 298 


 299 


Heaston moved to end Executive Session; Berryman seconded.  GC ended Executive Session at 10:15 300 


a.m. Central time. 301 


 302 


GC Action Items 303 


Hines moved to utilize the Program’s Good Neighbor Policy to ensure affected counties are made whole 304 


due to lost tax revenues from removing lands on those county tax rolls for the J2 regulating reservoir 305 


project; Strauch seconded.  Motion approved. 306 


 307 


Schneider moved to approve the LAC recommendation to cease pursuit of Tract 1405; Kraus seconded.  308 


Motion approved. 309 


 310 


Ament moved to approve the LAC recommendation to not sell the access easement on Tract 2011001 East 311 


and stay with the original agreement; Heaston seconded.  Motion approved. 312 


 313 


Schneider moved to authorize the EDO to seek acquisition of Tract 1404; Taddicken seconded.  Motion 314 


approved. 315 


 316 


Heaston moved to give the EDO authority to exchange Tracts 1406 and 1407 (80 acres) for Tract 0832; 317 


Berryman seconded.  Motion approved. 318 


 319 


Ament moved to give the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission until noon Central time on November 3, 320 


2014 to respond to the Program on acquisition of Tract 1221.  If no written commitment to purchase is 321 


proffered, the EDO is given authority to seek sale of the property at auction; Campbell seconded.  322 


Motion approved. 323 


 324 


Future Meetings & Closing Business 325 


Upcoming 2014 GC meetings: 326 


 November 12, 2014; 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. Mountain time; @ Denver airport hotel TBD 327 


 December 2-3, 2104 @ Denver, CO; @ Warwick Hotel 328 


 329 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  09/11/2014 
 


PRRIP September 9-10, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 9 


 


 


Hines said the Service will not revise the latest milestones report because so much time has passed.  330 


Instead, the Service will work with the EDO to determine if another document is being developed before 331 


the next bi-annual report that the Service could provide updated comments on. 332 


 333 


Meeting adjourned at 11:56 a.m. Central time. 334 


 335 


Summary of Action Items/Decisions from September 2014 GC meeting 336 


1) Approved the June 2014 GC minutes. 337 


2) Approved the multi-year permitting RFP and appointed Hines (Service), Sellers (Colorado), and 338 


Smith (EDO) to the Proposal Selection Panel. 339 


3) Approve the scope of work for peer review of the five tern/plover habitat synthesis chapters and 340 


appointed the peer review panel (Buenau, Catlin, Wiley, Zelt). 341 


4) Approved seeking publication of the EDO response to the 2012 Horn et al. article. 342 


5) Agreed to utilize the Program’s Good Neighbor Policy to ensure affected counties are made whole 343 


due to lost tax revenues from removing lands on those county tax rolls for the J2 regulating reservoir 344 


project. 345 


6) Approved utilizing the Program’s Good Neighbor Policy to ensure affected counties are made whole 346 


due to lost tax revenues from removing lands on those county tax rolls for the J2 regulating reservoir 347 


project. 348 


7) Approved the LAC recommendation to cease pursuit of Tract 1405. 349 


8) Approved the LAC recommendation to not sell the access easement on Tract 2011001 East and stay 350 


with the original agreement. 351 


9) Authorized the EDO to seek acquisition of Tract 1404. 352 


10) Gave the EDO authority to exchange Tracts 1406 and 1407 (80 acres) for Tract 0832. 353 


11) Gave the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission until noon Central time on November 3, 2014 to 354 


respond to the Program on acquisition of Tract 1221.  If no written commitment to purchase is 355 


proffered, the EDO is given authority to seek sale of the property at auction. 356 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/13/2014 
 


PRRIP November 12, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 


 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 


Governance Committee Meeting – Special Session on Draft FY14 PRRIP Budget 2 


DIA Country Inn & Suites – Denver, CO 3 


November 12, 2014 4 


 5 


Meeting Attendees 6 


 7 


Governance Committee (GC) Table   Executive Director’s Office (EDO) Staff 8 


State of Wyoming     Jerry Kenny, Executive Director (ED) 9 


Harry LaBonde – GC Chair    Bridget Barron 10 


Philip Stuckert – Alternate    Jason Farnsworth 11 


       Bruce Sackett   12 


State of Colorado     Sira Sartori 13 


Suzanne Sellers – Alternate    Chad Smith     14 


 15 


Via Conference Call 16 


State of Nebraska     Don Kraus – Member (CNPPID) 17 


Jim Schneider – Member     Mark Czaplewski – Member (CPNRD) 18 


       Kent Miller – Member (TPNRD) 19 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service)    20 


No Attendees     21 


         22 


Bureau of Reclamation (BOR)     23 


Gary Campbell – Member      24 


Brock Merrill – Alternate 25 


        26 


Environmental Entities     27 


Bill Taddicken – Member          28 


        29 


Upper Platte Water Users      30 


Dennis Strauch – Member           31 


         32 


Colorado Water Users      33 


Alan Berryman – Member 34 


Kevin Urie – Alternate 35 


 36 


Downstream Water Users 37 


No In-Person Attendees (see conference call list)  38 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/13/2014 
 


PRRIP November 12, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 


 


 


Welcome & Administrative 39 


LaBonde called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. Mountain Time and the group proceeded with 40 


introductions. 41 


 42 


Regarding additions to the agenda, Kenny raised the topic of a letter sent to CNPPID from Sen. Deb 43 


Fischer asking some questions about the J2 project. He thought it would be good to get some insight on 44 


the coordination with CNPPID by the Program and the Nebraska Department of Natural Resources of the 45 


response to that letter.  Kraus said CNPPID will be getting something back to Sen. Fischer by the 46 


beginning of next week.  One question regards the use of Executive Session and the Central Board.  The 47 


letter references landowner contacts and questions but does not list landowner names. As the specific 48 


response to letters questions were straightforward, the group discussion focused then on the broader 49 


topics of the importance of NDNR communicating with Nebraska’s new Governor and new Senator about 50 


the Program, and an increased effort of outreach about the Program including the J2 Project. It was agreed 51 


to take this topic up again after the budget review was completed. 52 


 53 


PRRIP FY15 Budget and Work Plan 54 


Kenny provided an introduction to the budget development process that involved extensive input, 55 


discussion, and vetting by the Advisory Committees and the Finance Committee leading up to the Work 56 


Plan and Budget before the GC now. He reviewed in broad terms the draft 2015 Budget in comparison to 57 


the 2014 Budget to provide perspective, emphasizing similarities and differences of particular relevance. 58 


He then outlined the process of review for this session with respect to which sections would be covered 59 


by specific Executive Director’s Office (EDO) staff: 60 


 61 


 ED and Committee items – Kenny 62 


 Land Plan – Sackett and Farnsworth 63 


 Water Plan – Kenny and Sartori 64 


 Adaptive Management Plan – Smith and Farnsworth 65 


 66 


Kenny initiated discussion of latest draft of the FY15 budget and work plan and the current status of 67 


several line items in the budget.  The notes from this point forward reflect primarily only those items for 68 


which there were questions or discussions. 69 


 70 


With respect to ED-3, LaBonde asked if our public messaging success continues to grow or if we have 71 


saturated the market.  Barron said there are still many audiences we don’t yet reach in the area that we 72 


will continue to work on.  We are also broadening the message by reaching out to school-age kids and 73 


other audiences.  Kenny said it is also important to continue talking to the audiences that we have always 74 


talked to for message reinforcement while also reaching out to new segments.  Strauch asked if the 75 


Program should be working on outreach related to the J2 project.  Barron said we assisted in development 76 


of a J2 brochure with Central that has been distributed.  Kenny said he had been thinking about this issue 77 


in light of recent media coverage of J2 meetings.  The outreach doesn’t necessarily have to be strictly J2 78 


but a broader message on the Program and what we are doing (including J2) might be helpful.  Strauch 79 


said information about how difficult it is to find projects and how well J2 fits with our needs.  Schneider 80 


said that would be a good idea to help explain how the project came into being.  Kenny said it would be 81 


good to focus on the retimed water aspect and that it does not have a negative impact on irrigated 82 


agriculture in developing the yield.  Alternatives that include drying up farm ground would definitely 83 


cause problems for the local economy.  There has been some recent media coverage of Central’s public 84 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/13/2014 
 


PRRIP November 12, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 


 


 


meetings on local TV stations and the Kearney Hub which was not anti-Program, but demonstrated the 85 


need for us to tell our story better. 86 


 87 


Kenny said the budget on ED-3 is a little higher than in previous years because of this need to tell our 88 


story, and one aspect of this was increasing the budget on the time-lapse project.  Our contributions on 89 


that project to date have been on equipment.  Next year, our funds will go toward interviews, capturing 90 


additional video imagery, and developing a PBS-quality documentary to tell the story of the Platte with a 91 


strong emphasis on the conservation lands of the Platte and the Program’s role.  Kenny suggested GC 92 


members visit the time-lapse project’s web site to see examples of what they are doing with imagery thus 93 


far.  Here is the project web site link:  http://plattebasintimelapse.com/. 94 


 95 


Urie asked if the proposed $150,000 in the LP-3 budget covers taxes for all Program lands.  Sackett said 96 


yes.  Campbell asked if the value of selling land is factored into the budget anywhere.  Sackett said no.  97 


Kenny said this is entirely expenditures, that is why we have added to the GC agenda a discussion of any 98 


income that comes back to the Program. 99 


 100 


With respect to WP-4 (f) i, J2 Regulating Reservoir. The question was asked by Kenny as to what was the 101 


preference with regard to showing the funds from the budget stand point, as they would not actually be 102 


expended until 2017 or early 2018. Options being the current presentation of the remaining balance 103 


shown as equal increments over three years starting in 2015, one big lump sum in 2017, or some other 104 


way. This is largely a matter of preference for Federal funds coming through the Bureau of Reclamation. 105 


Campbell said it works for the BOR to show the J2 expenditures as-is (spread out over three payments in 106 


2015, 2016, and 2017). 107 


 108 


With regard to water leasing potentials, Sellers asked if any the water leases will be coming before the 109 


GC in December for approval.  Kenny said no, none of them are far enough along at this point and price 110 


negotiation in particular still needs to occur. 111 


 112 


With respect to the Adaptive Management Plan, Campbell asked in regard to line item PD-22 (Sediment 113 


Augmentation Implementation) if the GC would have a discussion in December about sediment issues, 114 


sediment augmentation, and ways forward for the Program.  Smith said that would be a good time to at 115 


least start the discussion.  Schneider said in regard to line item PD-11 (AMP Reporting) he has had 116 


conflicts with the AMP Reporting Session the past couple of years and really wants to attend in the future.  117 


The GC should be more involved with this, so getting the date on the calendar soon would help ensure 118 


better GC attendance.  Smith agreed and said he would try to propose dates during the December 2-3, 119 


2014 GC meeting in Denver.  Czaplewski asked in regard to line item PD-3 (AMP & IMRP Peer Review) 120 


why we would invest money in pallid sturgeon experts for review of possible life-history conceptual 121 


ecological models given where we are at in the Program.   Smith said they were included in the proposal 122 


to develop species conceptual models because the pallid sturgeon is a Program target species but it will be 123 


up to the GC to decide whether to include it. 124 


 125 


Public Comment 126 


No public comments were made 127 


 128 


Future Meetings & Closing Business 129 


Schneider said NDNR had recently talked with Sen. Fischer about the Program, what was happening, and 130 


the J2 project.  There was positive discussion about the tax issue and the fact that the Program will be 131 



http://plattebasintimelapse.com/





PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/13/2014 
 


PRRIP November 12, 2014 GC Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 


 


 


paying taxes for lands that are part of the project.  In meeting with a landowner, issues related to how 132 


Program money is sent through the NCF, the quality of the report to FERC, and other issues were raised.  133 


There also doesn’t seem to be an understanding generally that the J2 project is the result of a lengthy 134 


evaluation of many alternatives.  LaBonde asked if it would be valuable to put together the planning 135 


history that went into selecting the J2 project and providing that to Sen. Fischer.  Schneider said yes and it 136 


wouldn’t necessarily have to be targeted to Sen. Fischer but also for anyone interested in the Program 137 


generally and the project specifically.  Kenny said he could have a draft informational letter ready for GC 138 


review at the December GC meeting.  Campbell said that information would be helpful, but also discuss 139 


the larger benefits of the Program including for water users in the three states. 140 


 141 


Next GC meeting: 142 


 December 2-3, 2014 @ Denver, CO at the Warwick Hotel 143 


 144 


Meeting adjourned at 12:16 p.m. Mountain time. 145 


 146 


Summary of Action Items/Decisions from November 2014 GC meeting 147 


1) Directed the EDO to edit the draft FY15 PRRIP work plan and budget as described above for 148 


discussion and approval at the December 2-3, 2014 GC meeting. 149 


2) Kenny agreed to put together a draft letter for the GC detailing the history of Program water projects 150 


and how the J2 project came to be. 151 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2014 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different 


if corrections are made by the Land Advisory Committee before approval. Page 1 of 3 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


Land Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 


Conference Call 


October 20, 2014 


 


Meeting Participants 


Land Advisory Committee (LAC)   


State of Wyoming    
Harry LaBonde – Member, Wyoming Water 


Development Commission 


Matt Hoobler – Alternate, Wyoming State Engineer’s 


Office 


 


State of Colorado     
Suzanne Sellers – Member, Colorado Water 


Conservation Board 


 


State of Nebraska    
Ted LaGrange – Member, Nebraska Game & Parks 


Commission 


 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS)   
Matt Rabbe – Member, USFWS 


 


U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (USBOR) 


Brock Merrill – Member, USBOR 


 


Power Districts    
John Shadle – Member (Vice-chair), Nebraska Public 


Power District 


 


Environmental Entities    
None 


 


Local Nebraska Rep. – Central Platte Natural 


Resources District (CPNRD) 


Mark Czaplewski – Member (Chair), CPNRD 


 


Local Nebraska Rep. – Tri-Basin Natural Resources 


District (TBNRD) 


None 


 


Local Nebraska Rep. – Joint CPNRD/TBNRD 
John Thorburn – Member, TBNRD 


 


 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 


Jerry Kenny, Executive Director 


Bruce Sackett 


Justin Brei 


Jason Farnsworth 


Tim Tunnell 


 


Other Participants 


None







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2014 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different 


if corrections are made by the Land Advisory Committee before approval. Page 2 of 3 


 


Welcome and Administrative 1 


Chairman Czaplewski called the meeting to order at 2:00 pm Central Time and the group 2 


proceeded with introductions.  3 


 4 


Czaplewski asked for agenda modifications, none were requested. 5 


 6 


Czaplewski asked for the LAC’s recommendation on the minutes of the August 26, 2014 7 


meeting.   8 


 9 


LaBonde made a motion to approve the minutes from the August 26, 2014 LAC meeting.  10 


The motion was seconded by Rabbe and passed unanimously. 11 


 12 


GC Update and Other Committee Coordination Information 13 


GC Update 14 


Czaplewski updated the LAC on recent GC activities.  The GC last met September 9 & 10 in 15 


Kearney, NE.  The GC received an update on J-2 Reservoir progress, and several landowners 16 


were present to provide public comment.  Comments were received and documented in the 17 


minutes.  The GC approved allocation of money to offset lost tax income for counties where 18 


reservoir land would be acquired. 19 


 20 


In other land items, the GC declined an offer to purchase in fee title a current easement on tract 21 


2011001.  The GC chose to continue pursuit of tract 1404, and chose not to further pursue tract 22 


1405.  The GC also authorized the EDO to exchange tracts 1406 and 1407 for tract 0832, a 23 


parcel in the Kearney to Odessa bridge segment.  The GC gave Nebraska Game and Parks 24 


Commission a deadline (Noon Central time, November 3, 2014) to proffer written commitment 25 


to purchase tract 1221.  If the commitment is not offered, the EDO is authorized to sell the 26 


property at auction. 27 


 28 


The next GC meeting is November 12, 2014 in Denver, CO.   29 


 30 


Other Committee Coordination 31 


Sellers updated the LAC on recent TAC activities.  The TAC has not met since the last LAC 32 


meeting.  Several TAC members travelled to the CAMNET Rendezvous at the Trinity River in 33 


California.  Sellers said many came away with a good appreciation for how the PRRIP is set up 34 


compared to the program at the Trinity River.  The TAC has also been reviewing the wetland 35 


design for the Liehs wetland, which the LAC will discuss as well. 36 


 37 


Kenny gave an update on WAC activities.  The WAC met last on August 12.  They received 38 


updates on water action plan projects, negotiations for leased water, including the possibility of 39 


available storage in Elwood Reservoir, and improvements to the Phelps Canal recharge project.  40 


The WAC also received a presentation on methods and processes for NDNR permitting. 41 


 42 


 43 


 44 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/14/2014 


 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different 


if corrections are made by the Land Advisory Committee before approval. Page 3 of 3 


 


Land Management Update 45 


Tunnell gave the LAC an update on recent land management activities.  A tract by tract update 46 


was detailed in a handout distributed to the LAC. 47 


 48 


Election of Officers 49 


Shadle moved to nominate Mark Czaplewski as LAC Chair for 2015, to cease nominations, 50 


and to unanimously elect Czaplewski as Chair.  Motion seconded by LaBonde.  Motion 51 


voted on and passed unanimously. 52 


 53 


Sellers moved to nominate John Shadle as LAC Vice-Chair for 2015, to cease nominations, 54 


and to unanimously elect Shadle as Vice-Chair.  Motion seconded by LaBonde.  Motion 55 


voted on and passed unanimously. 56 


 57 


Public Forum 58 


Chairman Czaplewski asked for public comments, none were offered. 59 


 60 


Closing Business 61 


The next meeting of the LAC was scheduled for November 17, 2014 at 9 a.m. Central Time. 62 


 63 


With no further business, the meeting was adjourned by Chairman Czaplewski at 2:45 p.m. 64 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/21/2014 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 


 


 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 
Water Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes 2 


Nebraska Game and Parks Commission – Lake McConaughy Visitors Center 3 
October 21, 2014 4 


 5 
 6 


Meeting Attendees 7 
 8 


Water Advisory Committee (WAC)                Executive Director’s Office (ED Office) 9 
State of Colorado     Jerry Kenny, ED 10 
Suzanne Sellers – Member    Scott Griebling 11 
       Sira Sartori 12 
State of Wyoming      13 
Bryan Clerkin – Member    Contractors 14 
Lee Arrington – Alternate    Matt McConville, HDR 15 
Philip Stuckert – Alternate 16 
       Other 17 
State of Nebraska     Doug Hallum (UNL, Conservation & Survey) 18 
Jesse Bradley – Member     19 
 20 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service     21 
Tom Econopouly – Member  22 
 23 
Downstream Water Users 24 
Mike Drain – Alternate 25 
Cory Steinke – WAC Chair 26 
Duane Woodward – Member  27 
Jeff Shafer – Member  28 
Landon Shaw 29 
Nolan Little  30 
Tyler Thulin 31 
 32 
Colorado Water Users 33 
Jon Altenhofen – Member  34 
 35 
Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) 36 
Brock Merrill – Alternate 37 
 38 
Environmental Groups 39 
Duane Hovorka – Member  40 
Jacob Fritton 41 
 42 


 43 


 44 


 45 


 46 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/21/2014 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 


 


 


Welcome and Administrative:  Cory Steinke, CNPPID 47 


Introductions were made. There were no agenda modifications.  Steinke reviewed the August 48 


2014 WAC Minutes. Woodward made a motion to approve the modified August 2014 WAC 49 


Minutes, which was seconded by Shafer.  The August minutes were unanimously approved.  50 


 51 


WAP Project Updates   52 
J-2 Regulating Reservoir: Cory Steinke, CNPPID 53 


Steinke provided an update on the status of the J2 regulating reservoir project.  Initial offers have 54 


been made to land owners, public hearings are scheduled in November, and negotiations will 55 


begin in early December.   Geotechnical and environmental studies are underway and will 56 


inform the permitting process and engineering design. 57 


 58 


Phelps Groundwater Recharge: Cory Steinke, CNPPID 59 


Steinke informed the WAC that long term agreements for the groundwater recharge on the 60 


Phelps canal have not moved forward as the permanent water right for the project has not been 61 


awarded.  The Phelps canal is ready to recharge excess water in this current season under the 62 


temporary agreements used in previous years, but no water has been recharged at this point. 63 


  64 


Phelps Groundwater Recharge Pumping: Sira Sartori, ED Office 65 


Sartori presented an overview of the project which involves installing wells between the Phelps 66 


canal and the Platte River to pump water recharged into the canal in order to increase the score 67 


efficiency.  The Program is considering installing wells in two locations in 2015, one on the 68 


Cook property and another further to the east on private land.  The two wells would likely pump 69 


at a rate of 1,000 gallons per minute (gpm) and provide a score increase of approximately 500 70 


acre feet (AF) for the Phelps groundwater recharge project, based on preliminary estimates.  The 71 


Program is discussing well installation with private land owners and has not yet developed the 72 


final cost or design details. 73 


 74 


Elwood Reservoir Seepage: Sira Sartori, ED Office 75 


Sartori provided a brief overview of the project which seeks to recharge water in Elwood 76 


Reservoir.  The Nebraska Department of Natural Resources (DNR) is also looking at using 77 


Elwood Reservoir as a recharge location and the Program intends to coordinate its efforts with 78 


the DNR.  The Program has included money in the 2015 budget for recharging water in Elwood 79 


Reservoir.  Steinke informed the WAC that the Central Nebraska Public Power and Irrigation 80 


District (CNPPID) plans to use Elwood Reservoir for irrigation deliveries in 2015 which may 81 


limit the space available in the reservoir for recharge water.  He also identified the need for 82 


proper accounting if water is recharged in Elwood when irrigation water is also present in the 83 


reservoir The CNPPID intends to begin filling Elwood Reservoir in April of 2015. 84 


 85 


CPNRD Water Leasing:  Duane Woodward, CPNRD 86 


Woodward presented an update on the lease agreement between the Program and the Central 87 


Plate Natural Resources District (CPNRD) for surface water and recharged groundwater.  88 


Construction and rehabilitation of three canal systems used by the CPRND for surface water 89 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/21/2014 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 


 


 


leasing and groundwater recharge has been completed, although high flows in June of this year 90 


resulted in minor damages to some of the canal return structures.  Woodward presented the 91 


tracking and accounting spreadsheets used to determine what excesses are available for 92 


diversion.  Flow conditions in September allowed for diversions of excesses into the Cozad 93 


canal.  Woodward indicated that 9,890 acres of surface water irrigated lands have signed up for 94 


the lease program and the surface water portion of the lease agreement has the potential to 95 


provide 7,000 AF to the Program. 96 


 97 


Woodward explained that there was uncertainty regarding the availability of excess flows during 98 


the first part of October.  The October hydrologic condition designation is typically not available 99 


until the 15th of the month and dictates the target flows for the month.  There was discussion 100 


about the methodology used to determine excess flows and potential ways to provide earlier 101 


hydrologic condition designations.  The ED Office will review the methodologies used to 102 


determine excess flows and alternative hydrologic condition designation approaches and 103 


provide suggestions at the next WAC meeting. 104 


 105 
CNPPID Water Leasing:  Jerry Kenny, ED 106 


Kenny presented the two lease concepts being discussed with the CNPPID and explained that 107 


one involves transferring storage water in McConaughy from the CNPPID’s account into the 108 


environmental account (EA) and the other involves developing lease agreements directly with 109 


irrigators in the CNPPID system.  The CNPPID would act as the broker between the Program 110 


and the CNPPID for the second leasing concept.  Further discussions between the Program and 111 


the CNPPID are expected to occur in the coming months.  The question of how to deal with 112 


depletions associated with increased groundwater use resulting in surface water leased by the 113 


Program has not been addressed at this time. 114 


 115 
NPNRD Water Leasing:  Jerry Kenny, ED 116 


Kenny summarized a potential water lease in the North Platte Natural Resources District 117 


(NPNRD) on a Ducks Unlimited (DU) property.  The project is in preliminary investigations and 118 


involves changing the groundwater pumping scheme to increase river flows.   119 


 120 


Republican Basin Supreme Court Case: Jessy Bradley, DNR  121 


Bradley described the Supreme Court Case and explained there is not a significant impact of the 122 


Republican River Basin Supreme Court case on the Platte River or the Program.  If the case isn’t 123 


resolved it may impact accounting procedures for projects that impact the Republican basin, such 124 


as the Elwood Reservoir seepage project. 125 


 126 


Surface & Groundwater Interaction in the South Platte Basin:  Doug Hallum, University of 127 


Nebraska-Lincoln 128 


Hallum presented initial results of a groundwater and surface water monitoring project along the 129 


lower portion of the South Platte River in Nebraska.  The project seeks to better identify which 130 


reaches of the river are gaining or losing on both a temporal and spatial basis.  The monitoring 131 


effort used existing river gages at Julesburg, Roscoe, and North Platte, and added surface water 132 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  10/21/2014 
 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Water Advisory Committee before approval.   
PRRIP WAC Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 


 


 


stage gages near Big Springs, Brule, Ogallala, Roscoe, Paxton, and Hershey.  Existing shallow 133 


and deep groundwater wells were equipped with data loggers near the river stage gages. 134 


 135 


Permitting Processes for Changes in Surface Water, Groundwater & Comingled Lands:  136 
Jesse Bradley, NDNR 137 


Bradley provided an overview of the permitting process and depletion mitigation associated with 138 


a variety of transfer scenarios between surface water, groundwater, and comingled irrigated 139 


lands.  Permitting does not capture all potential sources of new depletions and the DNR uses a 140 


“Robust Review” process to account for all new depletions in conjunction with the integrated 141 


management plan (IMP) process.  Robust Reviews are intended to occur every five years and 142 


consider irrigated acres, consumptive use, operational changes, Natural Resources District 143 


(NRD) actions, and other factors to determine current depletions and compare them to 1997 144 


depletions.  The COHYST or Western Water Use (WWU) models are used in the Robust review.  145 


Increases in depletions above the 1997 level require mitigation by either the DNR or the NRDs. 146 


 147 


Bradley fielded several questions relating to depletions associated with Program leases.  He 148 


indicated that new mitigations will be the NRD’s responsibility and the DNR can only protect 149 


transferred surface water reflecting the net effect of the transfer after depletions have been taken 150 


into account.   Bradley suggested that depletions mitigation be included in Program lease 151 


agreements unless an alternative approach could be approved by the US Fish and Wildlife 152 


Service (FWS).  Econopouly indicated the FWS would not be likely to overlook monthly 153 


depletions in light of an annual benefit.  Kenny indicated the Program will work with the 154 


Nebraska Public Power District (NPPD) and the CPNRD on a depletions analysis on the NPPD 155 


lease. 156 


 157 


2015 Draft Water Plan Budget:  Jerry Kenny, ED, Sira Sartori, ED Office, and Scott 158 


Griebling, ED Office 159 


Kenny, Sartori, and Griebling presented the 2015 draft water plan work plan and budget.  160 


Expected activities, budget details, and various assumptions were presented for each budget line 161 


item. Comments and input were invited, and the process for budget approval moving forward 162 


was explained. 163 


 164 


Additional Business:  Cory Steinke, ED 165 


The 2015 meeting schedule was presented and no objections to the proposed dates were raised.  166 


The 2015 schedule is posted on the WAC website. The next WAC meeting is scheduled for 167 


February 3, 2015, at 9:30 am (Mountain Time) at the Lake McConaughy Visitors Center.  168 


 169 


Action Items 170 
ED Office 171 


 The ED Office will review the methodologies used to determine excess flows and 172 


alternative hydrologic condition designation approaches and provide suggestions at the 173 


next WAC meeting. 174 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/20/2014 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 3 


 
PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


Technical Advisory Committee Conference Call Minutes 
November 5, 2014 


 
Meeting Participants 


Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Table 


State of Colorado     
Suzanne Sellers – (Chair)  


 


State of Wyoming    
Jeff Geyer – Member 


 


State of Nebraska    
Jesse Bradley – Member 


 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service)   
Matt Rabbe – Member 


 


Bureau of Reclamation (BOR)  


Brock Merrill – Member 


 


Environmental Entities    
Rich Walters – Member 


 


Upper Platte Water Users 


 


Colorado Water Users 


Kevin Urie – Member 


 


Downstream Water Users 
Mark Czaplewski – Member 


Mark Peyton – Member 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 


Chad Smith 


Jason Farnsworth 


Dave Baasch 


Trevor Hefley 


 


Other Participants 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/20/2014 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 3 


 


Welcome and Administrative 


Sellers called the meeting to order and the group proceeded with a roll call.   


Minutes  


Sellers asked the group if they had any additional changes to the August 2014 TAC minutes; no 


edits suggested.  Urie moved to approve the August, 2014 TAC Meeting Minutes; Merrill 


seconded motion; all approved. 


FY2015 Program Budget and Work Plan 


Smith led the discussion and went through the Program’s 2015 Budget items related to Adaptive 


Management Plan.  


 LP2 – Baasch stated the EDO would include an additional $50,000 to the budget to cover costs 


associated with mechanically creating ~5 additional acres of LTPP nesting habitat on the east 


sandpit at Newark. 


 PD15 – No comment 


 PD18 – No comment 


 PD22 – No comment 


 G2 – No comment 


 G5 – No comment  


 H2 – No comment 


 IMRP 2 – Farnsworth stated money in the line item for 1-D model update would be removed. 


 IMRP3 – No comment 


 IMRP5 – No comment 


 IMRP6 – No comment 


 PD8 – No comment 


 TP1 – Baasch stated a new contractor would be selected through the Program’s competitive 


selection process and that we anticipate a need for 5 technicians plus Staci Cahis (EDO) to 


maintain the elevated inside monitoring and banding efforts. 


 WC1 – Baasch stated a new contractor would be selected through the Program’s competitive 


selection process for the fall 2015 monitoring effort.  AIM (current contractor) stated he wasn’t 


interested in a multi-year contract, however, a couple of other individuals have expressed 


interest in submitting a proposal.  Baasch stated the TAC would have serious discussions about 


the value in collecting continuous use monitoring data given the complications with the analyses 


and that eliminating that portion of the protocol would reduce the budget considerably. 


 WC3 – No comment  


 WC6 – No comment 


 ISAC1 – Smith stated David Galat was willing to commit to serving 1 more year on the ISAC 


and that Dave Marmorek’s term is up and the EDO recommends extending his term through the 


end of the first increment. Urie, Czaplewski, and Sellers expressed support for the EDO 


recommendation. 


 PD3 – No comment 


 PD11- Smith stated the AMP Reporting session would be held in Denver during 2015. 


 PD21 – No comment 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/20/2014 


This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are 
made by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
PRRIP TAC Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 3 


 


Summary of Decisions from November 2014 TAC Conference Call Meeting 


1) Approved minutes from the August 2014 TAC meeting. 


2) EDO discussed FY2015 AMP Budget line items and Work Plan and there was little discussion. 


3) 2015 AMP Reporting Session will be held in Denver. 


 








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/04/2014 


 


 
This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are made by the 


Finance Committee before approval.  
PRRIP November 4, 2014 FC Minutes  Page 1 of 2 


 
 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 


Finance Committee Conference Call Minutes 2 


November 4, 2014 3 


 4 


Meeting Attendees 5 


 6 


Finance Committee (FC)    Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 7 


State of Wyoming     Jerry Kenny, Executive Director (ED) 8 


Harry LaBonde – Member    Jason Farnsworth 9 


        Bruce Sackett 10 


State of Colorado     Sira Sartori 11 


Suzanne Sellers – Member    Chad Smith 12 


        13 


State of Nebraska      14 


Jim Schneider – Member     15 


        16 


Bureau of Reclamation (BOR)  17 


Brock Merrill – proxy for GC Chair Campbell 18 


 19 


U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (Service) 20 


None 21 


 22 


Environmental Entities 23 


None 24 


 25 


Colorado Water Users 26 


Kevin Urie – Member 27 


 28 


Downstream Water Users 29 


Don Kraus – Member 30 


 31 


Welcome and Administrative 32 


Merrill (proxy for FC Chair Campbell) called the meeting to order at 2:06 p.m. Central time.  The group 33 


proceeded with introductions. 34 


 35 


LaBonde moved to approve the August 18, 2014 FC minutes; Schneider seconded.  Minutes approved. 36 


 37 


PRRIP FY15 Draft Budget and Work Plan 38 


Kenny discussed the latest version of the draft FY15 budget and work plan.  Merrill said the provisional 39 


rate used in GFC-1 is tough to use since everything is based on J-2 expenditures.  He recommended 40 


Kenny talk to Diane Wilson at the NCF to see if they could use a number based on a more normal budget 41 


of $9-$10 million.  Kenny agreed and said he would change numbers accordingly for the GC meeting 42 


next week if necessary.  Sellers asked who the contractor is currently doing the permitting for work at the 43 


North Platte choke point. 44 


 45 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/04/2014 


 


 
This document is a draft based on one person's notes of the meeting. The official meeting minutes may be different if corrections are made by the 


Finance Committee before approval.  
PRRIP November 4, 2014 FC Minutes  Page 2 of 2 


 
 


Kenny said EA.  Kraus asked about the scope of the choke point projects and Kevin with CNPPID would 46 


like to see is more clearing and vegetation removal.  Kenny said that is part of the estimate in the FY15 47 


budget.  That is not subject to permitting so that work can be completed as soon as possible in 2015.  48 


Kraus said on Page 35 of the work plan he wanted to better understand the projection and summary of the 49 


budget.  Kenny clarified how the $2.5 million cap for CNPPID is reflected in the Page 35 table and Kraus 50 


agreed with the explanation.  Kraus said in principle regarding NPNRD water leasing, there are still 51 


discussions with the state regarding returning to 1997 levels or better and the competition with producers 52 


that exist when trying to restore inflows.  This is part of the Integrated Management Planning process. 53 


 54 


Kraus said it looks like an aggressive program for next year.  In terms of follow up from the AMP 55 


Reporting Session, does this draft FY15 budget include any funding for a target flow process?  Smith said 56 


the ISAC will be recommending to the GC in December that the Program undertake a different process 57 


than what they recommended in 2012 and thus there is not a need at this time to build any money into the 58 


budget for 2015 to work on target flow-related issues. 59 


 60 


Closing Business 61 


Kenny said the need for the next FC meeting would likely not be until January 2015.  The FC agreed to 62 


schedule a January call when everyone is together in Denver on December 12 for the GC Special Session. 63 


 64 


Sellers asked if the work plan and budget would be revised before going to the GC tomorrow.  Kenny 65 


said yes. 66 


 67 


FC meeting adjourned at 3:16 p.m. Central time. 68 


 69 


Summary of Action Items/Decisions from November 4, 2014 FC meeting 70 


1) Approved the August 18, 2014 FC minutes. 71 


2) Agreed to set next FC meeting for January 2015 during GC meeting in Denver on November 12, 72 


2014. 73 








          Platte River Implementation Program
                 Governance Committee Monthly Financial Status Report


 
 


Expenditures
Through BY 2013


BY 2014 Budgets
to Date


Expenditures
for BY 2014


2014 Budget 
remaining


11/20/14


Executive Director's Office $11,413,102.67 $2,360,000.00 $13,773,102.67 $1,820,048.44 $539,951.56


Governance Committee /Finance Committee $1,872,695.49 $326,700.00 $2,199,395.49 $150,381.18 $176,318.82


Program Advisory Committees $21,068.93 $7,500.00 $28,568.93 $2,342.50 $5,157.50


Land Plan Implementation $23,852,740.31 $1,762,500.00 $25,615,240.31 $489,209.95 $1,273,290.05


Water Plan Implementation $21,075,461.10 $17,258,323.00 $38,333,784.10 $155,178.17 $17,103,144.83


AMP Experimental Design $2,992,868.81 $0.00 $2,992,868.81 $274,780.30 ($274,780.30)


AMP Implementation Activities $4,222,734.97 $957,080.00 $5,179,814.97 $327,222.99 $629,857.01


Integrated Monitoring & Research Plan Activities $10,634,436.65 $2,037,308.00 $12,671,744.65 $1,719,496.12 $317,811.88


AMP Independent Science Review $1,022,229.84 $552,500.00 $1,574,729.84 $143,222.54 $409,277.46


$77,107,338.77 $25,261,911.00 $102,369,249.77


 BUDGET SUMMARY:
Budgets Adjusted Through BY2013*


BY 2014 Budget:


Budgets to Date:


Expenditures to Date:


"Available" Budget


CASHFLOW SUMMARY:


$5,081,882.19 $20,180,028.81


$77,107,338.77


$25,261,911.00


$102,369,249.77


$82,189,220.96


$20,180,028.81


Contributions     Income Total Expenditures Balance


$25,420,657.32Colorado $914,977.46 $26,335,634.78 $10,537,621.55 $15,798,013.23


$66,588,085.66 $1,722,288.01Department of Interior $69,014,313.73$68,310,373.67 ($703,940.06)


$2,691,938.48 $79,820.98Wyoming $2,637,285.67$2,771,759.46 $134,473.79


$94,700,681.46 $2,717,086.45 $97,417,767.91 $82,189,220.95 $15,228,546.96


Percentage of 
Expenditures Allocated 


to Date


Percentage due per 
Contractual 
Obligation


12.82%Colorado


83.97%


3.21%


Department of Interior


Wyoming


12.82%


   3.21%


83.97%








PRRIP Budget/Expenditures by year 


11/20/14


2008 
Expenditures


2009 
Expenditures


2010 
Expenditures


2011 
Expenditures


2012 
Expenditures


2007 
Expenditures


2013
Expenditures


2014
Budget


2014
Expenditures


Executive Director's Office


ED-1 $348,673.30 $1,220,138.33 $1,535,891.24 $1,650,847.94 $1,725,903.82 $1,845,945.69Salaries/Travel/Office Expenditures (FY8-FY19) $1,903,370.23 $2,200,000.00 $1,704,878.70


ED-2 $210,292.78 $90,468.91 $156,323.84 $88,096.51 $152,262.30 $172,961.05Administrative and Other Support Services (FY8-FY19) $63,318.90 $100,000.00 $57,563.24


ED-3 $30,310.63 $32,606.70 $50,381.58 $70,335.38Public Outreach (FY9-FY19) $64,973.54 $60,000.00 $57,606.50


$558,966.08 $1,310,607.24 $1,722,525.71 $1,771,551.15 $1,928,547.70 $2,089,242.12Project Totals $2,031,662.67 $2,360,000.00 $1,820,048.44


Governance Committee /Finance Committee


GFC-1 $22,147.61 $77,178.48 $235,881.20 $206,470.89 $195,565.15 $327,323.13NCF fees (FY8-FY19) $414,896.52 $250,000.00 $69,764.12


GFC-2 $2,448.21 $41,834.00 $56,394.00 $62,632.00 $69,026.00 $64,870.55Pulse Flow and Other Insurance (FY8-FY19) $74,531.00 $75,000.00 $77,212.00


GFC-3 $1,001.82 $1,500.12 $3,378.95 $499.92 $2,720.26 $9,269.33Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY8-FY19) $3,126.35 $1,700.00 $3,405.06


GFC-4 Pulse Flow Reserve (FY9-FY19) $0.00


$25,597.64 $120,512.60 $295,654.15 $269,602.81 $267,311.41 $401,463.01Project Totals $492,553.87 $326,700.00 $150,381.18


Program Advisory Committees


LAC-1 $201.36 $414.04 $245.56 $785.40 $1,283.14Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY8-FY19) $921.36 $1,600.00 $555.28


WAC-1 $23.56 $2,330.90 $5,457.54Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY8-FY19) $1,731.62 $3,500.00 $897.60


TAC-1 $820.00 $75.00 $864.30 $1,231.56 $2,246.87Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY8-FY19) $2,436.72 $2,400.00 $889.62


$1,021.36 $512.60 $1,109.86 $4,347.86 $8,987.55Project Totals $5,089.70 $7,500.00 $2,342.50


Land Plan Implementation


LP-1 $0.00


LP-3 $57,235.61 $8,875,890.01 $3,335,269.11 $2,108,612.42 $6,395,100.41Land Acquisition (FY9-FY12) $875,844.32 $1,500,000.00 $247,977.31


LP-4 $116,216.05 $587,818.14 $366,316.52 $314,190.47Land Management (FY9-FY19) $282,723.31 $192,500.00 $239,844.14


LP-5 $25,576.24 $48,087.64 $171,130.79Cottonwood Ranch Bridge Final Design & Construction (FY10) $0.00


LP-6 $59,115.02 $48,726.16 $15,717.64Land Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19) $19,105.45 $20,000.00


LP-7 $50,000.00 $50,000.00Public Access Management (FY11-FY19) $50,065.00 $50,000.00 $1,388.50


$57,235.61 $9,017,682.30 $4,030,289.91 $2,744,785.89 $6,775,008.52Project Totals $1,227,738.08 $1,762,500.00 $489,209.95


Water Plan Implementation


WP-1(a) $110,690.94 $10,805.50 $149,886.60 $36,104.18 $36,789.63 $28,297.28Active Channel Capacity Improvements (N Platte Channel above CNPPID Diversion Da $180,167.27 $260,000.00 $16,056.72


WP-1(b) $400,000.00 $200,000.00 $200,000.00Active Channel Capacity Improvements ( CNPPID Diversion Dam to Grand Island) $200,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00


WP-2(a) $119,016.12 $5,969.84Water Management Study Phase 1 (FY7-FY8) $0.00


WP-2(b) $150,000.00Water Management Study Phase II (FY8) $0.00


WP-3 $23,471.00Test Flow Routing Model/2008 EA Augmented SDHF Pilot Study (FY9) $0.00


WP-4 $29,272.57Water Action Plan (FY9-FY19) $0.00


WP-4(a) $223,820.22Water Action Plan (J2 Rereg Reservoir) (FY09-FY19) $14,612,380.23 $14,392,000.00


WP-4(b)i $6,790.86Water Action Plan (Phelps recharge) $151,050.00 $88,296.00


WP-4(b)ii Water Action Plan (CPNRD recharge) $26,250.00


WP-
4(b)iii


Water Action Plan (other recharge)


WP-4(c)i Water Action Plan No Cost NCCW $0.00


WP-4(c)ii Water Action Plan (Purchased NCCW $1,854,667.00


WP-4(d) $1,958,400.00Water Action Plan (Pathfinder Municipal Accnt) (FY12)


WP-4(e)  Water Action Plan (CO GW Mgmnt) (FY16-FY19)


WP-4(f)i  Water Action Plan (CPNRD Leasing) (FY12-FY19) $34,156.50 $148,750.00


WP-4(f)ii Water Action Plan (CPNRD leasing) $198,360.00


WP-4(f)iii Water Action Plan (other leasing)


WP-4(g)  Water Action Plan (Water Mgmnt Incentives) (FY16-FY19)


WP-4(h) Water Action Plan (NE GW Mgmnt) (FY12-FY19) $47,091.78 $0.00


WP-5  Management Tool (FY10) $3,520.71 $90,000.00 $5,175.80


WP-6 $392,539.35 $486,884.73 $625,483.22 $133,455.96Feasibility Studies (FY09) $0.00


WP-7 Water Acquisition (FY09-FY11) $0.00


WP-8 $92,651.89 $141,029.41 $143,385.55Water Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19) $58,984.48 $100,000.00 $33,945.65







2008 
Expenditures


2009 
Expenditures


2010 
Expenditures


2011 
Expenditures


2012 
Expenditures


2007 
Expenditures


2013
Expenditures


2014
Budget


2014
Expenditures


WP-9 $30,109.77 $17,147.85 $36,107.66Miscellaneous Water Resources Studies (FY10)


WP-11 $0.00


$253,178.06 $166,775.34 $571,698.52 $1,045,750.57 $1,020,450.11 $2,730,257.53Project Totals $15,287,350.97 $17,258,323.00 $155,178.17


AMP Experimental Design


PD-4 $9,599.55 $49,025.72 $274.09AMP Workshops (FY09-FY19) $0.00


PD-12 $348,094.61 $177,467.55Model Application (FY09-FY12) $1,997.10 $0.00


PD-13 $89,208.79 $320,791.21 $145,831.72 $505,117.78Sediment Augmentation Feasibility Analysis, Design, and Permitting (FY09-FY12) $681,104.94 $0.00 $237,060.30


PD-14 $20,000.00Whooping Crane Conservation Action Plan (CAP) Development (FY09) $0.00


PD-19 $81,677.06 $104,277.64 $59,500.76Flow Consolidation Conceptual Design 10-11) $43,042.60 $0.00 $37,720.00


PD-20 $31,375.94 $203,614.19Wet Meadow Restoration  on Tract 2009001 (FY11-FY12) $120,867.56 $0.00


EXD-1 $0.00


$9,599.55 $49,025.72 $109,482.88 $750,562.88 $458,952.85 $768,232.73Project Totals $847,012.20 $0.00 $274,780.30


AMP Implementation Activities


IA-1 $13,620.15AMWG $0.00


LP-2 $3,675.00 $187,879.35 $493,536.21 $650,585.59 $744,190.85FSM/MCM Actions at Habitat Complexes (FY08-FY19) $333,469.40 $432,080.00 $264,722.99


LP-2(a) $251,710.102007 Cottonwood Maintainance $0.00


LP-2(b) $848,836.22Pre-2007 Cottonwood Ranch Maint. $0.00


PD-7 Program Anchor Points (FY09) $0.00


PD-15 $50,000.00 $127,993.21 $30,162.13AMP Permits (FY09-FY19) $31,287.93 $50,000.00


PD-16 Invasives Strategy (FY09-FY19) $0.00


PD-18 $130,697.22 $33,419.07 $1,983.66 $66,000.00AMP-Related Equipment (FY09-FY19) $66,000.00 $75,000.00 $62,500.00


PD-22 Sediment Augmentation Feasibility Analysis, Design, and Permitting (FY09-FY12) $400,000.00


WP-10 $46,872.33 $67,876.55Environmental Account SDHF (FY08-FY19) $42,940.00 $0.00


$17,295.15 $1,147,418.65 $386,453.12 $576,955.28 $780,562.46 $840,352.98Project Totals $473,697.33 $957,080.00 $327,222.99


Integrated Monitoring & Research Plan Activities


G-1 $250,000.00 $41,000.00 $94,150.00LiDAR Implementation (FY09-FY19) $183,100.00 $118,100.00 $53,100.00


G-2 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,850.00 $22,309.50 $22,309.50Aerial Photography (FY08-FY19) $0.00


G-3 Revise & Update Geomorphology Monitoring Protocol (FY07-FY08) $0.00


G-4 Develop Scope of Work for 2008 System-Level Geomorphic Monitoring $0.00


G-5 $380,500.00 $320,163.00 $414,654.25 $511,456.64Geomorphology/In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring (FY09-FY19) $517,652.59 $495,000.00 $442,167.35


H-2 $6,885.00 $20,807.14 $23,194.24 $47,150.49 $32,994.01 $28,374.81Program Stream Gages (FY08-FY19) $18,869.38 $38,000.00 $32,333.12


H-4,5 Unsteady Flow Model Calibration (FY07) $0.00


IMRP-1 SDHF Monitoring (FY09-FY19) $0.00 $80.60


IMRP-2 $93,684.44 $38,712.82 $221,712.19 $172,182.70AMP Directed Research Projects (FY09-FY19) $308,266.07 $117,000.00 $130,126.01


IMRP-3 $127,732.32 $129,371.60 $54,460.53Adaptive Management Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19) $43,575.89 $75,000.00 $32,041.50


IMRP-4 $248,828.11 $200,971.69FSM "Proof of Concept" Activities @ Elm Creek Complex (FY11-FY16) $268,157.77 $0.00 $20,551.51


IMRP-5 $25,098.27FMS "Proof of Concept" Activities @ Shoemaker Island $340,614.92 $319,100.00 $339,895.64


IMRP-6 $20,000.00Habitat Availability Analysis $147,227.00 $36,000.00


PD-8 $125,000.00 $72,849.67 $453,767.64 $154,925.53 $151,460.90Database Management System Development & Maintenance (FY08-FY19) $109,982.54 $105,000.00 $106,158.97


PS-1 $30,979.25Pallid Sturgeon Existing Information Review/Summary (FY08) $0.00


PS-2 $2,336.36 $46,458.42 $168,195.10 $10,633.50Lower Platte River Stage Change Study (FY08-FY09) $0.00


TP-1 $52,599.56 $210,085.04 $233,439.79Tern & Plover Monitoring (FY08-FY19) $266,780.19 $325,000.00 $235,033.33


TP-2 Finish Forage Fish Monitoring Protocol (FY07-FY08) $0.00


TP-3 Forage Fish Monitoring (FY08-FY19) $0.00


TP-4 $100,355.96 $139,645.92Tern & Plover Foraging Habits Study (FY09-FY10) $0.00


TP-5 $37,638.22Analysis of CA-Collected Tern/Plover Monitoring Data (FY08) $0.00


WC-1 $126,521.20 $111,438.30 $135,637.58 $132,917.31 $186,779.28 $208,492.87Whooping Crane Monitoring(FY 08-FY19) $260,171.18 $275,000.00 $229,936.71


WC-2 $32,497.42 $6,454.48Analysis of CA-Collected Whooping Crane Monitoring Data (FY08) $0.00


WC-3 $125,000.00 $125,000.00 $41,999.99 $143,615.93Whooping Crane Telemetry Tracking (FY09-FY12) $57,856.80 $35,500.00 $22,631.60


WC-4 $4,360.00 $23,120.00Water Surface Estimation at Crane Use Sites (FY07-FY08) $0.00


WC-5 $18,750.00IGERT Whooping Crane Habitat Selection Project $6,250.00 $0.00


WC-6 Whooping Crane Stopover Site Evaluation Project (FY13-FY15) $91,643.05 $98,608.00 $14,854.11


WMV-1 $10,334.40 $5,196.36Vegetation Mapping Effort (FY07-FY08) $0.00


WMV-2 $50,000.00Wet Meadows Information Review and CEM Refinement (FY10) $0.00


WQ-1 $40,000.00 $175,043.20 $176,747.30 $225,022.39 $156,084.25Water Quality Monitoring (FY09-FY11) $173,352.90 $0.00 $60,585.67







2008 
Expenditures


2009 
Expenditures


2010 
Expenditures


2011 
Expenditures


2012 
Expenditures


2007 
Expenditures


2013
Expenditures


2014
Budget


2014
Expenditures


$192,934.38 $707,092.17 $1,295,310.19 $1,647,379.36 $1,979,681.89 $2,018,538.38Project Totals $2,793,500.28 $2,037,308.00 $1,719,496.12


AMP Independent Science Review


ISAC-1 $126,168.07 $129,192.27 $178,034.77 $191,375.02ISAC Stipends & Expenses (FY09-FY19) $166,642.44 $200,000.00 $126,737.32


ISAC-2 $12,138.65 $1,250.93Meetings, Expenses, etc. (FY08) $0.00


ISAC-3 Initial Establishment /Planning Session Expenses (FY08) $0.00


PD-3 $49,500.00 $59,845.50 $43,046.75AMP & IMRP Peer Review (FY09-FY19) $8,940.75 $318,500.00


PD-11 $24,340.91 $7,192.33 $11,399.38AMP Reporting (FY09-FY19) $13,162.07 $14,000.00 $9,137.62


PD-21 PRRIP Publications $20,000.00 $7,347.60


$187,806.72 $153,533.18 $246,323.53 $245,821.15Project Totals $188,745.26 $552,500.00 $143,222.54


$1,058,592.22 $3,559,179.93 $13,587,723.45 $10,245,625.14 $9,430,963.70 $15,877,903.97Grand Total $23,347,350.36 $25,261,911.00 $5,081,882.19








Payments by Complex/Parcel - calendar year 2014


Complex Property Crop Income Hay/Pasture 
Income Mscl Income* Royalty 


Income Total Income


Plum Creek 2009007 10,554.60$     
2009003 1,000.00$       
2009003 500.00$         


Totals 10,554.60$     1,000.00$       500.00$         12,054.60$             


Cottonwood Ranch 2008002
2010001 2,211.70$       
2010001 12,602.00$     
2009006 3,170.00$       


Totals -$                17,983.70$     -$               17,983.70$             


Elm Creek 2009002 7,930.00$       
2012001 15,990.00$     
2012001 1,428.00$       
2012002 8,000.00$      
2012002 330.00$         
2012002 8,100.00$       
2009005 2,000.00$       


Totals 16,030.00$     19,418.00$     8,330.00$      43,778.00$             


Ft. Kearney 2008001 5,000.00$       
2012003 11,100.00$     
2012003 1,400.00$       


Totals 11,100.00$     6,400.00$       -$               17,500.00$             


Shoemaker Island 2010004 5,500.00$       
2010004 4,050.00$       
2010004 11,500.00$     
2010004 1,400.00$       
2010004 6,500.00$       







Totals -$                28,950.00$     28.00$           28,978.00$             


Grand Total Complex 120,294.30$    


Non-Complex Property Crop Income Hay/Pasture 
Income Mscl Income* Royalty 


Income Total Income


DeBore 2012004 3,000.00$       
2012004 3,287.90$       


Totals 3,000.00$       3,287.90$       -$               6,287.90$               


Broadfoot 2009008 1,525.00$       
2009008


Totals 1,525.00$       -$                -$               -$             1,525.00$               


Liehs 2013001
2013001  $         944.56 


Totals -$                -$                944.56$         944.56$                  


Leaman East 2011001
Totals -$                -$                -$               -$                        


Alda 2011002 5,550.00$       
2011002 2,058.07$    


Totals 5,550.00$       -$                -$               2,058.07$    7,608.07$               


Grand Total Non-Complex 16,365.53$      


Grand Total All Income 136,659.83$    
*Mscl Income includes Long term leases, FSA payments and Sponsorship rents.






Sheet1

		Task/Contract Name		Estimated FY14 Cost		PRRIP Budget Line Item		Approved FY14 PRRIP Budget Amount		FY14 PRRIP Budget Available (approved budget less previous commitments)		Contract Entity		Previous GC, FC, or Advisory Committee Action		Requested GC Action		December 2014 GC Meeting Document Reference

		1st Quarter 2014

		Geomorph & Veg Monitoring		$   495,000.00		G-5		$   495,000.00		$   495,000.00		Tetra Tech		FC approved contract amendment in January 2014		N/A

		Shoemaker Island FSM		$   319,100.00		IMRP-5		$   319,100.00		$   319,100.00		EA		FC approved contract amendment in January 2014		N/A

		Elm Creek Island Rebuild		$   40,000.00		LP-2		$   432,080.00		$   432,080.00		TBD		FC approved bid package in January 2014		N/A

		Program Database		$   101,203.65		PD-8		$   105,000.00		$   105,000.00		RTI		FC approved contract amendment in January 2014		N/A

		Tern/Plover Monitoring		$   267,803.57		TP-1		$   325,000.00		$   275,000.00		USGS		FC approved contract amendment in January 2014		N/A

		Independent Science Review Services		$   100,500.00		PD-3		$   318,500.00		$   318,500.00		TBD		GC approved RFP in February 2014		N/A

		2014 ISAC Agreements		$   100,500.00		PD-3		$   318,500.00		$   318,500.00		ISAC Members		FC approved contract amendment in January 2014		N/A

		State Channel Flood Proofing		$   38,400.00		WP-1(a)		$   260,000.00		$   260,000.00		EA		FC approved contract amendment in January 2014		N/A

		Water Management Projects Modeling		$   90,000.00		WP-5		$   90,000.00		$   90,000.00		COHYST		FC approved contract in January 2014 subject to GC approval of sole source		N/A

		2nd Quarter 2014

		ISR Services		$   93,140.00		PD-3		$   100,500.00		$   100,500.00		RESPEC		GC approved multi-year contract in June 2014		N/A

		Shoemaker Island FSM		$   18,555.00		IMRP-5		$   319,100.00		$   319,100.00		EA		FC approved contract amendment in June 2014		N/A

		Veg. Research Manuscript Preparation		$   24,606.00		PD-3		$   31,050.00		$   31,050.00		Cardno Entrix		FC approved task order in June 2014		N/A

		3rd Quarter 2014

		Fall Disking RFQ		$   71,000.00		LP-2		$   71,000.00		$   432,080.00		N/A		FC approved the RFQ by electronic vote in July 2014		N/A

		Permitting RFP		$   50,000.00		PD-15		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		N/A		FC recommended moving RFP on to GC for review and approval in August 2014		N/A

		Tern/Plover Chapters Peer Review		$   80,000.00		PD-3		$   318,500.00		$   318,500.00		N/A		GC approved FY14 budget in December 2013		N/A

		4th Quarter 2014

		Permitting Services RFP		$   50,000.00		PD-15		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		HDR		GC approved RFP in September 2014; Proposal Selection Panel made contractor selection during week of November 17, 2014		Approve Permitting Services Contract		16 – PRRIP 2014-2016 Permitting Services Contract









Sheet2





Sheet3






Sheet2





2015 PRRIP Budget

		PRRIP Project ID		Status		PRRIP Project Description		FY 2007 Final Budget		FY 2007 Expenditures		FY 2008 Budget (New Money + FY 2007 UO)		FY 2008 Expenditures		FY 2009 Budget (New Money + FY 2008 UO)		FY 2009 Expenditures		FY 2010 Budget (New Money + FY 2009 UO)		FY 2010 Expenditures		FY 2011 Budget (New Money)		FY 2011 Expenditures		FY 2012 Budget (New Money)		FY 2012 Expenditures		FY2013 Budget (New Money)		FY 2013 Expenditures		FY 2014 Approved Budget		FY 2014 Expenditures (as of 11-20-14)		FY 2015 Budget New Money (estimated)		"Quick Reference" Comments on FY 2015 Estimated New Money Budget Numbers (see FY 2015 Work Plan for Full Description)		FY 2016 Estimated New Money		FY 2017 Estimated New Money		FY 2018 Estimated New Money		FY 2019 Estimated New Money

								Column A		Column A		Column C		Column B		Column E		Column C		Column G		Column D		Column I		Column E		Column F		Coulumn F		Column H		Column G		Column H		Column I		Column J		Column K		Column L		Column M		Column N		Column O

		Executive Director's Office (ED)

		ED-1		O		Salaries/Travel/Office Expenditures (FY08-FY19)		$   192,688.00		$   210,292.78		$   1,110,600.00		$   1,220,138.33		$   1,427,759.00		$   1,535,891.24		$   1,599,900.00		$   1,650,847.94		$   1,600,000.00		$   1,725,903.82		$   1,800,000.00		$   1,845,945.69		$   1,875,000.00		$   1,903,370.23		$   2,200,000.00		$   1,704,878.70		$   2,200,000.00		Salaries, travel, and other direct costs associated with ED and staff in ED Office		$   2,200,000.00		$   2,200,000.00		$   2,200,000.00		$   2,200,000.00

		ED-2		O		Administrative and Other Support Services (FY08-FY19)		$   411,861.00		$   348,673.30		$   170,614.52		$   87,493.91		$   250,000.00		$   156,323.84		$   200,000.00		$   88,096.51		$   200,000.00		$   152,262.30		$   150,000.00		$   172,961.05		$   150,000.00		$   63,318.90		$   100,000.00		$   57,563.24		$   100,000.00		Public notices, land and water specialty attorneys, and other miscellaneous services required to support ED efforts		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00

		ED-3		O		Public Outreach (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   30,000.00		$   30,310.63		$   40,000.00		$   32,606.70		$   50,000.00		$   50,381.58		$70,000		$   70,335.38		$65,000.00		$64,973.54		$60,000		$   57,606.50		$75,000		Exhibit fees, major sponsorships, other sponsorships, promotional materials		$70,000		$75,000		$70,000		$75,000

						Sub-Total		$   604,549.00		$   558,966.08		$   1,281,214.52		$   1,307,632.24		$   1,707,759.00		$   1,722,525.71		$   1,839,900.00		$   1,771,551.15		$   1,850,000.00		$   1,928,547.70		$   2,020,000.00		$   2,089,242.12		$   2,090,000.00		$   2,031,662.67		$   2,360,000.00		$   1,820,048.44		$   2,375,000.00		$   25,095,176.11		$   2,370,000.00		$   2,375,000.00		$   2,370,000.00		$   2,375,000.00



		Governance Committee/Finance Committee (GFC)

		GFC-1		O		NCF Fees (FY08-FY19)		$   75,000.00		$   22,147.61		$   100,000.00		$   77,178.48		$   255,000.00		$   235,881.20		$   260,000.00		$   206,470.89		$   300,000.00		$   195,565.15		$   450,000.00		$   327,323.13		$   450,000.00		$   414,896.52		$   250,000.00		$   69,764.12		$   290,000.00		Annual fees for Financial Management Entity; assumes expenditures about $25 million.		$   250,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00

		GFC-2		O		Pulse Flow and Other Insurance (FY08-FY19)		$   100,000.00		$   2,448.21		$   50,000.00		$   41,834.00		$   60,000.00		$   56,394.00		$   70,000.00		$   62,632.00		$   75,000.00		$   69,026.00		$   70,000.00		$   64,870.55		$   75,000.00		$   74,531.00		$   75,000.00		$   77,212.00		$   80,000.00		Program insurance for pulse flow and liability; insurance for vehicles and liability for airboat now on Headwaters		$   80,000.00		$   80,000.00		$   80,000.00		$   80,000.00

		GFC-3		O		Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY08-FY19)		$   5,000.00		$   1,001.82		$   5,000.00		$   1,500.12		$   5,000.00		$   3,378.95		$   5,000.00		$   499.92		$   1,000.00		$   2,720.26		$   1,500.00		$   9,269.33		$   1,500.00		$   3,126.35		$   1,700.00		$   3,405.06		$   3,100.00		Expenses associated with GC meetings outside of Kearney		$   3,100.00		$   3,100.00		$   3,100.00		$   3,100.00

		GFC-4		O		SDHF Reserve (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,000,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Annual reserve for potential EA bypass-related costs		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

						Sub-Total		$   180,000.00		$   25,597.64		$   155,000.00		$   120,512.60		$   1,320,000.00		$   295,654.15		$   335,000.00		$   269,602.81		$   376,000.00		$   267,311.41		$   521,500.00		$   401,463.01		$   526,500.00		$   492,553.87		$   326,700.00		$   150,381.18		$   373,100.00		$   3,353,576.67		$   333,100.00		$   208,100.00		$   208,100.00		$   208,100.00



		Program Advisory Committees

		LAC-1		O		Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY08-FY19)		$   7,500.00		$   201.36		$   7,500.00		$   414.04		$   7,500.00		$   245.56		$   7,500.00		$   - 0		$   1,000.00		$   785.40		$   1,500.00		$   1,283.14		$   2,000.00		$   921.36		$   1,600.00		$   555.28		$   1,100.00		Conference line charges for LAC meetings; other associated costs		$   1,100.00		$   1,100.00		$   1,100.00		$   1,100.00

		WAC-1		O		Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY08-FY19)		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   23.56		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   1,000.00		$   2,330.90		$   1,500.00		$   5,457.54		$   6,000.00		$   1,731.62		$   3,500.00		$   897.60		$   2,700.00		Conference line charges for WAC meetings; other associated costs		$   2,700.00		$   2,700.00		$   2,700.00		$   2,700.00

		TAC-1		O		Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. (FY08-FY19)		$   5,000.00		$   820.00		$   5,000.00		$   75.00		$   5,000.00		$   864.30		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   1,000.00		$   1,231.56		$   1,500.00		$   2,246.87		$   4,000.00		$   2,436.72		$   2,400.00		$   889.62		$   2,000.00		Conference line charges for TAC meetings; other associated costs		$   2,000.00		$   2,000.00		$   2,000.00		$   2,000.00

						Sub-Total		$   17,500.00		$   1,021.36		$   17,500.00		$   512.60		$   17,500.00		$   1,109.86		$   17,500.00		$   - 0		$   3,000.00		$   4,347.86		$   4,500.00		$   8,987.55		$   12,000.00		$   5,089.70		$   7,500.00		$   2,342.50		$   5,800.00		$   52,411.43		$   5,800.00		$   5,800.00		$   5,800.00		$   5,800.00



		Land Plan Implementation (LP)

		-		C		Land Interest Holding Entity Negotiations & Start-Up (FY07)		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-3		O		Land Acquisition (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   6,000,000.00		$   57,235.61		$   7,000,000.00		$   8,875,890.01		$   6,000,000.00		$   3,335,269.11		$   5,000,000.00		$   2,108,612.42		$   5,000,000.00		$   6,395,100.41		$   3,000,000.00		$   875,844.32		$   1,500,000.00		$   247,977.31		$   1,535,000.00		Land acquisition costs for balance of Palustrine Wetland acres; annual LIHE fees and property taxes.		$   500,000.00		$   500,000.00		$   300,000.00		$   300,000.00

		LP-4		O		Land Management (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   116,216.05		$   588,800.00		$   587,818.14		$   365,500.00		$   366,316.52		$   409,800.00		$   314,190.47		$   448,400.00		$   282,723.31		$   192,500.00		$   239,844.14		$   309,100.00		Basic land operations and maintenance including road, fence, and building upkeep, noxious weed control, mowing, etc. Agricultural input costs for share cropping agreements including seed, fertilizer and herbicide application, crop insurance, etc. Based on actual work bids for 2014 rates. 		$   310,000.00		$   310,000.00		$   310,000.00		$   310,000.00

		LP-5		C		Cottonwood Ranch Bridge Final Design & Construction (FY10)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   25,576.24		$   250,000.00		$   48,087.64		$   250,000.00		$   171,130.79		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-6		O		Land Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   59,115.02		$   150,000.00		$   48,726.16		$   120,000.00		$   15,717.64		$   50,000.00		$   19,105.45		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   20,000.00		Land-related specialty items such as land leases, Farm Service Agency (FSA) reporting, and rent collections on all complex and non-complex properties. Advisors shall continue annually on all land to the end of the First Increment. 2015 numbers based on projected 2014 actual costs.		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00

		LP-7		O		Public Access Management (FY11-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   55,000.00		$   50,065.00		$   50,000.00		$   1,388.50		$   50,000.00		Nebraska Game and Parks Commission is the contracted provider. 		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00

						Sub-Total		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   6,000,000.00		$   57,235.61		$   7,500,000.00		$   9,017,682.30		$   6,888,800.00		$   4,030,289.91		$   5,815,500.00		$   2,744,785.89		$   5,579,800.00		$   6,775,008.52		$   3,553,400.00		$   1,227,738.08		$   1,762,500.00		$   489,209.95		$   1,914,100.00		$   29,376,050.26		$   880,000.00		$   880,000.00		$   680,000.00		$   680,000.00



		Water Plan Implementation (WP)

		WP-1(a)		O		Active Channel Capacity Improvements (N. Platte Channel above CNPPID Diversion Dam) (FY07-FY17)		$   241,000.00		$   110,690.94		$   153,210.00		$   10,805.50		$   161,529.50		$   149,886.60		$   61,642.90		$   36,104.18		$   250,000.00		$   36,789.63		$   100,000.00		$   28,297.28		$   500,000.00		$   180,167.27		$   260,000.00		$   16,056.72		$   240,000.00		Efforts to increase North Platte River channel capacity including flood-risk reduction projects, vegetation clearing/disking and canal by-pass projects		$   1,000,000.00		$   1,000,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-1(b)		O		Active Channel Capacity Improvements (CNPPID Diversion Dam to Grand Island) (FY10-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   400,000.00		$   400,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   200,000.00		In-channel maintenance effort associated with the NET Grant Application for the Platte River Management and Enhancement; joint project effort with the NRDs, Program and other participants		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00

		WP-2(a)		C		Water Management Study Phase 1 (FY07-FY08)		$   124,000.00		$   119,016.12		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-2(b)		C		Water Management Study Phase II (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   157,000.00		$   155,969.84		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-3		C		Test Flow Routing Model/2008 EA Augmented SDHF Pilot Study (FY09)		$   75,000.00		$   23,471.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   65,678.08		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-4(a)		O		Water Action Plan (J2 Rereg Reservoir) (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   29,272.57		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   5,100,000.00		$   - 0		$   9,000,000.00		$   223,820.22		$   13,000,000.00		$   14,612,380.23		$   14,392,000.00		$   - 0		$   14,392,000.00		Reservoir construction cost (3-year budget from 2015-2017); construction anticipated in 2018		$   14,392,000.00		$   14,392,000.00		$   250,000.00		$   250,000.00

		WP-4(b)		O		Water Action Plan (CNPPID system groundwater projects) (FY15-FY19)				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   6,790.86				$   151,050.00		$   88,296.00		$   - 0		$   310,146.02		Phelps Cty Canal groundwater recharge project and groundwater recharge pumping project included in this line item		$   165,930.92		$   172,116.42		$   178,605.47		$   185,414.40

		WP-4(c)i		C		No Cost NCCW		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,500,000.00		$   - 0		$   26,250.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-4(c)ii		O		Purchased NCCW																										$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Not anticipated at this time.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-4(d)		C		Water Action Plan (Pathfinder Municipal Accnt) (FY12)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   2,000,000.00		$   1,958,400.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-4(e)		O		 Water Action Plan (CO GW Mgmnt) (FY16-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,854,667.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		Out-year costs only.		$   569,620.25		$   569,620.25		$   569,620.25		$   569,620.25

		WP-4(f)i		O		Water Action Plan (CPNRD surface & groundwater leasing & acquisition) (FY15-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   34,156.50		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,035,137.84		Lease with the CPNRD for transferred surface water rights (consumptive use portion) and groundwater recharge accretions from excess flows. Permanent acquisition of 40 AF of surface water from irrigator in CPNRD. 		$   959,929.43		$   996,292.58		$   1,034,314.01		$   1,074,086.03

		WP-4(f)ii		O		Water Action Plan (NPPD leasing) (FY15-FY19)				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   147,663.96		Potential lease with the NPPD for transferred relinquished surface water rights. Budget includes cost for offset water to mitigate depletions from groundwater irrigation on lands.		$   138,557.55		$   143,391.51		$   148,399.31		$   153,589.35

		WP-4(f)iii		O		Water Action Plan (CNPPID leasing-storage) (FY15-FY19)				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   148,750.00		$   - 0		$   625,000.00		Potential lease with the CNPPID for storage water in Lake McConaughy; estimated volume of 2,500 AF.		$   910,000.00		$   946,400.00		$   1,406,080.00		$   1,462,323.20

		WP-4(f)iv		O		Water Action Plan (CNPPID leasing-irrigator) (FY15-FY19)				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0		$   198,360.00		$   - 0		$   385,111.72		Surface water leases with irrigators in the CNPPID system. Water available in Lake McConaughy; estimated volume of 2,500 AF. Includes budget to offset increased depletions from groundwater irrigation on lands.		$   561,218.14		$   584,199.50		$   781,894.36		$   904,403.78

		WP-4(f)v		O		Water Action Plan (NPNRD leasing) (FY15-FY19)				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   390,000.00		Potential leases with irrigators in the North Platte NRD; estimated volume of 1,950 AF. Assumes irrigators switch to dry land farming or "dry up" their land.		$   721,000.00		$   742,630.00		$   983,454.30		$   1,125,508.81

		WP-4(g)		O		 Water Action Plan (Water Mgmnt Incentives) (FY17-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Out-year costs only.		$   - 0		$   600,000.00		$   600,000.00		$   600,000.00

		WP-4(h)		O		Water Action Plan (NE GW Mgmnt) (FY12-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   47,091.78				$   - 0		$   - 0		No projects anticipated at this time		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-5		O		 Management Tool (FY12-FY17)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   200,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   3,520.71		$   90,000.00		$   5,175.80		$   129,600.00		COHYST model upgrades, time period extension, GUI development, technical oversight and training.		$   100,000.00		$   90,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-6		C		Feasibility Studies (FY09-FY12)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   392,539.35		$   2,050,000.00		$   486,884.73		$   600,000.00		$   625,483.22		$   - 0		$   133,455.96		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-7		C		Water Acquisition (FY09-FY11)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   - 0		$   500,000.00		$   - 0		$   300,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-8		O		Water Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   92,651.89		$   200,000.00		$   141,029.41		$   150,000.00		$   143,385.55		$   125,000.00		$   58,984.48		$   100,000.00		$   33,945.65		$   100,000.00		Advisors on water-related specialty topics such as economics, hydro-geology/ground water, structural, and water project permitting.		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00

		WP-9		O		Miscellaneous Water Resources Studies (FY15)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   200,000.00		$   30,109.77		$   100,000.00		$   17,147.85		$   50,000.00		$   36,107.66		$   25,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   25,000.00		Refinement of the North Platte River basin and South Platte River basin studies to utilize hydroclimatic indices to forecast spring streamflows.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		-		C		Legal Review for North Platte Channel Capacity Project (FY08)		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   2,975.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

						Sub-Total		$   450,000.00		$   253,178.06		$   315,210.00		$   169,750.34		$   1,411,529.50		$   637,376.60		$   3,461,642.90		$   1,045,750.57		$   6,950,000.00		$   1,020,450.11		$   12,150,000.00		$   2,730,257.53		$   15,800,000.00		$   15,287,350.97		$   17,258,323.00		$   155,178.17		$   17,979,659.54		$   92,411,171.96		$   19,818,256.29		$   20,536,650.26		$   6,202,367.70		$   6,574,945.82



		AMP Experimental Design

		PD-4		C		AMP Workshops (FY09-FY13)		$   50,000.00		$   9,599.55		$   75,000.00		$   49,025.72		$   10,000.00		$   274.09		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-12		C		Model Application (FY09-FY13)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   360,000.00		$   - 0		$   390,000.00		$   348,094.61		$   150,000.00		$   177,467.55		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   1,997.10		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-13		C		Sediment Augmentation Feasibility Analysis, Design, and Permitting (FY09-FY13)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   400,000.00		$   89,208.79		$   520,791.21		$   320,791.21		$   350,000.00		$   145,831.72		$   540,888.00		$   505,117.78		$   671,404.00		$   681,104.94		$   - 0		$   237,060.30		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-14		C		Whooping Crane Conservation Action Plan (CAP) Development (FY09)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-19		C		Flow Consolidation Conceptual Design (FY10-FY13)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   200,000.00		$   81,677.06		$   200,000.00		$   104,277.64		$   230,000.00		$   59,500.76		$   100,000.00		$   43,042.60		$   - 0		$   37,720.00		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-20		C		Wet Meadow Restoration  on Tract 2009001 (FY11-FY13)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   31,375.94		$   324,000.00		$   203,614.19		$   45,000.00		$   120,867.56		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		-		C		Develop Mgmt.-Level Hypothesis Testing for FSM/Clear-Level Plow (FY07)		$   25,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

						Sub-Total		$   75,000.00		$   9,599.55		$   75,000.00		$   49,025.72		$   790,000.00		$   109,482.88		$   1,120,791.21		$   750,562.88		$   760,000.00		$   458,952.85		$   1,114,888.00		$   768,232.73		$   826,404.00		$   847,012.20		$   - 0		$   274,780.30		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		AMP Implementation Activities

		-		C		AMWG Assistance & Operating Expenses		$   - 0		$   13,620.15		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-2		O		FSM/MCM Actions at Habitat Complexes (FY08-FY19)		$   25,000.00		$   3,675.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   350,000.00		$   187,879.35		$   1,270,000.00		$   493,536.21		$   483,000.00		$   650,585.59		$   639,130.00		$   744,190.85		$   890,450.00		$   333,469.40		$   432,080.00		$   264,722.99		$   773,490.00		General actions at habitat complexes; see FY15 Annual Land Work Plan for specific details		$   300,000.00		$   300,000.00		$   300,000.00		$   100,000.00

		LP-2(a)		C		Cottonwood Ranch Maintenance & Enhancement (FY07-FY08)		$   75,000.00		$   - 0		$   550,000.00		$   251,710.10		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		LP-2(b)		C		Pre-2007 Cottonwood Ranch Maintenance & Enhancement (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   850,000.00		$   848,836.22		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WP-10		O		Environmental Account SDHF (FY08-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   46,872.33		$   350,000.00		$   2,198.47		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   42,940.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		No SDMF planned in 2015		$   150,000.00		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   - 0

		PD-7		C		Program Anchor Points (FY09)		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-15		O		AMP Permits (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   50,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   127,993.21		$   150,000.00		$   30,162.13		$   50,000.00		$   31,287.93		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		Estimate based on FY14 budget line item; contractor secured in FY14, assistance with permitting for island building, sediment augmentation (mechanical), and wetland restoration		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-16		C		Invasives Strategy (FY09-FY13)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-18		O		AMP-Related Equipment (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   140,000.00		$   130,697.22		$   50,000.00		$   33,419.07		$   55,000.00		$   1,983.66		$   66,215.00		$   66,000.00		$   66,215.00		$   66,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   62,500.00		$   75,000.00		Program per use costs for Headwaters equipment (truck, airboat, etc.) during 2015 field work.		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00		$   75,000.00

		PD-22		O		Sediment Augmentation Implementation (FY14-FY19)				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0		$   400,000.00		$   - 0		$   370,000.00		$270,000 for implementation; $100,000 for monitoring and reporting; dependent on GC direction and securing COE permits; bid package for augmentation; assumes basic implementation of mechanical manipulation (not sand pumping) and monitoring		$   400,000.00		$   400,000.00		$   400,000.00		$   400,000.00

						Sub-Total		$   150,000.00		$   17,295.15		$   1,700,000.00		$   1,147,418.65		$   1,000,000.00		$   320,775.04		$   1,470,000.00		$   576,955.28		$   888,000.00		$   780,562.46		$   855,345.00		$   840,352.98		$   1,156,665.00		$   473,697.33		$   957,080.00		$   327,222.99		$   1,268,490.00				$   945,000.00		$   795,000.00		$   925,000.00		$   575,000.00

		Integrated Monitoring & Research Plan Activities

		G-1		O		LiDAR Implementation (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   260,000.00		$   250,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   75,000.00		$   41,000.00		$   118,100.00		$   94,150.00		$   118,100.00		$   183,100.00		$   118,100.00		$   53,100.00		$   125,000.00		June aerial photography, November aerial photography, November LiDAR from Kucera.		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00

		G-2		O		Aerial Photography (FY08-FY19)		$   10,000.00		$   10,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   10,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   20,850.00		$   21,000.00		$   22,309.50		$   25,000.00		$   22,309.50

		G-3		C		Revise & Update Geomorphology Monitoring Protocol (FY07-FY08)		$   27,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		G-4		C		Develop Scope of Work for 2008 System-Level Geomorphic Monitoring		$   7,500.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		G-5		O		Geomorphology/In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring (FY09-FY19)		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   95,000.00		$   - 0		$   395,000.00		$   380,500.00		$   300,000.00		$   320,163.00		$   447,500.00		$   414,654.25		$   450,000.00		$   511,456.64		$   477,738.00		$   517,652.59		$   495,000.00		$   442,167.35		$   512,990.00		Implementation of system-scale geomorphology and vegetation monitoring protocol, data analysis, and reporting.		$   495,000.00		$   495,000.00		$   495,000.00		$   495,000.00

		H-2		O		Program Stream Gages (FY08-FY19)		$   14,500.00		$   6,885.00		$   29,500.00		$   20,807.14		$   30,000.00		$   23,194.24		$   50,000.00		$   47,150.49		$   50,000.00		$   32,994.01		$   40,000.00		$   28,374.81		$   40,000.00		$   18,869.38		$   38,000.00		$   32,333.12		$   38,000.00		$18,000 for USGS (two gages on CWR through agreement with NPPD); $10,000 for Nebraska DNR (two gages at Shelton and Lexington); $10,000 for cost-share with CNPPID to continue real-time data at Overton through agreement with USGS for one more year.		$   38,000.00		$   38,000.00		$   38,000.00		$   38,000.00

		H-4,5		C		Unsteady Flow Model Calibration (FY07)		$   23,500.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		IMRP-1		C		SDHF Monitoring (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   80.60		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		IMRP-2		O		AMP Directed Research Projects (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   700,000.00		$   93,684.44		$   325,000.00		$   38,712.82		$   450,000.00		$   221,712.19		$   335,000.00		$   172,182.70		$   450,000.00		$   308,266.07		$   117,000.00		$   130,126.01		$   71,000.00		Continued work on wet meadow hydrology project.		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00

		IMRP-3		O		Adaptive Management Plan Special Advisors (FY10-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   127,732.32		$   150,000.00		$   129,371.60		$   140,000.00		$   54,460.53		$   50,000.00		$   43,575.89		$   75,000.00		$   32,041.50		$   100,000.00		Assistance with expertise on geomorphology.		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00		$   100,000.00

		IMRP-4		C		FSM "Proof of Concept" Activities @ Elm Creek Complex (FY11-FY15)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   248,828.11		$   203,185.00		$   200,971.69		$   227,835.00		$   268,157.77		$   - 0		$   20,551.51		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		IMRP-5		O		FSM "Proof of Concept" Activities @ Shoemaker Island Complex (FY12-FY16)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   250,000.00		$   25,098.27		$   245,200.00		$   340,614.92		$   319,100.00		$   339,895.64		$   340,000.00		Year 3 of implementation		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		IMRP-6		O		Habitat Availability Analysis (FY11-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   143,227.00		$   20,000.00		$   35,000.00		$   147,227.00		$   36,000.00		$   - 0		$   40,000.00		New money for analyses of FY14 data		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00

		PD-8		O		Database Management System Development & Maintenance (FY08-FY19)		$   150,000.00		$   - 0		$   159,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   72,849.67		$   572,150.33		$   453,767.64		$   140,000.00		$   154,925.53		$   165,615.18		$   151,460.90		$   130,000.00		$   109,982.54		$   105,000.00		$   106,158.97		$   110,000.00		Ongoing database development and management by Riverside Technologies		$   110,000.00		$   110,000.00		$   110,000.00		$   110,000.00

		PS-1		C		Pallid Sturgeon Existing Information Review/Summary (FY08)		$   32,400.00		$   - 0		$   32,400.00		$   30,979.25		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PS-2		C		Lower Platte River Stage Change Study (FY08-FY09)		$   200,000.00		$   2,336.36		$   200,000.00		$   46,458.42		$   182,634.74		$   168,195.10		$   54,432.43		$   10,633.50		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		TP-1		O		Tern & Plover Monitoring (FY08-FY19)		$   14,000.00		$   - 0		$   20,000.00		$   - 0		$   100,000.00		$   - 0		$   150,000.00		$   52,599.56		$   300,000.00		$   210,085.04		$   215,000.00		$   233,439.79		$   310,000.00		$   266,780.19		$   325,000.00		$   235,033.33		$   280,000.00		Estimate for 2015 monitoring, analysis, and reporting.  Will hire new contractor via competitive selection process in early 2015.		$   280,000.00		$   280,000.00		$   280,000.00		$   280,000.00

		TP-2		C		Finish Forage Fish Monitoring Protocol (FY07-FY08)		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		TP-3		C		Forage Fish Monitoring (FY08)		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   7,500.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		TP-4		C		Tern & Plover Foraging Habits Study (FY09-FY10)		$   120,000.00		$   - 0		$   40,000.00		$   - 0		$   105,000.00		$   100,355.96		$   144,644.04		$   139,645.92		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		TP-5		C		Analysis of CA-Collected Tern/Plover Monitoring Data (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   35,000.00		$   37,638.22		$   16,035.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-1		O		Whooping Crane Monitoring (FY08-FY19)		$   130,000.00		$   126,521.20		$   130,000.00		$   111,438.30		$   150,000.00		$   135,637.58		$   150,000.00		$   132,917.31		$   170,000.00		$   186,779.28		$   225,091.00		$   208,492.87		$   290,000.00		$   260,171.18		$   275,000.00		$   229,936.71		$   310,000.00		WEST/AIM contracted to conduct WC monitoring activities through spring 2015.  Estimate for spring and fall monitoring, data analysis, and reporting.  New contractor hired through competitive selection process for monitoring in fall 2015 and beyond.		$   310,000.00		$   310,000.00		$   310,000.00		$   310,000.00

		WC-2		C		Analysis of CA-Collected Whooping Crane Monitoring Data (FY08)		$   25,000.00		$   32,497.42		$   6,454.48		$   6,454.48		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-3		O		Whooping Crane Telemetry Tracking (FY09-FY16)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   125,000.00		$   - 0		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   125,000.00		$   41,999.99		$   167,100.00		$   143,615.93		$   95,000.00		$   57,856.80		$   35,500.00		$   22,631.60		$   23,500.00		As per WC Tracking Project Partnership Agreement budget; costs for data-download and data-management costs.		$   11,400.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-4		C		Water Surface Estimation at Crane Use Sites (FY07-FY08)		$   18,312.00		$   4,360.00		$   23,120.00		$   23,120.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-5		C		IGERT Whooping Crane Habitat Selection Project (FY12-FY13)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   25,000.00		$   18,750.00		$   - 0		$   6,250.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WC-6		O		Whooping Crane Stopover Site Evaluation Project (FY13-FY15)				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   110,297.00		$   91,643.05		$   98,608.00		$   14,854.11		$   98,608.00		Program contribution for third year of a three-year contract with USGS for a research study to evaluate habitat metrics at whooping crane stopover sites from northern Texas - North Dakota.		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WMV-1		C		Vegetation Mapping Effort (FY07-FY08)		$   25,000.00		$   10,334.40		$   14,665.00		$   5,196.36		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WMV-2		C		Wet Meadows Information Review and CEM Refinement (FY10)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   32,400.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from a PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		WQ-1		C		Water Quality Monitoring (FY09-FY11)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   40,000.00		$   40,000.00		$   184,000.00		$   175,043.20		$   188,956.80		$   176,747.30		$   280,000.00		$   225,022.39		$   150,000.00		$   156,084.25		$   152,000.00		$   173,352.90		$   - 0		$   60,585.67		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

						Sub-Total		$   817,212.00		$   192,934.38		$   1,270,039.48		$   707,092.17		$   2,377,669.74		$   1,295,310.19		$   2,331,183.60		$   1,647,379.36		$   2,462,500.00		$   1,979,681.89		$   2,627,318.18		$   2,018,538.38		$   2,731,170.00		$   2,793,500.28		$   2,037,308.00		$   1,719,496.12		$   2,049,098.00				$   1,609,400.00		$   1,598,000.00		$   1,598,000.00		$   1,598,000.00

		AMP Independent Science Review

		ISAC-1		O		ISAC Stipends & Expenses (FY09-FY19)		$   80,000.00		$   - 0		$   115,000.00		$   - 0		$   142,000.00		$   138,306.72		$   150,000.00		$   129,192.27		$   185,000.00		$   178,034.77		$   185,000.00		$   191,375.02		$   221,000.00		$   166,642.44		$   200,000.00		$   126,737.32		$   200,000.00		Annual stipends, meeting expenses		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00

		ISAC-2		C		Meetings, Expenses, etc. (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0				$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,250.93		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		ISAC-3		C		Initial Establishment /Planning Session Expenses (FY08)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   5,000.00		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		Complete from PRRIP budget standpoint		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

		PD-3		O		AMP & IMRP Peer Review (FY09-FY19)		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   105,000.00		$   - 0		$   50,000.00		$   49,500.00		$   50,000.00		$   - 0		$   115,000.00		$   59,845.50		$   90,000.00		$   43,046.75		$   108,000.00		$   8,940.75		$   318,500.00		$   - 0		$   233,260.00		Funding for peer review of up to five documents.		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00		$   200,000.00

		PD-11		O		AMP Reporting (FY09-FY19)		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   10,000.00		$   - 0		$   70,000.00		$   24,340.91		$   25,000.00		$   7,192.33		$   25,000.00		$   11,399.38		$   25,000.00		$   13,162.07		$   14,000.00		$   9,137.62		$   14,000.00		Estimated meeting costs for AMP Reporting Session in fall 2015		$   14,000.00		$   14,000.00		$   14,000.00		$   14,000.00

		PD-21		O		PRRIP Publications (FY14-FY19)																										$   - 0		$   - 0		$   20,000.00		$   7,347.60		$   16,060.00		Estimated costs for PRRIP publication in refereed journals of up to seven manuscripts.		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00		$   20,000.00

						Sub-Total		$   130,000.00		$   - 0		$   240,000.00		$   - 0		$   202,000.00		$   187,806.72		$   270,000.00		$   153,533.18		$   325,000.00		$   246,323.53		$   300,000.00		$   245,821.15		$   354,000.00		$   188,745.26		$   552,500.00		$   143,222.54		$   463,320.00				$   434,000.00		$   434,000.00		$   434,000.00		$   434,000.00

						AMP Sub-Total		$   1,172,212.00		$   219,829.08		$   3,285,039.48		$   1,903,536.54		$   4,369,669.74		$   1,913,374.83		$   5,191,974.81		$   3,128,430.70		$   4,435,500.00		$   3,465,520.73		$   4,897,551.18		$   3,872,945.24		$   5,068,239.00		$   4,302,955.07		$   3,546,888.00		$   2,464,721.95		$   3,780,908.00		$   36,431,622.14		$   2,988,400.00		$   2,827,000.00		$   2,957,000.00		$   2,607,000.00

								Column A		Column A		Column C		Column B		Column E		Column C		Column G		Column D		Column I		Column E		Column F		Column F		Column H		Column G		Column J		Column H		Column I		Estimated First Increment Total ($187M available in 2005 dollars)		Column K		Column L		Column M		Column N

		PRRIP BUDGET TOTALS						$   2,434,261.00		$   1,058,592.22		$   11,053,964.00		$   3,559,179.93		$   16,326,458.24		$   13,587,723.45		$   17,734,817.71		$   10,245,625.14		$   19,430,000.00		$   9,430,963.70		$   25,173,351.18		$   15,877,903.97		$   27,050,139.00		$   23,347,350.36		$   25,261,911.00		$   5,081,882.19		$   26,428,567.54		$   186,720,008.57		$   26,395,556.29		$   26,832,550.26		$   12,423,267.70		$   12,450,845.82



		Status Label				* All budget numbers in 2005 dollars

		O = Ongoing, N = New, C = Complete



		AMP Project ID Labels:

		G = Geomorphology

		H = Hydrology

		IMRP = Integrated Monitoring and Research Plan

		PD = General Activities/Program Development

		PS = Pallid Sturgeon

		TP = Terns/Plovers

		WC = Whooping Cranes

		WMV = Wet Meadows/Vegetation

		WQ = Water Quality

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Page &P of &N	




Sheet1








PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 1 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


 4 


 5 


 6 


 7 


 8 


Prepared by: 9 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO) 10 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program (PRRIP or Program) 11 


Kearney, Nebraska  12 


 13 


 14 


Prepared for: 15 


PRRIP Governance Committee 16 


Harry LaBonde, Chair 17 


 18 


 19 


Draft Budget and Work Plan Recommended by Executive Director 20 


December 2, 2014 21 


 22 


Final Budget and Work Plan Revised and Approved by Governance Committee 23 


 24 


 25 


 26 


 27 


 28 


 29 


 30 


 31 


 32 


 33 


 34 


 35 


 36 


 37 


 38 


  39 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION 


PROGRAM 


FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET AND ANNUAL WORK 


PLAN 


 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 2 of 89 
 


Table of Contents 1 


 2 


Introduction………………………………………………………………………………………………..4 3 


 4 


Executive Director’s Office (ED) 5 


ED-1:  Salaries/Travel/Office Expenditures.......................................................................5 6 


 ED-2:  Administrative and Other Support Services...........................................................6 7 


 ED-3:  Public Outreach…………………………………………………………………...8 8 


 9 


Governance Committee/Finance Committee (GFC) 10 


 GFC-1:  NCF Fees………………………………………………………………………..12 11 


 GFC-2:  Pulse Flow and Other Insurance………………………………………………...13 12 


 GFC-3:  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc………………………………………………….14 13 


 14 


Program Advisory Committees 15 


Land Advisory Committee (LAC) 16 


LAC-1:  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc………………………………………………….16 17 


   18 


Water Advisory Committee (WAC) 19 


 WAC-1: Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc………………………………………………….18 20 


 21 


Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 22 


 TAC-1:  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc………………………………………….………20 23 


   24 


Land Plan Implementation (LP) 25 


 LP-3:  Land Acquisition………………………………………………………………...22 26 


 LP-4:  Land Management……………………………………………………………….26 27 


 LP-6:  Land Plan Special Advisors………………………………………………….….27 28 


 LP-7:  Public Access Management……………………………………………………..29 29 


 30 


Water Plan Implementation (WP) 31 


WP-1(a): Active Channel Capacity Improvements (N Platte Channel above CNPPID 32 


Diversion Dam)………………………………………………………………….30 33 


WP-1(b): Active Channel Capacity Improvements (CNPPID Diversion Dam to Grand 34 


Island)…………………………………………………………...……………....30 35 


 WP-4:  Water Action Plan……………………………………………………………….33 36 


WP-5:  Management Tool……………………………………………………………….44 37 


 WP-8:  Water Plan Special Advisors………………………………………...……….….47 38 


 WP-9:  Miscellaneous Water Resources Studies………………………………………...49 39 


 40 


Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) Implementation 41 


 AMP Implementation Activities 42 


 LP-2:  FSM/MCM Actions on Habitat Complexes…………………...……….………..51 43 


 PD-15:  AMP Permits…………………………………………………………………….53 44 


 PD-18:  AMP-Related Equipment………………………………………………………..54 45 


PD-22:  Sediment Augmentation Implementation………………………………………..56  46 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 3 of 89 
 


Integrated Monitoring & Research Plan Activities 1 


G-1:  LiDAR & Aerial Photography…………………………………………......……57 2 


G-5:  Geomorphology/In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring………………...……….....58 3 


H-2:  Program Water Gages…………………………………………………………...60 4 


IMRP-2: AMP Directed Research Projects……………………………………...………...61 5 


IMRP-3: Adaptive Management Plan Special Advisors…………………………………..64 6 


IMRP-5: FSM "Proof of Concept" Activities @ Shoemaker Island Complex………....…66 7 


IMRP-6: Habitat Availability Assessment………………………………………………...68 8 


PD-8:    Database Management System Development & Maintenance…………………..70 9 


TP-1:  Tern & Plover Monitoring………………………………………...………….….72 10 


WC-1:  Whooping Crane Monitoring……………………………………………………74 11 


WC-3:  Whooping Crane Telemetry Tracking……………………………...…………....76 12 


WC-6:  Whooping Crane Stopover Site Evaluation Project.….……………...……….…78 13 


 14 


AMP Independent Science Review 15 


 ISAC-1: ISAC Stipends & Expenses…………………………...………………….……...80 16 


 PD-3:  AMP & IMRP Peer Review……………………………………………………..83 17 


 PD-11:  AMP Reporting………………………………………………………………….85 18 


 PD-21:  PRRIP Publications……………………………………………………………...87 19 


 20 


 21 


Appedix A:  PRRIP FY2014 Annual Land Work Plan……………………………………….89  22 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 4 of 89 
 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 1 


FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET AND ANNUAL WORK PLAN 2 


 3 


Introduction 4 


The Platte River Recovery Implementation Program (“Program” or “PRRIP”) initiated on January 1, 2007 5 


as a basin-wide effort between the states of Colorado, Wyoming, and Nebraska and the Department of 6 


Interior to provide land, water, and scientific monitoring and research to evaluate Program benefits for the 7 


target species.  The Program is being implemented in an incremental manner, with the First Increment 8 


covering the 13-year period from 2007 through 2019.  In general, the purpose of the Program is to 9 


implement certain aspects of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s (Service) recovery plans for the target 10 


species that relate to the Program’s identified “associated habitats” in the central Platte River by securing 11 


defined benefits for those species and their habitats.  The Program will also provide ESA compliance for 12 


existing and certain new water-related activities in the Platte basin upstream of the Loup River confluence 13 


for potential effects on the target species; help prevent the need to list more Platte River species under the 14 


ESA; mitigate the adverse effects of certain new water-related activities through approved depletions plans; 15 


and establish and maintain an organizational structure that will ensure appropriate state and federal 16 


government and stakeholder involvement in the Program.  17 


 18 


The Program is led by a Governance Committee (GC) consisting of representatives of Colorado, Wyoming, 19 


Nebraska, the Bureau of Reclamation, the Service, South Platte River water users, North Platte River water 20 


users, Nebraska water users, and environmental groups.  The Program established key standing Advisory 21 


Committees to assist the GC in implementing the Program.  Those committees include the Technical 22 


Advisory Committee (TAC), the Land Advisory Committee (LAC), the Water Advisory Committee 23 


(WAC), the Finance Committee (FC), and the Independent Scientific Advisory Committee (ISAC). 24 


 25 


Dr. Jerry Kenny serves as Executive Director of the Program.  Dr. Kenny and staff in the Executive 26 


Director’s (ED) Office maintain offices in Nebraska and Colorado.  The Executive Director’s Office 27 


worked closely with the GC, the Advisory Committees and their subcommittees and working groups, 28 


Program cooperators and partners, and others to develop the FY 2015 Program Budget and Work Plan 29 


based on guidance from the Final Program Document and Program goals and priorities. 30 


 31 


This document presents the final FY 2015 Program Annual Work Plan.  The Final FY 2015 Program Budget 32 


Spreadsheet is a separate document but is incorporated by reference. 33 


 34 


  35 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 5 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office (Executive Director, Headwaters Corp. 14 


staff) 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


Kearney, NE; Lincoln, NE; Gretna, NE; Denver, CO 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


Salaries, travel, and other direct costs associated with ED and staff in ED Offices (EDO). ED and EDO 21 


responsible for implementation of all items detailed in remainder of the Work Plan. 22 


 23 


Products 24 


Staff support for all Program activities. 25 


 26 


Notes on Cost 27 


See Exhibits A and B from 2015 ED Contract/Office Budget and the 2015 Headwaters Corporation Staffing 28 


Plan for detailed documentation of effort.  Although costs for several items in the 2015 ED-1 budget are 29 


increasing from 2014 levels, other adjustments will be implemented to keep the 2015 budget level at the 30 


2014 level.  Increases over 2014 budget levels include: 31 


 32 


 Rent, utilities, and travel costs have increased. 33 


 Time commitments for some EDO staff for Program activities have been adjusted, and the EDO is 34 


planning on adding one new staff person to bring the water staff in Denver, CO back to strength. 35 


 The adjustments and hires result in a total of 13 FTEs, essentially the same staffing level since 2013. 36 


 Salary adjustments at a 4% increase level to remain competitive in the labor market 37 


 The work load of overseeing Program contractors, data analysis and synthesis, and activities like 38 


independent science review (especially peer review and manuscript publication) continues to increase. 39 


 The work load for developing and evaluating additional water action plan alternatives and efforts to 40 


support water leasing negotiations will remain high for the foreseeable future.  41 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  ED-1.  Salaries/Travel/Office Expenditures 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $   361,861.00  $                            -   


2008  $1,110,800.00  $                            -   


2009  $1,427,759.00  $                            -   


2010  $1,599,900.00  $                            -   


2011  $1,600,000.00  $                            -   


2012  $1,800,000.00  $                            -   


2013  $1,875,000.00  $                            -   


2014  $2,200,000.00  $                            -   


2015  $                -    $            2,200,000.00 


Program Task ED-1







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 6 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Office 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Assistance to ED Office for administrative and other support services such as publishing public notices 20 


including Requests for Proposals and Invitations to Bid, attorneys with land or water specialties, real estate 21 


related specialists, and other specialty services not specifically linked to another line item. 22 


 23 


Products 24 


Contract services support for Program activities. 25 


 26 


Notes on Cost 27 


The primary use of ED-2 is to cover the expense of contracting for the services of the Program Accounting 28 


Database Manager. This requires the unique qualifications of knowledge of Program accounting and 29 


disbursement protocols and procedures and knowledge of the Program accounting database. The cost for 30 


these services have been locked in at a cost of $5,000 a month for the duration of the First Increment.  31 


 32 


A second common use of line item ED-2 is for attorneys with expertise in: Nebraska water rights; water 33 


service/leasing agreement contract law; environmental law covering NEPA, ESA, or CWA; Nebraska NRD 34 


processes; and county statutory authorities. These are very specialized areas of practice, limiting our options 35 


and commanding, in many cases, a premium rate. Attorneys for work in the arenas cited above are selected 36 


based on knowledge and experience in these arenas, availability, reputation, quality of work, and previous 37 


direct dealings with EDO staff.  Rates are compared to customary and standard rates for the 38 


Denver/Lincoln/Omaha areas, and based on a comparative, extensive vetting process are known to be fair 39 


and reasonable. An average rate of $200/hour is a representative rate based on the vetting experience of the 40 


past six years. Given the level of legal support required over the past five years and the anticipated lesser 41 


need for legal counsel in 2015, 400 hours of legal support is estimated (equivalent to about 4 days a month). 42 


Based on a fee of $200/hour, and an estimated 100 hours of service, the estimated legal fees for 2015 are 43 


$20,000.  Though the need for legal counsel is anticipated as being reduced in 2015, upcoming water 44 


agreements and property boundary disputes are on the horizon and may require an increase in the future. 45 


 46 


A  third  common use of line item ED-2 is to cover the expense of publishing public notices or Request for 47 


Proposals/Invitations for Bid (RFP/IFB) in local and regional newspapers. The Denver Post, Omaha World 48 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  ED-2.  Administrative and Other Support Services 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $     17,000.00  $                            -   


2008  $   150,000.00  $                            -   


2009  $   250,000.00  $                            -   


2010  $   200,000.00  $                            -   


2011  $   200,000.00  $                            -   


2012  $   150,000.00  $                            -   


2013  $   150,000.00  $                            -   


2014  $   100,000.00  $                            -   


2015  $                -    $               100,000.00 


Program Task ED-2







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 7 of 89 
 


Herald, Wyoming Eagle Tribune (Cheyenne, WY), and the Kearney Hub are the newspapers that are always 1 


used to run notices and RFP/IFB announcements. When appropriate for specific, local interest projects, 2 


other papers may also be added, such as the Grand Island Independent, North Platte Telegraph, Lincoln 3 


Journal Star, or Keith County News. Recent actual costs in 2013 to run an announcement in the papers 4 


always used, for two days (Saturday and Sunday) is tabulated below: 5 


 6 


Newspaper Two Day Cost ($) 


Denver Post 986 


Omaha World Herald 788 


Wyoming Eagle Tribune 358 


Kearney Hub 40 


TOTAL 2,172 


 7 


Anticipated costs for three day ads (typical length of run) for 2015 are tabulated below: 8 


Newspaper Three Day Cost ($) 


Denver Post 1400 


Omaha World Herald 1200 


Wyoming Eagle Tribune 500 


Kearney Hub 60 


TOTAL 3,160 


 9 


Assuming six notices or ads based on anticipated number of RFPs/IFBs to be issued (T&P Monitoring, 10 


State Channel Restoration, Sediment Augmentation Oversight, three large earth moving bids for channel 11 


widening, island building, sediment augmentation), 6 x $3,160 = $18,960, plus ten additional newspapers 12 


notices (either for IFBs published exclusively in local papers or supplemental ads in local papers for 13 


RFPs/IFBs also published in regional papers) @$250, 10 x $250 = $2,500; $18,960 + $2,500 = $21,460 for 14 


newspaper ads. 15 


 16 


Adding accounting database manager fees, attorney fees, and newspaper notices produced the total 17 


estimate, as shown below. 18 


 19 


Item Cost 


Accounting Database Manager fees $60,000 


Attorney fees $20,000 


Newspaper notices $21,460 


TOTAL $101,460, round down to $100,000 


  20 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 8 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Office (Kearney, NE) 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Communication of information about the Platte River Recovery Implementation Program and general 20 


education oriented activities are an important function to gain and advance acceptance of the Program in 21 


all of our stakeholder communities. The Program stakeholders include; residents of the three states, the 22 


Department of the Interior agencies, farmers and ranchers, recreational users of the Platte, the biological 23 


sciences community, national and international conservation and environmental groups, and bird watchers 24 


from around the world.  The education-oriented sponsorships are focused toward youth-oriented, 25 


experience-based programs.  Exhibits and sponsorships help the Program spread its message and its brand. 26 


 27 


Products 28 


Program visibility and communication with the public. 29 


 30 


Notes on Cost 31 


To reach our audiences, the Program utilizes the following: 32 


 33 


1. “Exhibit Fees” is a category covering Program exhibit booths at scientific and professional conferences, 34 


community events, farm shows and nature centers. Venues are chosen based on both location, i.e. 35 


coverage of the three states and the ability to reach our target audience of stakeholders. There are several 36 


annual events at which the Program exhibits; Husker Harvest Days in Nebraska, Colorado Water 37 


Congress in Colorado, and the Four States Irrigation Council Annual Meeting (held in Colorado and 38 


includes Wyoming and Nebraska). Exhibits provide written information about the Program as well as 39 


Program giveaways. Typically the Program exhibits at five to six events per year and booth costs vary 40 


from no charge to $1,250 per event. The Program’s 2013-2014 Biennial Report will be produced in 41 


2015 at a printing cost of $3,000.  Including display costs and printed material an approximate annual 42 


expenditure for exhibits is $8,000.  43 


 44 


2. “Major Sponsorship” is a category covering educational programs oriented specifically for young 45 


people at nature and agricultural centers and special projects that are presented to the Program.  46 


Sponsorships are chosen based on both location and the ability to reach our target audience of 47 


stakeholders. Examples include: a Nebraska Educational Television camera time-lapse project of the 48 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  ED-3.  Public Outreach 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $     30,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $     40,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $     70,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     65,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     60,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       75,000.00 


Program Task ED-3







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 9 of 89 
 


Platte River which includes sites in all three states, environmental education programs for Rowe 1 


Sanctuary, Prairie Loft Center for young people in Nebraska, and the Greenway Foundation South 2 


Platte River Environmental Education program for young people in Colorado.  The education programs 3 


we sponsor focus support on youth-oriented, experience-based activity programs. For 2015, $50,000 is 4 


budgeted for major sponsorships including: $35,000 for the time lapse project, and $5,000 each for 5 


public educational programs for Rowe Sanctuary in Nebraska, Prairie Loft Center for agricultural 6 


education for children in Nebraska, and for the South Platte River Environmental Education (SPREE) 7 


children’s educational program by The Greenway Foundation in Colorado. The nature of the 8 


expenditures and associated activities for Rowe Sanctuary, Prairie Loft, and SPREE remain largely the 9 


same as for 2014. In the case of the time lapse project, the nature of the expenditures in 2015 represent 10 


a shift in focus from past years. In the past years of funding for that project the funds were expended 11 


largely for equipment to assist in establishing sites throughout the basin. At this stage of the project all 12 


sites have been established and equipped and have been functioning as intended. The focus of 2015 13 


funding is to cover a portion of direct and labor costs associated with developing video footage 14 


associated with locations associated with the time lapse camera locations. The intent is to develop video 15 


material to use in association with the time lapse footage. In addition, interviews with a number of 16 


people associated with conservation lands in the central Platte will be conducted. Telling the story of 17 


the Platte, including the Program’s role in the recent history is the focus of this effort. The intent of this 18 


material development is to produce an hour long PBS documentary suitable for a national audience. 19 


This effort could result in tremendous exposure for the Program and its actions to a national and beyond 20 


audience in a quality manner. As in previous years, other funding sources will be tapped by the time 21 


lapse team, so Program funding represents only a portion of the costs associated with the effort.  22 


Additional details of the cost breakdowns for these sponsorships are provided at the end of this section. 23 


 24 


3. “Other Sponsorship” is a category used to allow the Program to participate in known events that are 25 


smaller in magnitude than the Major Sponsorships covered above, were not anticipated at the time of 26 


budget development, or events that were under consideration but decisions had not been made as to 27 


which events to support. These sponsorships assist in defraying the cost of a conference or event. The 28 


Program receives higher visibility and recognition at these conferences and events as a result.  Program 29 


staff is at these conferences or events to interact with the participants and capitalize on the increased 30 


visibility achieved by the sponsorships. Depending on the organization and event, sponsorships 31 


provides recognition in the event program and proceedings, recognition by emcees during meals, the 32 


ability to display banners, recognition for sponsoring specific breaks or meals, and other similar types 33 


of enhanced visibility and recognition. Examples include: 34 


 35 


 Program logo and tagline ads in newspapers when special edition sections are printed, such as the 36 


Earth Day and Migration editions in the Kearney Hub and Prairie Fire newspapers are estimated 37 


for 2015 at about $3,000 38 


 Break or event sponsorships at conferences such as National Committee of Ecological Restoration, 39 


Society for Ecological Restoration, Collaborative Adaptive Management Network, Nebraska 40 


Association of Resource Districts Conference, Nebraska Water Resources/Nebraska Irrigation 41 


Association Conference, Colorado Water Foundation for Education events, and Colorado Summer 42 


Water Congress are typical of the events that are considered for sponsorships. The decision on 43 


which events to sponsor depend on the relevance of the group or conference theme to the Program, 44 


which can vary from year to year. Such sponsorships can range from $500 to $1500, and have in 45 


many cases increased above 2014 levels. Allowing for three to five such sponsorships to be 46 


awarded, costs for 2015 are estimated at about $6,000 47 


 48 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 10 of 89 
 


4. “Promotional Materials” is a category covering materials distributed to increase awareness of the 1 


Program.  The distinctive Program logo is utilized in all Program communications, reports, and on all 2 


promotional materials including fact sheets, brochures, biennial reports, and giveaways. Promotional 3 


materials are chosen for their uniqueness and compatibility with the overall goals and objectives of the 4 


Program. Chosen items are branded with the Program logo and/or the Program website address and all 5 


items must cost below $4.00 an item. On average, the cost of the promotional material is approximately 6 


$3.25. Examples of giveaways include pens, carabiner key chains, can coolers, stylus, mobile phone 7 


cradle, tote bags, shoulder bags, small tools and pocket knives, and water bottles. Based on past years’ 8 


experience, the Program anticipates distributing about 3,000 items in 2015, for a cost of about $9,000. 9 


 10 


Estimated costs for FY15 include: 11 


 12 


Expense Category Estimated FY15 Cost 


Exhibit Fees $8,000 


Major Sponsorships $50,000 


NET Time-Lapse Project ($35,000)  


Rowe Sanctuary Education Program ($5,000)  


Prairie Loft Education Program ($5,000)  


Greenway Foundation SPREE Program ($5,000)  


Other Sponsorships $8,000 


Promotional Materials $9,000 


Total $75,000 


 13 


The following tables provide specific cost estimate breakdowns for each of the Major Sponsorship items in 14 


FY15: 15 


 16 


NET Time-lapse Project Cost Estimate Breakdown 17 


Item Cost ($) Comments 


Direct costs 


associated with travel 


and equipment 


maintenance. 


$11,000 At this stage in the project, most sites have been established and equipped, 


but $3,000 is allocated for minor equipment repair and replacement 


material costs. The remaining $8,000 of direct costs are allocated to travel 


costs for video crews to travel to and spend time at several locations in the 


Platte Basin, with Program funds to be expended on travel associated with 


those  locations in Nebraska where Program actions are concentrated.  
Labor costs 


 


$24,000  Labor costs for this project are based on NET video crew labor 


rates averaging $80.00 per hour per person. The crews will likely 


consist of two to three people involved in developing video 


footage at several locations corresponding to the time-lapse 


camera locations and conducting taped interviews with a variety 


of people. A composite of 300 total hours at a rate of $80 per 


hour can be supported. Other funding sources will be used to 


support additional labor costs. 
TOTAL $35,000  


  18 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 11 of 89 
 


Rowe Sanctuary Education Program Cost Estimate Breakdown 1 


Category Unit Rate ($/hr.) Quantity Cost ($) Comments 


LABOR    Personnel hours include planning, 


preparation, and in-field instructor time 


Sr. Instructor $30/hr. 100 $3,000  


LABOR TOTAL   $3,000  


MATERIALS     


Collecting Nets $30 14 $750  


Binoculars 


 


$80.76 14 $1,050  


Birds of Nebraska 


Books 


$8.00 25 $200  


MATERIALS 


TOTAL 


  $2,000  


TOTAL $5,000  


 2 


Prairie Loft Education Program Cost Estimate Breakdown 3 


Category Unit Rate ($/hr.) Quantity Cost ($) Comments 


LABOR    Personnel hours include teaching, facilitation, 


curriculum and program development, and 


outreach to schools, teachers, families, and 


partner organizations. 


Instructor $20/hr. 150 $3,000  


Instructor Assistant $10/hr. 50 $500  


LABOR TOTAL   $3,500  


MATERIALS    Education program supplies: including items 


such as books, writing materials, field study 


equipment, curriculum materials and training, 


printing, tools, and resources for additional 


and enhanced outdoor learning areas.  


MATERIALS TOTAL   $1,500  


Total $5,000  


 4 


The Greenway Foundation, SPREE Program 5 


SPREE Program Expenses Income Total  


Expenses 


Labor ($4,400)  ($4,400) Seasonal educator to lead school based field trips for 


classroom groups, family friendly weekend events, 


and day off school camps 


Program Supplies ($600)  ($600) Supplies include printed materials, field study 


equipment, scientific discovery supplies, etc. 


Income 


PRRIP  $5,000 $5,000  


Totals ($5,000) $5,000 $0  


  6 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 12 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


Program First Increment Timeline 3 


Annual 4 


 5 


FY 2015 Start Date 6 


January 1, 2015 7 


 8 


FY 2015 End Date 9 


December 31, 2015 10 


 11 


Task Completed by 12 


ED Office, Nebraska Community Foundation (NCF) 13 


 14 


Task Location 15 


ED Office; NCF (Lincoln, NE) 16 


 17 


Task Description 18 


Fees paid to the Nebraska Community Foundation (NCF) for administration of the financial aspects of the 19 


Program in 2015. 20 


 21 


Products 22 


Financial support services for Program. 23 


 24 


Notes on Cost 25 


The Foundation will be reimbursed for its direct and indirect costs pursuant to the Department of the 26 


Interior’s acquisition services requirements. In addition to the direct and indirect costs prescribed by this 27 


Agreement, the Foundation will be reimbursed at actual cost of extraordinary expenses incurred at the 28 


request of Parties to the Agreement, such as overnight express mail services, and/or reasonable travel 29 


expenses for travel at the request of the Governance Committee, Finance Committee, or a Party to the 30 


Agreement. The estimated cost associated with Financial Management Services rendered by the NCF is 31 


based on estimated direct costs of approximately $50,000 (1000 hours X $50/hour), and a provisional 32 


indirect cost ratio of 2.4% applied to approximately $10 million in direct costs (total budget minus J2 funds 33 


which will be handled in a different manner and further reduced by 80% to account for potential under 34 


spending of budgeted amounts based on experience).  Only actual indirect costs will be recouped by the 35 


Foundation and the rate will fluctuate from year to year depending on overall total expenditures of the 36 


Foundation.  Based on verbal discussions, it is estimated that the Foundation will be entitled to $290,000, 37 


hence that is the amount that will be obligated for FY2015.  38 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  GFC-1.  NCF Fees 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $     75,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $   100,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $   255,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   260,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   300,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   450,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   450,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   250,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      290,000.00 


Program Task GFC-1







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 13 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office, Dunbar-Peterson 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Office; insurance provider office in Omaha, Nebraska 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Insurance acquired for representatives of the GC and subcommittees (including alternates) and ED Office 20 


for certain actions that will be undertaken through Program implementation.  Coverage will be for a number 21 


of actions that the Program will undertake including short duration high flow releases and because of land 22 


and facilities ownership. 23 


  24 


Products 25 


Program insurance policy. 26 


 27 


Notes on Cost 28 


Insurance acquired for representatives of the GC and subcommittees (including alternates) and ED Office 29 


for certain actions that will be undertaken through Program implementation. Coverage will be for a number 30 


of actions that the Program will undertake including short duration high flow releases and because of land 31 


and facilities ownership.  The estimated cost of insurance is based upon previous year’s expenses, 32 


experience, and previous negotiations with insurance providers conducted by the Program’s insurance 33 


agent.  Because of our clean claims record and no new major land or risk additions, the estimated 2015 cost 34 


remains at the nearly the same level as the 2014 expenditure, but a slight increase is anticipated due to 35 


general insurance industry cost increases.  36 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  GFC-2.  Pulse Flow and Other Insurance 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $   100,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $     60,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $     70,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $     75,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $     70,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     75,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     75,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       80,000.00 


Program Task GFC-2







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 14 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; GC; FC 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Meeting locations in NE, WY, and CO 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Limited budget amount to cover meeting room rentals for GC and FC meetings; other miscellaneous costs 20 


for holding meetings (e.g. conference call fees, AV fees). 21 


 22 


Products 23 


Meeting space and associated needs. 24 


 25 


Notes on Cost 26 


Governance Committee meetings are held quarterly, two are held in Kearney, NE at the EDO, one in 27 


Cheyenne, WY at the Wyoming Water Development Commission, and one in Denver, CO. There is no 28 


room charge or equipment charge for the Kearney and Cheyenne locations, just for the Denver location. 29 


The Denver meeting has recently been held in downtown Denver, CO at the Warwick Hotel for two half 30 


days (Tuesday afternoon and Wednesday morning).  Refreshments, one afternoon break and one morning 31 


break provided.  Based on 2011-2014 experience, 2015 estimate of room and break expenses is $1,250/day, 32 


and anticipating a small increase. Equipment costs are limited to polycom conference phone and screen at 33 


$100, as EDO can provide projector from Denver office. 34 


 35 


The Meeting Expenses table provided below provides a breakdown of costs and additional information for 36 


GFC-3: 37 


 38 


Line Item 


Meeting Room 


Rental & Break 


Costs 


Meeting 


Equipment Costs 
Conference Call Costs Total Costs 


GFC-3 


$2,800 


(December GC, two 


half days) 


$100 


(phone and screen 


at each meeting) 


$216 


(6 FC  calls of @2 


hours, $0.30/minute) 


$3,116, say 


$3,100 


 39 


General Notes on Meeting Costs 40 


Because each meeting may be held in a different location (different cities and different hotels) a range of 41 


meeting room costs are possible. The typical range of room rental rates is $500 to $750/day. The typical 42 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  GFC-3.  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $       1,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $       1,500.00  $                   -   


2013  $       1,500.00  $                   -   


2014  $       1,700.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $         3,100.00 


Program Task GFC-3







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 15 of 89 
 


rate for providing refreshments (coffee, sodas, juices), morning or afternoon break foods (rolls, fruit, 1 


cookies), and box lunches (if the agenda calls for a working lunch) can vary considerably by location, the 2 


range of options selected, and the number of people attending.  For planning purposes, a rate range of $250 3 


to $500 per meeting is used. Equipment costs for projector and screens and polycom conference phones 4 


vary considerably depending on location. Projector/screen costs can range from $50 to $250 per day. 5 


Polycom conference phones with microphone extension costs can range from $50 to $100 per day. 6 


Conference call costs are broken down in the table by number, rate, and duration of calls, the number and 7 


duration are estimated based on experience and the rate is set by contract with the provider.  8 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 16 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; LAC 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


All LAC meetings are held in central Nebraska, typically in Kearney, NE. 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Limited budget amount to cover costs for LAC meetings; primarily miscellaneous costs for holding 20 


meetings (e.g. conference call fees, site visit expenses). 21 


 22 


Products 23 


Meeting space and associated needs. 24 


 25 


Notes on Cost 26 


The LAC meets quarterly at in Kearney, NE at the EDO which has no room charge. Two activities 27 


associated with LAC do have costs specifically associated to them, an annual field tour for LAC members 28 


and site evaluation of potential properties. The annual field tour for LAC members typically consists of two 29 


half days in the field with lunch and drinks (water  and sodas) in field provided for 10 to 15 people each 30 


day at an average cost of about $20.00 per person per day, based on 2011-2014 experience, was the basis 31 


for the $500 estimate.  Land evaluation site visits (typically multiple sites per day) costs consist of 32 


refreshments (water and sodas), break snacks (fruit and granola/energy bars), and working lunches. Each 33 


site evaluation team consists on average of six people. An estimated two site evaluation days will be 34 


performed in 2015. Based on 2009-2014 experience, a cost of $25 per person per site visit was used to 35 


develop the $150 per site visit estimate and the corresponding $300 total for two site visits. 36 


 37 


The Meeting Expenses table provided below provides a breakdown of costs and additional information for 38 


LAC-1: 39 


 40 


Line Item 


Meeting Room 


Rental & 


Break Costs 


Meeting Costs 
Conference Call 


Costs 
Total Costs 


LAC-1 $0 


$800 


(annual field tour expenses 


@$500 and 2 land evaluation 


site visits @$150 each} 


$288 


(4 calls @4 


hours, 


$0.30/minute) 


$1,088, 


round up to 


$1,100 


 41 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LAC-1.  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $       7,500.00  $                   -   


2008  $       7,500.00  $                   -   


2009  $       7,500.00  $                   -   


2010  $       7,500.00  $                   -   


2011  $       1,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $       1,500.00  $                   -   


2013  $       2,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $       1,600.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $         1,100.00 


Program Task LAC-1







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 17 of 89 
 


General Notes on Meetings Costs 1 


Because each meeting may be held in a different location (different cities and different hotels) a range of 2 


meeting room costs are possible. The typical range of room rental rates is $500 to $750/day. The typical 3 


rate for providing refreshments (coffee, sodas, juices), morning or afternoon break foods (rolls, fruit, 4 


cookies), and box lunches (if the agenda calls for a working lunch) can vary considerably by location, the 5 


range of options selected, and the number of people attending.  For planning purposes, a rate range of $250 6 


to $500 per meeting is used. Equipment costs for projector and screens and polycom conference phones 7 


vary considerable depending on location. Projector/screen costs can range from $50 to $250 per day. 8 


Polycom conference phones with microphone extension costs can range from $50 to $100 per day. 9 


Conference call costs are broken down in the table by number, rate, and duration of calls, the number and 10 


duration are estimated based on experience and the rate is set by contract with the provider.  11 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 18 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; WAC 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Meeting locations in NE, WY, and CO, typically in Ogallala, NE. 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Limited budget amount to cover meeting costs for WAC and WAC Working Group meetings; including 20 


miscellaneous costs for holding meetings (e.g. conference call fees, AV fees, site visit expenses). 21 


 22 


Products 23 


Meeting space and associated needs. 24 


 25 


Notes on Cost 26 


The WAC meets quarterly at the Visitor’s Center near Lake McConaughy in Ogallala for which there is no 27 


room or equipment charge, but working groups and subcommittee frequently meet by conference call and 28 


at other locations. As progress accelerates on implementation of various Water Action Plan projects, the 29 


frequency of project related meetings will increase. Meeting room costs for two one-day meetings in 30 


Denver, CO or Omaha, NE are assumed. Refreshments, lunch, and morning and afternoon breaks assumed 31 


for each day. Estimated cost of $1,000 per day at either location, at a facility near the airport based on 32 


previous years’ experience, was used to develop the $2,000 estimate. Equipment cost of $100 per day for a 33 


polycom conference phone and screen. All meetings assumed to be focused on J2 Regulating Reservoir 34 


Project or other Water Action Plan projects (e.g., Net Controllable Conserved Water, Ground Water 35 


Recharge Project scoring, Pathfinder scoring, hydrologic monitoring, or other candidate topics) with 36 


meetings involving a mix of technical/administrative topics. 37 


 38 


The Meeting Expenses table provided below provides a breakdown of costs and additional information for 39 


WAC-1: 40 


 41 


Line Item 


Meeting Room 


Rental & Break 


Costs 


Meeting 


Equipment Costs 


Conference Call 


Costs 
Total Costs 


WAC-1 


$1,000 


(1 one- day off-site 


meeting for specific 


water projects) 


$100 


(phone and  screen 


at each meeting) 


$648 


(4 calls @4 hours and 


10 calls @2 hours, 


$0.30/minute) 


$2,648, 


round up to 


$2,700 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WAC-1.  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $       1,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $       1,500.00  $                   -   


2013  $       6,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $       3,500.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $         2,700.00 


Program Task WAC-1







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 19 of 89 
 


General Notes on Meeting Costs 1 


Because each meeting may be held in a different location (different cities and different hotels) a range of 2 


meeting room costs are possible. The typical range of room rental rates is $500 to $750/day. The typical 3 


rate for providing refreshments (coffee, sodas, juices), morning or afternoon break foods (rolls, fruit, 4 


cookies), and box lunches (if the agenda calls for a working lunch) can vary considerably by location, the 5 


range of options selected, and the number of people attending.  For planning purposes, a rate range of $250 6 


to $500 per meeting is used. Equipment costs for projector and screens and polycom conference phones 7 


vary considerable depending on location. Projector/screen costs can range from $50 to $250 per day. 8 


Polycom conference phones with microphone extension costs can range from $50 to $100 per day. 9 


Conference call costs are broken down in the table by number, rate, and duration of calls, the number and 10 


duration are estimated based on experience and the rate is set by contract with the provider.  11 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 20 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


Program First Increment Timeline 3 


Annual 4 


 5 


FY 2015 Start Date 6 


January 1, 2015 7 


 8 


FY 2015 End Date 9 


December 31, 2015 10 


 11 


Task Completed by 12 


ED Office; TAC 13 


 14 


Task Location 15 


Meeting locations in NE, WY, and CO 16 


 17 


Task Description 18 


Limited budget amount to cover meeting room rentals for TAC and TAC Work Group meetings; other 19 


miscellaneous costs for holding meetings (e.g. conference call fees, AV fees). 20 


 21 


Products 22 


Meeting space and associated needs. 23 


 24 


Notes on Cost 25 


The TAC meets quarterly, but working group and sub-committee meetings can meet more frequently. Most 26 


of these meetings are held in Kearney, NE at the EDO or via conference call, but it is not uncommon for a 27 


few meetings to be held at other locations. Meeting room costs for one meeting away from Kearney, 28 


meeting for two half days was assumed for 2015.  Location assumed in Omaha, NE. Refreshments, morning 29 


and afternoon breaks assumed.  Estimated cost for room and breaks/lunch at $1,200 per day based on 30 


experience. Equipment cost of polycom conference phone with microphone extensions and screen 31 


estimated at $100 for two half days. 32 


 33 


The Meeting Expenses table provided below provides a breakdown of costs and additional information for 34 


TAC-1: 35 


 36 


Line Item 


Meeting Room 


Rental & Break 


Costs 


Meeting 


Equipment Costs 


Conference Call 


Costs 
Total Costs 


TAC-1 


$1,200 


(1 off-site meeting, 


two half days) 


$100 


(phone and screen 


at each meeting) 


$720 


(10 calls @4 hours, 


$0.30/minute 


$2,020, 


round down 


to $2,000 


 37 


General Notes on Meeting Costs 38 


Because each meeting may be held in a different location (different cities and different hotels) a range of 39 


meeting room costs are possible. The typical range of room rental rates is $500 to $750/day. The typical 40 


rate for providing refreshments (coffee, sodas, juices), morning or afternoon break foods (rolls, fruit, 41 


cookies), and box lunches (if the agenda calls for a working lunch) can vary considerably by location, the 42 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  TAC-1.  Expenses, Meeting Rooms, etc. 


 
Year Approved Estimated


2007  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $       5,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $       1,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $       1,500.00  $                   -   


2013  $       4,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $       2,400.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $         2,000.00 


Program Task TAC-1







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 21 of 89 
 


range of options selected, and the number of people attending.  For planning purposes, a rate range of $250 1 


to $500 per meeting is used. Equipment costs for projector and screens and polycom conference phones 2 


vary considerable depending on location. Projector/screen costs can range from $50 to $250 per day. 3 


Polycom conference phones with microphone extension costs can range from $50 to $100 per day. 4 


Conference call costs are broken down in the table by number, rate, and duration of calls, the number and 5 


duration are estimated based on experience and the rate is set by contract with the provider.  6 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 22 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


Program First Increment Timeline 3 


Annual 4 


 5 


FY 2015 Start Date 6 


January 1, 2015 7 


 8 


FY 2015 End Date 9 


December 31, 2015 10 


 11 


Task Completed by 12 


ED Office; LAC; Land Interest Holding Entity (LIHE) 13 


 14 


Task Location 15 


Land interest locations TBD 16 


 17 


Task Description 18 


Funding for acquisition of interest in land (own, lease, easements, other agreements) according to 19 


implementation of the Land Plan and the AMP; fees for Platte River Recovery Implementation 20 


Foundation, the LIHE for the Program, as well as property taxes and other annual fees. 21 


 22 


Products 23 


Program lands 24 


 25 


Notes on Cost 26 


LIHE Fees: LIHE fees are the fees charged to the Program by the Platte River Recovery Implementation 27 


Foundation. The fees are assessed based on actual incurred direct expenses (attorney fees and insurance), 28 


baseline fee, number of parcels held in various categories (fee simple, easement, lease, or management 29 


agreement), and number of transactions. The insurance cost is for General Liability to provide specific 30 


protection to PRRIF as title holder for any claims that might arise associated with injury or damage incurred 31 


on or associated with the properties. This is separate and distinct from the insurance carried by the Program 32 


that is covered in Program line item GFC-2. The fees are billed quarterly. 2012-2014 charges are provided 33 


below: 34 


Quarter 2012 Fee 2013 Fee 2014 Fee 


First $14,614 $14,634 $16,373 


Second $11,117 $11,397 $11,827 


Third $14,668 $12,205 $18,144 


Fourth $14,637 $14,357  


TOTAL $55,033 $52,593 $46,344 


AVERAGE $13,755 $13,148  


 35 


Although our portfolio of holdings has increased, the number of transactions has declined (fewer purchases 36 


and boundary modifications) with an anticipated decline in fees. Therefore, a smaller quarterly average fee 37 


of $12,500 was used to arrive at the annual number of $50,000. 38 


 39 


Taxes: PRRIP is required to pay property taxes. A summary of the property taxes paid in 2012-2014 is 40 


provided by county below. All PRRIP properties are located in Nebraska. 41 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-3.  Land Acquisition 


 


 
Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $6,000,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $7,000,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $6,000,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $5,000,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $5,000,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $3,000,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $1,500,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $   1,535,000.00 


LP-3







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 23 of 89 
 


Nebraska 


County 


Total Property Tax Paid 


2012 


Total Property Tax Paid 


2013 


Total Property Tax Paid 


2014 


Buffalo $50,404 $42,450 $76,893 


Dawson $2,086 $2,086 $7,755 


Gosper $0 $584 $715 


Hall $32,616 $22,060. $35,884 


Phelps $21,619 $21,619 $25,119 


Kearney $0 $0 $2,225 


TOTAL $106,725 $88,799 $148,591 


 1 


It is anticipated that a similar pattern of payments will be made by county in 2015 as in 2014, but with 2 


higher numbers in all counties, particularly Hall and Buffalo.  Based on the 2014 payments, an estimated 3 


$150,000 in property tax payments will be made in 2015. 4 


 5 


Land Acquisition: Assumptions for land acquisition in 2015: 6 


Purchase 7 


 Additional 160 acres of palustrine wetlands 8 


 Two possible land trades or tract disposals (Newark, Elm Creek Complex) 9 


 Associated Costs: These costs are based on experience on 2009-2014 acquisitions.  The associated costs 10 


per transaction are provided in the table below:  11 


  12 


Item Fee 


Appraiser fee $5,000 


Surveyor fee $4,000 


Attorney fee (@$200/hr for 40 hours) $8,000 


Miscellaneous costs and fees (@8-10% of total other fees) $1,750 


TOTAL $18,750 


 13 


Assuming one tract acquisitions and two tract disposals in 2015, each in the 120 to 200 acre range, an 14 


estimate of $55,000 was developed (3 x $18,750 = $56,250, round down to $55,000).  Appraisers are 15 


selected through mutual agreement with the seller based on knowledge of real estate in specific locales, 16 


reputation, ability to meet “Yellow Book” standards, and previous direct experience of EDO staff with the 17 


appraisers. Appraisals must meet “Yellow Book” Uniform Appraisal Standards for Federal Land 18 


Acquisitions in conformance with Federal Law 91-646 of the Uniform Appraisal Act. This criterion limits 19 


the number of appraisers qualified to perform appraisals for the Program, and increases the cost. Rates are 20 


compared against customary and standard rates for appropriately qualified appraisers in the Lexington to 21 


Grand Island, NE area.  A fee of $5,000 per appraisal is the average fee for a relatively straightforward 22 


appraisal of rural land in the Lexington to Grand Island area. Based on this market survey rate comparison 23 


and the qualifications of the potential appraisers, these rates are known to be fair, reasonable, and 24 


competitive. 25 


 26 


The market survey process is composed of the following steps: 27 


 Determine which appraisers are qualified to do a “Yellow Book” Uniform Appraisal Standard. This is 28 


accomplished through asking LAC members experienced in real estate transactions in the Associated 29 


Habitat Region who they know to be qualified and what their experience has been with various 30 


appraisers, and internet and yellow page searches followed up with phone calls or office visits to 31 


determine qualifications, experience, and assess skill levels. While this search may not be exhaustive it 32 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 24 of 89 
 


is extremely comprehensive with virtually all “Yellow Book” qualified appraisers in the Lexington to 1 


Grand Island area considered. Appraisers outside of this region would not have sufficient local 2 


knowledge to be considered qualified. 3 


 As part of the list development process, rates and estimated (by the appraisers) costs of a standard basic 4 


appraisal were solicited. 5 


 A comparison of qualifications, reputation, specific experience, and assessed skill level together with 6 


rates and estimated cost formed the basic information basis for then soliciting appraiser services for 7 


specific tracts. Acceptability by the selling party is also a critical factor. 8 


 The experience gained through 5 years of land acquisition for the Program provides a solid basis for 9 


verification or modification of initial information gathered and is of great value in selecting appraisers.  10 


 11 


A number of surveyors have been used by the Program over the past five years, but one has emerged as far 12 


superior in quality of work, responsiveness, and overall level of service. Unless there are special 13 


circumstances that require use of a different surveyor, the Program always uses Land Services LLC for 14 


property boundary surveys. Charges are based on time and materials, with hourly rates of approximately 15 


$75/hr. for research, $85/hr. for drafting, and $125/hr. for in-field surveying. A fee of $4,000 per survey is 16 


an average fee for a basic boundary survey of a 160 to 240 acre parcel with the Platte River as one boundary, 17 


including basic research and a filed, stamped survey document.  Based on a market survey of surveyor rates 18 


in the eastern half of Nebraska, these rates are known to be fair, reasonable, and competitive. 19 


 20 


The market survey process is composed of the following steps: 21 


 Determine which surveyors are qualified to perform riparian boundary surveys. This is accomplished 22 


through asking LAC members experienced in surveying issues and that have required the service of 23 


riparian boundary surveyors in the Associated Habitat Region who they know to be qualified and what 24 


their experience has been with various surveyors, and internet and yellow page searches followed up 25 


with phone calls or office visits to determine qualifications, experience, and to assess skill levels. Also, 26 


supplementing this information with the over 25 years of experience working with surveyors in 27 


Nebraska represented by the Program Staff person leading the land acquisition effort. While this search 28 


may not be exhaustive it is extremely comprehensive with virtually all experienced riparian boundary 29 


surveyors in the North Platte to Omaha area considered. 30 


 As part of the list development process, rates and estimated (by the surveyors) costs of a standard basic 31 


riparian boundary survey were considered 32 


 A comparison of qualifications, reputation, specific experience, and assessed skill level together with 33 


rates and estimated cost formed the basic information basis for then soliciting surveyor services for 34 


specific tracts.  35 


 The experience gained through 5 years of land acquisition and associated surveys for the Program 36 


provides a solid basis for a verification or modification of initial information gathered that is of great 37 


value in selecting surveyors. 38 


 39 


Attorneys for real estate work are selected based on knowledge and experience in riparian boundary law, 40 


specific experience in a particular section of river, reputation, quality of work, lack of conflict of interest, 41 


and previous direct dealings with EDO staff.  Rates are compared to customary and standard rates for the 42 


South Central and Eastern Nebraska areas. A fee based on 40 hours per transaction is a conservative 43 


estimate of time required for legal efforts, assuming some unique issues will need resolution, such as 44 


complications from riparian boundaries, and occasionally multiple county jurisdictions that arise on 45 


properties that straddle the river and lie in two counties.  Based on this market survey rate comparison and 46 


the qualifications of the attorneys being considered, these rates are known to be fair, reasonable, and 47 


competitive. 48 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 25 of 89 
 


The market survey process is composed of the following steps: 1 


 Determine which attorneys are qualified to perform riparian real estate transactions. This is 2 


accomplished through asking Advisory Committee or Governance Committee members experienced in 3 


riparian real estate legal issues and that have required the service of such attorneys in the Associated 4 


Habitat Region who they know to be qualified and what their experience has been with various 5 


attorneys, and internet and yellow page searches followed up with phone calls or office visits to 6 


determine qualifications, experience and to assess skill levels. Also, supplementing this information 7 


with the over 25 years of experience working with riparian real estate attorneys in Nebraska represented 8 


by the Program Staff person leading the land acquisition effort. While this search may not be exhaustive 9 


it is extremely comprehensive with virtually all experienced riparian real estate attorneys in the North 10 


Platte to Omaha area considered. 11 


 As part of the list development process, rates and estimated (by the attorneys) costs of a standard basic 12 


riparian boundary survey were considered. 13 


 A comparison of qualifications, reputation, specific experience, and assessed skill level together with 14 


rates and estimated costs for a basic riparian real estate transaction formed the basic information basis 15 


for then soliciting surveyor services for specific tracts. 16 


 The experience gained through 5 years of land acquisition for the Program provides a solid basis for a 17 


verification or modification of initial information gathered that is of great value in selecting attorneys. 18 


 19 


Miscellaneous fees could include items from among the following:  Phase I Environmental Site 20 


Assessments (@$1,000 to $1,500 per site with one always performed for each tract purchased), additional 21 


title searches, clouds on the title that must be resolved (fence issues, material removal from site, previous 22 


owners or heirs of previous owners that must be tracked down to positively clear titles), copying and 23 


printing fees, and unusual boundary issues that require additional research or surveys. No two acquisitions 24 


are the same, and some peculiarity often arises that must be dealt with. They rarely involve large 25 


expenditures to resolve, but, on the other hand, when they arise they are not trivial, negligible costs either.  26 


 27 


Purchase Costs: Current land prices for the types of non-complex lands we will be acquiring typically 28 


range from $4,000 to $8,000 per acre (the riparian or palustrine properties we pursue are not prime 29 


agricultural lands which range from $6,500 to $10,000 per acre or more). 30 


 31 


Acquisitions anticipated for 2015 are as follows: 32 


 Palustrine wetland – no specific palustrine wetland has yet been identified, but a 160-acre tract will 33 


need to be acquired with an estimated $8,000/acre cost for an estimated purchase price of $1,280,000. 34 


 Note:  NO provision for income generated from land disposal actions is included in the budget estimate.  35 


The budget reflects only anticipated expenditures, not a net of expenditures and income.  The table 36 


below summarizes estimated LP-3 costs for FY15: 37 


 38 


Item Estimated FY15 Cost 


LIHE Fees $50,000 


Property Taxes $150,000 


Land Acquisition & Disposal 


Associated Costs 
$55,000 


Palustrine Wetland (160 acres) $1,280,000 


TOTAL $1,535,000 


  39 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 26 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; LAC; Land Interest Holding Entity (LIHE) 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Land interest locations  17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Funding for non-AMP related management activities (fencing, routine agricultural operations, weed 20 


management, property maintenance, day-to-day management, non-AMP tree and channel clearing, etc.).  21 


Specific land management activities for the year are defined in the Land Management Plans developed 22 


through the LAC and approved by the GC.  A summary of Program land work proposed for 2015 is included 23 


as Appendix A in this document. 24 


 25 


Products 26 


Program lands managed properly according to Program guidelines and “Good Neighbor” policy. 27 


 28 


Notes on Cost 29 


See Appendix A in this document for specific details.  30 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-4.  Land Management 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $   500,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   588,800.00  $                   -   


2011  $   365,500.00  $                   -   


2012  $   409,800.00  $                   -   


2013  $   448,400.00  $                   -   


2014  $   192,500.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      309,100.00 


LP-4







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 27 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; Contractor 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Offices; Contractor Offices 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


 Land management will be needed by United Farm Management for the Plum Creek Complex, 20 


Cottonwood Ranch Complex, and Elm Creek Complex and for non-complex land at the DeBore and 21 


Leihs Wetland. 22 


 Land management will be needed by AgriAffiliates for the Shoemaker Island Complex, Fort Kearney 23 


Complex and for non-complex lands at Alda pit, Leaman East pit and Broadfoot Newark pits. 24 


 Both advisors shall continue grassland leases for haying and grazing on all properties   annually to the 25 


end of the First Increment. 26 


 27 


Products 28 


 Meeting participation 29 


 Memoranda and reports 30 


 31 


Notes on Cost 32 


Two agricultural management firms will be used to handle tenant leases for Program properties in 2015. 33 


The properties will be divided geographically between the two firms, with the properties at and east of 34 


Kearney handled by AgriAffiliates and the properties to the west of Kearney handled by United Farm 35 


Management. The work load will be generally equal between the two firms. Labor costs are billed at $75 36 


per hour by each firm. The breakdown of hours and costs estimated for each firm based on experience and 37 


discussions with each firm are tabulated below: 38 


 39 


Firm Direct Costs Hours Labor Costs Total 


AgriAfiliates $1,000 120 hrs @$75/hr $9,000 $10,000 


United Farm Mgmt. $1,000 120 hrs @$75/hr $9,000 $10,000 


TOTAL $20,000 


 40 


The firms were selected based on a comparative vetting process involving most of the firms that provide 41 


such services that were located within the Lexington to Grand Island corridor. The selection was made 42 


based on qualifications, reputation, capacity, and competitive labor rates/time estimates. 43 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-6.  Land Plan Special Advisors 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $     15,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   120,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     20,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       20,000.00 


LP-6







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 28 of 89 
 


General note on all Special Advisor budget line items: Please refer to the third paragraph in the Exceptions: 1 


section of the Procurement Policy adopted by the Governance Committee in August of 2008, “Retention of 2 


special advisors to the ED of a technical or legal nature is exempt from the procedures provided in this 3 


directive.” 4 


 5 


Consequently, special advisors are not selected through a competitive process involving advertised RFQs 6 


or RFPs. Special advisors are selected by the Executive Director based on qualifications – education, 7 


relevant experience, expertise and skills, reliability, credibility, and ability to work effectively with the ED 8 


and the staff of the EDO. Special Advisors and the firms they are associated with cannot do any other work 9 


for the Program, individually or as part of a team.  This is a critical restriction and generally orients special 10 


advisor selection to individuals who are sole proprietors or part of small firms that would not likely be 11 


doing significant levels of work for the Program on other specific, larger projects.  12 


 13 


The billing rates are negotiated with the special advisors by the ED and are kept within the industry standard 14 


of practice based on each individual’s qualifications.  While industry standard of practice may not be 15 


precisely defined, anyone who is a practicing member of that professional community understands the limits 16 


of reasonableness associated with those boundaries.  Appropriate expertise to make this assessment resides 17 


with the ED or EDO staff. The industry standard of practice rates guidelines used in this process is 18 


established based on an on-going market survey process comparing labor rates of similarly qualified 19 


professionals in the field. 20 


 21 


In the case of Special Advisors, individuals with similar experience and qualifications have been part of 22 


consultant teams selected through the Program’s competitive procurement process over a six plus year 23 


period. Comparison of the Special Advisor rates to the rates charged by comparable individuals through the 24 


competitive procurement process provides an indisputable basis for comparison. In all cases the Special 25 


Advisor rates are not only within the range of rates seen on the consultant teams which have been selected 26 


competitively, but typically at the middle to lower end of the range.  As rates charged by Special Advisors 27 


are at the middle to low end of the range of rates for similar work acquired through the Program’s 28 


competitive procurement process, the estimate for Special Advisors is considered fair and reasonable. 29 


The anticipated level of effort for the upcoming year is also discussed with the special advisors by the ED 30 


and members of the EDO staff, but all work is assigned on an as-needed basis with no guarantee of any 31 


minimum level of assignments.  32 


 33 


During the budgeting process, the special advisors anticipated to be needed and roughly the level of effort 34 


expected to accomplish the work plan for the budget year is scrutinized by and discussed with the 35 


appropriate advisory committees, the Finance Committee, and the Governance Committee. Input is received 36 


and taken under advisement from all these sources as to the appropriateness of the budgets for these line 37 


items with appropriate adjustments made prior to budget approval.   38 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 29 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; Contractor (Nebraska Game and Parks 14 


Commission) 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


All Available PRRIF properties 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


Cost associated with public recreation access to Program lands. Costs are for the maintenance and 21 


administration of an on-line reservation system and the on the ground monitoring of recreational use of the 22 


properties.  This program will need to plan for additional costs resulting from increased time commitments 23 


as the use of the system increases and more lands are added to the access program. In addition, we can 24 


expect increases in unit costs from the provider, Nebraska Game and Parks Commission, to handle inflation 25 


and other increased costs to them at some point in the future. 26 


 27 


Products 28 


Opportunities for the general public to use Program lands for outdoor recreation and access under 29 


acceptable guidelines without interfering with Program Goals and primary species needs.  Conformance 30 


with expectations of America’s Great Outdoors initiative. 31 


 32 


Notes on Cost 33 


Nebraska Game and Parks Commission will manage public access to Program lands in 2015 pursuant to a 34 


contract between the Nebraska Community Foundation and the Nebraska Game & Parks Commission.  35 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-7.  Public Access Management 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $                -    $                   -   


2011  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     55,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       50,000.00 


LP-7







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 30 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


Program First Increment Timeline 3 


Annual 4 


 5 


FY 2015 Start Date 6 


January 1, 2015 7 


 8 


FY 2015 End Date 9 


December 31, 2015 10 


 11 


Task Completed by 12 


ED Office; Contractor  13 


 14 


Task Location 15 


ED Offices; Contractor Offices; North Platte River and Platte River between Kingsley Dam and 16 


Columbus. 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


The objective of the Active Channel Capacity Improvements task is to increase and maintain the active 20 


river channel capacity.  Channel capacity improvements will assist the Program in managing water for the 21 


Short Duration High Flow tests made under the Adaptive Management Plan and in delivery of Program 22 


water to meet shortage reduction to target flow goals under the Water Plan. There are two sub-tasks:  23 


 WP-1(a) will continue efforts toward increasing the North Platte River channel capacity at the National 24 


Weather Service (NWS) flood stage upstream of the Central Nebraska Public Power and Irrigation 25 


District (CNPPID) diversion dam to at least 3,000 cfs. This includes efforts toward raising the NWS 26 


flood stage at North Platte from 6.0 feet to 6.5 feet and increasing by-pass capacity to the South Platte 27 


River upstream of North Platte, NE. Additional technical and/or contracting services will be engaged 28 


to implement the State Channel Reactivation flood-risk reduction project begun in 2013 and make 29 


improvements to by-pass canals on the Suburban and Platte Valley Canals. Specific items associated 30 


with this effort and estimated ranges of costs associated with each item are: 31 


1. Implement flood-risk reduction projects  $125,000 to $150,000 32 


2. Vegetation clearing and deep tillage $14,000 to $30,000 33 


3. Design and implementation of canal by-pass projects $70,000 to $120,000 34 


TOTAL $209,000 to $300,000 35 


  Budget for $240,000 36 


 37 


The budget estimate is based on approximately 75% of the estimated maximum, as a conservative 38 


means of dealing with uncertainty associated with cost estimates, and experience regarding the ability 39 


to accomplish all that is planned. Further detail of the cost estimates for the items described in the 2015 40 


Work Plan includes: 41 


1. Implementation of flood-proofing projects: $125,000 to $150,000 42 


Contracted engineering design professionals have provided plans, specifications, and estimated 43 


costs for the construction of the state channel reactivation project. Based on previous estimates and 44 


bids for similar work done for the Program, these estimates are considered fair and reasonable. The 45 


state channel work is contingent upon receiving a Section 404 individual permit from the U.S. 46 


Army Corps of Engineers, which is expected by the end of 2014. In addition, Lincoln County and 47 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-1 (a-b).  Active Channel Capacity Improvements 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $   241,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $     40,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $     80,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   450,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   450,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   300,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   700,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   360,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      440,000.00 


WP-1 (a-b)







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 31 of 89 
 


local residents have expressed interest in expanding the Whitehorse Creek Drainage Project, which 1 


was completed in 2014. Phase II of this project would include installation of up to 10 additional 2 


culverts and creation of approximately 1,000 feet of drainage ditch along North River Road. 3 


State Channel Improvements $75,000 4 


Whitehorse Creek Phase II $50,000 to $75,000 5 


TOTAL            $125,000 to $150,000 6 


 7 


2. Vegetation clearing and deep tillage (disking): $14,000 to $30,000 8 


Cost will vary, depending on the number of acres of non-woody vegetation sprayed, shredded, 9 


and disked (up to $200/acre if all operations performed). Unit costs are based on experience and 10 


areas are based on preliminary assessment of vegetation removal efforts required.  Area estimates 11 


are based on map delineation of minimum and maximum areas likely to increase hydraulic 12 


conveyance if cleared. Unit cost estimates have been developed from compilations of bids and 13 


costs incurred for this type of work over the past seven years. Specific clearing activities have not 14 


been identified at this time and additional refinements to these estimates is not currently possible. 15 


A low end estimate includes treatment of 70 acres at a cost of $200/acre. The high end estimate is 16 


150 acres at $200/acre.   17 


 18 


3. Design and implementation of canal by-pass projects: $70,000 to $120,000  19 


The following cost estimates are for canal improvements on the North Platte and Suburban Canals. 20 


The estimates are based on experience for similar work performed for the Program, awarded 21 


through competitive bid processes as well as recent canal improvements undertaken by the Central 22 


Platte Natural Resource District (CPNRD), awarded through competitive bid processes.  The 23 


projects would require hiring a contractor to design and implement.   24 


 25 


Design Cost of canal improvements $30,000 to $50,000 26 


Construction Cost of canal improvements $40,000 to $70,000 27 


TOTAL $70,000 to $120,000 28 


  29 


 WP-1(b) has in the past been a cost share with Platte Valley and West Central Weed Management 30 


Areas to clear biomass from the North Platte River channel between Kingsley Dam and the CNPPID 31 


diversion dam and from the Platte River between North Platte and Chapman. At the June 2014 32 


Governance Committee (GC) Meeting, the commitment was made for $200,000 per year for the years 33 


from 2015-2017 in support of a cooperative in-channel maintenance effort associated with a Nebraska 34 


Environmental Trust (NET) Grant Application for Platte River Management and Enhancement. The 35 


cooperative effort, if the grant is awarded, will be led by the CPNRD with primary support and 36 


contributions from other NRDs, the Rain Water Joint Venture, the Program and cooperation from 37 


other conservation organizations and individual land owners. The work will consist of control, 38 


removal and monitoring of invasive vegetation within Platte River channels and its tributaries in 39 


Keith, Lincoln, Deuel, Dawson, Buffalo, Phelps, Hall, Merrick, and Polk counties. The activities will 40 


promote channel conveyance and desired vegetation communities by controlling invasive vegetation 41 


within the Platte River. By focusing on the entire system the project will maximize resources through 42 


a collaborative partnership focused on rehabilitation of the active channel, promoting long-term 43 


maintenance, and developing an early detection and rapid response protocol to prevent re-infestations. 44 


 45 


Costs breakdowns for allocation of the budget shown in Table 1 are based on the breakdowns in the Grant 46 


Application with further elaboration based on experience with expenditures made by the Weed 47 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 32 of 89 
 


Management Areas in previous years. The actual distribution of expenditures in any given year will vary 1 


among categories and may include other categories associated with channel maintenance and 2 


enhancement such as river tillage operations for vegetation control in addition to herbicide based control 3 


efforts. 4 


 5 


Table 1. Cost Assumptions for WP-1(b). 6 


Category Amount Unit Cost Total Cost* 


Control (helicopter) 64 hrs $1,975/hr $126,400 


Control (Airboat) 160 hrs $140/hr $22,400 


Survey (helicopter) 5 hrs $1,025/hr $5,250 


Herbicide 390 gals $75.13/gal $29,300 


Meeting & Material 


Development Support 
Lump sum n/a 16,650 


*Approximate. 
 


Total $200,000 


                                                                                     7 


Products 8 


 Improve conveyance capacity through North Platte Choke Point. 9 


 Complete flood proofing projects in vicinity of Highway 83 Bridge.  10 


 Improve canal by-pass capacity for Suburban and North Platte canals. 11 


 Channel rehabilitation, maintenance and enhancement efforts to improve conveyance and habitat in 12 


channel sections between Kingsley Dam and Columbus.  13 


 14 


Notes on Costs 15 


Specific expenditures will require authorization of Finance Committee.  16 


 17 


Budget 18 


Program Task WP-1 


WP 


2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 


Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Approved Estimated 


1(a) $241,000  $40,000  $80,000  $50,000  $250,000  $100,000  $500,000  $260,000  $240,000  


1(b)* $0  $0  $0  $400,000  $200,000  $200,000  $200,000  $100,000  $200,000  
* Matching funds in a cost-share program with Platte River Management and Enhancement partners.   19 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 33 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; Contractor 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Offices; Contractor Offices; Nebraska, Colorado, Wyoming 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Under WP-4, the Program intends to advance projects from the 2009 Water Action Plan Update through 20 


feasibility into full implementation, including design and construction. The ED Office will work with the 21 


Water Advisory Committee (WAC) and associated Work Groups to evaluate the potential yield, permitting 22 


requirements, and costs associated with various projects. The potential benefits of joint project operations 23 


will also be considered. The following paragraphs provide brief descriptions of the anticipated sub-tasks 24 


included in the 2015 budget:  25 


 26 


 WP-4(a) J2 Regulating Reservoir – In 2015, the budget will be used to fund the first increment of 27 


construction costs for the J2 Regulating Reservoir. The total construction cost budget of $57,662,554 is 28 


required to be available before construction begins to ensure the full funds to complete the project are 29 


reserved. Therefore, the budgeted funds for the project will be acquired and accumulated in 2015, 2016 30 


and 2017, and construction is projected to begin in 2018. It was initially anticipated that the first year of 31 


construction costs would be budgeted for fiscal year 2014; however, no funds were expended in 2014. 32 


The budget schedule was been updated to reflect construction budgeting costs to begin in 2015. The 33 


previous J2 Regulating Reservoir expenditures (2007-2013) included land acquisition, permitting and 34 


design costs and support. 35 


 36 


The final design for the reservoir is anticipated to be completed by the contractor in 2017 and the project’s 37 


construction is projected to initiate in 2018 and continue through 2020. The schedule through construction 38 


is based on the projected schedule provided by RJH Consultants, Inc. that is included on the following 39 


page.  40 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-4 (a-h).  Water Action Plan 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                  -    $                   -   


2008  $                  -    $                   -   


2009  $                  -    $                   -   


2010  $                  -    $                   -   


2011  $  5,100,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $11,800,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $15,100,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $16,708,317.00  $                   -   


2015  $                  -    $ 17,285,100.00 


WP-4(a-h)







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 


 


PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 34 of 89 
 


 1 


·· · '-~-·-·· ;~:;~i::,;;;;,·";;;;;;;ci.niiiii' ····· ············· ............................. J -M:~~il3i14l.... F~~~:2311·7J. ... ~;;~~:;Y.,.rsl9)JJ¥6\r<::i49I6-~~19icu~~:~3-01b~~¥~9~RI~~:{:i~9f¢:i~~~~39~~1 :~~~~0~ 
' " '' '"} ' '' ''' 


.. 'j'"'l 
·.r .. 


Initial Consultation Document 


Environmental & Cultral Studies 


Draft License Application 
'5" '" 
'6'"' 


Fmal License App11 cat1on 


FERC Review and Decision 


·i · ·--· NDNR Water Right 


. ·a- -- ~ Prepare and File Petition 


·g· -- ~ ONR Rev1 ew 


10 .. DNR Approval 


- i1""'Land Aqcwsltlon 


· i2 .. Identify Needed Lands 


13 " 
i4'" 


i5'"' 
·-·iif" ' 


Appraisals and Notice 0Amers 


Public Hearing 


Negotiation 


Closings 


i?'" Remaining Land Acquis~ion Tasks 


iil""'Englneerlng & Design 


i§ " Pre-Design 


--·!r::l 
Engineering to Support Permitting & Land 


Initial Data Collection & Eng. Studies 


Potential Concepts Adjustm ents 


23 " 
'' 24"" 


25 


26 " 1 


!:::::1 


Preliminary Design 


Geotechnical Investigation 


Design Ana lyses 


Design Docs 


Risk Assessment 


Final Design 


Final Ana lyses 


F1nal Documents 


31 ~· FERC Dam Safety Reviev~· 3~ ::: 11: 
32 B1ddmg 


33 -- Construction 


Project: 13130- 14-10-10_PRRIP _Sch• 
Date Fri 10/10/14 


Task 


Progress 


Milestone 


S ummary 


Mon 213/14 


Thu 10130/14 


Mon 7/13/15 


Mon 5/16/16 


Mon 8/22/16 


Mon 313/14 


Mon 313/14 


Mon 5/19/14 


Mon 10/6/14 


Mon 213/14 


Mon 213/14 


Fri 2/28/14 


Wed 11/5/14 


Fri 12/5/14 


Mon 212/15 


Fri 3/13/15 


Mon 3/10/14 


Mon 3/10/14 


Mon 3/24/14 


Mon 3/10/14 


Mon 5/19/14 


Mon 319/15 


Mon 319/15 


Mon 6/1 5/15 


Mon 8/17/15 


Mon 1111/16 


Mon 414/16 


Mon 414/16 


Mon 7/11/16 


Mon 7/10/17 


Mon 12/1 8/17 


W ed 2/21/18 


Fri 1013/14 


Wed 11/18/15 


Thu 5119/16 


Frl 8/12116 


Fri 6/23/17 


Man 10/6114 


Mon 5/12/14 


Fri 10/3/14 


Mon 10/6/14 


Thu 7/16115 


Fri 2/28/14 


Thu 1019/14 


Thu 11/6/14 


Thu 2/26/15 


Fri 3113/15 


Thu 7116/15 


Mon 10/30117 


Fri 1/30115 


Fri 1130/15 


Mon 7!7/14 


W ed 1/28/15 


Fri 6/10116 


Tue 9/15/1 5 


Moo 3!7/16 


Fri 6/10/16 


Fri 5/13/16 


Mon 10/30/17 


Fri 6/24/16 


Fri 1/20/17 


Mon 10/30/17 


Mon 12/18/17 


Tue 7!7120 


175 days 


275 days 


224 days 


65 days 


220 days 


156 day s 


51 days 


100 days 


1 day 


379 days 


20 days 


160 days 


2 days 


60 day s 


30 days 


90 days 


951 day s 


235 day s 


225 days 


86 days 


183 days 


330 days 


137 days 


191 days 


21 5 days 


90 days 


411 days 


60 days 


140 days 


81 days 


1 day 


620 days 


Rolled Up Task 


Rolled Up Milestone 0 
Rolled Up Progress 


--


Split !! !! II llll ot!! OIIIIIIIIIII II 


Page 1 


External Tasks .::::::: :I 
Project Summary 


Group By Summary "' Q 


Deadline v 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 35 of 89 
 


The budget estimate for 2015 is based on the first increment of a three-year projected upfront construction 1 


cost payment, projected for budgeting in 2015 through 2017. The 2015 portion of the three-year projected 2 


upfront cost payment is approximately $19,200,000 from all parties, which includes approximately 3 


$14,400,000 from the Program and $4,800,000 from the Nebraska Department of Natural Resources 4 


(NDNR). Construction costs payments are anticipated to be reserved in the 2015, 2016 and 2017 budgets 5 


so that the full funds are available for actual reservoir construction in 2018. The total Program portion of 6 


the cost through construction is approximately $43,200,000 in three years (2015, 2016 and 2017), or about 7 


$14,400,000 per year. This cost covers the Program’s portion of base construction cost (general site work, 8 


seepage management/liner, embankments, slope protection, tributary work, inlets/outlets, Phelps County 9 


Canal work), mobilization/demobilization (1.5% of base construction cost), bonds/insurance (1% of base 10 


construction cost), a 20% contingency on the direct construction cost (base construction cost plus 11 


mobilization/demobilization and bonds/insurance), construction engineering (8% of the direct construction 12 


cost) and a 2.5% administration cost (based on the subtotal cost less CNPPID’s share of $1,500,000). The 13 


construction cost estimate is based on the J-2 Regulating Reservoir Conceptual Design Report prepared by 14 


RJH Consultants, Inc. in 2013. A summary of estimated costs are shown in Table 1. 15 


 16 


Table 1. J-2 Regulating Reservoir Cost Summary. 17 


Item Row Cost 


General Site Work A  $               1,468,900  


Seepage Management/Liner B  $             13,794,900  


Embankments C  $               8,003,450  


Slope Protection D  $             10,447,900  


Plum Creek/Unnamed Tributary E  $               2,558,000  


Inlets and Outlets F  $               5,136,892  


Phelps County Canal G  $               2,540,075  


Base Construction Cost (BCC) H  $             43,950,117  


Mob/Demobilization & Bonds and Insurance (2.5% of BCC) I  $               1,098,753  


Direct Construction Cost (DCC) J  $             45,048,870  


Contingency (20% of DCC) K  $               9,009,774  


Construction Engineering (8% of DCC) L  $               3,603,910  


Subtotal M  $             57,662,554  


CNPPID Share N  $               1,500,000  


NDNR and Program Share O  $             56,162,554  


Administration (2.5% of NDNR and Program Share) P  $               1,404,064  


NDNR and Program Total Share Q  $             57,566,617  


NDNR Share (25%) R  $             14,391,654  


Program Share (75%) S  $             43,174,963  


Program Three-Year Cost T  $             14,391,654  


Row Notes:   


A through G. Based on RJH Consultants, Inc.'s J-2 Regulating Reservoir Conceptual Design Report (Feb 2013). 


H. Sum of Rows A-G.   


I. Row H × 2.5%.   


J. Rows H + I.   







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 36 of 89 
 


K. Row J × 20%.   


L. Row J × 8%.   


M. Sum of Rows J-L.   


N. Based on CNPPID's portion in the Three-Party Agreement.   


O. Row M - Row N.   


P. Row O × 2.5%.   


Q. Row O + Row P.   


R. Row Q × 25%. Based on NDNR's portion in the Three-Party Agreement. 


S. Row Q × 75%. Based on Program's portion in the Three-Party Agreement. 


T. Row S ÷ 3 years. Based on estimated payment schedule from 2014-2016. 


 1 


 WP-4(b) CNPPID System Ground Water Projects – The Phelps County Canal (CNPPID) ground water 2 


recharge project and the Phelps County Canal ground water recharge pumping project are included in 3 


this line item.  4 


 5 


The Phelps County Canal ground water recharge project 2015 budget will be used for the 2015- 2016 6 


recharge season operations. A Water Service Agreement with the CNPPID and the full-scale 7 


implementation of the project will continue in the fall of 2015 through spring 2016. The anticipated 8 


2015 activities include continued water permitting for recharge operations (it is anticipated that the 9 


permanent recharge permits may be approved in 2015) and operation and maintenance associated with 10 


full-scale canal recharge. A temporary permit for recharge operations may also be submitted, if the 11 


permanent permit is not approved in 2015. The permanent recharge permit applications include 12 


recharge in the Tri-County Canal, Phelps County Canal and E65 Canal with a maximum total diversion 13 


rate of 700 cfs, or 350 cfs in the Phelps County Canal and 350 cfs in the E65 Canal. The canal capacity 14 


rates are 1,000 cfs and 350 cfs for the Phelps County Canal and the E65 Canal, respectively. The 15 


permanent recharge permits were submitted to the NDNR in 2012 and are currently pending. The 16 


CNPPID filed for an application for a permit to appropriate excess natural streamflow for the purpose 17 


of recharge operations for instream uses for the Program. At this time, the Program has decided not to 18 


pursue recharge operations in the E65 Canal due to the possibility that a significant portion of recharge 19 


accretions returns to the Republican River Basin. 20 


 21 


The Program and the CNPPID intend to divert excess flows into the Phelps County Canal for recharge 22 


in the fall of 2015 under the permanent permits, which are anticipated to be approved by the NDNR in 23 


the next year. The CNPPID and the Program may also operate under temporary recharge permits during 24 


the 2015-2016 season, if the permanent permits have not been approved by that time. The budget cost 25 


estimate for diversions into the Phelps County Canal for recharge operations is based on a rate of 26 


$26/acre-foot in 2014, escalating by 4% per year, per the long-term draft Water Service Agreement 27 


with the CNPPID. The CNPPID intends to divert excess flows into the canal through (and potentially) 28 


beyond Mile Post 13.3, which is a canal check location, allowing the canal to serve as a surface water 29 


storage pool with subsequent seepage.  30 


 31 


The ED Office estimated a 2015 average volume of 8,147 acre-feet delivered into the Phelps County 32 


Canal through the Mile Post 1.6 flume for recharge purposes. The Program intends to purchase 50% of 33 


the delivered volume, per the draft Water Service Agreement with the CNPPID. The volume delivered 34 


is based on the average volume in the ED Office’s Phelps County Canal ground water recharge scoring 35 


analysis memo (dated 11/27/2013 to the GC Scoring Subcommittee) for anticipated recharge operations 36 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 37 of 89 
 


from mid-September through mid-April. The estimate is based on the excess flows available using 1 


OpStudy Hydrology and a canal diversion rate of 115 cfs, which was utilized to be conservative (the 2 


permit appropriations submitted to the NDNR assumed a maximum diversion rate of 350 cfs). 3 


 4 


The Phelps ground water pumping project is a potential retiming project utilizing the recharge 5 


accretions from the Phelps County Canal ground water recharge project. The Program would construct 6 


new wells to pump ground water directly to the Platte River during times of shortages to target flows. 7 


The wells would be located between the Phelps County Canal and the Platte River and would capture 8 


recharge accretions from the recharge project. Since recharge accretions are not controllable and may 9 


return to the river during excesses to target flows, ground water pumping will allow the Program to 10 


pump recharged water to the river during shortage periods only to maximize the score. Pumping will 11 


also allow the recharged water to return to the river in a timelier manner than recharge alone. The 12 


ground water will likely be pumped into an adjacent drain and return to the river as surface flow. The 13 


preliminary score model analysis used the assumption that each well can pump at 1,000 gallons per 14 


minute from March through November (the wells will only be operated during shortages to target 15 


flows). It was assumed the Program will pump from two wells. 16 


 17 


The 2015 budget is to construct two new wells and includes one year of maintenance, pumping 18 


operation costs and personnel time to aid in monitoring, testing and maintenance. The estimated 19 


construction cost for the two wells is approximately $154,000 and includes:  construction, electrical 20 


hookup and power lines, flow meters, monitoring wells, engineering specifications and final design, 21 


construction oversight, data analyses and well testing. Based on the preliminary analysis completed by 22 


the ED Office, it was assumed the two wells would pump an average of approximately 1,700 acre-feet 23 


per year, collectively. This is based on the modeled Phelps County Canal ground water recharge 24 


operations and the intended ground water pumping operations (based on OpStudy Hydrology from 25 


1947-1994, utilized in the Program’s score model). The estimated costs for annual pumping, 26 


maintenance and personnel time for two wells are approximately $29,000 per year. This feasibility of 27 


this project is currently under evaluation by the Program. See Table 2 below for the cost estimate. 28 


 29 


Table 2. Phelps County Canal Ground Water Pumping Cost Summary. 30 


No. of Wells 


Construction 


Cost (2 wells) 


Piping from 


Well to Ditch 


Landowner 


Lease Costs 


(per year for 


1 well) 


Pumping 


Cost per AF 


(1000 


gpm/well) 


Avg. Annual 


Pumping (2 


wells) AF 


Years of 


Pumping 


(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F) 


2 $154,000 $17,000 $1,000 $5.20  1,666 1 


       


Maintenance 


per well per 


year 


Personnel costs 


per well per 


year 


Total Cost 


(rounded) 
    


(G) (H) (I)     


$1,500  $8,000  $200,000     


Notes:       


(A) Estimated cost based on data provided by Hahn Water Resources, LLC (ED Office Special 


Advisor) for construction, engineering plans and oversight. 


(B) Initial estimate to route water from well locations to drains using piping. 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 38 of 89 
 


(C) Rough estimate to utilize landowner property for well construction/easement. 


(D) Estimated cost based on data provided by Hahn Water Resources, LLC (ED Office Special 


Advisor). 


(E) Estimated volume of pumping in preliminary analysis for 2 wells. 


(F) Estimated number of years of pumping. 


(G) Estimated cost based on data provided by Hahn Water Resources, LLC (ED Office Special 


Advisor). 


(H) Based on a cost of $50 per hour for one full month (160 hrs) of personnel time. 


(I) Total first year cost for two wells (construction, piping to ditch, lease costs, pumping, 


maintenance, personnel costs). 


 1 


Based on the assumptions described above, the total cost of projects under the WP-4(b) is approximately 2 


$310,200 for 2015. This includes the Phelps County Canal ground water recharge project and Phelps 3 


County Canal groundwater recharge pumping project under the CNPPID canal and reservoir system. 4 


 5 


 WP-4(f) Nebraska Water Leasing & Acquisition – The Program intends to work with the CPNRD, the 6 


Nebraska Public Power District (NPPD), the CNPPID and the North Platte Natural Resources District 7 


(NPNRD) to temporarily lease and/or acquire permanent water supplies in 2015. The following water 8 


leases and acquisitions are proposed: 9 


 The Program and the CPNRD signed a water use lease agreement in 2013. The CPNRD 10 


agreement includes 2 components of water leasing:  surface water flows with direct returns to 11 


the river during the irrigation season and ground water recharge of excess flows during the non-12 


irrigation season. Water leasing operations may occur under the Orchard-Alfalfa, Thirty-Mile, 13 


and Cozad Canals.  The Program also has the opportunity to acquire permanent surface water 14 


from an individual irrigator in the CPNRD, which is included in the 2015 budget. 15 


 The NPPD lease is a potential project that would allow the Program to lease relinquished 16 


surface water rights under the Dawson County Canal, which would be returned to the river for 17 


credit. Additional lease water to offset potential increases in groundwater depletions on 18 


relinquished surface water lands is included in the cost estimate. 19 


 There are two potential CNPPID water leasing options. The Program would lease storage water 20 


in Lake McConaughy directly from the CNPPID under one option. The Program would lease 21 


surface water from individual irrigators under the CNPPID system with CNPPID serving as 22 


the coordinator/clearing house for these transactions. Both options can be pursued, they are not 23 


mutually exclusive. Additional lease water to offset potential increases in groundwater 24 


depletions on the previously surface water irrigated lands is included in the cost estimate. 25 


 The NPNRD lease is a potential project that would allow the Program to lease surface water 26 


directly from individual irrigators in the district. The NPNRD would likely be a partner in such 27 


transactions, and could serve as the clearing house for such transactions. 28 


CPNRD Water Leasing & Acquisition 29 


 30 


CPNRD Water Lease 31 


The CPNRD proposes to transfer the consumptive use from natural flow associated with surface water 32 


irrigation rights to instream flow purposes to increase streamflow in the Platte River. The transferred surface 33 


irrigation rights are from willing irrigators who may switch to a ground water supply to irrigate their land. 34 


Surface water rights from the Orchard-Alfalfa Canal, Thirty-Mile Canal, and Cozad Canal will be 35 


transferred to instream uses for the Program. The CPNRD has filed the water right transfer permits for 36 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 39 of 89 
 


temporary changes of use from irrigation to instream flows with the NDNR and anticipates completing this 1 


process in the near future. Based on the water use lease agreement with the CPRND, the estimated yield is 2 


5,125 acre-feet per year at the river at $150 per acre-foot in 2015. The unit cost and yield volume are based 3 


on the water use lease agreement, which estimates half of the 20,500 acre-foot yield of the project (up to 4 


10,250 acre-feet per year) will be available for the Program. It was assumed 50% of the yield will be surface 5 


water (5,125 acre-feet per year) for the purpose of the 2015 budget, per CPNRD’s estimate at this time. The 6 


projected volume of water under the water leasing project is dependent on the water available in 2015 and 7 


is subject to change from the estimate provided in this document.  8 


 9 


The CPNRD intends to lease the net consumptive use portion of the surface water rights, which includes 10 


the impact from increased groundwater irrigation and subsequent depletions; therefore, the Program does 11 


not need to budget additional costs for offsets. The estimated surface water yield of approximately 5,125 12 


acre-feet will be available for the Program at the Platte River where the future return flow structures will 13 


be constructed on each canal. The water will be diverted and measured at each headgate and subsequently 14 


returned to the river at a location below each canal headgate. The CPNRD will use an accounting system 15 


to track the surface water diverted into the canals, the volume returned to the river via return structures and 16 


the volume of ground water pumping impacting the river. Daily account records from the return structure 17 


will be summed each month and the monthly ground water depletions for the transferred acres will be 18 


calculated. The monthly accretions and depletions at the Platte River will be used to determine the volume 19 


of water leased.  20 


 21 


The CPNRD ground water recharge component in the water use lease agreement is for recharged water in 22 


the Orchard-Alfalfa, Thirsty-Mile, and Cozad Canals. The water supply for recharge operations in the three 23 


canals will be flows in excess to target and instream flows in the Platte River. The CPNRD submitted 24 


permanent permits for new surface water appropriations of natural flow for the purpose of recharge with 25 


the NDNR in 2011 and the permits are currently pending at this time. The CPNRD filed for permits for 100 26 


cfs of excess flow diversion in the Thirty-Mile Canal, 100 cfs in the Cozad Canal and 75 cfs in the Orchard-27 


Alfalfa Canal.  28 


 29 


The budget for the CPNRD recharge lease is based on $35 per acre-foot in 2013 and increasing by 7.5% 30 


per year, for approximately 3,900 acre-feet of recharged water. This volume is a preliminary estimate based 31 


on excess flow availability analyses completed by the ED Office for the OpStudy Hydrology period 32 


(utilized for Program scoring). The water use lease agreement provides information regarding the costs and 33 


volumes associated with CPNRD’s ground water recharge leasing and surface water leasing with the 34 


Program. The CPNRD estimates half of the 20,500 acre-foot yield of the project (up to 10,250 acre-feet) 35 


will be available for the Program. It was assumed the lease will be approximately 50% surface water, 36 


leaving the remaining 50% to be ground water recharge (equivalent to 5,125 acre-feet per year). The ground 37 


water portion of the lease for the Program is estimated at 3,900 acre-feet for the purpose of the budget, 38 


which is lower than the surface water portion. The actual volume of recharge in 2015 is dependent on the 39 


excess flows available for diversion into the canals, and is subject to change from the value provided in this 40 


document. The actual diversions into recharge will be measured and recorded. 41 


 42 


Permanent Acquisition 43 


The Program has an opportunity to purchase 40 acre-feet of surface water from an irrigator in the CPNRD.   44 


The surface water is from a tributary to the Platte River, located near Lexington, NE, and would benefit the 45 


full habitat reach.  The water would likely be transferred from irrigation use to instream use for Program 46 


purposes through a permit with the NDNR.  The irrigator would switch to groundwater as the source of 47 


supply; therefore the net effects of the replacement pumping will be factored into the yield.  The price of 48 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 40 of 89 
 


water is $2,500 per acre-foot of estimated net effects consumptive use credit at the river, plus a one-time 1 


transaction fee of 10%.  This equates to a total budget of $110,000 for the acquisition (40 acre-feet x $2,500 2 


= $100,000).  The net effect consumptive use credit would be a permanent source of water for the Program.  3 


The CPNRD will aid the Program in estimating the surface water credit and serve as the lead on the 4 


negotiations and transactional aspects of the acquisition with the irrigator.  Additional such transactions 5 


may be available in the future, but no other specific transaction has been identified. 6 


 7 


NPPD Water Leasing 8 


The NPPD proposes to temporarily transfer the consumptive use portion of the natural flow available from 9 


886.5 relinquished acres under the Dawson Canal Water Appropriation D-622 to an instream use for the 10 


Program. Irrigators have willingly relinquished these surface water rights to the NPPD. NPPD filed for a 11 


temporary change of appropriation permit with the NDNR in July 2013. The permit application requested 12 


a temporary change from irrigation to instream use for 6 years from May 14, 2014 through 2019 at a rate 13 


of a maximum of 7.6 cubic feet per second (cfs) up to a maximum of 761 acre-feet. Based on the NPPD’s 14 


analysis of water right availability data from 2001 through 2012, the transfer will yield an average annual 15 


volume of 690 acre-feet. The Program submitted a letter of support for the temporary change of use that 16 


was included with the permit application. The NPPD filed an amendment to the application in May 2014 17 


and the permit application status is currently pending. For the water leasing project, the NPPD intends to 18 


continue diverting Appropriation D-622 into the Dawson County Canal and then return the consumptive 19 


use portion to the Platte River. The yield will be available for the Program just downstream of the Dawson 20 


County Canal headgate, at a return flow station that will be constructed in the future. 21 


 22 


The NPPD lease cost per acre-foot is based on a projected maximum cost estimate completed by the ED 23 


Office. There are two cost considerations in the per acre-foot cost estimate:  (1). Cost associated with the 24 


consumptive use credit for relinquished surface water with the NPPD, and (2). Cost associated with offsets 25 


to mitigate increased groundwater irrigation from relinquished surface water lands.  26 


 27 


For the consumptive use credit cost estimate, the ED Office multiplied the Crop Irrigation Requirement 28 


(CIR) per acre by the value of an acre of cropland, estimated at $160 per acre. The CIR value was calculated 29 


by NPPD as 10.3 inches/acre. This is based on a weighted average canal area CIR of 11.1 inches/ acre 30 


multiplied by 93%, which is the estimated proportion of natural flow in the canal (storage water will not be 31 


transferred), as shown in Table 3.  32 


 33 


Table 3. Summary of NPPD Water Leasing Calculations. 34 


(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) 


Transferred 


Acres 


Weighted 


Average CIR 


(inches/acre) 


Proportion of 


Natural Flow 


Natural Flow 


CIR 


(inches/acre) 


Volume of Water 


for Transfer (AF) 


886.5 11.1 93% 10.3 761 


(A) Relinquished acres historically irrigated with surface water. 35 


(B) Average CIR based on cropping patterns in the canal area and CIR values from COHYST. 36 


(C) Proportion of natural flow diverted into the canal (the remaining 7% is storage water, which will not 37 


be transferred). 38 


(D) Natural Flow CIR = Columns (B × C) 39 


(E) Transfer Volume = Columns (A × D) ÷ 12 inches/foot  40 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 41 of 89 
 


The EDO divided the $160/acre by (10.3 inches/12 inches per foot) to obtain an estimated water leasing 1 


cost for the consumptive use portion, which equates to a unit cost of approximately $190 per acre-foot of 2 


water. The total volume of water available to the Program is estimated at a maximum of 761 acre-feet per 3 


year, based on the NPPD’s historical consumptive use analysis and included in the permit application to 4 


the NDNR for a temporary transfer to instream uses. The 2015 budget is based on the 761 acre-feet 5 


maximum annual estimate. 6 


 7 


The second cost consideration in the budget is for offset water to mitigate depletions to the Platte River 8 


basin due to increased groundwater irrigation on relinquished surface water lands. The NDNR has indicated 9 


that either the lease entity or the Program should be responsible for mitigating any increase in depletions 10 


from transferring the surface irrigation water to instream uses. In the budget, it is assumed the Program will 11 


lease water to offset these depletions; although, the consumptive use credit in the NPPD lease agreement 12 


could also be utilized to mitigate offsets.  13 


 14 


It is anticipated the Program will work with the CPNRD to purchase offset water credits to maintain the 15 


consumptive use portion for the NPPD water leasing project. The required offset water volume was 16 


assumed to equal 10% of the project yield, as a preliminary estimate for budgeting purposes. This will be 17 


refined after an assessment of the potential increase in depletions is completed by the CPNRD in 18 


conjunction with the NPPD and the Program. For the 2015 NPPD lease estimate of 761 acre-feet of 19 


consumptive use credit, it was assumed 76 acre-feet (10% of 761 acre-feet) would be the offset volume 20 


required to replace depletions that occur during shortages to target flows. The cost for offset water was 21 


assumed to equal the CPNRD lease cost for recharged water in 2015, or $40 per acre-foot. It is anticipated 22 


that during excesses to target and instream flows, offsets will not be required. The total lease cost in the 23 


2015 budget includes $190 per acre-foot for the consumptive use credit with the NPPD and $40 per acre-24 


foot for offset water with the CPNRD. The NPPD lease cost per acre-foot cost was assumed to escalate by 25 


3.4% per year, beginning in 2016. The CPNRD lease cost for offset water was assumed to escalate by 7%, 26 


beginning in 2016, per the CPNRD recharge project cost schedule. The ED Office will work the ED Office 27 


Special Advisor in economics, George Oamek, to determine a reasonable price for water leasing projects. 28 


 29 


CNPPID Water Leasing 30 


The CNPPID has two water leasing options available:  the first is for storage water in Lake McConaughy 31 


and the second is surface water from individual irrigators under the CNPPID system. For the storage water 32 


lease, the Program and the CNPPID would enter into an agreement to lease water from a storage pool in 33 


Lake McConaughy, which would be transferred into the EA account for subsequent release during shortages 34 


or other Program uses. A long-term draft water service agreement has been proposed between the CNPPID 35 


and the Program. The proposed cost per acre-foot of leased water in the draft agreement is $250 beginning 36 


in 2015 and escalating at 4% per year. The annual yield of storage water may change from year to year 37 


based on the volume the CNPPID is willing to offer in any given year. For the 2015 budget, it was assumed 38 


the Program could lease 2,500 acre-feet. For the future budget projections, it was assumed 3,500 acre-feet 39 


would be leased in both 2016 and 2017 and 5,000 acre-feet would be leased in 2018 and 2019. 40 


 41 


The second leasing option under the CNPPID’s system would be with individual irrigators interested in 42 


temporarily leasing their surface water rights to the Program. The consumptive use portion of the surface 43 


water would be available in Lake McConaughy and transferred into the EA for the Program. The CNPPID 44 


would be involved by managing the individual lease agreements processes and operations. The return flows 45 


associated with the leases would be maintained. For 2015, it was also assumed the Program could lease 46 


2,500 acre-feet, as a preliminary estimate. For the purpose of the budget, it was assumed the lease volumes 47 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 42 of 89 
 


for 2016 through 2019 would increase up to 5,000 acre-feet per year (3,500 acre-feet in 2016 and 2017, 1 


4,500 acre-feet in 2018 and 5,000 acre-feet in 2019). 2 


 3 


The cost per acre-foot of the surface water in the CNPPID’s system includes two pieces:  the cost associated 4 


with leasing the consumptive use portion and the cost associated with offsetting increased depletions from 5 


groundwater irrigation, similar to the NPPD lease described in the previous section. It was assumed the 6 


lease cost for consumptive use credit would be $150 in 2015, based on initial ED Office estimates. It was 7 


assumed the offset requirement would be 10% of the project yield (or 250 acre-feet in 2015) at $40 per 8 


acre-foot, based on the CPNRD recharged water lease rate in 2015 (this is also described in the NPPD water 9 


leasing section). The consumptive use water cost was assumed to escalate at 4% per year and the offset 10 


water cost was assumed to escalate at 7% per year, beginning in 2016. However, the cost would be based 11 


on a free-market system of willing irrigators and the Program. The Program is further evaluating this project 12 


and the water values that are appropriate for this area based on crop prices. George Oamek, ED Office 13 


Special Advisor in economics, will be working with the Program to determine appropriate water values for 14 


the various the water leasing opportunities described in this WP-4(f).  15 


 16 


NPNRD Water Leasing 17 


The NPNRD potential leasing opportunity entails temporary surface water leases with individual irrigators 18 


or irrigation districts within the NPNRD. The lease agreements and historical consumptive use evaluations 19 


would be managed by the NPNRD. Leases in this area are beneficial because the water would be available 20 


in the North Platte River and could be controlled in Lake McConaughy. The credit would be entered into 21 


the EA and released for target flow shortages or other Program purposes; therefore, all of the consumptive 22 


use credit could be utilized by the Program. In the 2015 budget, it was assumed the Program would lease 23 


2,500 acre-feet at $200 per acre-foot. At this time, it is assumed irrigators will switch to dry land farming 24 


or will “dry up” their land and cease irrigation; therefore, no additional budget was included in 2015 for 25 


offsetting increased groundwater depletions. For the 2016-2019 projected budgets, it was assumed the lease 26 


would increase up to 5,000 acre-feet by 2019 (per the CNPPID irrigator lease schedule described in the 27 


previous section). The yield and cost estimates are preliminary and would be based on a free-market system. 28 


The Program is currently working with the NPNRD to explore leasing options with interested parties.  29 


 30 


Based on the assumptions listed above, the total budget for the water leases and acquisition is estimated to 31 


be $2,582,900 in 2015. These water supplies include an existing lease with the CPNRD, a permanent 32 


acquisition with an irrigator in the CPNRD and potential leases under the NPPD, the CNPPID and the 33 


NPNRD canal systems. George Oamek, ED Office Special Advisor will be aiding the Program in 34 


determining appropriate water leasing values for the various leases described above; the Special Advisor 35 


budget is listed under WP-8. 36 


 37 


Products 38 


 J2 Regulating Reservoir:  First year of three-year (2015-2017) construction cost for reservoir and canal 39 


improvement. 40 


 Nebraska Ground Water Recharge:  Water Service Agreement with CNPPID, temporary and/or 41 


permanent permits for recharging excess flows available in CNPPID’s system, ground water recharge 42 


day-to-day operations.  43 


 Nebraska Water Leasing & Acquisition: Lease agreements with the CPNRD, the NPPD, the CNPPID 44 


and the NPNRD and/or individual irrigators for surface water, storage water and/or offset water leases 45 


or water acquisition.  46 


 Water supply-related permits/proof of ownership, as necessary for projects.   47 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 43 of 89 
 


 Water rights evaluations and feasibility studies, as necessary for projects. 1 


 Cost estimates for 2015 and long-term operations and maintenance of projects.   2 


 3 


Notes on Cost 4 


Specific expenditures will require authorization of Finance Committee. Cost estimates are based on 5 


feasibility study information, ED Office analyses and other project sponsor estimates and will be updated 6 


based on any additional studies currently being completed.  In general, estimates account for project sponsor 7 


contributions. 8 


 9 


Budget  10 


  Program Task WP-4 


WP-


4 


2007 


App 


2008 


App 


2009 


App 


2010 


App 


2011 


Approved 


2012 


Approved 


2013 


Approved 


2014 


Approved 


2015 


Estimated 


(a) $0  $0  $0  $0  $4,500,000  $9,000,000  $13,000,000  $14,392,000  $14,392,000  


(b) $0  $0  $0  $0  $600,000  $200,000  $200,000  $88,296  $310,200  


(c) $0  $0  $0  $0  $0   $0 $1,500,000  $1,854,667  $0  


(d) $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $2,000,000  $0  $0  $0  


(e) $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  


(f) $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $500,000  $150,000  $373,360  $2,582,900  


(g) $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  


(h) $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $100,000  $250,000  $0  $0  


Total $0  $0  $0  $0  $5,100,000  $11,800,000  $15,100,000  $16,708,323  $17,285,100 


   11 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 44 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; Contractor  14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Offices; Contractor Offices  17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


The COHYST Tool, as it is being developed, will provide an integrated surface water, ground water, and 20 


watershed model for the Platte River between Lake McConaughy and Duncan, Nebraska. It is anticipated 21 


to be a valuable tool for project planning and evaluation efforts under the PRRIP Water Plan. The COHYST 22 


Tool is being funded by several PRRIP participants, and in 2009 the PRRIP received authorization from 23 


these participants to use the tool for PRRIP purposes. Under this agreement, model enhancements or 24 


analyses specifically for PRRIP purposes, as well as any ED Office staff training, must be provided directly 25 


by PRRIP funds. 26 


 27 


The COHYST technical team continued to develop the COHYST modeling system in 2014 and tested the 28 


model’s performance under a variety of scenarios.  Remaining performance issues were identified for future 29 


work.  PRRIP contracted with the COHYST technical team to add the J2 regulating reservoir and the Phelps 30 


canal recharge projects into the surface water portion of the COHYST modeling system.  This work will be 31 


completed in December of 2014.   32 


 33 


Upon completion of performance upgrades and data extensions, the COHYST modeling system will be a 34 


strong candidate for use as the comprehensive operational tool. A few upgrades are needed to address 35 


remaining performance issues identified over the course of model testing in 2014.  The model is not 36 


currently able to simulate the Platte River drying up, a condition that occurs on a regular basis in some 37 


locations.  Capturing dry river conditions is important to accurately simulate a range of potential projects 38 


and management scenarios involving low flow conditions.  These upgrades are anticipated to be completed 39 


in the first quarter of 2015.  The modeled time period will also be extended in the first quarter of 2015, 40 


expanding it beyond the current simulated time period of 1985 through 2005 to a time period of 1947 41 


through 2010.  The expanded time period will allow the model to simulate the PRRIP scoring time period 42 


and to simulate management changes that have occurred from 2005 to 2010.  PRRIP will partner with other 43 


COHYST sponsors to fund this effort and will contribute $40,000 of the expected $117,000 total required. 44 


 45 


The individual components of the COHYST integrated model will require recalibration after model 46 


upgrades have been completed.  The model was originally calibrated in 2013 and several upgrades have 47 


occurred since that time.  Calibration ensures the model simulates observed processes and is necessary 48 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-5.  Management Tool 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   200,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   125,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   100,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      129,600.00 


WP-5







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 45 of 89 
 


before the COHYST modeling tool is ready for use.  Completing recalibration in 2015 will allow for a 1 


completion of the COHYST Phase II model by June of 2016.  PRRIP will partner with other COHYST 2 


sponsors to fund this effort and will contribute $16,000 of the expected $30,000 needed to complete 3 


recalibration. 4 


 5 


A graphic user interface (GUI) is expected to be developed to simplify the operation of the modeling tool 6 


in 2015. The COHYST modeling system is comprised of three separate modeling tools that pass input and 7 


output files between themselves to create an “integrated” model run.  A GUI will facilitate data input, 8 


automate the passing of files between the models, and simplify the integrated run process.  PRRIP will 9 


partner with other COHYST sponsors to fund this effort and will contribute $20,000 towards the GUI 10 


development. 11 


 12 


The ED Office staff will require training in the operation of the COHYST modeling system to allow them 13 


to modify the tool to evaluate PRRIP projects and management scenarios.  Case studies and scenarios will 14 


be used to provide ED Office staff with experience operating and modifying the COHYST modeling tool.  15 


Technical oversight and in person training will be required during the running of scenarios.  Scenarios ED 16 


Office staff expects to run include: 17 


 18 


 Adding the Pathfinder water transfer into the COHYST model and developing a score for the 19 


project to compare to the score based on PRRIP scoring methodology. 20 


 Incorporating the Phelps recharge project into the full COHYST model.  Phelps recharge was 21 


incorporated into the surface water component of the COHYST model; however, response 22 


functions were used to estimate groundwater response.  Recharge from the Phelps canal will be 23 


explicitly added to the groundwater component of the COHYST model.  The scenario will provide 24 


insight into how well the COHYST model captures the behavior of smaller projects. 25 


 Evaluating the seepage from the J2 regulating reservoir.  This scenario will involve incorporating 26 


the J2 regulating reservoir into the groundwater portion of the COHYST model and coordinating 27 


reservoir operations between the groundwater and surface water components of the COHYST 28 


model. 29 


 Developing a score for the CPNRD surface water and groundwater lease from the COHYST model 30 


to compare to the score based on PRRIP scoring methodology. 31 


 32 


Technical oversight will be provided to ED Office staff by the consultants of the COHYST modeling 33 


system.  These consultants include HDR for the surface water component of the model, Lee Wilson and 34 


Associates (LWA) for the groundwater component of the model, and The Flatwater Group (TFG) for the 35 


watershed component of the model.  ED Office staff is less familiar with the watershed component of the 36 


COHYST model and will require additional training and technical oversight from TFG.  In person training 37 


may be provided ED Office staff directly or in the context of training workshops for other COHYST 38 


sponsors.  The Program will also fund a portion of the oversight of the COHYST technical team provided 39 


by LWA, providing $6,400 of the expected $18,600 total. 40 


 41 


Costs associated with all COHYST related tasks are estimated based on an average, composite rate for 42 


COHYST consultant staff and hour estimates developed in discussion with the COHYST consultants and 43 


COHYST Technical and Sponsor Groups. Estimated costs are provided in the table below:  44 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 46 of 89 
 


COHYST Training, Model Analysis, and Reporting Cost Summary 1 


Task    Hours  Unit Rate ($/hr)* Estimated Fee 


100 – Model upgrades and time period extension 250 160 $40,000 


200 – Model recalibration 100 160 $16,000 


300 – GUI development 125 160 $20,000 


400 – Technical oversight and training from HDR 80 160 $12,800 


500 – Technical oversight and training from LWA 80 160 $12,800 


600 – Technical oversight and training from TFG 135 160 $21,600 


700 – LWA COHYST oversight 40 160 $6,400 


                                                Total Estimated Fee    $129,600 


*Unit rates include approximately 5% of direct expenses 2 


 3 


Products 4 


 Completed model upgrade. 5 


 Extended model time period. 6 


 Training and technical oversight provided to ED Office staff. 7 


 PRRIP specific model scenarios performed by the ED Office. 8 


 Briefing documents or reports with model evaluations and recommendations. 9 


 10 


Notes on Cost 11 


Specific expenditures will require authorization of Finance Committee.  12 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 47 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; Contractor  14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Offices; Contractor Offices 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


The ED Office may rely on Special Advisors to assist in Water Plan-related issues beyond staff expertise 20 


or to assist with short-term schedule challenges. These areas may include, but are not limited to: economics, 21 


water infrastructure, structural, and hydrogeology/ground water. Anticipated Special Advisors include: 22 


 23 


Economics and Water Markets: $16,000 to $32,000 24 


Economic and water market expertise may be required for analysis of costs on the potential water lease 25 


agreements with the NPPD, CNPPID and the NPNRD.  Cost estimates are based on 80 to 160 hours at a 26 


billing rate of $200/hour, for a total of $16,000 to $32,000. Billing rates are based on previous contracts 27 


awarded in a competitive process and are assumed to be fair and reasonable. George Oamek is contracted 28 


as the Program’s Special Advisor for economics and water markets. 29 


 30 


Hydrogeology and Ground Water: $45,000 to $75,000 31 


Several projects include hydrogeologic elements that may require further expertise, including the Phelps 32 


County Canal ground water recharge and potential ground water pumping projects, the Elwood Reservoir 33 


seepage project, the ground water recharge component of the CPNRD lease agreement, the wet meadows 34 


hydrologic monitoring project, and COHYST scenario runs. Cost estimates are based on 300 to 500 hours 35 


at a billing rate of $150/hour, for a total of $45,000 to $75,000. Billing rates are based on previous contracts 36 


awarded in a competitive process and are assumed to be fair and reasonable. Bill Hahn is contracted as the 37 


Program’s Special Advisor for hydrogeology and ground water. 38 


 39 


Civil Infrastructure: $10,000 to $13,000 40 


Various water-related small design projects may require civil infrastructure, water project permitting, 41 


and/or dams and hydraulic structures expertise for input and review in the concept development, design, 42 


and construction of these projects. Cost estimates are based on approximately 60 to 80 hours at a billing 43 


rate of $160/hour, for a total of approximately $10,000 to $13,000. Billing rates are based on previous 44 


contracts awarded in a competitive process and are assumed to be fair and reasonable. Tara Schutter is 45 


contracted as the Program’s Special Advisor for civil infrastructure. Table 1 is a summary of the cost 46 


estimates per Special Advisor.  47 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-8.  Water Plan Special Advisors 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   200,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   125,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   100,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      100,000.00 


WP-8







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 48 of 89 
 


Table 1. Cost Summary for Special Advisors. 1 


Area of Expertise Name Estimated Range of Expenditures 


Economics and Water Markets George Oamek $16,000-$32,000 


Hydrology and GW Recharge Bill Hahn $45,000-$75,000 


Civil Infrastructure Tara Schutter $10,000-$13,000 


TOTAL 
$71,000-$120,000 


Budget not to exceed $100,000 


 2 


Products 3 


 Meeting participation. 4 


 Memorandums and reports. 5 


 6 


General note on all Special Advisor budget line items: Please refer to the third paragraph in the Exceptions: 7 


section of the Procurement Policy adopted by the GC in August of 2008, “Retention of special advisors to 8 


the ED of a technical or legal nature is exempt from the procedures provided in this directive.” 9 


 10 


Consequently, Special Advisors are not selected through a competitive process involving advertised RFQs 11 


or RFPs. Special Advisors are selected by the Executive Director (ED) based on qualifications – education, 12 


relevant experience, expertise and skills, reliability, credibility, and ability to work effectively with the ED 13 


and the staff of the ED Office. Special Advisors and the firms they are associated with cannot do any other 14 


work for the Program, individually or as part of a team. This is a critical restriction and generally orients 15 


special advisor selection to individuals who are sole proprietors or part of small firms that would not likely 16 


be doing significant levels of work for the Program on other specific, larger projects.  17 


 18 


The billing rates are negotiated with the special advisors by the ED and are kept within the industry standard 19 


of practice based on each individual’s qualifications. While industry standard of practice may not be 20 


precisely defined, anyone who is a practicing member of that professional community understands the limits 21 


of reasonableness associated with those boundaries. Appropriate expertise to make this assessment resides 22 


with the ED or ED Office staff. The industry standard of practice rates guidelines used in this process is 23 


established based on an on-going market survey process comparing labor rates of similarly qualified 24 


professionals in the field. 25 


 26 


In the case of Special Advisors, individuals with similar experience and qualifications have been part of 27 


consultant teams selected through the Program’s competitive procurement process over a six plus year 28 


period. Comparison of the Special Advisor rates to the rates charged by comparable individuals through the 29 


competitive procurement process provides an indisputable basis for comparison. In all cases the Special 30 


Advisor rates are not only within the range of rates seen on the consultant teams which have been selected 31 


competitively, but typically at the middle to lower end of the range. As rates charged by Special Advisors 32 


are at the middle to low end of the range of rates for similar work acquired through the Program’s 33 


competitive procurement process, the estimate for Special Advisors is considered fair and reasonable. 34 


The anticipated level of effort for the upcoming year is also discussed with the special advisors by the ED 35 


and members of the ED Office staff, but all work is assigned on an as-needed basis with no guarantee of 36 


any minimum level of assignments. During the budgeting process, the Special Advisors anticipated to be 37 


needed and roughly the level of effort expected to accomplish the work plan for the budget year is 38 


scrutinized by and discussed with the appropriate advisory committees, the Finance Committee, and the 39 


GC. Input is received and taken under advisement from all these sources as to the appropriateness of the 40 


budgets for these line items with appropriate adjustments made prior to budget finalization. 41 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 49 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; Contractor  14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Offices; Contractor Offices 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


The Program anticipates utilizing a contractor to refine studies completed on the North Platte River and 20 


South Platte River basins to predict relationships of hydroclimatic indices to volumetric river flows. The 21 


Program intends to utilize results from these studies to aid in forecasting streamflow in the North and South 22 


Platte Rivers in advance of spring high flows. The analysis approach utilizes various predictors of 23 


streamflow, including hydroclimatic indices and drought indices, to make a prediction in January regarding 24 


the hydrologic condition for spring runoff. The predictions are intended to aid the Program with water 25 


management decisions, EA release schedules, target flow designations and implementation of various 26 


approaches towards species and habitat recovery. 27 


 28 


The initial report on the North Platte River basin analysis results was completed in March 2014. The South 29 


Platte River basin analysis is in development, with an intended completion date by the end of 2014.  30 


Dewberry is the current contractor for the studies described above (completed under previous budgets) and 31 


it is anticipated Dewberry will continue the additional hydroclimatic indices work under WP-9 in 2015 as 32 


an extension of their competitively awarded contract. 33 


 34 


The 2015 budget for the hydroclimatic indices focuses on continued refinements to the North Platte basin 35 


and South Platte basin studies includes, but is not limited to, the following tasks: 36 


 Evaluation and comparison of data between the North and South Platte basin studies to verify 37 


results and determine differences in model accuracy. 38 


 Analyses of data and predictions to define and quantify uncertainties associated with specific inputs 39 


and their role in the uncertainty associated with the ultimate predictions. 40 


 Refinements/improvements to the modeling approaches and data analysis to increase the accuracy 41 


of the results from the initial phases of the projects, for example:  the ability to classify within five 42 


hydrologic conditions as opposed to the three average, wet, and dry conditions defined in the 43 


existing methodology. 44 


 Additional tasks and study enhancements may be determined once results are evaluated. 45 


 Potential development of new hydroclimatic indices studies in specific sub-basins, such as the 46 


Platte River below Lake McConaughy. 47 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WP-9.  Miscellaneous Water Resources Studies 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $   200,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   100,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     25,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $                -    $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       25,000.00 


WP-9







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 50 of 89 
 


The Program assumes the Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) will co-fund the study, as in 1 


previous phases of the hydroclimatic indices work. For the 2015 budget, the Program will designate $25,000 2 


towards furthering the hydroclimatic indices studies under WP-9. This budget estimate assumes the CWCB 3 


will partner with the Program and fund an additional $25,000 towards the project, for a total contract 4 


agreement between the Program and the CWCB with Dewberry of up to $50,000. 5 


 6 


Products 7 


 Meeting participation and correspondence with the project participants. 8 


 Model refinements and improvements. 9 


 Memorandums and/or reports to describe model refinements and analysis results. 10 


 11 


Notes on Cost 12 


Specific expenditures will require authorization of Finance Committee. Cost estimates are based on 13 


previous expenditures for earlier phases of the hydroclimatic indices scopes of work. The budget estimate 14 


assumes co-funding with the CWCB.  15 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 51 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; contractors 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Plum Creek Complex, Cottonwood Ranch Complex; Elm Creek Complex; Fort Kearny Complex; 17 


Shoemaker Island Complex; and non-complex properties. 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


Implementation of target species habitat restoration and maintenance activities at Program habitat 21 


complexes and non-complex properties. Activities generally include creation and maintenance of tern and 22 


plover on and off-channel nesting habitats and creation and maintenance of on and off-channel whooping 23 


crane roosting habitat. Some of the specific management actions are tree clearing, nesting island 24 


construction, channel disking, herbicide application, and seeding. See Appendix A for a detailed 25 


breakdown of LP-2 actions by habitat complex. 26 


 27 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 28 


Habitat complexes for implementation of AMP management actions and testing of priority hypotheses. 29 


 30 


Products 31 


Tern/plover nesting islands, minimum channel widths, and minimum unobstructed widths at habitat 32 


complexes for evaluation of target species use.  Cost experience is captured in bid tabulation spreadsheets 33 


capturing five years of bid/contracting experience through the Program’s competitive procurement process 34 


at this point. The appropriate spreadsheets are updated after each competitive bid process is completed. The 35 


competitive bid/contracting experience of the Program is also compared to similar information developed 36 


by conservation partners in the Lexington to Grand Island area to have a solid handle on the market in the 37 


local area.  The selection of the firms performing these services will be made through competitive processes 38 


as defined in the Procurement Policy. As the budget estimate is developed by using rates and the level of 39 


effort for similar work acquired for the Program through the competitive procurement process, and final 40 


negotiation and award of the contracts will be acquired through competition, the estimate for this work is 41 


considered fair and reasonable.  42 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  LP-2.  FSM/MCM Actions at Habitat Complexes 


 


 
Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $1,400,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $   200,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $1,270,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   483,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   639,130.00  $                   -   


2013  $   890,450.00  $                   -   


2014  $   432,080.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      773,490.00 


LP-2







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 52 of 89 
 


Notes on Cost 1 


 2 


Appendix A contains more details, but the general breakdown of estimated FY15 costs for proposed 3 


FSM/MCM management actions in FY15 is as follows: 4 


 5 


 6 


  7 


Location Estimated FY15 Cost 


New acquisitions $50,000 


Non-complex $197,000 


Plum Creek Complex $31,800 


Cottonwood Ranch Complex $80,640 


Elm Creek Complex $188,080 


Fort Kearny Complex $77,130 


Shoemaker Island Complex $98,840 


TOTAL $723,490 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 53 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; contractor (HDR) 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Office (Kearney, NE and Lincoln, NE) 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Contract services from HDR (extension of existing permit work) to secure site-specific Individual Permits 20 


for AMP management actions at the Ft. Kearny Complex. 21 


 22 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 23 


Necessary to ensure implementation of AMP management actions. 24 


 25 


Products 26 


Permit(s) 27 


 28 


Notes on Cost 29 


Contract services for assistance with securing a permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to build 30 


tern/plover nesting islands at the Program’s Ft. Kearny habitat complex will be secured through the 31 


Program’s competitive selection process.  The selection process is underway in October 2014 and should 32 


be concluded by December 2014.  HDR was previously under contract to perform similar work.  HDR’s 33 


costs for securing a similar permit for island construction at the Program’s Elm Creek habitat complex was 34 


roughly $32,000 in 2013.  For 2015, those estimated costs are rounded up to $50,000 to ensure enough 35 


budget is available to account for unforeseen eventualities in the permitting process that could slow down 36 


permit acquisition.  Final budget and tasks will be negotiated with the successful contractor once the 37 


selection process is complete.   38 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-15.  AMP Permits 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $     10,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   200,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       50,000.00 


PD-15







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 54 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Central Platte River 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Headwaters Corporation owns equipment and will charge the Program a use rate for Program-related 20 


activities. 21 


 22 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 23 


Specific equipment important as management and monitoring tools related to AMP implementation. 24 


 25 


Products 26 


Equipment charges are calculated on an annual basis and then converted into monthly rates. The basic 27 


methodology was described in detail in a memo to the Finance Committee/Governance Committee dated 28 


11/02/11. The categories and associated calculation methods are summarized and the corresponding values 29 


tabulated below.  30 


 31 


The cost categories used and the calculation methodologies are as follows: 32 


 33 


 Use & Maintenance – the use portion is calculated on an annualized replacement cost for the equipment 34 


or a passed through lease cost and the maintenance portion is calculated based on experience data and 35 


known periodic significant maintenance items (e.g., replacement of the bottom shield of the airboat) 36 


that are annualized to stabilize equipment costs between years. 37 


 38 


 Fuel – the anticipated fuel costs based on anticipated miles, known miles per gallon rates, and 39 


anticipated cost of gasoline (weighted toward summer prices because that is the season of heaviest 40 


equipment use). A rate of $3.95/gallon is used in developing these costs. 41 


 42 


 License/Insurance – the cost of licensing (trucks, airboats, and trailers all require licenses) and insuring 43 


the equipment, including liability insurance, is included in this cost.  44 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-18.  AMP-Related Equipment 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $   140,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $     55,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $     66,215.00  $                   -   


2013  $     66,215.00  $                   -   


2014  $     75,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       75,000.00 


PD-18







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 55 of 89 
 


MONTHLY EQUIPMENT COSTS 1 


Unit 
Use & 


Maintenance  ($) 
Fuel ($) 


License & 


Insurance  ($) 


Monthly 


Total ($) 
Comments 


2011 Toyota 


Tundra 
600.00 815.00 250.00 1,705.00 


Leased by 


Headwaters 


Corp 


2009 Chevy 


Silverado 
350.00 670.00 150.00 1,200.00 


Owned by 


Headwaters 


Corp 


2007 Yukon 350.00 250.00 150.00 750.00 


Owned by 


Headwaters 


Corp 


1987 Toyota 4X4 150.00 125.00 125.00 415.00 


Owned by 


Headwaters 


Corp 


Airboat & Trailer 750.00 350.00 300.00 1,300.00 


Owned by 


Headwaters 


Corp 


Argo & Trailer 350.00 25.00 150.00 505.00 


Owned by 


Headwaters 


Corp 


ATV & Trailer 150.00 25.00 100.00 295.00 


Owned by 


Headwaters 


Corp 


Canoe Trailer 40.00  25.00 80.00 


Owned by 


Headwaters 


Corp 


TOTAL $2,740.00 $2,260.00 $1,250.00 $6,250.00 


$75,000 


(monthly total 


of $6,250 x 


12months) 


 2 


The cost of fuel is a significant piece of the equipment costs (nearly 40% of the total), and the unit cost of 3 


gasoline is the most uncertain of all factors used in the development of these costs.  4 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 56 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


FY2009-FY2019 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; AMWG; TAC; contractor 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Office (Kearney, NE and Lincoln, NE); Central Platte River, NE 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Implementation of full-scale sediment augmentation, monitoring, data analysis, and reporting. 20 


 21 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 22 


Integral to learning about physical process priority hypothesis Sediment #1 and Big Question #3. 23 


 24 


Products 25 


Augmentation and monitoring reports. 26 


 27 


Notes on Cost 28 


The FY15 tasks and estimated costs for sediment augmentation are as follows: 29 


 30 


Task Description 
Estimated 


FY15 Cost 


All monitoring tasks (including impact triggers, sediment transport, topography, 


modeling, and water quality) and associated reporting 
$100,000 


Project implementation – actual augmentation of sediment; contractor acquired through 


bid package, assumes basic implementation of mechanical manipulation 
$270,000 


FY15 ESTIMATED TOTAL $370,000 


 31 


Project oversight, including project planning and design, development of bid package to secure 32 


augmentation contractor, and final project evaluation and reporting will be conducted by the EDO.  This 33 


estimate assumes basic implementation of mechanical manipulation (not sand pumping) and monitoring 34 


and cost estimates based on pilot study experience.  As the budget estimate is developed by using rates and 35 


the level of effort for similar work acquired for the Program through the competitive procurement process, 36 


final negotiation and award of the augmentation and monitoring contracts will be acquired through 37 


competition and the estimate for this work is considered fair and reasonable.  38 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-22.  Sediment Augmentation Implementation 


 


 Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $   400,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   200,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   350,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   540,888.00  $                   -   


2013  $   671,404.00  $                   -   


2014  $   400,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      370,000.00 


PD-13







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 57 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


Contractor (Kucera International, Inc.) 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Central Platte River, NE (Program associated habitats in central Platte) 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Acquire annual LiDAR data and aerial photography. 20 


 21 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 22 


Integral to learning about physical process priority hypotheses Flow #1, Flow #3, Flow #5, Sediment #1, 23 


and Mechanical #2 and related Big Questions (#1, #2, #3, and #4).  Supporting information for flow-24 


vegetation-sediment relationships and what FSM management strategy will do on the central Platte River. 25 


 26 


Products 27 


Processed LiDAR point data, bare earth digital elevation model including special in-channel processing 28 


using break lines (hydro-flattening), 2-foot resolution 4-band (CIR and true-color) aerial photography from 29 


May/June, 6-inch resolution CIR aerial photography flown simultaneously with LiDAR in 30 


November/December. The contract is awarded through a competitive procurement process in conformance 31 


with the Procurement policy. The most recent contract expired at the end of 2014 and this work will be re-32 


competed in 2015.  The 2015 budget estimate is based on a 5% increase to the 2014 cost. Selection of a 33 


new contractor in 2015 through the competitive procurement process will include review and negotiation 34 


of a final fee prior to award to ensure that cost is fair and reasonable.   35 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  G-1 & G-2 (combined).  LiDAR & Aerial Photography 


 


 
Year Approved Estimated


2007  $     10,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $   270,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $     40,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $     21,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   100,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   118,100.00  $                   -   


2013  $   118,100.00  $                   -   


2014  $   118,100.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      125,000.00 


G-1 & G-2 (combined)







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 58 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


 4 


Program First Increment Timeline 5 


Annual 6 


 7 


FY 2015 Start Date 8 


January 1, 2015 9 


 10 


FY 2015 End Date 11 


December 31, 2015 12 


 13 


Task Completed by 14 


Contractor (Tetra Tech) 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


Central Platte River 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


Implementation of Program geomorphology/in-channel vegetation monitoring protocol; field work, data 21 


analysis (analysis of collected data according to performance measures of importance for addressing Big 22 


Questions and Tier 1 hypotheses), and reporting. 23 


 24 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 25 


Integral to learning about physical process priority hypotheses Flow #1, Flow #3, Flow #5, Sediment #1, 26 


and Mechanical #2 and related Big Questions (#1, #2, #3, and #4).  Supporting information for flow-27 


vegetation-sediment relationships and what FSM management strategy will do on the central Platte River. 28 


 29 


Products 30 


Protocol data – transect surveys, longitudinal profile, vegetation surveys, etc.; data analysis and reporting. 31 


 32 


Notes on Cost 33 


The contract is awarded through a competitive procurement process in conformance with the Procurement 34 


policy. The most recent contract was awarded in 2012.  As the budget estimate is developed by using rates 35 


and the level of effort for similar work acquired for the Program through the competitive procurement 36 


process, and final negotiation and award of the contract was acquired through competition, the estimate for 37 


this work is considered fair and reasonable. 38 


 39 


Specific FY15 tasks include: 40 


 Project management 41 


 Field monitoring (bathymetric and topographic transect surveys, in-channel vegetation surveys, bed 42 


material sampling, sediment transport measurements, field data reduction) 43 


 Data analysis (review and revise Data Analysis Plan, present plan at TAC meetings, implement plan) 44 


 Reporting (annual report, TAC meetings, AMP Reporting Session) 45 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  G-5.  Geomorphology/In-Channel Vegetation 


Monitoring 


 


 
Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $     95,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $   395,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   300,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   447,500.00  $                   -   


2012  $   450,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   477,738.00  $                   -   


2014  $   495,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      512,990.00 


G-5







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 59 of 89 
 


FY15 Task 
FY15 Labor 


Cost 


FY15 Direct Cost (travel, 


equipment, field 


supplies, lab analysis) 


Total by Task 


100 – Project Initiation & 


Management 
$6,194 $2,321 $25,256 


200 – Field Monitoring $269,508 $101,902 $379,217 


300 – Data Analysis $72,917 $1,738 $68,932 


400 – Reporting $37,136 $1,335 $39,584 


TOTAL COST $405,981 $107,009 $512,990 


  1 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 60 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; contractor 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Central Platte River 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Gage maintenance and research gages; real-time Program gage data on Program web site. 20 


  21 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 22 


Stream gages provide data to test priority hypotheses, including all key Tern/Plover, Whooping Crane, 23 


Flow, Sediment, and Mechanical hypotheses. 24 


 25 


Products 26 


Gage maintenance, new gages, and data. 27 


 28 


Notes on Cost 29 


Stream gages have been installed at the request of the Program. The U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 30 


installed and maintains two gages located on the Cottonwood Ranch Complex. These gages are used 31 


primarily in conjunction with geomorphology and sediment augmentation related research. The Nebraska 32 


Department of Natural Resources (NDNR) installed and maintains two gages, one at Lexington and one at 33 


Shelton.  Annual maintenance costs include physical maintenance of the gage, checking and adjusting the 34 


rating curve through field measurements, QC/QA of the data, and making data available real-time.  The 35 


USGS gages were established in a service agreement negotiated and still held by NPPD, but with the costs 36 


passed through to the Program.  Costs are set at $20,000 but vary slightly annually if significant equipment 37 


components, such as probes or cables, need replacing.  Annual maintenance costs for NDNR include the 38 


same services as described for the USGS and are set at $10,000 when data line charges paid directly by the 39 


Program are included.  In addition, the Program will cost-share with CNPPID for the continued operation 40 


of the USGS gage at Overton, NE.  The Overton gage is essential to Program decision-making through the 41 


availability of real-time data provided by the USGS equipment. Costs for this arrangement are anticipated 42 


to be about $10,000. This arrangement will likely end after 2015as the NDNR INSIGHT system becomes 43 


fully operational and NDNR data becomes available real-time. There are two entities in Nebraska that can 44 


establish official stream gaging stations – the USGS and the NDNR. Because each entity is a government 45 


agency bound by their rules and regulations, and there are no other options for establishing an official 46 


stream flow record, these rates are considered fair and reasonable.  47 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  H-2.  Program Water Gages 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $     29,500.00  $                   -   


2009  $     30,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $     40,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     40,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     38,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       38,000.00 


H-2







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 61 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


 4 


Program First Increment Timeline 5 


Annual 6 


 7 


FY 2015 Start Date 8 


January 1, 2015 9 


 10 


FY 2015 End Date 11 


December 31, 2015 12 


 13 


Task Completed by 14 


ED Office; contractors 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


Central Platte River 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


Further investigation of wet meadow hydrology including expanded monitoring at two additional wet 21 


meadow sites and continued groundwater, surface water, soil moisture, precipitation, and 22 


evapotranspiration monitoring at two wet meadow sites. 23 


 24 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 25 


1) The primary linkage is to USFWS target flows. The early and late spring pulse flows include wet 26 


meadow hydrology objectives. The water balance network will facilitate quantification of the benefits 27 


of those releases. 28 


2) Fundamental to testing ability of FSM management strategy to create and/or maintain target species 29 


habitat. 30 


 31 


Products 32 


Continued and expanded monitoring and reporting on wet meadow hydrology at Program complexes. 33 


 34 


Notes on Cost 35 


These numbers are estimates based on similar work that has been performed for the Program by contractors 36 


selected through the competitive procurement process.  Before RFPs or IFBs are advertised, contracts are 37 


executed, or money is expended, each step is reviewed by one or more of the following oversight 38 


committees: the Water Advisory Committee, the Technical Advisory committee, the Finance Committee, 39 


and often the Governance Committee. The selection of contractors is made through a competitive process 40 


as defined by the Procurement Policy. The negotiated contract and budget must be approved by the Finance 41 


Committee.  As the budget estimate is developed by using rates and the level of effort for similar work 42 


acquired for the Program through the competitive procurement process, and final negotiation and award of 43 


the contract will be acquired through competition, the estimate for this work is considered fair and 44 


reasonable.  45 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-2.  Adaptive Management Plan Directed 


Research Projects 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $   700,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   325,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   450,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   335,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   450,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   117,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       71,000.00 


IMRP-2







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 62 of 89 
 


The wet meadows hydrologic monitoring project seeks to characterize the relationships between river 1 


discharge/stage, precipitation, evapotranspiration, soil moisture, and groundwater levels at wet meadow 2 


sites. Data is collected at several wet meadow sites and will be used to provide decision-makers with 3 


information about the potential response of central Platte wet meadows to Program flow releases. 4 


 5 


Over the course of 2013 and 2014, equipment was installed to monitor surface water, groundwater, 6 


precipitation, meteorological parameters, and soil moisture at two wet meadow locations, the Fox and 7 


Binfield sites. The equipment requires ongoing maintenance as well as data fees for wireless telemetry in 8 


2015.  The Program installed equipment to measure area-averaged soil moisture content at the sites and 9 


will lease the equipment over the duration of the wet meadow hydrologic monitoring project.  Data from 10 


this equipment will be coupled with site-wide soil moisture surveys to quantify the critical relationship 11 


between precipitation, evapotranspiration, and groundwater elevation. 12 


 13 


The Program installed four groundwater monitoring wells and pressure transducers to record water 14 


elevations in the wells in in wetland and drain locations on the Morse wet meadow site in 2014.  The 15 


Program intends to install additional equipment to monitor precipitation, estimate evapotranspiration, and 16 


monitoring river surface elevation at the Morse site in 2015.  The Program also intends to install six 17 


groundwater monitoring wells equipped with pressure transducers on the Johns wet meadows site in 2015.  18 


The Johns site will also be equipped with precipitation, evapotranspiration, and river surface elevation 19 


monitoring equipment. 20 


 21 


The FY15 tasks and estimated costs for wet meadow hydrology research are as follows: 22 


 23 


Expected Activity Cost 
Task 


completed by 
Explanation/Assumptions 


Equipment maintenance $11,000 


Data logger maintenance $3,000 In-Situ, Inc. 


Assumes replacement of 2 data 


loggers and cables or repair of 4 


data loggers and cables (out of a 


total of 44 data loggers, the 


warranty on 36 has expired) 


Telemetry system maintenance $5,000 In-Situ, Inc. 


Annual maintenance quote from 


In-Situ of $5000 for 9 telemetry 


systems 


AWDN annual maintenance $2,000 HPRCC 


Annual maintenance fee based on 


Program agreement with HPRCC 


($1,000 per AWDN station for 2 


stations) 


Other equipment maintenance $1000 Contractor 


Annual maintenance of 


atmometers and hobo data loggers 


(4 total by the end of 2015), 


wetland cameras (2 total), and 


other monitoring equipment (staff 


gage replacement, crest stage 


gage, enclosure damage, etc.) 


Data fees $4,680 


In-Situ telemetry data fees $4,680 In-Situ, Inc. 
$43/month data fees for 12 


months for 9 telemetry units 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 63 of 89 
 


Additional Monitoring Equipment, 


Morse and Johns sites 
$38,620 


CRNP soil moisture sensor $10,000 HydroInnova 


Large area averaged soil moisture 


sensors.  Annual lease of $5,000 


per sensor for 2 sensors 


ETgage model E atmometer $1,300 
ETgage 


company 


Atmometers to be installed at the 


Morse and Johns sites ($650 each) 


Texas tipping bucket precipitation gage $800 
Campbell 


Scientific, Inc. 


Precipitation gages to be installed 


at the Morse and Johns sites ($400 


each) 


Precipitation and atmometer data logger $820 


Onset 


Computer 


Corporation 


Data logger to record precipitation 


and atmometer inputs ($410 each) 


River stage gage $3,200 In-Situ, Inc. 


Pressure transducer and staff gage 


to record river levels at Morse and 


Johns site ($1,600 each) 


Well drilling $7,500 Contractor 


6 wells total at the Johns site, 


based on costs for drilling on 


Morse site ($1,250 each) 


Data logger $12,000 In-Situ, Inc. 


8 total, two for existing wells at 


the Morse site and 6 for new wells 


at the Johns site. In-Situ data 


logger & cables ($1,500 each) 


Well enclosures $3,000 Contractor 


6 enclosures total to protect the 6 


new wells at the Johns site from 


cattle damage.  Based on 


enclosure costs at other wet 


meadow sites ($500 each) 


Monitoring Activities $16,000 


Soil moisture CRNP Rover surveys $16,000 
UNL, Trenton 


Franz 


10 surveys total over two wet 


meadow sites to provide spatial 


variation in soil moisture ($1,600 


per survey) 


Total $70,300, round up to $71,000 


 1 


Assumptions related to wet meadows hydrology research in 2015: 2 


 We will expand monitoring to the Johns or Morse tract in 2015; however, these sites will not receive 3 


the same level of monitoring as the Fox and Binfield sites. 4 


 Maintenance and data costs will be $15,680 5 


 Additional equipment for the Morse and Johns site will cost $38,620. 6 


 Total budget is estimated at $70,300; this budget line item is rounded up to $71,000.  7 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 64 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


Program First Increment Timeline 3 


Annual 4 


 5 


FY 2015 Start Date 6 


January 1, 2015 7 


 8 


FY 2015 End Date 9 


December 31, 2015 10 


 11 


Task Completed by 12 


ED Office; special advisors 13 


 14 


Task Location 15 


ED Office (Kearney, NE and Lincoln, NE); various locations of advisors 16 


 17 


Task Description 18 


 Advisors on AMP-related specialty topic of geomorphology.  Review Program documents, attend 19 


workshops and meetings, assist with development of experimental design, research/monitoring goals 20 


and objectives, and data analysis. 21 


 22 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 23 


Special advisors fill important areas of expertise necessary to evaluate effects of Program management 24 


actions and progress toward AMP management objectives. 25 


 26 


Products 27 


Review of Program documents, advice on specific actions related to AMP implementation, and 28 


development of process documents as requested. 29 


 30 


Notes on Cost 31 


This FY 2015 budget line item is for expert assistance for the Executive Director’s Office (EDO) on key 32 


topics for the Program.  The budget breakdown for this line item is as follows: 33 


 34 


Name Area of Expertise Hourly Rate Estimated Hours Total 


Brad Anderson, P.E. 


 


Sediment Transport and 


Geomorphology 
$175.00 400 $70,000 


Chester Watson, 


Ph.D., P.E. 


Sediment Transport and 


Geomorphology 
$125.00 200 $25,000 


Other Direct Costs (i.e. travel and per diem for attendance at annual AMP Reporting Session 


and one trip to Kearney, NE) 
$5,000 


Total not to exceed $100,000 


 35 


General note on all Special Advisor budget line items: Please refer to the third paragraph in the Exceptions: 36 


section of the Procurement Policy adopted by the Governance Committee in August of 2008, “Retention of 37 


special advisors to the ED of a technical or legal nature is exempt from the procedures provided in this 38 


directive.” 39 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-3.  Adaptive Management Plan Special Advisors 


 


 
Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   140,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     75,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      100,000.00 


IMRP-3







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 65 of 89 
 


Consequently, special advisors are not selected through a competitive process involving advertised RFQs 1 


or RFPs. Special advisors are selected by the Executive Director based on qualifications – education, 2 


relevant experience, expertise and skills, reliability, credibility, and ability to work effectively with the ED 3 


and the staff of the EDO. Special Advisors and the firms they are associated with cannot do any other work 4 


for the Program, individually or as part of a team.  This is a critical restriction and generally orients special 5 


advisor selection to individuals who are sole proprietors or part of small firms that would not likely be 6 


doing significant levels of work for the Program on other specific, larger projects.  7 


 8 


The billing rates are negotiated with the special advisors by the ED and are kept within the industry standard 9 


of practice based on each individual’s qualifications.  While industry standard of practice may not be 10 


precisely defined, anyone who is a practicing member of that professional community understands the limits 11 


of reasonableness associated with those boundaries.  Appropriate expertise to make this assessment resides 12 


with the ED or EDO staff. The industry standard of practice rates guidelines used in this process is 13 


established based on an on-going market survey process comparing labor rates of similarly qualified 14 


professionals in the field. 15 


 16 


In the case of Special Advisors, individuals with similar experience and qualifications have been part of 17 


consultant teams selected through the Program’s competitive procurement process over a six plus year 18 


period. Comparison of the Special Advisor rates to the rates charged by comparable individuals through the 19 


competitive procurement process provides an indisputable basis for comparison. In all cases the Special 20 


Advisor rates are not only within the range of rates seen on the consultant teams which have been selected 21 


competitively, but typically at the middle to lower end of the range.  As rates charged by Special Advisors 22 


are at the middle to low end of the range of rates for similar work acquired through the Program’s 23 


competitive procurement process, the estimate for Special Advisors is considered fair and reasonable. 24 


The anticipated level of effort for the upcoming year is also discussed with the special advisors by the ED 25 


and members of the EDO staff, but all work is assigned on an as-needed basis with no guarantee of any 26 


minimum level of assignments. During the budgeting process, the special advisors anticipated to be needed 27 


and roughly the level of effort expected to accomplish the work plan for the budget year is scrutinized by 28 


and discussed with the appropriate advisory committees, the Finance Committee, and the Governance 29 


Committee. Input is received and taken under advisement from all these sources as to the appropriateness 30 


of the budgets for these line items with appropriate adjustments made prior to budget approval.  31 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 66 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


 4 


Program First Increment Timeline 5 


FY2012-FY2016 6 


 7 


FY 2015 Start Date 8 


January 1, 2015 9 


 10 


FY 2015 End Date 11 


December 31, 2015 12 


 13 


Task Completed by 14 


ED Office; Contractor (EA and subcontractors) 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


Shoemaker Island Complex 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


2015 activities under the existing contract include:  21 


 Evaluation of potential 2-D mobile bed sediment transport models and development of hydrodynamic 22 


and (possibly) sediment transport models of the Shoemaker Island Complex reach.  23 


 Year 3 sediment, topographic, and vegetation monitoring including implementation of the project-scale 24 


monitoring protocol before and after any natural high flow events. 25 


 Data analysis and reporting at the 2015 AMP reporting session. 26 


 27 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 28 


Integral to learning about physical process priority hypotheses Flow #1, Flow #3, Flow #5, Sediment #1, 29 


and Mechanical #2 and related Big Questions (#1, #2, #3, and #4).  Supporting information for flow-30 


vegetation-sediment relationships and what FSM management strategy will do on the central Platte River. 31 


 32 


Products 33 


Monitoring and modeling results; contractor presentations and participation in one TAC meeting and the 34 


2015 Adaptive Management Plan Reporting Session. 35 


 36 


Notes on Cost 37 


The firm performing these services was selected through a competitive procurement process in 38 


conformance with the Procurement Policy in 2012. The industry standard of practice cost guidelines used 39 


in the negotiation process is established based on an on-going market survey process comparing labor rates 40 


and time estimates of similarly qualified. The market survey process used for this study was to compare 41 


level of effort and labor rates proposed against level of effort and labor rates for a variety of projects of a 42 


similar nature to this project that had been performed and acquired for the Program over the previous 6 43 


years through the competitive procurement process. These projects of comparable nature included Sediment 44 


Augmentation Study, 1D Model Development, Elm Creek FSM Proof of Concept Study, and 45 


Geomorphology and In-Channel Vegetation Monitoring. All of these projects had been awarded through a 46 


competitive process in conformance with the Procurement Policy.  As the budget estimate is developed by 47 


using rates and the level of effort for similar work acquired for the Program through the competitive 48 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-5.  FSM “Proof of Concept” Activities @ 


Shoemaker Island Complex 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $                -    $                   -   


2011  $                -    $                   -   


2012  $   250,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   245,200.00  $                   -   


2014  $   319,100.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      340,000.00 


IMRP-5







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 67 of 89 
 


procurement process, and final negotiation and award of the contract was acquired through competition, 1 


the estimate for this work is considered fair and reasonable. 2 


 3 


The table below describes the Year 2 (2014) implementation budget for the FSM Proof of Concept 4 


experiment at the Shoemaker Island habitat complex, based on the scope of work as outlined in the original 5 


agreement.  The FY15 budget for the Year 3 (final year of project) will be similar and specific estimates 6 


are still in development.  However, slight cost increases over 2014 are expected. 7 


 8 


  9 


 
Labor 


Hours 


 
Labor Cost 


 
Subcontractor 


 
ODC's 


 
Travel 


 
TOTAL 


 


TOTAL 


(ROUNDED) 


Task 1- Kickoff Call 4 $606.00 $2,520.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,126.00 $3,100.00 


Task 2 - Experiment Design 26 $2,810.00 $6,330.00 $149.52 $0.00 $9,289.52 $9,300.00 


Task 3.1 - Review of Data Collected and 


Generation of Input Files, Calibration Files 


0 $0.00 $4,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00 


Task 3.2 - Fixed Bed Modeling 0 $0.00 $3,360.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,360.00 $3,400.00 


Task 3.3 - Fixed-Bed Model for BSTEM 42 $3,546.00 $8,400.00 $2,043.48 $423.38 $14,412.86 $14,400.00 


Task 3.4 - Mobile-Bed Model 


Development 


0 $0.00 $19,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,200.00 $19,200.00 


Task 4.1 - Field Preparation 93 $7,897.00 $1,730.00 $1,363.00 $423.38 $11,413.38 $11,400.00 


Task 4.2 - Pressure Transducer Install and 


O&M 


36 $2,708.00 $4,330.00 $851.96 $0.00 $7,889.96 $7,900.00 


Task 4.3 - Pre Event - Spring 2014 360 $31,190.00 $21,420.00 $9,451.54 $5,292.23 $67,353.77 $67,400.00 


Task 4.4 - Data Collection During SDHF 


(Inactive) 


0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 


Task 4.5 - Additional Data Collection for 


Sediment Budget (Inactive) 


0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 


Task 4.6 - Scour Chains 0 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 


Task 4.7 - Post Event - Summer 2014 272 $24,126.00 $14,420.00 $6,486.50 $4,798.28 $49,830.78 $49,800.00 


Task 4.8 - Pre Event - Supplemental 
Topographic/Bathymetric Survey 


49 $3,957.00 $2,810.00 $1,122.74 $564.50 $8,454.24 $8,500.00 


Task 4.9 - Post Event - Supplemental 
Topographic/Bathymetric Survey 


49 $3,957.00 $2,810.00 $1,122.74 $564.50 $8,454.24 $8,500.00 


Task 5 - Data Analysis 232 $22,256.00 $23,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45,256.00 $45,300.00 


Task 6 - Reporting 176 $19,940.00 $28,580.00 $227.14 $0.00 $48,747.14 $48,700.00 


Task 7 - AMP Reporting Session 24 $3,192.00 $13,330.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,522.00 $16,500.00 


TOTAL - AMENDMENT 2 1,363 $126,185.00 $157,940.00 $22,818.62 $12,066.27 $319,009.89 $319,100.00 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 68 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; Contractor (RBJV) 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Central Platte River, NE 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Complete habitat availability assessments for terns/plovers and whooping cranes using 2014 data under an 20 


amendment to the current contract or a new 3-year contract with Rainwater Basin Joint Venture.  Utilize 21 


models and equipment from previous 2007-2013 assessments. 22 


 23 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 24 


Critical data for assessing tern/plover priority hypotheses T1, P1, and TP1 and whooping crane priority 25 


hypotheses WC1 and WC3.  Data utilized to assist with evaluation of Big Questions #5, #6, #7, and #8. 26 


 27 


Products 28 


Tern and plover summary report presenting acres of on- and off-channel bare-sand habitat and Program 29 


defined “suitable” nesting habitat for 2014.  Whooping crane summary report presenting acres of WC 30 


foraging and roosting habitat by habitat type for 2014. 31 


 32 


Notes on Cost 33 


Rainwater Basin Joint Venture (RBJV) was contracted during 2011 to complete habitat availability 34 


assessments for the Program through 2012.  2007-2012 assessments are completed and the 2013 35 


assessments are now being completed under an amendment to the 2007-2013 contract, so the 2014 36 


assessment will require a new contract or another contract amendment with the RBJV.  The cost covers one 37 


additional year (2014) of analysis using the same methods and deliverables outlined in the previous 38 


agreement for the 2007-2013 analyses between the RWBJV and the Program.  The estimated time for 39 


completion of the least tern/plover and whooping crane analyses for 2014 is October 1, 2015.  40 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  IMRP-6.  Habitat Availability Assessment 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $                -    $                   -   


2011  $                -    $                   -   


2012  $   143,227.00  $                   -   


2013  $     35,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     36,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       40,000.00 


IMRP-6







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 69 of 89 
 


Estimated FY15 costs are: 1 


 2 


Project Items FY15 Cost 


Tern and Plovers 2014 Analysis - technician time 8,000.00 


Whooping Cranes 2014 Analysis 18,000.00 


RWBJV Analyst: Quality Assessment/Control for Datasets - technician time 7,000.00 


Computer Hardware Usage Fees 7,000.00 


Total 40,000.00 


  3 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 70 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


 4 


Program First Increment Timeline 5 


Annual 6 


 7 


FY 2015 Start Date 8 


January 1, 2015 9 


 10 


FY 2015 End Date 11 


December 31, 2015 12 


 13 


Task Completed by 14 


ED Office; Riverside Technology, Inc. (RTi) 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


ED Office (Kearney, NE); contractor (RTi) in Ft. Collins, CO 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


Ongoing database development and management by RTi.  Tasks include basic maintenance and minimal 21 


development. 22 


 23 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 24 


System will house and manage all Program administrative and technical data. 25 


 26 


Products 27 


Database maintenance, website support and hosting for meeting coordination and interface with Program 28 


technical data, public Program website and document library support and hosting.  The contract was 29 


awarded through a competitive procurement process in conformance with the Procurement policy. The 30 


contract was awarded in 2009.  As the budget estimate is developed by using rates and the level of effort 31 


for similar work acquired for the Program through the competitive procurement process, and final 32 


negotiation and award of the contract was acquired through competition, the estimate for this work is 33 


considered fair and reasonable. 34 


 35 


Specific FY15 tasks include: 36 


 Website and database hosting with two virtual servers 37 


 Server administration and maintenance 38 


 Website and database administration and maintenance (including SharePoint administration) 39 


 Routine maintenance on SQL server databases 40 


 System support  41 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-8.  Database Management System Development 


& Maintenance 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $   159,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $   200,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   370,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   140,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   165,615.18  $                   -   


2013  $   130,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   105,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      110,000.00 


PD-8







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 71 of 89 
 


The table below describes 2015 tasks and costs for database and web site hosting and maintenance: 1 


 2 


Task FY15 Cost Description 


System Support 


FRII Hosting $21,603.50 ISP Physical Hosting Cost (Fixed Annual) 


Maintenance $42,480.00 Support and Maintenance (T&M) 


Data Management  $7,080.00 SDR data maintenance (T&M) 


Reporting Services $29,205.00 Update Ad-Hoc and Quick Reports to use SQL 


Reporting Services 


Project Management $7,080.00 Task oversight, reporting, meetings, etc. (T&M) 


FY15 Total 


$107,449 


round up to 


$110,000 


Contract Ceiling 


  3 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 72 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


Program First Increment Timeline 3 


Annual 4 


 5 


FY 2015 Start Date 6 


January 1, 2015 7 


 8 


FY 2015 End Date 9 


December 31, 2015 10 


 11 


Task Completed by 12 


ED Office; Program partners; Contractor 13 


 14 


Task Location 15 


Central Platte River, NE 16 


 17 


Task Description 18 


Implement monitoring protocol during nesting season; Program staff will coordinate and lead field work, 19 


but five (5) seasonal technicians provided by the contractor will be necessary to work with Program staff 20 


and partners to properly collect all data.  Monitoring effort will remain elevated in FY2015 to: ensure proper 21 


data collection at nest sites (elevation, vegetation, etc.); band least tern and piping plover chicks and adults; 22 


and to document habitat conditions (availability and elevation of nesting habitat, vegetation establishment 23 


on islands, etc.) on the central Platte River.  24 


 25 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 26 


Data for evaluation of tern and plover priority hypotheses T1, P1, TP1, T2, and P2.  Data utilized to assist 27 


with evaluation of Big Questions #6, #7, #8, and #10. 28 


 29 


Products 30 


Annual report detailing nest activity, bird activity, and habitat conditions; data for longer-term analysis of 31 


effects of Program actions. 32 


 33 


Notes on Cost 34 


The EDO will seek to enter into a four-year contract with a monitoring contractor selected through the 35 


competitive selection process to provide tern/plover monitoring services for the Program in 2015-2018.  As 36 


the budget estimate is developed by using rates and the level of effort for similar work acquired for the 37 


Program through the competitive procurement process, the estimate for this work is considered fair and 38 


reasonable. 39 


 40 


The GC-approved budget for tern and plover monitoring and predator trapping in 2014 was $325,000.  That 41 


approved budget amount was based on the budget developed by the contractor at the time (2013) for 42 


performing field work and associated data logging and analysis as per the agreement with the Program.  In 43 


2014, budgeted tern/plover monitoring costs were detailed as follows:  44 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  TP-1.  Tern & Plover Monitoring 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $     14,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $     20,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $   100,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   300,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   215,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   290,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   325,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      280,000.00 


TP-1







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 73 of 89 
 


Expense Line Item Budgeted FY14 Cost 


Salaries $160,151 


Vehicles & Travel $24,800 


Equipment & Supplies $2,000 


Facilities Overhead $19,816.81 


Cost Center Overhead $32,342.52 


Bureau Overhead $28,693.24 


Total PRRIP Budget $267,803.57 


 1 


The EDO envisions the need for a 5-person crew to assist the EDO and Program Partners in conducting 2 


tern/plover monitoring for the Program in 2015. Based on previous contracts and levels of effort, the EDO 3 


estimates the Program monitoring costs to be $200,000-$225,000 for FY15. This estimate will cover 4 


increased costs and any related eventualities.  The specific budget will be negotiated with the contractor 5 


and the negotiated budget will not exceed the $225,000 estimate. 6 


 7 


Predator trapping will be conducted under the existing agreement between the Program and USDA; the 8 


2015 trapping effort will require a contract amendment with the USDA.  Based on the current agreement 9 


with the USDA, trapping costs are expected to remain fairly flat and are itemized approximately as follows: 10 


 11 


Category Estimated FY15 Cost 


Salary/Benefits $27,750.00 


Vehicle/Transportation $3,750.00 


Travel Cost $2,750.00 


Equipment/Supplies $5,500.00 


Subtotal $39,750.00 


Pooled Costs (11%) $4,372.50 


Overhead (16.15%) $6,419.63 


Total not to exceed $50,542.13, round up to 


$55,000 
  12 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 74 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


Contractor (WEST, Inc.; AIM Consultants subcontracted for 14 


field work during spring; new contractor for fall 2015) 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


Central Platte River, NE 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


Spring 2015 implementation of the whooping crane monitoring protocol and data analyses associated with 21 


the four-year contract (Fall 2011 – Spring 2015) established with WEST Inc. and Fall 2015 monitoring by 22 


a contractor chosen through the competitive selection process for a multi-year contract (Fall 2015 – Fall 23 


2018). 24 


 25 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 26 


Data for evaluation of whooping crane priority hypotheses WC1 and WC3.  Data utilized to assist with 27 


evaluation of Big Questions #5 and #10. 28 


 29 


Products 30 


Spring and fall report; data analysis. 31 


 32 


Notes on Cost 33 


The Program entered into a four-year contract spanning eight migration seasons (Fall 2011 – Spring 2015) 34 


with WEST.  WEST will analyze and report on data collected during the Spring 2015 migration and will 35 


subcontract with AIM to perform field work (aerial flights, monitoring bird activity, collecting habitat 36 


metrics, etc.).  This line item includes funds to cover additional costs associated with increasing the spring 37 


monitoring season by 15 days and conducting the 2001-2013 whooping crane habitat selection analysis for 38 


the Program. A new contractor will be chosen to implement the monitoring protocol beginning in fall 2015. 39 


The contract will be awarded through the competitive procurement process in conformance with the 40 


Procurement policy. The most recent contract was awarded in 2011. As the budget estimate is developed 41 


by using rates and the level of effort for similar work acquired for the Program through the competitive 42 


procurement process, and final negotiation and award of the contract will be acquired through competition, 43 


the estimate for this work is considered fair and reasonable.  44 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WC-1.  Whooping Crane Monitoring 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $   130,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $   130,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   170,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   225,091.00  $                   -   


2013  $   290,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   275,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      310,000.00 


WC-1







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 75 of 89 
 


The negotiated budget for spring field work, estimated budget for fall field work, and whooping crane 1 


habitat selection data analysis by WEST in 2015 is detailed below: 2 


  3 


FY15 Spring Whooping Crane Monitoring (AIM) 


Expense Category Estimated FY15 Cost 


Personnel $104,700 


Direct Costs (aircraft rental, mileage, GPS unit rental, radios, camera 


rental, PRRIP meeting attendance) 
$47,200 


Subtotal $151,900 


FY15 Fall Whooping Crane Monitoring (ESTIMATED) 


Personnel $67,500 


Direct Costs (aircraft rental, mileage, radios, camera rental, PRRIP 


meeting attendance) 
$27,500 


Subtotal $95,000 


FY15 Whooping Crane Monitoring Data Analysis (WEST) 


Time & Materials $60,000 


FY14 TOTAL 
$306,900, round up to 


$310,000 


  4 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 76 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


FY2011-FY2016 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


Whooping Crane Tracking Partnership including Canadian 14 


Wildlife Service, Crane Trust, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 15 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program, and U.S. Geological Survey. 16 


 17 


Task Location 18 


Whooping crane migration route; central Platte River, NE 19 


 20 


Task Description 21 


As per the Whooping Crane Tracking Project Partnership Agreement budget, these costs are for data 22 


download and data management costs. 23 


 24 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 25 


Data for evaluation of whooping crane priority hypotheses WC1 and WC3.  Data utilized to assist with 26 


evaluation of Big Questions #5 and #10. 27 


 28 


Products 29 


Spring and fall migration reports and database through 2015. 30 


 31 


Notes on Cost 32 


This FY 2015 budget line item is for Program participation in the multi-year Whooping Crane Tracking 33 


Partnership.  The Program entered into an agreement (2011-2019) with the Partnership during 2011 that 34 


allows the Program access to telemetry data and reports through 2019 and the ability to evaluate whooping 35 


crane response to management actions along the central Platte River.  The Partnership and the telemetry 36 


project are led by the United States Geological Survey (USGS).  Permission to sole source this contract was 37 


granted in 2011 by the Governance Committee due to the unique capabilities of the entities performing the 38 


work. Cost is a consideration in the sole source process and justification was provided to the Governance 39 


Committee.  Although permission was granted to sole source this contract, the rates and level of effort were 40 


compared to contracts for similar work acquired by the Program through the competitive procurement 41 


process in order to ensure that the cost of this work is fair and reasonable. 42 


 43 


As per the Whooping Crane Tracking Project Partnership Agreement signed by the Program, the table 44 


below describes estimated Program costs for each year of the project, including FY15.  Even though the 45 


project extends through 2019, Program costs will only be incurred through 2016.  The years 2017-2019 46 


will focus on data reduction, analysis, and reporting.  47 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WC-3.  Whooping Crane Telemetry Tracking 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $   125,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $   125,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   125,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   125,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   167,100.00  $                   -   


2013  $     95,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     35,500.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       23,500.00 


WC-3







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 77 of 89 
 


A detailed cost breakdown for Program expenditures on this project is outlined in the table below: 1 


 2 


Description 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total 


Helicopter 


contract/Summer 


trapping 


$42,000 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $92,000 


GPS-PTT 


transmitters 
$0 $90,000 $45,000 $0 $0 $0 $135,000 


Logistical support 


for Texas trapping 
$0 $10,000 $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 


Data costs $0 $12,100 $35,000 $30,500 $18,500 $6,400 $102,500 


Data management $0 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $25,000 


Total $42,000 $167,100 $95,000 $35,500 $23,500 $11,400 $374,500 


  3 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 78 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


FY2013-FY2016 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


Contractor (USGS; The Crane Trust sub-contracted for a 14 


portion of the fieldwork) 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


Whooping crane migration corridor within a one-day’s flight distance (600 miles) of the central Platte 18 


River. 19 


 20 


Task Description 21 


This is the Program’s contribution for the second year of a three-year contract with the USGS for the USGS 22 


and the Trust (sub-contractor) to provide staff for a research study to evaluate habitat metrics at whooping 23 


crane stopover sites from northern Texas to North Dakota. 24 


 25 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 26 


Additional data for evaluating whooping crane priority hypotheses WC1 and WC3.  Data will be utilized 27 


to refine the Program’s habitat suitability criteria for whooping cranes and assist with evaluation of Big 28 


Questions #5 and #10. 29 


 30 


Products 31 


Stopover site data, annual report, and participation in the 2015 Adaptive Management Reporting Session. 32 


 33 


Notes on Cost 34 


In 2013 the Program entered into a four-year contract spanning six migration seasons (spring 2013 – fall 35 


2015) with USGS; final analyses and reporting would occur under contract during 2016.  The FY2015 36 


budget line item would fund costs associated with data collection during the 2015 spring and fall migration 37 


seasons.  USGS will analyze and report on data collected during the 2014 spring and fall migration seasons 38 


and would present findings at the 2015 Adaptive Management Plan Reporting Session.  The total Program 39 


contribution to the four-year project is estimated at $307,513; out-year budgets will be approved annually 40 


by the GC.  41 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  WC-6.  Whooping Crane Stopover Site Evaluation 


Project 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $                -    $                   -   


2011  $                -    $                   -   


2012  $                -    $                   -   


2013  $   110,297.00  $                   -   


2014  $     98,608.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       98,608.00 


WC-6







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 79 of 89 
 


As per the agreement with the USGS, a detailed cost breakdown for PRRIP expenditures on this project, 1 


including FY15, is provided in the table below: 2 


 3 


Expense Line Item 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total 


Salaries $43,680 $43,680 $43,680 $0 $131,040 


Travel $24,900 $24,900 $24,900 $0 $74,700 


Equipment & Supplies $3,825 $500 $500 $0 $4,825 


PRRIP computers (2) $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $7,000 


Data plans (2) $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $0 $3,600 


Cost center rate 25.9% $18,753 $17,892 $17,892 $0 $54,537 


Bureau rate 12% $10,939 $10,436 $10,436 $0 $31,811 


Total PRRIP Budget $110,297 $98,608 $98,608 $0 $307,513 


 4 


Permission to sole source this contract was granted in 2012 by the Governance Committee due to the unique 5 


capabilities of the entities performing the work. Cost is a consideration in the sole source process and 6 


justification was provided to the Governance Committee.  Although permission was granted to sole source 7 


this contract, the rates and level of effort were compared to contracts for similar work acquired by the 8 


Program through the competitive procurement process in order to ensure that the cost of this work is fair 9 


and reasonable.  10 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 80 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office 14 


Independent Scientific Advisory Committee (ISAC) 15 


 16 


Task Location 17 


Basin meeting locations TBD 18 


 19 


Task Description 20 


 21 


ISAC Cost Item Estimated FY15 Cost 


ISAC meetings (face-to-face) – 6 members x 2 meetings x 4-


day meetings (3 days of meeting, one day of travel) x $1,400 


per member per day ($175/hour x 8-hour day) 
$67,200 


ISAC meetings (voice/Web) – 6 members x 3 GoTo meetings 


x 2-hour meetings x $175/hour/member 
$6,300 


ISAC chair – additional stipend to complete FY15 report to 


GC (10 days x $1,400/day) 
$14,000 


Document review – 10 days of review x 6 members x 


$1,400/day 
$84,000 


ISAC travel and other meeting expenses: 


 AMP Reporting Session – 6 members (4 days x $200 per 


diem/person + $750 travel) = $9,300 


 Spring/Summer Meeting – 6 members (4 days x $200 per 


diem/person + $750 travel) = $9,300 


 GoTo meetings expenses – 3 meetings x $2,500/meeting 


(conference call and web costs) = $5,000 


$23,600, round up to $24,000 


Total $195,500, round up to $200,000 


 22 


EDO proposes the following 2015 ISAC meeting schedule: 23 


1) ISAC meeting in Nebraska (April/May/June) – field visits to implementation sites; general 24 


discussion of key PRRIP issues 25 


2) AMP Reporting Session in Denver, CO (October) – ISAC interaction with EDO staff, Program 26 


participants, and contractors; review and discussion of 2015 “State of the Platte” Report; review and 27 


discussion of latest drafts of AMP documents 28 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  ISAC-1.  ISAC Stipends & Expenses 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $     75,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $   115,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $     70,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $   150,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   185,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $   185,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   221,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   200,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      200,000.00 


ISAC-1







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 81 of 89 
 


3) Potential GoTo Meetings (voice and Web) – Up to three GoTo Meetings as needed to discuss key 1 


issues via conference call and the Web 2 


 3 


Linkages to AMP and Big Questions 4 


Key element of independent scientific review of AMP, IMRP, management strategies, Big Questions, and 5 


associated priority hypotheses.  Annual review of “State of the Platte” report. 6 


 7 


Products 8 


ISAC review of Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) implementation, experimental design, and other 9 


Program products and activities; work will culminate in reports to GC after the Spring/Summer ISAC 10 


meeting and after the AMP Reporting Session.  ISAC members will attend GC meetings to deliver those 11 


reports to the GC. 12 


 13 


2015 ISAC Members 14 


The table below provides details on the contract status of all six current ISAC members: 15 


 16 


ISAC Member Current Term Expires Contract Action in 2015 


Ned Andrews December 2016 None 


Brian Bledsoe December 2015 None 


Adrian Farmer December 2015 None 


David Galat December 2014 1-year extension (through 2015) 


Jennifer Hoeting December 2016 None 


David Marmorek December 2014 New 3-year agreement (through 2017) 


 17 


David Galat’s ISAC term of service expires at the end of 2014.  He indicated to the EDO a willingness to 18 


stay on the ISAC for one more year (through 2015), at which time he would rotate off.  The EDO 19 


recommends the GC retain Galat on the ISAC through 2015 to provide continuity of service and specific 20 


expert advice on large river ecology (fish, birds, physical processes).  David Marmorek’s terms of service 21 


also expires at the end of 2014.  The EDO recommends the GC retain Marmorek as Chair of the ISAC for 22 


a new three-year term (2015-2017) to provide continuity of service, specific expert advice on 23 


implementation of adaptive management, and expert advice on decision analysis and related topics as the 24 


Program begins to near the end of the First Increment and accelerates the synthesis of data and use of that 25 


synthesis for communicating scientific information to the GC.  The GC will have to decide toward the end 26 


of 2015 whether to retain Bledsoe and Farmer for a new 3-year term starting in 2016 or rotate one or both 27 


off to be replaced by a new member. 28 


 29 


Notes on Cost 30 


The daily service rate for ISAC members is based on industry standard rates for individuals of the caliber 31 


and stature required for the ISAC.  A review of standard rates for PhD-level independent science experts 32 


revealed rates routinely in the range of $150 to $250 on an hourly basis. We were able to negotiate an 33 


equivalent rate of $175/hour which is at the low end of that range. 34 


 35 


Labor rates for ISAC members is compared against individuals of similar qualifications and experience that 36 


are part of consultant teams that are awarded contracts with the Program through competitive processes in 37 


conformance with the Procurement Policy. The level of effort is established by comparison of level of effort 38 


for similar tasks contained in contracts with consultants for the Program that were awarded through 39 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 82 of 89 
 


competitive processes in conformance with the Procurement Policy. 1 


 2 


Travel costs are compiled based on air fares from the location the ISAC member starts their travel from to 3 


the location of the meetings, together with any mileage or surface travel costs that will be incurred. For 4 


ISAC members serving for more than one year, these costs can be estimated with great certainty based on 5 


the costs incurred from previous years. The locations for the ISAC meetings are always either Denver, CO; 6 


Kearney, NE; or Omaha, NE. Meal and lodging expenses are based on government per diem rates for 7 


specific cities or general regions adjusted as necessary to accommodate solicited quotes from the potential, 8 


probable venues for the meetings This compilation is made for each ISAC member for each meeting to 9 


arrive at the total.  Costs are based on a market survey of lodging, meals, and transportation costs accounting 10 


for different points of origination of each individual and different locations for each session. Cost data from 11 


previous years factored into the process to develop a simplified, average cost approach.  12 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 83 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


Contractor; peer review panelists 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


Various locations of peer reviewers 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Peer review of up to five (5) Program documents: 20 


 21 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 22 


Independent peer review of key documents to ensure projects are consistent with Program goals and 23 


objectives. 24 


 25 


Products 26 


Peer review reports for each reviewed document. 27 


 28 


Notes on Cost 29 


The Program utilizes a third-party independent contractor, Louis Berger, to assist with identifying potential 30 


peer review candidates and helping the EDO manage the peer review process.  Louis Berger was selected 31 


in 2014 through the Program’s competitive selection process to provide these Independent Science Review 32 


(ISR) services through 2016. 33 


 34 


Peer review services under the contract will include: 35 


 Recommend candidates for each panel according to appropriate areas of expertise 36 


 Provide background information for all potential candidates 37 


 Recommend panelists and provide conflict of interest statements for all panelists 38 


 Communicate with panelists (Program provides scope of work and handles contracting for payment) 39 


 Summarize comments from each panel 40 


 Deliver final report to EDO for each panel 41 


 42 


Cost estimates are based on prior years’ experience with peer review panels and with Atkins as the ISR 43 


contractor.  Estimated costs for the ISR contractor to assist with peer review are $10,050/review.  Peer 44 


review panel members are expected to be of the same caliber and stature as ISAC members.  Thus, we used 45 


the ISAC rate of $1,400/day for roughly a five day period to estimate the stipend for serving as a Program 46 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-3.  AMP & IMRP Peer Review 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2008  $   105,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $     50,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $   115,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $     90,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $   108,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $   318,500.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $      233,260.00 


PD-3







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 84 of 89 
 


peer review member – three days to review document(s) in question and two days to compile comments 1 


and submit those comments to the Program’s ISR contractor. 2 


 3 


For FY15, estimated peer review expenses are: 4 


 5 


FY15 PRRIP Document for 


Peer Review 


# 


Reviewers 


per 


Reviewer 


Cost 


Total 


Review 


Panel Cost 


ISR 


Contractor 


Costs 


Total 


Cost 


Forage, flow, and tern/plover 


productivity 
3 $7,000 $21,000 $12,972 $33,972 


Elm Creek Complex FSM “Proof 


of Concept” final report 
3 $7,000 $21,000 $12,972 $33,972 


Geomorphology/vegetation data 


analysis report 
3 $7,000 $21,000 $12,972 $33,972 


Planform management 


manuscript 
3 $7,000 $21,000 $12,972 $33,972 


Whooping crane data 


analysis/habitat selection report 
3 $7,000 $21,000 $12,972 $33,972 


Target species population/life-


history conceptual models 
6 $7,000 $42,000 $21,400 $63,400 


Total $233,260 


  6 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 85 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2014 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; TAC 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Office (Kearney, NE and Lincoln, NE); Denver, CO 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


AMP Reporting Session in Denver, CO 20 


 21 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 22 


Evaluation of AMP experimental design, data analysis, and discussion of likely outcomes of management 23 


actions will help to keep monitoring, research, and data analysis on target for evaluation of priority 24 


hypotheses and AMP management activities.  Group discussion of all Big Questions and 2015 “State of the 25 


Platte” Report with ISAC, TAC, Program contractors, Program special advisors, and EDO. 26 


 27 


Products 28 


AMP Reporting Session in Denver, CO and 2015 State of the Platte Report 29 


 30 


Notes on Cost 31 


Evaluation of AMP experimental design, data analysis, and discussion of likely outcomes of management 32 


actions will help to keep monitoring, research, and data analysis on target for evaluation of priority 33 


hypotheses and AMP management activities.  Group discussion of all Big Questions and 2015 “State of the 34 


Platte” Report with ISAC, TAC, Program contractors, Program special advisors, and EDO.  AMP-related 35 


contractors will be required to attend the AMP Reporting Session (tentatively October 2015 in Denver) so 36 


travel and associated meeting expenses will generally be covered if not already covered under existing 37 


contracts/agreements.  Cost estimate based on previous years’ costs.  Estimated FY15 costs include: 38 


 39 


Expense Category Estimated FY15 Cost 


Room rental/equipment $2,000 


Breaks/working meals $3,000 


Lodging/travel for contractors (6 contractors x $1,500/contractor – $1,000 


airfare/parking/mileage, $300 lodging, $200 meals and miscellaneous) 
$9,000 


Total $14,000 


  40 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-11.  AMP Reporting 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $     10,000.00  $                   -   


2009  $     10,000.00  $                   -   


2010  $     70,000.00  $                   -   


2011  $     25,000.00  $                   -   


2012  $     25,000.00  $                   -   


2013  $     25,000.00  $                   -   


2014  $     14,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       14,000.00 


PD-11







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 86 of 89 
 


General Notes on Meeting Costs 1 


Because each meeting may be held in a different location (different cities and different hotels) a range of 2 


meeting room costs are possible. The typical range of room rental rates is $500 to $750/day. The typical 3 


rate for providing refreshments (coffee, sodas, juices), morning or afternoon break foods (rolls, fruit, 4 


cookies), and box lunches (if the agenda calls for a working lunch) can vary considerably by location, the 5 


range of options selected, and the number of people attending.  For planning purposes, a rate range of $250 6 


to $500 per meeting is used. Equipment costs for projector and screens and polycom conference phones 7 


vary considerable depending on location. Projector/screen costs can range from $50 to $250 per day. 8 


Polycom conference phones with microphone extension costs can range from $50 to $100 per day. 9 


Conference call costs are broken down in the table by number, rate, and duration of calls, the number and 10 


duration are estimated based on experience and the rate is set by contract with the provider.  11 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 87 of 89 
 


 1 


 2 


 3 


Program First Increment Timeline 4 


Annual 5 


 6 


FY 2015 Start Date 7 


January 1, 2015 8 


 9 


FY 2015 End Date 10 


December 31, 2015 11 


 12 


Task Completed by 13 


ED Office; TAC 14 


 15 


Task Location 16 


ED Office (Kearney, NE) 17 


 18 


Task Description 19 


Development of PRRIP-related manuscripts for publication in refereed journals. 20 


 21 


Linkage to AMP and Big Questions 22 


Manuscript publication is at the discretion of the GC and may provide an additional review step beyond the 23 


PRRIP peer review process for important Program documents to be used in the decision-making process. 24 


 25 


Products 26 


Published journal manuscripts. 27 


 28 


Notes on Cost 29 


Estimate $3,000 per manuscript for open-access publication based on professional publication experience 30 


of EDO staff; costs could be higher or lower depending on the journal.  For 2015, the EDO expects to seek 31 


GC approval to publish at least seven manuscripts including:  32 


PROGRAM TASK & ID:  PD-21.  PRRIP Publications 


 


Year Approved Estimated


2007  $                -    $                   -   


2008  $                -    $                   -   


2009  $                -    $                   -   


2010  $                -    $                   -   


2011  $                -    $                   -   


2012  $                -    $                   -   


2013  $                -    $                   -   


2014  $     20,000.00  $                   -   


2015  $                -    $       16,060.00 


PD-21







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 88 of 89 
 


Potential Manuscript Author Manuscript Type Target Journal 
FY15 


Cost 


Directed vegetation research 


(shear stress, velocity) 


Cardno 


ENTRIX 


Research results 


(PRRIP project) 


Earth Surface Processes 


and Landforms 
$3,000 


Lateral erosion 
Cardno 


ENTRIX 


Research results 


(PRRIP project) 


Earth Surface Processes 


and Landforms 
$3,000 


Tern/plover breeding pairs EDO Methods 


Methods in Ecology and 


Evolution or  


Ecology and Evolution 


$1,560 


Tern/plover off-channel nest 


site selection 
EDO 


General target 


species biology 


Journal of Wildlife 


Management 
$3,000 


Whooping crane habitat 


selection 
EDO 


General target 


species biology 
Conservation Biology $2,500 


Regional whooping crane use 


analysis 
EDO 


Research results 


(telemetry) 


Journal of Wildlife 


Management 
$3,000 


TOTAL $16,060 


  1 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE DRAFT  11/12/2014 
 


 
PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan  Page 89 of 89 
 


APPENDIX A 1 


 2 


PRRIP FY2015 Annual Land Work Plan 3 







   
 


PRRIP 2014 Land Budget Overview 1 | P a g e  


2015 Land Budget Overview 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 
For More Information Contact: Jerry F. Kenny, kennyj@headwaterscorp.com, (308) 237-5728 


2015 Budget Overview by Budget Line Item 


Budget 
Line Item Description 


Estimated 
Expenditure 


LP-2 Adaptive Management Species Habitat Actions* $773,490 


LP-3 New Land Acquisitions $1,535,000 


LP-4 Property Maintenance & Agricultural Operations** $309,100 


LP-6 Land Plan Special Advisors $20,000 


LP-7 Public Access Management $50,000 


PD-13 Sediment Augmentation Management Experiment*** $370,000 


IMRP-5 
Shoemaker Island FSM “Proof of Concept” Man. 
Experiment*** 


$340,000 


*Includes$50,000 in LP-2 for new acquisitions in 2015. 
**Includes $50,000 in LP-4 for new acquisitions in 2015. 
***These budget items have not been reviewed by the LAC and may be revised subsequent to LAC approval of land budget items. 



mailto:kennyj@headwaterscorp.com





 


PRRIP 2015 Land Budget Overview 2 | P a g e  
 


2015 Budget Overview by Complex 


Complex 
Estimated 


Expenditure 
Estimated 


Income 


Non- Complex Tracts $299,000 $45,600 


Plum Creek “Complex” $249,900 $17,204 


Cottonwood Ranch Complex $297,140 $24,000 


Elm Creek Complex $225,580 $38,555 


Fort Kearny Complex $167,130 $50,810 


Shoemaker Island Complex $453,840 $38,900 


New Acquisitions (Estimated 4) $100,000* N/A 


*$50,000 for maintenance and $50,000 for species habitat                      Total $1,792,590 $215,069 


 


 







 


PRRIP 2015 Land Budget Overview 3 | P a g e  
 


2015 Budget Priority Areas by Budget Line Item 


LP-2 – Adaptive Management Species Habitat Actions: Species habitat priorities for 2015 are focused on maintenance of complex 


and non-complex habitat as well as enhancement of off-channel palustrine wetland habitat for whooping cranes at newly acquired 


palustrine wetland sites. 


LP-3 – New Land Acquisitions: The majority of complex and non-complex sand pit habitat lands have been acquired. As such, 


2015priorities will include acquisition of lands for non-complex palustrine wetlands as well as acquisition of remaining complex 


habitat acres in a bridge segment that currently does not have a habitat complex.  


LP-4 – Property Maintenance & Agricultural Operations: 2015 priorities include maintenance of basic land infrastructure such as 


facilities, roads, and fences as well as fulfilling basic ownership obligations like noxious weed control and ROW mowing.  


LP-6 – Land Plan Special Advisors: Priorities for special advisors include administration of agricultural leases and associated FSA 


obligations, crop management and marketing, and assistance in cropland conversions.  


LP-7 – Public Access Management: Nebraska Game and Parks Commission will manage public access to Program lands in 2015.  


PD-13 – Sediment Augmentation: The 2015 priority for sediment augmentation is implementation of full-scale augmentation at the 


Plum Creek and Cottonwood Ranch complexes. The augmentation will be rigorously monitored to determine if augmentation 


methods are performing satisfactorily and/or there are negative in-channel impacts from augmentation.  


IMRP-5 – Shoemaker Island FSM “Proof of Concept” Management Experiment: The priority in 2015 will be implementation of the 
second year of the FSM “Proof of Concept” management experiment at the Shoemaker Island Complex. Activities will include 2-D 
hydraulic and sediment transport modeling to predict FSM performance as well as implementation of geomorphology, vegetation, 
and sediment monitoring. 







E


E


E


E


Kearney


Chapman


Lexington


Grand Island


E


E


E


Elm Creek
Complex


Plum Creek
Complex


Cottonwood Ranch
Complex


Ft. Kearny
Complex


Shoemaker Island
Complex


Legend
PRRIP-Protected Lands
Other Conservation Lands


±


0 105
Miles


0 63 Miles


0 63 Miles


DeBoer
Non-Complex


Liehs
Non-Complex


Newark
Non-Complex


Leaman
Non-Complex


Follmer-Alda
Non-Complex


Broadfoot South
Non-Complex







   
 


PRRIP 2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan 1 | P a g e  


2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan (2009008, 2010002, 2011001, 2011002 2012004 & 2013001) 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 
For More Information Contact: Jerry F. Kenny, kennyj@headwaterscorp.com, (308) 237-5728 
 


General Priorities 


 Good Neighbor Policy – Conduct all actions in accordance with Program’s good neighbor policy. 


 Restoration and Maintenance Planning – Develop Restoration and Maintenance Plan for Tract 2013001. 


 Property Disposition – Consider trade/ sale of Tract 2011002 or move forward with restoration plan. 


 


Adaptive Management Priorities 


 Riverine versus Off-Channel Whooping Crane Roosting – Monitor whooping crane use on Program riverine habitat and non-


complex off-channel palustrine wetland habitat. 


 Riverine versus Off-Channel Tern and Plover Nesting – Monitor tern and plover use and productivity on Program riverine 


habitat and nearby non-complex off-channel sand & water nesting habitat. 


 


Species Habitat Priorities 


 Maintain Suitable Off-Channel Sand and Water Nesting Habitat – Apply pre-emergent herbicide on Tracts 2009008, 


2010002, and 2011001 OCSW nesting habitat to prevent vegetation encroachment into nesting areas.  


 Maintain Suitable Palustrine Wetland Roosting Habitat – Manage woody vegetation in the palustrine wetland areas of 


Tracts 2012004 and 2013001 and maintain suitable herbaceous vegetation height for whooping crane roosting. Increase 


palustrine wetland footprint on Tracts 2012004 and 2013001 through installation of water control structures. 


 Protecting Other Species of Concern – Identify presence of and determine methods to protect other species of concern during 


implementation of land-related activities.  



mailto:kennyj@headwaterscorp.com





 


PRRIP 2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan 2 | P a g e  
 


Operations and Maintenance Priorities 


 Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs – Fulfill basic property ownership obligations and needs including 


boundary fence signage, road maintenance, and noxious weed control.  


 Agricultural Operations – Oversight of crop leases on Tracts 2009008, 2012004 and 2013001 and hay lease on Tract 


2011001. 


 Sand and Gravel Mining Operations – Monitor sand and gravel mining operations on Tracts 2009008 and 2011002. 


 


NOTE: The budget section of this work plan only contains information for work items that are specific to these tracts. As such, tract-


specific research and monitoring actions are presented but system-scale actions like target species and geomorphology/vegetation 


monitoring are not. 







Legend
PRRIP-Protected Lands
Other Conservation Lands


2012004


2013001


NON-COMPLEX PROPERTIES







Legend
PRRIP-Protected Lands
Other Conservation Lands


2009008
2010002


2011001
2011002


NON-COMPLEX PROPERTIES







 


PRRIP 2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan 3 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: General 
Item(s): Land Interest and Tract-Level Restoration and Maintenance Planning 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


NC1 
Initiate restoration and maintenance planning effort for 
Tract 2013001. 


1/1/15-5/1/15 JB N/A N/A 


NC2 Initiate discussion of disposition of Tract 2011002.  1/1/15 BS N/A N/A 


NC3 
Coordination of Program land actions with neighboring 
landowners 


Annual BS N/A N/A 


 
 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Maintain Suitable Off-Channel Sand and Water Habitat  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


NC4 
Herbicide applications on OCSW peninsulas to maintain 
bare sand nesting habitat1  


4/2015 & 9/2015 TT $7,000 LP-2 


NC5 
Tract 2011002 OCSW habitat creation if decide to retain 
property and construct OCSW habitat. 2 


3/1/15 - 4/15/15 JF $50,000 LP-2 


NC6 
Tract 2009008 creation of five additional acres on the east 
sandpit by excavating 15,000 cubic yards of material 


3/1/15 - 4/15/15 JB $50,000 LP-2 


 


 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Maintain Suitable Palustrine Wetland Habitat 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


NC7 
Irrigation well pumping to augment water level in 
wetland area of Tracts 2012004 and 20130013 


3/1/15 – 3/23/15 TT $10,000 LP-4 







 


PRRIP 2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan 4 | P a g e  
 


NC8 Palustrine wetland enhancements on Tract 20130014 5/1/15-7/1/15 JB $80,000 LP-2 


NC9 Palustrine wetland enhancements on Tract 20120045 5/1/15-7/1/15 KW $60,000 LP-2 


Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Other Species of Concern 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


NC1
0 


Habitat and species surveys on properties where work will 
occur 


As Needed DB N/A N/A 


NC11 


Coordination with USFWS and NGPC to identify and 
mitigate potential impacts associated with 2015 land 
activities 


1/1/15 – 4/1/15 TBD N/A N/A 


 
 
Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


NC12 Fence and road maintenance6 Annual TT $12,500 LP-4 


NC13 Noxious weed control7 6/1/15 – 8/31/15 TT $3,000 LP-4 


NC14 Mowing8 7/15/15- 10/15/15 TT $2,000 LP-4 


NC15 
Installation of groundwater monitoring wells on Tract 
20120049 


1/1/15-2/30/15 KW $24,500 LP-4 


 
 
Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Agricultural Operations 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 







 


PRRIP 2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan 5 | P a g e  
 


NC16 Oversight of grazing and cropland leases Annual TT N/A N/A 


NC17 Oversight of sand and gravel mining operations Annual BS N/A N/A 


                                                           
 
1 Based on 2014 herbicide application costs 
2 Cost to construct approximately 5 acres of habitat based on mean construction cost of $5,000 per acre. 
3 Based on 2012 estimate for pumping at Tract 2010001 
4 Based on preliminary engineer’s estimate of cost for wetland enhancement 
5 Based on preliminary engineer’s estimate of cost for wetland enhancement 
6 Based on $12,000 for miscellaneous fence repair/ construction  and $500 for road grading 
7 Based on 2014 noxious weed control costs  
8 Based on 2014 mowing costs 
9 Based on 2014 well installation costs 


 


Personnel Responsibility Key: 


BS – Bruce Sackett (Land Specialist) 
DB – David Baasch (Biologist) 
JB – Justin Brei (Biosystems Engineer) 
KW – Kevin Werbylo (Water Resource Engineer) 
TT – Tim Tunnell (Land Manager) 
JF – Jason Farnsworth (Technical Support Services) 
 


Property Identification Key: 


2009008 – PRRIP Broadfoot Newark Tract 
2010002 – Broadfoot Kearney South Tract 
2011001 – PRRIP Leaman Tract 
2011002 – PRRIP Follmer Tract 
2012004 – PRRIP DeBore Tract 







 


PRRIP 2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan 6 | P a g e  
 


2013001 – PRRIP Liehs Tract 
 







 


PRRIP 2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan 7 | P a g e  
 


2015 Non-Complex Tracts Budget Summary 


 
Estimated 2015 Expenditures by Program Budget Line Item 


Priority Area Item 
Budget  


Line Item 
Estimated 


Expenditure 


Species Habitat Create and Maintain Off-Channel Sand and Water Habitat LP-2 $107,000 


Species Habitat 
Create and Maintain Suitable Palustrine Wetland Habitat LP-2 $140,000 


 
 Subtotal $247,000 


    


Operations and Maintenance Property Maintenance and Agricultural Operations LP-4 $52,000 


  Total $299,000 


Estimated 2015 Revenues 


Priority Area Item 
Estimated 


Income 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009008 Sand & Gravel Royalties $12,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009008 Cropland Income (43 acres) $8,600 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2011002 Sand & Gravel Royalties $4,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2012004 Cropland Income $3,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2012004 Grazing Income $3,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2013001 Cropland Income $15,000 


 Total $45,600 
 







 


PRRIP 2015 Non-Complex Properties Annual Work Plan 6 | P a g e  
 


2015 Non-Complex Tracts Budget Summary 


 
Estimated 2015 Expenditures by Program Budget Line Item 


Priority Area Item 
Budget  


Line Item 
Estimated 


Expenditure 


Species Habitat Maintain Suitable Off-Channel Sand and Water Habitat LP-2 $57,000 


Species Habitat 
Maintain Suitable Palustrine Wetland Habitat LP-2 $140,000 


 
 Subtotal $197,000 


    


Operations and Maintenance Property Maintenance and Agricultural Operations LP-4 $52,000 


  Total $249,000 


Estimated 2015 Revenues 


Priority Area Item 
Estimated 


Income 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009008 Sand & Gravel Royalties $12,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009008 Cropland Income (43 acres) $8,600 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2011002 Sand & Gravel Royalties $4,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2012004 Cropland Income $3,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2012004 Grazing Income $3,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2013001 Cropland Income $15,000 


 Total $45,600 
 







   
 


PRRIP 2015 Plum Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 1 | P a g e  


2015 Plum Creek “Complex” Annual Work Plan 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 
For More Information Contact: Jerry F. Kenny, kennyj@headwaterscorp.com, (308) 237-5728 


General Priorities 


 Good Neighbor Policy – Conduct all actions in accordance with Program’s good neighbor policy. 


 Complex-Level Planning – Develop Complex Restoration and Management Plan that incorporates full-scale sediment 


augmentation implementation. 


 


Adaptive Management Priorities 


 Sediment Augmentation – Implementation of full-scale sediment augmentation to offset sediment deficit. 


 


Species Habitat Priorities 


 Improve Target Species Sand and Water Habitat –Application of pre-emergent herbicide on OCSW peninsulas and in-channel 


islands to maintain tern and plover nesting habitat. Control in-channel vegetation to unobstructed view widths for whooping 


cranes. 


 Protecting Other Species of Concern – Identify presence of and determine methods to protect other species of concern during 


implementation of land-related activities.  


 



mailto:kennyj@headwaterscorp.com





 


PRRIP 2015 Plum Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 2 | P a g e  
 


Operations and Maintenance Priorities 


 Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs – Fulfill basic property ownership obligations and needs including lodge 


and Quonset maintenance, boundary fence signage, road maintenance, and noxious weed control.  


 Agricultural Operations – Oversight of grazing lease on Tract 2009003. Oversight of cropland/hay leases on Tract 2009007. 


 


NOTE: The budget section of this work plan only contains information for work items that are specific to this complex. As such, 


complex-specific research and monitoring actions are presented but system-scale actions like target species and 


geomorphology/vegetation monitoring are not. 







2009007


PLUM CREEK COMPLEX


2009003


Legend
Other Conservation Lands
PRRIP-Protected Lands


¯
0 0.50.25 Miles







 


PRRIP 2015 Plum Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 3 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: General 
Item(s): Complex Land Interest and Complex-Level Planning 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


PC1 
Coordination of Program land actions with neighboring 
landowners 


Annual BS N/A N/A 


PC2 
Coordinate with NPPD to identify and mitigate potential 
impacts to leased NPPD nesting islands 


1/1/15– 4/1/15 JF N/A N/A 


PC3 Develop Complex Restoration and Management Plan 1/1/15– 4/1/15 JF N/A N/A 


 
 
Priority Area: Adaptive Management 
Item(s): Sediment Augmentation Experiment 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


PC4 
Implementation of full-scale sediment augmentation 
management experiment1  


1/1/15 – 5/31/15 JF $185,000 PD-13 


 


 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Improve Target Species Sand and Water Habitat  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


PC5 
Herbicide applications on OCSW peninsulas and island to 
maintain bare sand nesting habitat2  


4/2015 & 9/2015 TT $3,500 LP-2 


PC6 
Disking if necessary to provide in-channel vegetation 
control3 


9/1/15 – 10/1/15 TT $14,500 LP-2 


 







 


PRRIP 2015 Plum Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 4 | P a g e  
 


 Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Whooping Crane Grassland / Wet Meadow Habitat 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 
Responsible 


Cost 
(Estimated) 


Budget  
Line Item 


PC7 Prescribe burn of grassland units south of the channel4 3/15/15 – 4/7/15 TT $13,800 LP-2 


 
 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Other Species of Concern 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


PC8 
Habitat and species surveys on properties where work will 
occur 


As Needed DB N/A N/A 


PC9 
Coordination with USFWS and NGPC to identify and 
mitigate potential impacts associated with 2015 land 
activities 


1/1/15 – 4/1/15 TBD N/A N/A 


 
 
Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


PC10 Fence and road maintenance5 Annual TT $2,500 LP-4 


PC11 Noxious weed control6 6/1/15 – 8/31/15 TT $4,500 LP-4 


PC13 Livestock grazing facility improvements7  7/15/15 – 10/1/15 TT $15,000 LP-4 


PC14 Lodge and Quonset utilities and maintenance8 Annual TT $5,000 LP-4 


PC15 Mowing9 7/15/15- 10/15/15 TT $1,600 LP-4 







 


PRRIP 2015 Plum Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 5 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Agricultural Operations 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


PC16 Oversight of grazing and cropland leases Annual TT N/A N/A 


PC17 Cover Crop seed and drilling10  BS $4,500 LP-4 


 


                                                           
1Based on estimated typical unit cost of mechanical augmentation 
2 Based on 2014 herbicide application costs 
3 Approx. 80 hours of in-channel disking at $181.25/hr. 
4 Burn unit area of 230 acres at $60/ac 
5 Based on 2014 maintenance costs for Plum Creek Complex 
6 Based on 2014 noxious weed control costs for Plum Creek Complex 
7 Approx. 6,100 LF of fence on Tract 2009003 at $2.00/LF and $2,500 for installation of watering facilities on Tract 2009003 (based on watering 
facility costs at Cottonwood Ranch Complex) 
8 Based on 2014 lodge and Quonset utility costs and estimated cost for interior and exterior repairs and maintenance  
9 Based on 2014 mowing costs 
10 Based on 2014 cover crop costs 


Personnel Responsibility Key: 


BS – Bruce Sackett (Land Specialist) 
DB – David Baasch (Biologist) 
TT – Tim Tunnell (Land Manager) 
JF – Jason Farnsworth (Technical Support Services) 
 


Property Identification Key: 


2009003 – PRRIP Dyer Tract 
2009007 – PRRIP Cook Tract 







 


PRRIP 2015 Plum Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 6 | P a g e  
 


2015 Plum Creek Complex Budget Summary 


 
Estimated 2015 Expenditures by Program Budget Line Item 


Priority Area Item 
Budget  


Line Item 
Estimated 


Expenditure 


Adaptive Management Sediment Augmentation Management Experiment PD-13 $185,000 


    


Species Habitat Target Species Sand and Water Habitat LP-2 $18,000 


Species Habitat Whooping Crane Wet Meadow/Grassland Habitat LP-2 $13,800 


  Subtotal $31,800 


    


Operations and Maintenance Property Maintenance and Agricultural Operations LP-4 $33,100 


  Total $249,900 


 


Estimated 2015 Revenues 


Priority Area Item 
Estimated 


Income 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009003 Grazing Income $4,950 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009007 Haying Income $1,700 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009007 Cropland Income $10,554 


 Total $17,204 
 







   
 


PRRIP 2015 Cottonwood Ranch Complex Annual Work Plan 1 | P a g e  


2015 Cottonwood Ranch Complex Annual Work Plan 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 
For More Information Contact: Jerry F. Kenny, kennyj@headwaterscorp.com, (308) 237-5728 


General Priorities 


 Good Neighbor Policy – Conduct all actions in accordance with Program’s good neighbor policy. 


 Complex-Level Planning– Develop complex restoration and management plan and update operations and maintenance plans 


for complex tracts.  


 Property Disposition – Consider trade/ sale of Tract 2009006. 


 Tract Consolidation/ Disturbance reduction- Continue negotiations with Phelps County to close I Road. 


 


Adaptive Management Priorities 


 Riverine versus Off-Channel Tern and Plover Nesting – Monitor tern and plover use and productivity on Program riverine 


habitat and nearby off-channel sand & water nesting habitat (OCSW nesting complex on CWR property). 


 Full-Scale Sediment Augmentation Management Experiment – Implement full-scale augmentation in the form of mechanical 


channel widening. Monitor performance of augmentation.  


 


Species Habitat Priorities 


 Maintain Target Species Sand and Water Habitat – Application of pre-emergent herbicide on cleared areas and tern and 


plover nesting islands, and in-channel disking as necessary to control vegetation.  


 Management of grassland/wet meadow habitat for whooping cranes and sandhill cranes – Implementation of prescribed 


fire and grazing rotation in Section 16 T8N R19W (Tracts 2008002 and 2010001) to provide short grassland structure on ¼ of 


area during spring and fall crane migrations. Drain check structures to improve wetland hydrology. 


 Protecting Other Species of Concern – Identify presence of and determine methods to protect and/or benefit other species of 


concern while implementing land-related activities.  



mailto:kennyj@headwaterscorp.com





 


PRRIP 2015 Cottonwood Ranch Complex Annual Work Plan 2 | P a g e  
 


 


Operations and Maintenance Priorities 


 Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs – Fulfill basic property ownership obligations and needs on Tracts 


2008002, 2009006, and 2010001 including fence and road maintenance and noxious weed control. 


 Agricultural Operations – Oversight of grazing/ haying leases on Tracts 2009006 and 2010001. 


 


NOTE: The budget section of this work plan only contains information for work items that are specific to this complex. As such, 


complex-specific research and monitoring actions are presented but system-scale actions like target species and 


geomorphology/vegetation monitoring are not. 


 


 







2010001


COTTONWOOD RANCH COMPLEX


2009006


Legend
Other Conservation Lands
PRRIP-Protected Lands


¯
0 10.5 Miles


2008002







 


PRRIP 2015 Cottonwood Ranch Complex Annual Work Plan 3 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: General 
Item(s): Complex Land Interest and Good Neighbor Policy  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


CR1 
Coordination of Program land actions with neighboring 
landowners 


1/1/15– 12/31/15 BS N/A N/A 


CR2 Develop Complex Restoration and Management Plan  1/1/15 – 8/1/15 JB N/A N/A 


 


 
Priority Area: Adaptive Management 
Item(s): Full-Scale Sediment Augmentation Management Experiment 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


CR3 
Full-scale sediment augmentation implementation and 
monitoring1 


1/1/15 – 12/31/15 CS $185,000 PD-13 


 
 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Target Species Sand and Water Habitat  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


CR4 
Tract 2008002 Pre-emergent herbicide application on in-
channel tern and plover nesting habitat and OCSW 
complex2 


4/1/15 – 4/30/15 TT, JJ $5,000 LP-2 


CR5 
Disking if necessary to provide in-channel vegetation 
control3 


9/1/15– 10/1/15 TT $9,000 LP-2 


 


 







 


PRRIP 2015 Cottonwood Ranch Complex Annual Work Plan 4 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Whooping Crane Grassland / Wet Meadow Habitat 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


CR6 
Tract 2008002 Prescribed burn on NE ¼ of Section 16 T8N 
R19W4 


3/15/15 – 4/7/15 TT $9,600 LP-2 


CR7 
Tract 2010001 Annual electrical service fee at two 
irrigation wells to supplement water to wetland5 


3/15/15-5/15/15, 
10/1/15-11/15/15 


TT $10,000 LP-4 


CR8 
Tract 2010001 - Prescribed burn on Morse-North pasture, 
East hay meadow and restored crop field6 


3/15/15 – 4/7/15 TT $14,400 LP-2 


CR9 Tract 2010001 Electrical service for east irrigation well7  1/1/15-5/1/15 TT $5,000 LP-4 


CR10 Tract 2010001 Palustrine Wetland Enhancement8 
1/1/2015-
9/30/2015 


KW $42,640 LP-2 


 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Other Species of Concern 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


CR11 
Habitat and species surveys on properties where work 
will occur 


As Needed DB N/A N/A 


CR12 
Coordination with NPPD, USFWS and NGPC to identify 
and mitigate potential impacts associated with 2015 land 
activities 


As Needed TBD N/A N/A 


 
 







 


PRRIP 2015 Cottonwood Ranch Complex Annual Work Plan 5 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 


Item(s): Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


CR13 Boundary fence and road maintenance9  1/1/15 – 12/31/15 TT, JJ $4,500 LP-4 


CR14 Noxious weed control10 4/1/15– 9/30/15 TT, JJ $11,000 LP-4 


CR15 Mowing11  7/15/15 – 11/1/15 TT $1,000 LP-4 


 
 
Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Agricultural Operations 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


CR16 Tract 2009006 grazing lease oversight 5/15/15-10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


CR17 Tract 2010001 grazing lease oversight 5/15/15-10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


CR18 Tract 2010001 haying lease oversight 7/15/15-10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


                                                           
1 Based on estimated typical unit cost of mechanical augmentation 
2 Based on 2014 costs 
3 Approx. 49 hours of in-channel disking at $181.25/hr. 
4 Burn unit area of 160 acres at $60/AC 
5 Based on 2014 costs 
6 Burn unit area of 240 acres at $60/AC 
7 Based on 2012 charge for electrical service installation 
8 Material and labor to install ~800 LF of 8” pipe from east irrigation well under I Rd to cell 2 is estimated as $23,140  and material and labor for 
installation of permanent sheet pile structures in the Peterson drain is estimated as $19,500. 
9 Based on 2014 costs 
10 Based on 2014 costs 
11 Based on 2014 costs 







 


PRRIP 2015 Cottonwood Ranch Complex Annual Work Plan 6 | P a g e  
 


 


Personnel Responsibility Key:       


JJ – Jim Jenniges (NPPD)        
BS – Bruce Sackett (Land Specialist)       
DB – David Baasch (Wildlife Biologist)      
TT – Tim Tunnell (Land Manager) 
JB – Justin Brei (Biosystem Engineer) 
KW – Kevin Werbylo (Water Resource Engineer) 
JF – Jason Farnsworth (Technical Support Services) 
CS – Chad Smith (Director of Natural Resources) 
 
 
Property Identification Key: 


2008002 – NPPD Cottonwood Ranch  
2009006 – PRRIP Stall Tract  
2010001 – PRRIP Morse Tract 







 


PRRIP 2015 Cottonwood Ranch Complex Annual Work Plan 7 | P a g e  
 


2015 Cottonwood Ranch Budget Summary 


Estimated 2015 Expenditures by Program Budget Line Item 


Priority Area Item 
Budget  


Line Item 
Estimated 


Expenditure 


Adaptive Management 
Full-Scale Sediment Augmentation Management 
Experiment 


PD-13 $185,000 


    


Adaptive Management & 
Species Habitat 


Target Species Sand and Water Habitat LP-2 $14,000 


Species Habitat Grassland / Wet Meadow Habitat LP-2 $66,640 


  Subtotal $80,640 


    


Operations and Maintenance Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs LP-4 $31,500 


  Total $297,140 


 


Estimated 2015 Revenues to Program 


Priority Area Item 
Estimated 


Income 


Agricultural Operations Tract 2009006 Grazing Lease Income $4,000 


Agricultural Operations Tract 2010001 Grazing Lease Income $15,000 


Agricultural Operations Tract 2010001 Haying Lease Income $5,000 


 Total $24,000 
 







   
 


PRRIP 2015 Elm Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 1 | P a g e  


2015 Elm Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 
For More Information Contact: Jerry F. Kenny, kennyj@headwaterscorp.com, (308) 237-5728 


General Priorities 


 Good Neighbor Policy – Conduct all actions in accordance with Program’s good neighbor policy. 


 Complex-Level Planning– Develop complex restoration and management plan and update operations and maintenance 


plans. 


 


 


Adaptive Management Priorities 


 Tern and Plover Riverine Habitat Experiment – Maintenance of in-channel nesting islands constructed in 2012.  


 Whooping Crane Riverine Habitat Experiment – Vegetation control in and adjacent to channel to maintain a range of 


unobstructed view widths above the Program’s minimums. 


 Riverine versus Off-Channel Tern and Plover Nesting – Monitor tern and plover use and productivity on Program riverine 


habitat and nearby off-channel sand & water nesting habitat (NPPD’s Blue Hole sandpit and Johnson Sandpit). 


 


Species Habitat Priorities 


 Maintain Target Species Sand and Water Habitat – Create and maintain sand and water habitat for species through 


construction of in-channel nesting islands and vegetation control to maintain active channel width and unobstructed view 


widths.  


 Johns Check Structure Repair- Repair slough check structures damaged during floods of 2011 and 2013.  


 Protecting Other Species of Concern – Identify presence of and determine methods to protect and/or benefit other species of 


concern while implementing land-related activities.  



mailto:kennyj@headwaterscorp.com





 


PRRIP 2015 Elm Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 2 | P a g e  
 


Operations and Maintenance Priorities 


 Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs – Fulfill basic property ownership obligations and needs on Tracts 


2009002, 2009005, 2012001 and 2012002. 


 Agricultural Operations – Oversight of grazing/ haying lessee on Tracts 2009005, 2012001 and 2012002. 


 


NOTE: The budget section of this work plan only contains information for work items that are specific to this complex. As such, 


complex-specific research and monitoring actions are presented but system-scale actions like target species and 


geomorphology/vegetation monitoring are not. 


 


 







Mgmt01


ELM CREEK COMPLEX


2012002


Legend
PRRIP-Protected Lands
Other Conservation Lands


¯
0 10.5 Miles


Mgmt02


Mgmt06
Mgmt03


Mgmt04


2009002


2012001


2009005







 


PRRIP 2015 Elm Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 3 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: General 
Item(s): Complex Land Interest and Good Neighbor Policy  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


EC1 
Coordination of Program land actions with neighboring 
landowners 


1/1/15 – 12/31/15 BS N/A N/A 


EC2 Develop Complex Restoration and Management Plan 1/1/15 – 8/1/15 JB N/A N/A 


 


Priority Area: Adaptive Management & Target Species Habitat 
Item(s): Tern, Plover and Whooping Crane Riverine Habitat Experiments 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


EC3 
Herbicide applications on islands to maintain bare sand 
nesting habitat1  


4/2015 & 9/2015 TT $4,500 LP-2 


EC4 
In-channel cross disking (below diversion) and overbank 
mowing to maintain active channel and unobstructed view 
widths2 


9/1/15 – 10/1/15 TT $15,500 LP-2 


EC5 Island Reconstruction3 8/15/15–10/15/15 JB $40,000 LP-2 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


PRRIP 2015 Elm Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 4 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Whooping Crane Grassland / Wet Meadow Habitat 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


EC6 Tract 2012002 Prescribed burn (158 ac)4 3/15/15–4/15 TT $9,480 LP-2 


EC7 Tract 2012001 Prescribed burn (185 ac)5 3/15/15–4/15 TT $11,100 LP-2 


EC8 
Tracts 2012002 wetland checks installation/ 
modifications?6 


7/15/15- 10/15/15 JB $87,500 LP-2 


EC9 Tract 2012002 Brush herbicide/ mulching treatment7 8/15/15-10/15/15 TT $20,000 LP-2 


 
 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Other Species of Concern 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


EC10 
Habitat and species surveys on properties where work will 
occur 


As Needed DB N/A N/A 


EC11 
Coordination with USFWS and NGPC to identify and 
mitigate potential impacts associated with 2015 land 
activities 


As Needed TBD N/A N/A 


 
 







 


PRRIP 2015 Elm Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 5 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


EC12 Tract 2009002 building utilities and maintenance8 1/1/15 – 12/31/15 TT $1,500 LP-4 


EC13 Fence and road maintenance9  4/1/15 – 10/1/15 TT $6,000 LP-4 


EC14 Mowing10 7/15/15 – 11/1/15 TT $1,000 LP-4 


EC15 Noxious weed control11 6/1/15 – 8/31/15 TT $29,000 LP-4 


 
 
Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Agricultural Operations 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


EC16 Tract 2009002 crop oversight 5/15/15 - 10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


EC17 Tract 2009005 grazing lease oversight 5/15/15 - 10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


EC18 Tract 2012001 haying lease oversight 5/15/15 - 10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


EC19 Tract 2012002 grazing lease oversight 5/15/15 - 10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


EC20 Tract 2012002 crop share oversight 5/15/15 - 10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


 







 


PRRIP 2015 Elm Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 6 | P a g e  
 


 
                                                           
1 Based on 2014 costs  
2 Approx. 86 hours of in-channel disking at $181.25/hr.  
3 Based on 2014 costs of 184.5 hrs @ $215/ hr for 2 dozers 
4 Burn unit area of 158 acres at $60/ac 
5 Burn unit area of 185 acres at $60/ac 
6 Based on Engineers estimate  
7 Based on a cost estimate of $100/ acre for chemical application and mulching on 200 acres  
8 Based on 2014 costs 
9 Based on 2014 costs 
10 Based on 2014 costs 
11 Based on 2014 costs 


Personnel Responsibility Key:       


BS – Bruce Sackett (Land Specialist)       
DB – David Baasch (Wildlife Biologist)      
TT – Tim Tunnell (Land Manager)       
JB – Justin Brei (Biosystems Engineer)      
JF – Jason Farnsworth (Technical Support Services) 


 
Property Identification Key: 
2009002 – PRRIP Bartels Tract  
2009005 – PRRIP McCormick Tract  
2012001 – PRRIP Sullwold Tract 
2012002 – PRRIP Johns Tract 







 


PRRIP 2015 Elm Creek Complex Annual Work Plan 7 | P a g e  
 


2015 Elm Creek Complex Budget Summary 
 
Estimated 2015 Expenditures by Program Budget Line Item 


Priority Area Item 
Budget  


Line Item 
Estimated 


Expenditure 


Adaptive Management & 
Species Habitat 


Tern, Plover and Whooping Crane Habitat Experiments LP-2 $60,000 


Species Habitat Whooping Crane Grassland / Wet Meadow Habitat LP-2 $128,080 


  Subtotal $188,080 


    


Operations and Maintenance Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs LP-4 $37,500 


  Total $225,580 


 


Estimated 2015 Revenues 


Priority Area Item 
Estimated 


Income 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009002 Crop income $7,930 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009005 Grazing Lease Income $2,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2012001 Haying lease income $3,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2012002 Grazing lease income $9,625 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2012002 Crop income $16,000 


 Total $38,555 
 







   
 


PRRIP 2015 Fort Kearny Complex Annual Work Plan 1 | P a g e  


2015 Fort Kearny Complex Annual Work Plan 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 
For More Information Contact: Jerry F. Kenny, kennyj@headwaterscorp.com, (308) 237-5728 


General Priorities 


 Good Neighbor Policy – Conduct all actions in accordance with Program’s good neighbor policy. 


 Complex-Level Planning – Develop new complex restoration and management plan and update tract operations and 


maintenance plans. 


 Excess Property Disposal- Complete disposal of excess acres on Tract 2012003. 


 Obtain 404 permits and landowner agreements for complex management actions. 


 


Adaptive Management Priorities 


 Tern and Plover Riverine Habitat Experiment – Design of in-channel nesting islands and targeted tree clearing to increase 


distance to visual obstructions and predator roost habitat. 


 Whooping Crane Riverine Habitat Experiment – Design of vegetation clearing to provide a range of unobstructed view 


widths above the Programs minimums.  


 


Species Habitat Priorities 


 Improve Target Species Sand and Water Habitat – Increase available sand and water habitat for species through design and 


construction of tern and plover and whooping crane experiments, which will create habitat that meets Program criteria. 


 Protecting Other Species of Concern – Identify presence of and determine methods to protect and/or benefit other species of 


concern while implementing land-related activities.  


– 



mailto:kennyj@headwaterscorp.com





 


PRRIP 2015 Fort Kearny Complex Annual Work Plan 2 | P a g e  
 


 


Operations and Maintenance Priorities 


 Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs – Fulfill basic property ownership obligations and needs on Tracts 


2008001, 2009001, 2009004, 2010003, and Tract 2012003.   


 Agricultural Operations – Development of grazing plan and oversight of grazing lease on Tract 2008001 and Tract 2012003. 


 


NOTE: The budget section of this work plan only contains information for work items that are specific to this complex. As such, 


complex-specific research and monitoring actions are presented but system-scale actions like target species and 


geomorphology/vegetation monitoring are not. 


 


 







FORT KEARNY COMPLEX


Legend
PRRIP-Protected Lands
Other Conservation Lands


¯
0 10.5 Miles


2012003


2008001


2010003


2009004


2009001







 


PRRIP 2015 Fort Kearny Complex Annual Work Plan 3 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: General 
Item(s): Complex Land Interest and Good Neighbor Policy  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


FK1 
Coordination of Program land actions with neighboring 
landowners  


1/1/15 – 12/31/15 BS N/A N/A 


FK2 Develop Complex Restoration and Management Plan   1/1/15 – 6/1/15 JB N/A N/A 


 


Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Improve Target Species Sand and Water Habitat  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


FK4 
Disking if necessary to provide in-channel vegetation 
control1 


9/1/15 – 10/1/15 TT $19,490 LP-2 


 


Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Other Species of Concern 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


FK5 
Habitat and species surveys on properties where work 
will occur 


As Needed DB N/A N/A 


FK6 
Coordination with USFWS and NGPC to identify and 
mitigate potential impacts associated with 2015 land 
activities 


1/1/15 – 4/1/15 TBD N/A N/A 


 
 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 







 


PRRIP 2015 Fort Kearny Complex Annual Work Plan 4 | P a g e  
 


Item(s): Whooping Crane Grassland / Wet Meadow Habitat 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


FK7 Tract 2008001 Prescribe burn (81 ac)2  3/15/15 – 4/7/15 TT $4,860 LP-2 


FK8 Tract 2009004 Prescribe burn (222 ac) 3 3/15/15 – 4/7/15 TT $13,320 LP-2 


FK10 Tract 2012003 Prescribe burn (67 ac) 4 3/15/15 – 4/7/15 TT $4,020 LP-2 


FK11 Tract 2009001 Prescribe burn (174 ac) 5 3/15/15 – 4/7/15 TT $10,440 LP-2 


FK12 Tract 2009001 Irrigation well repair & electrical service6? 1/1/15 – 12/31/15 TT $25,000 LP-2 


 
Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


FK13 Tract 2009001 livestock water well & tank7 1/1/15 – 6/1/15 TT $8,000 LP-4 


FK14 Tract 2009001boundary fence8 1/1/15 – 12/31/15 TT $24,500 LP-4 


FK15 Tract 2009004 livestock water well & tank9 1/1/15 – 6/1/15 TT $8,000 LP-4 


FK16 Tract 2009004 boundary fence10 1/1/15 – 12/31/15 TT $33,500 LP-4 


FK17 Noxious weed control11 6/1/15 – 8/31/15 TT $5,000 LP-4 


FK18 Boundary fence and road maintenance12  1/1/15 – 12/31/15 TT $9,000 LP-4 


FK19 Mowing13 8/15/15-9/15/15 TT $2,000 LP-4 


 
 
 
 
 







 


PRRIP 2015 Fort Kearny Complex Annual Work Plan 5 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Agricultural Operations 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


FK20 Tract 2008001 grazing lease oversight 5/15/15-10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


FK21 Tract 2012003 grazing lease oversight and input costs 5/1/15– 10/31/15 TT N/A N/A 


                                                           
 
1 Approx. 107 hours of in-channel disking at $181.25/hr. 
2 Burn unit area of 117 acres at $60/AC 
3 Burn unit area of 205 acres at $60/AC 
4 Burn unit area of 67 acres at $60/AC 
5 Burn unit area of 67 acres at $60/AC 
6 Based on project costs for similar work at Tract 2010001 in 2012 
7 Based on project costs for similar work at Tract 2012003 in 2014 
8 Approx. 11,221 LF of fence on Tract 2009001 at $2.00/LF and $2,500 for installation of gates  
9 Based on project costs for similar work at Tract 2012003 in 2014 
10 Approx. 16,000 LF of fence on Tract 2009004 at $2.00/LF and $2,500 for installation of gates  
11 Based on 2014 costs 
12 Based on 2014costs 
13 Based on 2014 costs 


 


Personnel Responsibility Key:       


BS – Bruce Sackett (Land Specialist)       
DB – David Baasch (Wildlife Biologist)      
TT – Tim Tunnell (Land Manager)       
JF – Jason Farnsworth (Technical Support Services) 
JB – Justin Brei (Biosystems Engineer)     
           







 


PRRIP 2015 Fort Kearny Complex Annual Work Plan 6 | P a g e  
 


Property Identification Key: 


2008001 – PRRIP Wyoming Property 
2009001 – PRRIP Fox Tract 
2009004 – PRRIP Hostetler Tract 
2010003 – PRRIP Sherrerd/Clark Easement 
2012003 -  PRRIP Blessing Tract 


            







 


PRRIP 2015 Fort Kearny Complex Annual Work Plan 7 | P a g e  
 


2015 Fort Kearny Complex Budget Summary 
 
Estimated 2015 Expenditures by Program Budget Line Item 


Priority Area Item 
Budget  


Line Item 
Estimated 


Expenditure 


Species Habitat Improve Sand and Water Habitat LP-2 $19,490 


Species Habitat Whooping Crane Grassland / Wet Meadow Habitat LP-2 $57,640 


  Subtotal $77,130 


    


Operations and Maintenance Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs LP-4 $90,000 


  Total $167,130 


 


Estimated 2015 Revenues 


Priority Area Item 
Estimated 


Income 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2008001 and Tract 2012003 Grazing Income $7,610 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2012003 Cropland income $22,200 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009001 Hay income $7,000 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2009004 Hay income $14,000 


 Total $50,810 


 







   
 


PRRIP 2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Annual Work Plan 1 | P a g e  


2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Annual Work Plan 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 
For More Information Contact: Jerry F. Kenny, kennyj@headwaterscorp.com, (308) 237-5728 


General Priorities 


 Good Neighbor Policy – Conduct all actions in accordance with Program’s good neighbor policy. 


 


Adaptive Management Priorities 


 Tern and Plover Riverine Habitat Experiment – Maintenance of in-channel nesting islands and targeted tree clearing to 


increase distance to visual obstructions and predator roost habitat 


 Whooping Crane Riverine Habitat Experiment – Design and implement vegetation clearing to provide a range of 


unobstructed view widths above the Programs minimums 


 Riverine versus Off-Channel Tern and Plover Nesting –Monitor tern and plover use and productivity on Program riverine 


habitat and nearby OCSW habitat.  


 Flow-Sediment-Mechanical (FSM) Management Experiment – Complete implementation design for FSM “proof of concept” 


management experiment at Shoemaker Island Complex and implement experiment.  


 



mailto:kennyj@headwaterscorp.com





 


PRRIP 2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Annual Work Plan 2 | P a g e  
 


Species Habitat Priorities 


 Improve Target Species Sand and Water Habitat – Increase available sand and water habitat for species through design and 


construction of tern and plover and whooping crane experiments that will create habitat meeting Program suitability criteria.  


 Protecting Other Species of Concern – Identify presence of and determine methods to protect and/or benefit other species of 


concern while implementing land-related activities.  


 


Operations and Maintenance Priorities 


 Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs – Fulfill basic property ownership obligations and needs on Tract 


2010004.   


 Agricultural Operations – Oversight of grazing and haying leases on Tract 2010004. 


 


NOTE: The budget section of this work plan only contains information for work items that are specific to this complex. As such, 


complex-specific research and monitoring actions are presented but system-scale actions like target species and 


geomorphology/vegetation monitoring are not. 


 


 







SHOEMAKER ISLAND COMPLEX


Legend
PRRIP-Protected Lands
Other Conservation Lands


¯
0 10.5 Miles


2010004







 


PRRIP 2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Annual Work Plan 3 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: General 
Item(s): Complex Land Interest and Good Neighbor Policy  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


SI 1 
Coordination of Program land actions with neighboring 
landowners 


1/1/15– 12/31/15 BS N/A N/A 


 


Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Improve Target Species Sand and Water Habitat  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


SI 2 
Disking if necessary to provide in-channel vegetation 
control1 


9/1/15 – 10/1/15 TT $21,000 LP-2 


 
 
Priority Area: Adaptive Management 
Item(s): Tern, Plover and Whooping Crane Habitat Experiments  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


SI 3 
Pre-emergent herbicide application on in-channel nesting 
islands.2 


3/1/15-4/1/15 TT $10,000 LP-2 


SI 4 Island Reconstruction3 8/15/15-10/15/15 JB $40,000 LP-2 


 







 


PRRIP 2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Annual Work Plan 4 | P a g e  
 


Priority Area: Adaptive Management 
Item(s): FSM Proof of Concept Management Experiment  


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


SI 5 
Implementation of FSM proof of concept management 
experiment4 


3/1/15 – 12/1/15 JF $340,000 IMRP-5 


 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Whooping Crane Grassland / Wet Meadow Habitat 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


SI 6 
Tract 2010004 Prescribe burn North ½ -East & West  
Pastures (254 ac)5 


3/15/15 – 4/7/15 TT $15,240 LP-2 


SI 7 Tract 2010004 Prescribe burn-South meadow (56 ac)6 3/15/14 – 4/7/15 TT $3,360 LP-2 


SI 8 
Tract 2010004 Prescribe burn-Southeast hay meadow (30 
ac)7 


3/15/14 – 4/7/15 TT $1,800 LP-2 


SI 9 
Tract 2010004 Prescribe burn-West hay meadow (124 
ac)8 


3/15/14 – 4/7/15 TT $7,440 LP-2 


 
 
Priority Area: Species Habitat 
Item(s): Other Species of Concern 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


SI 10 
Habitat and species surveys on properties where work 
will occur 


As Needed DB N/A N/A 


SI 11 
Coordination with USFWS and NGPC to identify and 
mitigate potential impacts associated with 2015 land 
activities 


1/1/15 – 4/1/15 TBD N/A N/A 







 


PRRIP 2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Annual Work Plan 5 | P a g e  
 


 
Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Basic Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


SI 12 Noxious weed control9 6/1/15 – 8/31/15 TT $5,000 LP-4 


SI13 Boundary fence and road maintenance10  1/1/15 – 12/31/15 TT $9,000 LP-4 


SI 14 Mowing11  8/15/15-9/15/15 TT $1,000 LP-4 


 
 
Priority Area: Operations and Maintenance 
Item(s): Agricultural Operations 


No. Activities for 2015 Target Dates 
Person 


Responsible 
Cost 


(Estimated) 
Budget  


Line Item 


SI 15 Tract 2010004 grazing, haying lease oversight 5/15/15-10/15/15 TT N/A N/A 


 


                                                           
 
1 Approx. 114 hours of in-channel disking at $181.25/hr. 
2 Based on 2014 costs 
3 Based on 2014 costs of 184.5 hrs @ $215/ hr for 2 dozers at Tract 2009002 
4 See PRRIP Fiscal Year 2015 Budget and Annual Work Plan for details 
5 Burn unit area of 254 acres at $60/ac 
6 Burn unit area of 56 acres at $60/ac 
7 Burn unit area of 56 acres at $60/ac 
8 Burn unit area of 56 acres at $60/ac 
9 Based on 2014 costs 
10 Based on 2014costs 
11 Based on 2014 costs  







 


PRRIP 2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Annual Work Plan 6 | P a g e  
 


 


Personnel Responsibility Key:       


BS – Bruce Sackett (Land Specialist)       
DB – David Baasch (Wildlife Biologist)      
TT – Tim Tunnell (Land Manager)       
JF – Jason Farnsworth (Technical Support Services) 
JB – Justin Brei (Biosystems Engineer)     
           


Property Identification Key: 


2010004 – PRRIP Binfield Tract 


            







 


PRRIP 2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Annual Work Plan 7 | P a g e  
 


2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Budget Summary 
 
Estimated 2015 Expenditures by Program Budget Line Item 


Priority Area Item 
Budget  


Line Item 
Estimated 


Expenditure 


Species Habitat Improve Target Species Sand and Water Habitat LP-2 $21,000 


Adaptive Management & 
Species Habitat 


Tern, Plover and Whooping Crane Habitat Experiments LP-2 $50,000 


Species Habitat Whooping Crane Grassland/Wet Meadow Habitat LP-2 $27,840 


  Subtotal $98,840 


    


Adaptive Management FSM Proof of Concept Management Experiment IMRP-5 $340,000 


    


Operations and Maintenance Property Maintenance Obligations and Needs LP-4 $15,000 


  Total $453,840 


 


Estimated 2015 Revenues 


Priority Area Item 
Estimated 


Income 


Operations and Maintenance Tract 2010004 Grazing and Haying Income $38,900 


 Total $38,900 


 





		13 - November 10 2014 DRAFT Master PRRIP FY2015 Work Plan

		November 5 2014 Draft FY15 Annual Land Work Plan

		1-Draft_2015 Land Budget Overview

		2-Draft_2015 NonComplex Property Work Plan

		3-Draft_2015 Plum Creek Complex Work Plan

		4-Draft_2015 CWR Complex Work Plan

		5-Draft_2015 Elm Creek Complex Work Plan

		6-Draft_2015 Fort Kearny Complex Work Plan

		7-Draft_2015 Shoemaker Island Complex Work Plan












PRRIP – ED OFFICE  


11-19-2014 


 


Seventh Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office Page 1 of 5 


 


Seventh Amendment 1 


To the Agreement Between 2 


the Nebraska Community Foundation, Inc. 3 


 and Headwaters Corporation, Private Consultant 4 


 5 


 6 


This Fifth Amendment to the Agreement between the Nebraska Community Foundation, Inc. 7 


(“Foundation”) of Lincoln, Nebraska and Headwaters Corporation (“Consultant”), a private 8 


consultant of Kearney, Nebraska is made effective January 1, 2015.   9 


 10 


The purpose of this amendment is to: 11 


 12 


(1) Extend the contract between Foundation and Consultant for Executive Director’s Office 13 


services from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 to provide the services as described 14 


in Exhibit A 15 


(2) To provide Consultant with the budget as described in Exhibit B. 16 


 17 


All other terms of the original agreement remain in effect as originally written. 18 


 19 


 20 


The following parties agree to the terms of this Agreement. 21 


 22 


For the Consultant: 23 


 24 


 25 


 26 


________________________________ 27 


Jerry F. Kenny, Ph.D. 28 


President and CEO 29 


Headwaters Corporation      30 


 31 


For the Foundation: 32 


 33 


 34 


 35 


_________________________________ 36 


Diane M. Wilson       37 


Chief Financial & Administrative Officer  38 


Nebraska Community Foundation, Inc. 39 


40 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE  


11-19-2014 


 


Seventh Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office  


Exhibit A 41 


Scope of Services 42 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 43 


Executive Director and Staff 44 


 45 


Task 1. Basic Duties – Maintain the Office of the Executive Director (EDO) in Central 46 


Nebraska (4411 4th Avenue, Suite 6, Kearney, Nebraska 68845) and provide the managerial, 47 


administrative, and technical assistance required of the Governance Committee to implement the 48 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program. 49 


 50 


Task 2. 2014 Work Plan Items – The Executive Director and staff are responsible for 51 


implementation, either directly or through oversight, of activities as defined in the 2015 52 


Work Plan. The following lists provide an overview summary of the activities that the EDO 53 


will perform in 2014: 54 


 55 


Provide direction and oversight and review work progress for contract conformance and payment 56 


approval for on-going work by contractors and consultants including: 57 


 All species and physical process monitoring activities. 58 


 Sediment augmentation activities. 59 


 FSM proof of concept activities. 60 


 Permit activities for in-channel work. 61 


 Directed research activities for Adaptive Management Plan requirements. 62 


 Database management system development and maintenance activities. 63 


 ISAC and peer review activities. 64 


 Water Action Plan feasibility studies, design studies, and implementation actions. 65 


 J2 Regulating Reservoir design and other pre-construction activities in support of 66 


CNPPID. 67 


 Ground water recharge and management investigations and implementation activities. 68 


 Directed investigations for Water Plan requirements. 69 


 Choke point investigations and project design, permitting, and implementation activities. 70 


 Routine operations and maintenance of facilities, agricultural and range activities, and 71 


 basic land management. 72 


 Land management and habitat rehabilitation projects. 73 


 Recreational Access program activities. 74 


 Special advisor activities as assigned by ED or EDO. 75 


 76 


Provide services as appropriate in the following Program areas: 77 


 Engineering, hydraulic, and hydrologic analyses in support of Water and Adaptive 78 


Management Plans. 79 


 Water project scoring analyses and documentation. 80 


 Develop hydrologic conditions report monthly or in prescribed time period blocks 81 


 Develop water purchase and lease agreements with various entities including NPPD, 82 


 CPNRD, NPNRD, and CNPPID. 83 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE  


11-19-2014 


 


Seventh Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office  


 Land evaluation and acquisition services. 84 


 Land management services including oversight of tenants and agricultural 85 


operations. 86 


 Implement of Good Neighbor Policy. 87 


 Monitoring, data analysis, and reporting of wet meadow hydrology investigations. 88 


 Design and construction monitoring for palustrine wetland projects on DeBore 89 


and Leihs Properties. 90 


 Monitoring, design, and construction monitoring on wet meadow construction 91 


activities on Morse Property. 92 


 Develop system-level hypothesis testing approach – spatial, temporal, sequencing, and 93 


experimental design aspects and proceed with implementation. 94 


 Develop priority list of lands for each type of experiment and integrate with other 95 


ongoing efforts and proceed with implementation. 96 


 97 


Coordinate, attend, and provide support for scheduled meetings of Governance and Finance 98 


Committees, Land, Water, Technical, and Independent Science Advisory Committees, and other ad 99 


hoc committees or working groups as they occur. 100 


 101 


Task 3. Project Library/Archive — Maintain a library and archive of materials generated 102 


for project, collection may include hard copy and electronic materials. The materials in the 103 


archive/library will include documents and other materials from both the Cooperative 104 


Agreement Phase and Phase I of the Implementation Program. 105 


 106 


Task 4. Other Duties — Perform other duties of the Office of the Executive Director, such as: 107 


 Coordination and communication among Program participants. 108 


 Distribution of materials to participants. 109 


 Communication with state, federal, and local organizations as appropriate. 110 


 Outreach and communication with the various stakeholder groups and various publics 111 


touched by the Program. 112 


 Prepare work plan and budget for review by the Finance Committee and approval by the 113 


Governance Committee. 114 


 Prepare agreements/contracts and amendments. 115 


 Process contractor invoices. 116 


 Coordination with Nebraska Community Foundation on contractual and financial matters. 117 


 Coordination with Platte River Recovery Implementation Foundation on land interest 118 


holding matters. 119 


 Prepare and provide outreach/public education activities for the Program. 120 


 Provide a review of Program tasks and periodically report on the status and progress of 121 


each task to the Governance Committee. 122 


123 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE  


11-19-2014 


 


Seventh Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office  


Exhibit B 124 


Budget with Approved Hourly Rate 125 


& Reimbursable Expenses Price Schedules 126 


 127 


I. Budget 128 


 129 


A. Labor Costs 130 


Average 131 


Item    No. Staff    Billing Rate ($)    Total Hours       Cost ($) 132 


Executive Director        1  130.23     1,800   234,420.11  133 


Director Staff         6    77.67     9,700   753,357.62 134 


Senior Staff                      6    60.18   10,600   637,911.55 135 


Junior and Administrative Staff    4    47.19     5,318   250,939.12 136 


Subtotal-Labor Cost                $1,876,628.40 137 


 138 


B. Direct Costs 139 


 140 


Item               Unit Rate ($) Months or Units     Cost ($) 141 


Office Rent      9,800.00  12   117,600.00 142 


Phones and Utilities     3,500.00  12     42,000.00 143 


Insurance    15,000.00  1     15,000.00 144 


Equipment (office- purch. & maint.)      750.00  12       9,000.00 145 


Travel/Meeting Expenses    7,500.00  12                90,000.00 146 


Misc. Expenses (postage, supplies)   1,000.00   12     12,000.00 147 


Misc. Services (acct, payroll, legal)   3,000.00  12     36,000.00 148 


Contingency     10,000.00  1     10,000.00  149 


Subtotal-Direct Cost        $325,600.00 150 


 151 


Note: Direct costs such as rent, utilities, and insurance shown above represent the proportionate 152 


share of total such costs attributable to PRRIP based primarily on fee distribution amongst all 153 


Headwaters Corporation’s clients. In the case of shared resources, proportionate factors which 154 


provide a conservative buffer to all clients is used to ensure that no client pays a disproportionate 155 


share of billable direct costs. 156 


 157 


C. Total Budget               $2,202,228.40 158 


159 







PRRIP – ED OFFICE  


11-19-2014 


 


Seventh Amendment – Headwaters Corporation – Executive Director’s Office  


II. Approved Hourly Rate and Reimbursable Expenses Price Schedules 160 


 161 


A. Approved Hourly Rate Price Schedule 162 


 163 


Item                  Maximum Hourly Billing Rate ($) 164 


Executive Director   130.25 165 


Director Staff          98.75 166 


Senior Staff      78.50 167 


Junior and Administrative Staff     64.50 168 


 169 


Billing Rates include salary, vacation, holiday, professional development, health insurance, life 170 


insurance, FICA, retirement, unemployment insurance and other similar items, and profit. 171 


  172 


The billing rates will remain under the caps established by category, but will be set and reported 173 


on an individual basis by employee. Invoices will provide detail of hours expended during billing 174 


period and applicable billing rate by individual. 175 


 176 


B. Reimbursable Expenses Price Schedule 177 


 178 


All direct costs will be supported by invoice and billed at actual cost. 179 


 180 


There will be no charges for computer usage and related technology. 181 


 182 


Mileage will be charged at a rate of $0.550 per mile or the IRS approved rate for Business. 183 








2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 1 of 12 
 


HEADWATERS CORPORATION 


STAFFING PLAN FOR 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


SERVING AS 


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S OFFICE 


November 3, 2014 


INTRODUCTION 
Headwaters Corporation provides the services of the Executive Director and the staff of the 


Executive Director’s Office (EDO).  The organization of Headwaters Corporation follows the 


basic structure of the Program. The fundamental, functional areas of Water, Land, and Adaptive 


Management are mirrored as specific discipline groups:  


Water – Water Resources  


 Land – Acquisitions 


 Adaptive Management – Natural Resources Decision Support 


with strong support to each of these areas from the Biological and Ecological Services; Habitat 


Management and Rehabilitation Services; and Operations, Administration, and Human 


Dimensions groups. This structure and the position descriptions corresponding to these groups 


are described below. 


 


Staff members are linked to the position descriptions and the percentages of time they are 


committed to the Program in the text and tables that follow. Seventeen staff members are 


projected to be working on the Program, fifteen as full-time employees and two as part-time, 


both at 80%. Of the projected seventeen staff members, sixteen are currently on staff and one 


additional staff member will be hired in 2015 to meet the on-going work load of the EDO. This 


individual will be a full time employee, hired in early 2015 to serve as Director of Water 


Resources and lead the Denver office. The Program is the primary focus of Headwaters 


Corporation to a very high degree. Most Headwaters employees work on the Program, and for 


many, the Program is their exclusive focus. Of the projected staff members assigned to the 


Program, eleven are exclusive or functionally exclusive to the Program and six are 80% or more 


on the Program.  Combining these percentages together translates into a staffing level of about 


12.8 Full Time Equivalent staff for the Executive Director’s Office. A Summary Table of this 


information is provided at the end of the text. 


 


In addition to staff, there are contractors that provide Headwaters Corporation legal, payroll, 


accounting, IT, and various forms of operational support on an as-needed basis. These 


contractors are not included in this document.  







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 2 of 12 
 


POSITION DESCRIPTIONS    


EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 


Executive Director (J. Kenny, Ph.D., PE)   


[Full Time /2015 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Responsible for the implementation of the Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 


(Program) as directed by the Governance and Finance Committees.  Provide supervision and 


oversight of the managerial, administrative, and technical support required to accomplish 


Program implementation. Responsible for preparation of annual Program budget and work plan 


with review by the Finance Committee and approval by the Governance Committee, and 


implementation and execution of the actions contained therein. Oversee contractor selection 


process with approval of selection panels established by the Governance Committee.  Oversee 


the management and direction of consultants and contractors. Review invoices for accuracy 


and consistency with work accomplishments and compliance with contracts and amendments. 


Provide a review of Program tasks and periodically report on the status and progress of each 


task to the Governance Committee, Finance Committee, and appropriate Advisory Committees. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 3 of 12 
 


WATER  


Director of Water Resources (TBD, M.S., PE or PH or PG) – in Interim J. Kenny  


[Full Time/2015 projection, 80% of time on Program, position to be filled in first half of 2015]  


Serves as Chief Engineer for the Program. Responsible for implementation of Program Water 


Plan. Develop, revise, and implement Water Action Plan, including securing facilities and supply 


for Short Duration High Flow and reductions in deficit to target flows. Collects and reviews State 


and Federal Depletion Plan reports. Provide primary EDO liaison with Water Advisory 


Committee (WAC). Develops, implements, and maintains programs, systems, and procedures to 


ensure compliance with environmental requirements and Water Action Plan.  Oversees and 


manages water resources contractors from administrative and technical perspectives. 


Independently determines and develops approaches for solutions and obtains management 


approval for implementation. Acts as lead person/subject matter expert and provides 


leadership and direction to technical staff. Assist Executive Director with budget and work plan 


development and management, RFP development, contract development and negotiation, and 


general Program administration. Supervises Senior and Assistant Level Technical Support Water 


Resources staff. 


Areas of Focus: All aspects of planning and implementation of Water Plan, contractor 


procurement and oversight, assistance on annual budget and work plan development, 


coordination with Adaptive Management and Land Plans. 


 


Senior Level Technical Support Water Resources (S. Turner, M.S., PE) 


[Full Time/2015 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Assist the Director of Water Resources in water supply planning and permitting, hydrologic 


modeling, system operations modeling, environmental regulations, data synthesis, report 


writing, and providing technical leadership and quality control review for water resources 


oriented tasks. Provide project management assistance including invoice review, budgeting, 


deadline, quality control, and contract management. Provide support for WAC activities.   


Coordinate with other entities and agencies to clarify expectations and obtain timely 


information transfers. 


Areas of Focus: Water resources project planning and permitting with a systems operations and 


an environmental regulations emphasis. 


 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 4 of 12 
 


Assistant Level Technical Support Water Resources (S. Sartori, B.S., HIT)  


[80% Time/2015 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Assist the Director of Water Resources in water supply planning and permitting, hydrologic 


modeling, consumptive use estimation, conjunctive management operations, system 


operations modeling, water alternatives scoring, and providing technical leadership and quality 


control review for water resources oriented tasks. Provide project management assistance 


including invoice review, budgeting, deadline, quality control, and contract management. 


Provide support for WAC activities.   Coordinate with other entities and agencies to clarify 


expectations and obtain timely information transfers. 


Areas of Focus: Water resources project planning and permitting with water rights and systems 


operations perspective, watershed management, and systems operations modeling. 


 


Assistant Level Technical Support Water Resources (S. Griebling, M.S., EI)  


[Full Time/2015 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Assist the Director of Water Resources in water supply planning; ground water and surface 


water hydrology; hydrologic modeling; consumptive use estimation; wet meadows hydrology; 


hydrologic instrumentation; and providing technical support and quality control review for 


water resources oriented projects and tasks. Provide project management support including 


invoice review, budgeting, deadline, quality control, and contract management. Provide 


support for WAC activities.  Coordinate with natural resource and regulatory agencies to clarify 


rules and obtain timely permit approvals. 


Areas of Focus: Water resources project planning and permitting with a focus on surface 


water/ground water interactions and modeling. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 5 of 12 
 


LAND 


Director of Acquisitions (B. Sackett, B.S., Certified Real Estate Broker & 


Appraiser) 


[Full Time /2015 projection, 90% of the time on the Program] 


Responsible for implementation of the Land Plan including all aspects of the acquisition of 


Program lands. Responsible for Program adherence with the Good Neighbor Policy. Provide 


primary EDO liaison with Land Advisory Committee (LAC). Establishes initial contact with 


landowners, evaluates landowner interest in selling, easements, or leasing the land, arranges 


for title search and surveys of land parcel, oversees the team that evaluates each parcel of land 


and reports on land. Presents recommended land parcels to Governance Committee and, if 


approved, contacts appraisers and arranges for appraisals. Lead negotiations for land 


acquisition and coordinate with legal counsel, Nebraska Community Foundation, and Platte 


River Recovery Implementation Foundation during acquisition process. Assist in development 


of Land Management Plans. Assist Executive Director and Director of Water Resources in 


evaluation and negotiation for water. Assist Executive Director with budget and work plan 


development and management, RFP development, contract development and negotiation, and 


general Program administration. 


Areas of Focus: Land and water acquisition and land management activities, coordination with 


Water and Adaptive Management Plans, assistance on annual budget and work plan 


development. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 6 of 12 
 


ADAPTIVE MANGEMENT 


Director of Natural Resources Decision Support (C. Smith, M.P.A.)  


[Full Time/2015 projection, 90% of the time on the Program]  


Serve as Chief Scientist for the Program. Responsible for implementation of the Adaptive 


Management Plan (AMP), including coordination of all scientific monitoring and research 


activities through the AMP’s Integrated Monitoring and Research Plan. Primary EDO liaison with 


Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and Independent Science Advisory Committee (ISAC). 


Independently determines and develops approaches for solutions and obtains management 


approval for AMP implementation. Acts as lead person/subject matter expert and provides 


leadership and direction to technical staff. Oversees science-related contractors. Develop, 


implement, and maintain programs, systems, and procedures to ensure compliance with 


environmental requirements and Adaptive Management Plan. Assists Executive Director with 


budget and work plan development and management, RFP development, contract 


development and negotiation and general Program administration.   


Areas of Focus: Scientific monitoring and research, all aspects of planning and implementing 


Adaptive Management Plan, contractor procurement and oversight, assistance on annual 


budget and work plan development, coordination with Water and Land Plans.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 7 of 12 
 


TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES 


Biological and Ecological Services 


Director of Biological and Ecological Services (D. Baasch, Ph.D.)  


[Full Time/2015 projection, 100% of the time on the Program] 


 Assist the Director of Natural Resources Decision Support in protocol development and 


experimental design, implementation of experiments, data collection and analysis, and 


oversees the implementation of monitoring and research efforts by Program Staff or 


contractors. Responsibilities include; gathering, compiling and analyzing project-specific data; 


participating in and preparing materials for project meetings and coordinating work flow; field 


sampling/monitoring of soil, water, plants and aquatic or avian species; supervision or direction 


of the work of subcontractors and junior staff; budget tracking; and proposal development 


responsibilities.  


Areas of Focus:   Development and implementation of species oriented monitoring and 


experimental design, data collection and analysis with a strong emphasis on statistical 


techniques. 


 


Assistant Level Technical Support Biological and Ecological Services (T. Hefley, Ph.D.)  


[Full Time/2015 projection, 100% of the time on the Program] 


 Assist the Director of Biological and Ecological Services in protocol development and 


experimental design, implementation of experiments, data collection and analysis with 


emphasis on statistical analyses, and oversee the analyses of monitoring and research data by 


Program Staff or contractors. Responsibilities include; gathering, compiling and analyzing 


project-specific data; participating in and preparing materials for project meetings and 


coordinating work flow; supervision or direction of the work of subcontractors.  


Areas of Focus:   Development and implementation of species oriented monitoring and 


experimental design, data collection and analysis with a strong emphasis on statistical 


techniques. 


 


 


 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 8 of 12 
 


Assistant Level Technical Support Biological and Ecological Services (D. Zorn, B.S.)  


[Full Time/2015 Projection, 100% of the time on the Program] 


Assist in the implementation of experiments; field data collection associated with monitoring 


for species, physical process, and water action plan activities; data collection and analysis; 


instrumentation; participating in and preparing materials for project meetings; implementation 


of land management and public access actions; coordinating work flow and oversight of 


contractors. 


Areas of Focus:   Field implementation of monitoring and data collection, assistance with land 


management and public access, contractor oversight. 


 


Assistant Level Technical Support Biological and Ecological Services (S. Cahis, B.S.)  


[Full Time/2015 Projection, 100% of the time on the Program] 


Assist in the implementation of experiments; field data collection associated with monitoring 


for species and physical process activities; data collection and analysis; participating in and 


preparing materials for project meetings; coordinating work flow and oversight of monitoring 


contractors. 


Areas of Focus:  Field implementation of monitoring and data collection efforts, oversight and 


direction of monitoring contractors. 


 


Habitat Management and Rehabilitation Services 


Director of Habitat Management & Rehabilitation Services (J. Farnsworth, B.S.)  


[Full Time/2015 Projection, 90% of the time on the Program] 


Provide field and office support services to Land, Water, Adaptive Management, and 
Operations staff as required, including the oversight and management of Program staff and 
contractors. Provide to Executive Director review and recommendations of overall processes, 
procedures, database systems, and management systems to improve Program functioning. 
Assist Executive Director with budget and work plan development and management, RFP 
development, contract development and negotiation, and general Program administration.  In 
conjunction with Director of Water Resources and Director of Natural Resources Decision 
Support, provides monitoring and oversight of specific aspects of Water Action Plan and 
Adaptive Management Plan. In conjunction with Acquisitions Director works on land evaluation, 
environmental ranking, and restoration planning. Oversee specific support contractors. 
Supervise the Senior and Assistant Level Technical Support staff and the Senior Land Manager.    







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 9 of 12 
 


 


Areas of Focus: Database Management System development and maintenance, land evaluation, 
land management planning and implementation, experimental design development and 
implementation, contractor/consultant procurement, assistance on annual budget and work 
plan development. 


 


 
Senior Level Technical Support – Engineering (J. Brei, B.S., PE)   


[Full Time /2014 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Provide Field and office support services to Land, Water, Adaptive Management, and 


Operations staff as required. As the staff GIS Specialist, applies knowledge of information 


system principles, spatial data processing function, spatial analysis of topological structured 


data, and computer programming languages and techniques to solve multi-discipline query and 


classification of spatial data. Develops complete GIS databases integrating graphic and database 


information to provide full GIS functionality. Serves as the staff resource for analysis and 


program development with respect to GIS and related applications. Coordinate LiDAR and aerial 


photography acquisition. Oversee database contractor in the development and maintenance of 


Program website and database. Develop habitat restoration designs, plans, and specifications. 


Provide direction and oversight for choke point efforts. Provide contractor oversight during 


construction activities.  


Areas of Focus: LiDAR and aerial photography acquisition, mapping, GIS analysis, Land 


Evaluation coordination, data analysis, habitat rehabilitation design, construction contractor 


oversight. 


 


Assistant Level Technical Support - Engineering (K. Werbylo, M.S., EI)  


[Full Time/2015 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Provide critical linkage between Water Plan and Adaptive Management Plan through hydraulic 


and sediment transport modeling for water supply conveyance and geomorphology aspects of 


Program efforts.  Provide project management assistance including invoice review, budgeting, 


deadline, quality control, and contract management. Provide support for WAC and TAC 


activities.   Coordinate with other entities and agencies to clarify expectations and obtain timely 


information transfers. 


Areas of Focus: Hydraulic modeling, habitat rehabilitation design, surveying, instrumentation, 


and data collection and analysis. 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 10 of 12 
 


Senior Land Manager (T. Tunnell, M.S.) 


[Full Time /2014 projection, 100% of the time on the Program]  


Responsible for the development of land restoration and management plans. Assists Land 


Director in the evaluation of land parcels and provides supervision and oversight of the 


implementation of land-related activities performed by Program Staff and contractors. 


Activities include facility (buildings, fences, and wells), coordination of agricultural (cropping 


and grazing) operations with tenants, development of grassland seed mix and planting 


specifications, coordination of prescribed burns, control of noxious weeds, and oversight of all 


advisors and contractors implementing these activities. 


Areas of Focus: Planning and implementing land management actions, coordination with Platte 


River Management and Enhancement efforts on invasive species control and general channel 


maintenance. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 11 of 12 
 


OUTREACH and OPERATIONS 


Director of Operations, Administration, and Human Dimensions (B. Barron, 


Ph.D., MBA, Licensed Psychologist) 


[Full Time/2014 projection, 80% of the time on the Program]  


Responsible for developing and implementing a Public Information and Outreach effort:  


including identifying target audiences, defining and creating key messages for each audience, 


and developing strategies, materials, and measurements of success. Coordinate with Program 


partners to ensure consistent key messages and coordinated outreach efforts and handle all 


press releases for Program and media contacts for Program contractors. Assist in the 


implementation of public access policies for Program lands. Assist Executive Director in the 


operational aspects of staff management, equipment purchasing, and inventory maintenance 


and control. Supervise Administrative staff. 


Areas of Focus: Program outreach activities and operational aspects of Program functions, 


supervision of administrative staff, assistance on annual budget and work plan development. 


 


Administrative Assistant – clerical (J. Liakos, B.S.)  


[80% Time/2014 projection, 85% of the time on the Program]  


Provide administrative and clerical support services to Executive Director and all Program staff 


members. Responsibilities include; maintaining daily office operations, file maintenance, 


correspondence, scheduling and arranging meeting logistics, maintaining contractor and sub-


contractor contract files, assisting in the processing of contractor payments, answering phones, 


and processing employee and client paperwork. 


Areas of Focus: Clerical, reception, and logistical support aspects of administration. 


 


 


 


 


 


 







2015 HWC Staffing Plan  Page 12 of 12 
 


Summary of Headwaters Corporation Staff Serving as  


Executive Director’s Office Staff and Their Program Roles 


 
Name Title FT/PT % on Program 


J. Kenny Executive  Director FT 100% 


    


WATER    


TBD Director of Water Resources  FT,    
½ year 


80% 


S. Turner Senior Level Technical Support Water Resources FT 100% 


S. Sartori Assistant Level Technical Support Water 
Resources 


PT-
80% 


100% 


S. Griebling Assistant Level Technical Support Water 
Resources 


FT-
80% 


100%  


    


LAND    


B. Sackett Director of Land Acquisition  FT 90% 


    


ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT    


C. Smith Director of Natural Resources Decision Support FT 90% 


    


TECHNICAL SUPPORT     


    


Biological and Ecological 
Services 


   


D. Baasch Director Biological and Ecological Services  FT 100%  


T. Hefley Assistant Level Technical Support– Ecological 
Statistics 


FT  100% 


D. Zorn Assistant Level Technical Support Biology FT 100% 


S. Cahis Assistant Level Technical Support Biology FT 100% 


    


Habitat Management and 
Rehabilitation Services 


   


J. Farnsworth Director of Habitat Management and 
Restoration Services 


FT 90% 


J. Brei Senior Level Technical Support Engineering FT 100% 


K. Werbylo Assistant Level Technical Support Engineering FT 100% 


T. Tunnel Senior Land Manager FT 100% 


    


OUTREACH & OPERATIONS    


B. Barron Director of Operations, Administration, and 
Human Dimensions 


FT 80% 


J. Liakos Administrative Assistant - Clerical PT – 
80% 


85% 


 








 


1 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


2,000              4,000                   6,000                   8,000                   10,000                   12,000                  14,000               


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
The Adaptive Management Plan hypothesizes that Short-Duration High 
Flow (SDHF) releases of 5,000 to 8,000 cfs for three days (50,000 – 
75,000 acre-ft) will build sandbars to an elevation suitable for tern and 
plover nesting. Recent Program analyses of sandbar height and stage-
discharge relationships (in peer review1) indicate that sandbars created 
by SDHF releases will not be suitable given they will be inundated 
during the nesting season in roughly two out of three years.  


                                                           
1 See PRRIP Tern/Plover Habitat Synthesis Chapters 1-6; now in peer review, expected to be 


finalized by March 2015.  


 
 
In the fall of 2013, the Associated Habitat Reach (AHR) experienced a 
natural high flow event exceeding SDHF in magnitude and duration. 
Following that event, two least tern nests were initiated in the channel 
at River Mile 180.6 in May of 2014. Both nests were inundated in June 
during the late-spring runoff at a discharge of approximately 3,000 cfs. 
The Program sandbar height and stage-discharge analysis (Chapter 3) 
predicts sandbars created at RM 180.6 by the fall 2013 event would be 
inundated at 3,400 cfs2.


2 The three-day mean peak discharge for the fall event was 9,100 cfs and channel width at RM 
180.6 is approximately 1,200 ft. The bar height analysis indicated mean sandbar heights of 1.5 ft 
below peak stage. Per Figure 12 (Chapter 3), bars created at a peak of 9,100 cfs in a 1,200 ft 
channel would be inundated at 3,400 cfs.  


Magnitude 


(cfs) 


 


Nest 


Count 


 


Volume 


(ac-ft) 
20,000             60,000                100,000               140,000                180,000               220,000               260,000               


0                            20                                40                              60                                80                                 100          


Tern: 2* 


 Plover: 0 


 


9,100  


 


245,000 


 


BQ #1 – Will implementation of Short-Duration High Flow releases produce suitable tern and 


plover riverine nesting habitat on an annual or near-annual basis? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #1: 
No change from 2013.  Program monitoring and research continue to indicate that SDHF will 
likely not build sandbars to a height suitable for tern and plover nesting with or without 
sediment balance.  Fall 2013 peak flow statistics and 2014 species response provided below: 
 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


*The two tern nests were inundated on 6/10/2014 at a discharge of approximately 3,000 cfs. 


 


 







 


2 


 
 


 


Figure 1. Annual peak flow magnitudes, volumes, and species nesting response for the period of 2007-2014. 


Monetary estimate of flow event volumes assume value of $200 per ac-ft, which is consistent with recent 


Program water acquisitions.  


Overall, there have been six high flow events since Program initiation in 


2007 that have exceeded minimum SDHF magnitude and volume. A 


total of two least tern and one piping plover nests have been initiated 


on sandbars formed or reworked during those events (Figure 1). The 


lack of species response is consistent with Program analyses which 


indicate that flow magnitudes of at least 15,000 cfs would be necessary 


to produce suitably-high sandbar habitat in wide channels selected by 


the species (Chapter 3).  


Answering BQ #1 during the First Increment 
Program staff expect Big Question #1 to be answered with a definitive 
“two thumbs down” in 2015.  The six tern/plover habitat synthesis


chapters now in peer review will serve as the best source for 
synthesized reference data for this question and the results of the 
analyses in those chapters indicate that SDHF will not produce suitable 
tern and plover riverine nesting habitat on an annual or near-annual 
basis in the AHR.  Once peer review is complete, the six chapters will 
be used to develop an expected two thumbs down assessment in 2015 
and the Governance Committee will be presented information 
suggesting that decision-making should move into the final “Adapt” 
stage of adaptive management.


2007: 0 Nests


2008: 0 Nests


2009: 0 Nests


2010: 0 Nests


2011: 1 Plover Nest


2012: 0 Nests


2013: 2 Tern Nests


2014: 0 Nests


0


1,000


2,000


3,000


4,000


5,000


6,000


7,000


8,000


9,000


10,000


11,000


12,000


10,000 100,000 1,000,000 10,000,000


P
ea


k 
D


is
ch


ar
ge


 (
cf


s)


Event Volume (ac-ft)


$2M                                           $20M                                         $200M                             $2B        


Monetary Value of Flow Event Volume


SDHF







 


3 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
Channel narrowing in the Associated Habitat Reach (AHR) has 
historically been episodic, occurring during prolonged periods of 
drought through the expansion of woody vegetation (primarily 
cottonwood) into the formerly active channel3. The latest episode of 
channel narrowing occurred during the drought period of 2001-2007. 
Unlike previous episodes, expansion of an invasive perennial grass 
(Phragmites australis) was the mechanism of narrowing. Since 2008, 
the Program participated in a large-scale phragmites control program 


                                                           
3 Johnson W. Carter. 1994. Woodland expansion in the Platte River, Nebraska: patterns and 
causes. In Ecological Monographs 64(1): 45-84.  


 
 
consisting of annual herbicide treatments and mechanical biomass 
removal.  
 
Past studies1 and Program research4 indicate cottonwood seedlings 
are somewhat susceptible to erosion by peak flows, especially in the 
year they germinate. However, Program scour research indicates 
phragmites is extremely erosion resistant5. This finding is supported by 
analysis of system-scale monitoring data that indicates herbicide


4 PRRIP lateral erosion research. Manuscript in development. 
5 PRRIP vegetation scour research. Manuscript in development. 


BQ #2 – Will implementation of Short-Duration High Flow releases produce and/or maintain 


suitable whooping crane riverine roosting habitat on an annual or near-annual basis? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #2: 
No change from 2013.  A preliminary analysis of Program whooping crane data indicates that 
probability of use is maximized as unobstructed channel width approaches 750 ft. Mean 
unobstructed channel width in the AHR has increased somewhat (340 ft to 480 ft) since 
Program initiation due to the combined effects of a large-scale phragmites control effort, 
mechanical channel maintenance, and natural high flow events exceeding SDHF in magnitude 
and duration. Vegetation scour research and system-scale vegetation monitoring indicate that 
peak flow events alone will not maintain unobstructed channel width if phragmites persists in 
this reach. It is currently not possible to assess the ability of SDHF to maintain suitable channel 
widths in the absence of phragmites.  Unobstructed channels widths following the fall 2013 
high flow event below: 
 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


*AHR – Associated Habitat Reach, PRRIP – PRRIP habitat complexes 


 


 


Mean 
Unobstructed 


Width (ft)* 
 


AHR – 480 


ft 


 
   0                   200                       400                       600                       800                       1,000                      1,200   


PRRIP - 680 







 


4 


 
 


 


Figure 2. Comparison of channel bedforms at River Mile 205 prior to and immediately after the fall 2013 natural 


high flow event. Note the persistence of previously existing vegetated bedforms following the high flow event.  


application, not high flows, has been effective in reducing phragmites 
occurrence in the AHR6.   
 
In order for SDHF releases to maintain unvegetated channel widths of 
750 ft during drought conditions when narrowing occurs, the release 
must be capable of scouring and reworking the entire active channel 
bed. If phragmites persists in the AHR, flow releases alone will almost 
certainly not maintain channel width. In absence of phragmites, the 
proportion of channel reworked by a SDHF release will depend on 
channel topography and the type, density, and age-class of in-channel 
vegetation. As an example, the fall 2013 event occurred at the end of 


                                                           
6 Analysis of 2009-2013 geomorphology and vegetation monitoring data. 


two drought years when much of the channel was colonized by 
vegetation (Figure 2). In wide reaches that were not disked prior to the 
event, the peak flow incised unvegetated portions of the bed but did 
not rework many of the heavily vegetated bedforms.  
 
Answering BQ #2 during the First Increment 
If phragmites persists and is not actively managed, SDHF will almost 
certainly not maintain channel width. If phragmites is adequately 
controlled, conclusively answering this question may require 
implementation and evaluation of multiple SDHF releases under a 
range of antecedent drought conditions.







 


5 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
Program efforts have focused on completion of a pilot-scale sediment 
augmentation study to test augmentation means and methods.  The 
study included evaluation of augmentation via sand pumping at the 
Plum Creek habitat complex and mechanical augmentation at the 
Cottonwood Ranch habitat complex. In total, approximately 180,000 
tons of sediment (80,000 at Plum Creek and 100,000 at Cottonwood 
Ranch) were augmented during the fall of 2012 and spring of 2013.  
 
Study results indicate that mechanical augmentation of sediment via 
island leveling and channel widening will be the most cost-efficient 
and flexible means of augmentation as long as suitable augmentation


 
 
 
 
sites are available. Sand pumping requires less land and provides the 
additional ability to manipulate material gradation. However, 
operational complexity and cost of handling sediment multiple times 
make it uneconomical in most situations. Both augmentation methods 
provide the opportunity for multiple benefits. Mechanical 
augmentation specifically, provides the ability to combine 
augmentation with species habitat actions like channel widening and 
nesting island construction. 
 
The pilot project identified several uncertainties that will need to be 
addressed in the design of a full scale augmentation program:  


BQ #3 – Is sediment augmentation necessary for the creation and/or maintenance of suitable 


riverine tern, plover, and whooping crane habitat? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #3: 
No change from 2013.  System-scale monitoring and modeling strongly suggest that the portion of 
the AHR upstream of Kearney is degradational with an average annual sand deficit on the order of 
100,000 tons. Deficit-related channel incision and narrowing at the upper end of the 
degradational reach has resulted in the channel shifting to a wandering planform with total widths 
on the order of 300 ft. This channel adjustment is expected to slowly progress downstream in the 
absence of sediment augmentation.  
 
The Program conducted a pilot-scale sediment augmentation project in 2012-2103 to test 
augmentation means and methods. Full-scale augmentation will be necessary to evaluate channel 
response. It is expected that augmentation will assist in maintenance of channel width but it is 
unclear whether it will substantially improve width in degraded reaches in the absence of 
mechanical intervention to remove vegetation and widen the channel. 
 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20Final%20Sediment%20Augmentation%20Pilot%20Study%20Report.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20Final%20Sediment%20Augmentation%20Pilot%20Study%20Report.pdf





 


6 


 
 


 


Figure 3. Example of mechanical augmentation (left) and sand pumping augmentation (right). Mechanical augmentation provides the ability 


to distribute sediment evenly across the channel. Point-source sand pumping produces limited capacity to entrain augmented material.


 
1) Augmentation to offset the average sediment deficit may not 


provide the desired results. Sediment transport and associated 
deficit are directly related to discharge, which is highly variable. 
Accordingly, annual deficits may range from almost 0 tons to 
400,000 tons depending on hydrologic conditions. 


2) The entire sediment deficit cannot be offset by augmentation at 
the Plum Creek Complex. Sediment transport capacity in the south 
channel at the Plum Creek Complex is limited due to the exclusion 
of natural flows upstream of the J-2 return. As such, augmentation 
downstream of the Overton bridge will be necessary. 


3) Channel conditions throughout the reach affect sediment 
transport capacity and the ability to offset the deficit. For example, 
mechanically-widened reaches like the Cottonwood Ranch 
Complex have a reduced transport capacity and “trap” sediment 
augmented upstream. Reach-scale variability in transport capacity 
may make it difficult to offset the deficit in all reaches and/or


 
require augmentation locations throughout the AHR.  


4) The speed and magnitude of channel response to augmentation is 
still unknown. Minor changes in channel geometry were observed 
during the pilot project but long-term augmentation will be 
necessary to better evaluate response.   


 
Answering BQ #3 during the First Increment 
The Program is currently preparing to develop a full-scale sediment 
augmentation design and obtain the necessary permits and 
authorizations. Full scale operations and response monitoring will 
likely begin in 2015.







 


7 


7 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
System-scale geomorphology and vegetation monitoring data 
demonstrate a statistically significant positive relationship between 
total unvegetated channel width and the percent of flow consolidated 
in the main channel. This indicates that consolidating flow may 
increase habitat suitability. However, consultations with the United 
States Corps of Engineers (USACE) indicate they will not authorize any 
consolidation activities that result in a change in side channel 
hydrology or function. Consolidation would, by definition, cause such 
changes. As a result, the Program decided to terminate design of a 
flow consolidation pilot project at the Cottonwood Ranch habitat 
Complex.


 
 
 
Mechanical channel clearing and leveling has historically been the 
main tool employed by AHR conservation organizations to improve 
and maintain in-channel habitat suitability. It has been necessary, in 
part, due to the “vegetation ratchet” effect. As discussed in the BQ#2 
assessment, vegetation-induced channel narrowing in the AHR has 
been episodic, occurring during drought periods. During subsequent 
wet periods with higher peak flows and associated stream power, the 
channel has historically not adjusted back to its previous width. 
 
 


BQ #4 – Are mechanical channel alterations necessary for the creation and/or maintenance of 


suitable riverine tern, plover and whooping crane habitat? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #4: 
No change from 2013.  Two types of mechanical channel alterations are contemplated in the 
Adaptive Management Plan. The first, flow consolidation, has been abandoned as a feasible 
management action due to legal and permitting constraints. The second type, channel clearing 
and leveling, has been ongoing in the AHR since the early 1980s. Past studies and Program 
research and monitoring indicate that SDHF will not substantially improve habitat suitability in 
the absence of channel clearing and leveling. Conversely, suitable riverine habitat can be 
maintained in the absence of SDHF through the periodic application of mechanical actions like 
island leveling and disking. The proportion of the AHR channel that is in conservation ownership 
and can potentially be mechanically modified and/or maintained is presented below: 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


 


Percent of 


AHR Channel 


 


 All Conservation 


 
   0%                         20%                            40%                            60%                             80%                             100%                      


PRRIP 







 


8 


8 


 
This has been dubbed the “vegetation ratchet” effect7. Figure 4 
provides an example of the ratchet effect in Shelton to Wood River 
bridge segment, a reach with little mechanical management.  In 
contrast, mechanically maintained reaches such as Audubon’s Rowe 
Sanctuary in the Minden to Gibbon bridge segment retained habitat 
suitability during drought periods despite, in that case, only conveying 
60% of total river flow (Figure 5).  
 
Overall, conservation organizations control on the order of 40% of the 
main channel length in the AHR with the Program managing 
approximately half of that total. Given the limited potential for SDHF 
to improve habitat suitability in absence of mechanical actions, 
implementation may have little effect in the 60% to 80% of the AHR 
that is either not mechanically managed or is managed by other 
entities. 
 
Answering BQ #4 during the First Increment 
Program staff expect Big Question #4 to be answered with a definitive 
“two thumbs up” in 2015.  Chester Watson, the Program’s special 
advisor in geomorphology, developed a planform management 
manuscript focusing on the issues presented in this assessment. If 
published in a peer reviewed journal, it will be used to develop an 
expected two thumbs up assessment in 2015 and the Governance 
Committee will be presented information suggesting that decision-
making should move into the final “Adapt” stage of adaptive 
management. 
 


 
Figure 4. Reproduction from Program planform management manuscript. Figure 
demonstrates relationship between stream power and channel width in the Shelton 
to Wood River bridge segment 1900-2010.  
 
 


 
Figure 5. Two segment comparison of channel conditions following the drought of 


the 2000s. The mechanically managed Rowe Sanctuary segment (left) retained high 


habitat suitability.  The unmanaged segment in the Grand Island to Chapman bridge 


segment (right) transitioned to an island braided planform during the drought. 


Mechanical clearing and leveling will be necessary to improve width suitability.


                                                           
7 Tal M, Gran K, Murray A, Paola C, and Hicks D. 2004.  Riparian Vegetation as a Primary Control 


on Channel Characteristics in Multi-thread Rivers. Pages 43-58 in Riparian Vegetation and 


Fluvial Geomorphology, Sean Bennett, Andrew Simon, editors. 







 


9 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
First Increment Habitat management efforts implemented by the 
Program to date include, but are not limited to, tree removal and bank 
line disking to increase unobstructed view widths, channel disking and 
widening to increase unobstructed channel widths, and flow releases 
and sediment augmentation to test hypotheses related to increasing 
river braiding and areas of suitable depth for whooping crane roosting. 
 
Though variable, the proportion of the whooping crane population 
documented within the AHR during the spring migration increased


                                                           
8 PRRIP Spring 2014 Whooping Crane Monitoring Report. 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
significantly over the past 14 years (see Figure 6 below).  In spring 
2014, a record number of individuals (41) including four radio-marked 
whooping cranes were documented using the Platte River, both of 
which represent 12.5% of the population.8  
 
Fall use of the Platte River, however, remained fairly constant over the 
past 13 years.9 Comparisons between crane use and Program-defined 
habitat availability indicate a stronger correlation between fall use and 
habitat availability than spring use and habitat availability. 


9 PRRIP Fall 2013 Whooping Crane Monitoring Report. 


BQ #5 – Do whooping cranes select riverine roosting habitat in proportions equal to its 


availability?  


2014 Assessment for BQ #5: 
No change from 2013.  Long-term monitoring and data analyses indicate whooping crane use 
of the AHR increased during spring migration season and remained steady during the fall. We 
observed a record number of whooping cranes within the AHR during the spring 2014 
migration season.  It appears Program-defined habitat availability is more highly correlated 
with whooping crane use of the Platte River during the fall migration season than the spring 
migration season.  
 
 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/Implementation%20of%20the%20Whooping%20Crane%20Monitoring%20Protocol%20-%20Spring%202014.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/Implementation%20of%20the%20Whooping%20Crane%20Monitoring%20Protocol%20%E2%80%93%20Fall%202013.pdf





 


10 


 
 
 


 


Figure 6. Trends (dashed lines) in the proportion (blue line) of the whooping crane population observed on the Platte River during spring (left) and fall (right) 
migration, 2001-2014. Radio-marked whooping cranes not detected are not included. Black lines represent Program-defined suitable in-channel habitat acres 2008-2013 
(spring) or 2007-2012 (fall).  


 
Answering BQ #5 during the First Increment 
Detailed habitat selection analyses are now underway and will be 
complete in 2015.  Program staff expect the results of these analyses 
will provide sufficient evidence to change the assessment for this Big 
Question in 2015.  Subsequent peer review of the analyses, 
publication of related materials, and additional data (from annual 
monitoring, annual habitat availability assessments, the telemetry-
tracking project, and the stopover study) should provide the key 
information necessary to develop a definitive assessment in 2016. 


 
 
 


 


 







 


11 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
The Program and its partners created in-channel (sandbars) and off-
channel (sandpits) nesting habitat to evaluate hypothesized 
relationships between habitat availability and tern and plover use and 
productivity within the Program Associated Habitat Area.  The 
Program created and maintains ~90 acres of off-channel and ~65 acres 
of in-channel nesting habitat for terns and plovers.10  In addition, 
Program partners constructed and/or managed ~60 acres of off-
channel nesting habitat and 25 acres of in-channel nesting habitat.11 
 
                                                           
10 See PRRIP 2012-2013 Tern and Plover Monitoring Report; also relies on provisional 2014 
monitoring data. 


 
 
 
 
 


 
Increases in nesting habitat through Program creation and 
maintenance activities resulted in consistent increases in tern and 
plover use of the Program Associated Habitat Area since 2007. During 
this same timeframe, non-Program habitat availability declined as 
unmanaged sandpit sites were developed or became vegetated and 
unsuitable for tern and plover nesting. We observed a high, positive 
correlation between tern and plover breeding pair counts and habitat 
availability.  Program data also indicate breeding pair counts increase 
at a similar rate as habitat availability. 


11 Ibid. 


                                                                                                                                    


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


BQ #6 – Does availability of suitable nesting habitat limit tern and plover use and reproductive 


success on the central Platte River? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #6: 
No change from 2013.  Long-term monitoring and data analyses indicate there is a strong positive 
correlation between Program-defined suitable nesting habitat and tern and plover breeding pair 
counts within the AHR. During the Program’s First Increment, the growth of tern and plover 
populations on the central Platte River has been highly correlated with increases in habitat 
availability. However, nearly all successful nesting during the First Increment occurred on off-
channel sandpits making for a thin comparison with on-channel island nesting.  
 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%202012-2013%20Tern%20and%20Plover%20Monitoring%20and%20Research%20Report.pdf





 


12 


 
 


 


Figure 7. Tern (left plot) and plover (right plot) Program, non-Program, and total breeding pair counts (solid lines) and Program and non-Program habitat availability, 2007-2014. 


 
We observed significant increases in the numbers of tern and plover 
breeding pairs within the Program Associated Habitats from 2001-
2014.12 Banding data indicate increases in breeding pairs observed to 
date are the result of consistently high use and productivity within the 
Program Associated Habitat Area rather than immigration events or a 
redistribution of birds across multiple systems. 
 
Answering BQ #6 during the First Increment 
Program staff are in the process of conducting breeding pair analyses 
and developing a manuscript for peer review and/or publication that 
likely will be used as key information necessary to warrant a definitive


                                                           
12 Ibid. 


 
two-thumbs up assessment in 2015.


 







 


13  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
The Program and its partners created in-channel (sandbars) and off-
channel (sandpits) nesting habitat to evaluate hypothesized 
relationships between in- and off-channel habitat availability and 
selection of terns and plovers.   Early Program efforts largely focused 
on off-channel nesting sites as flows and permitting challenges 
precluded construction of in-channel nesting islands. Program efforts 
in recent years were directed at maintaining off-channel nesting 
habitat and constructing and maintaining suitable in-channel habitat. 
 
The creation and maintenance of off-channel nesting habitat has


resulted in consistent use and productivity since 2001. During this 
same timeframe, in-channel habitat availability and tern and plover 
nesting and productivity have been sporadic and thus contributed little 
to the maintenance of the central Platte River populations. Despite the 
limited use and productivity of in-channel nesting habitat, we have 
observed significant increases in the numbers of tern and plover 
breeding pairs within the Program Associated Habitats from 2001-
2014. Banding data indicate increases in breeding pairs observed to 
date are the result of consistently high use and productivity at off-
channel nesting sites within the AHR rather than immigration events 
or a redistribution of birds across multiple systems.


BQ #7 – Are both suitable in-channel and off-channel nesting habitats required to maintain 


central Platte River tern and plover populations? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #7: 
New assessment for 2014.  Long-term monitoring and data analyses indicate both in-channel 
and off-channel nesting habitats are not necessary to maintain the central Platte River 
population of terns and plovers. During the Program’s First Increment the increase in tern and 
plover populations on the central Platte River is the result of use and productivity at off-channel 
nesting habitats. River survey and observational data, however, indicate the river is necessary 
as a source of forage for both species. Forage availability is lower on off-channel habitats. 
 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 







 


14 


 
 


 


Figure 8. Annual tern (left plot) and plover (right plot) total, riverine, and sandpit breeding pair counts, 2001-2014. Trend lines (dashed lines) represent 
significant increases in tern and plover breeding pair counts during 2001-2014 with the most substantial increases occurring since inception of the Program. 


 
Efforts to create and maintain suitable in-channel nesting habitat have 
necessarily been opportunistic but fairly extensive. Since 2001, 
breeding pair counts for terns increased nearly 5-fold (21 to 98) while 
plover counts tripled (10 to 30), both of which represent significant 
increases.13  Though populations of both species increased during this 
timeframe, increases of similar magnitude have not been observed 
throughout the species’ ranges. 
 
Though in-channel nesting habitat contributed little to the 
sustainability of both populations, ephemeral islands and river 
channels appear to provide an important source of forage for both 
terns and plovers. The abundant forage base provided by the river 


likely contributed to the high productivity observed on off-channel 
nesting sites since 2001. 
 
Answering BQ #7 during the First Increment 
Without substantial nesting and productivity on Program defined 
suitable in-channel habitat during the upcoming years, further 
evaluations may soon warrant a two-thumbs down assessment for this 
Big Question. The EDO will conduct in- and off-channel habitat 
selection analyses in 2015 and develop a manuscript for peer review 
and/or publication that could be used as key information necessary to 
warrant a definitive two-thumbs down answer next year.


                                                           
13 See PRRIP 2012-2013 Tern and Plover Monitoring Report; also relies on provisional 2014 
monitoring data. 


 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%202012-2013%20Tern%20and%20Plover%20Monitoring%20and%20Research%20Report.pdf





 


15 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 
 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
The EDO used data and results from the USGS Foraging Habits Study 
and a synthesis of forage fish monitoring data14,15 collected as part of a 
protocol implemented by Nebraska Public Power District and Central 
Nebraska Public Power and Irrigation District to assess BQ #8 with 
respect to terns. A draft report formatted for submission to a peer-
reviewed journal is now under review by the TAC and ISAC and will be 
submitted to the Governance Committee for publication approval in 
December 2014.  In the detailed report, we synthesize multiple lines of 


                                                           
14 Initial EDO analysis of forage fish data from NPPD and CNPPID fish monitoring protocol 
implementation. 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
evidence and all available data, including independent data sets 
relating flow, forage fish abundance, foraging behavior, and 
productivity. 
 
Results indicate forage fish abundance increases as flow decreases. 
However, foraging behavior and success were not influenced by flow 
and thus forage fish abundance. We were unable to establish the 
hypothesized link between flow and productivity. Given the high levels 
of productivity observed on the central Platte River, it is unlikely  


15 2011 annual fish population monitoring report from NPPD and CNPPID, as an example. 


BQ #8 – Does forage availability limit tern and plover productivity on the central Platte River? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #8: 
New assessment for 2014.  Synthesis of monitoring data and an intensive Foraging Habits Study 
indicate abundance of forage fish within the central Platte River does not limit tern productivity. We 
were able to establish a negative relationship between flow and forage fish abundance but unable to 
establish a relationship between flow and tern productivity as hypothesized and suspect analyses of 
data linking forage availability and plover productivity would yield similar results.  Given tern and plover 
productivity is high and a majority of confirmed mortalities have been attributed to adverse weather 
and predation, there is no evidence of lack of forage along the central Platte River. Further evaluations 
would involve capturing and weighing tern and plover chicks on multiple occasions to establish a more 
direct link between growth rates and forage abundance; however, Program stakeholders decided these 
additional expenses, efforts, and risk of injury to chicks are not warranted. 
 
 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/FINAL%20USGS%20Foraging%20Habits%20Study%20Report.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%202012%20Forage%20Fish%20Analysis%20Report.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/Fish%20Population%20Studies%202011.pdf





 


16 


 


 
Figure 9. Results from data synthesis examining relationships between flow and forage fish density (left), flow and forage fish catch rates by terns 
(middle), and flow and tern productivity (right). 


 
forage fish abundance, and thus flow, limits tern productivity. 
 
A similar synthesis of data could be developed for plovers; however, 
given results of the Foraging Habits Study and high levels of 
productivity observed to date, there is a complete lack of evidence 
forage abundance limits plover productivity on the AHR.  
 
Further evaluations of BQ #8 would likely entail system-wide, 
intensive, summer-long forage sampling, tern and plover behavioral 
studies, and potentially capturing and weighing chicks on multiple 
occasions to attempt to establish relationships between forage 
abundance, flow, productivity, and long-term survival.  Program 
stakeholders previously indicated additional expenses, efforts, and risk 
of injury to chicks are not warranted as it appears forage abundance 
and reproductive success are adequately high to support central Platte 
River tern and plover populations.  
 


Answering BQ #8 during the First Increment 
Program staff expect Big Question #8 to be answered with a definitive 
“two thumbs down” in 2015.  While this question was noted as 
“answered” in the past, recent policy changes related to peer review 
and publication requirements led to a less-definitive assessment for 
2014.  The forage fish analysis manuscript now being reviewed by the 
TAC and ISAC will serve as the best source for synthesized reference 
data for this question and the results of that analysis indicate that 
forage availability does not limit tern and plover productivity on the 
AHR.  If the GC approves seeking publication and the manuscript is 
accepted for publication, the analysis will be used to develop an 
expected two thumbs down assessment in 2015 and the GC will be 
presented information suggesting that decision-making should move 
into the final “Adapt” stage of adaptive management.  In this case, the 
Big Question and the related priority hypothesis will be considered 
answered and the recommendation will be to focus Program 
resources on other tern and plover uncertainties in the AHR.


  


 







 


17 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
The general conclusion of the Program’s Final Stage Change Study is 
that Program water management activities will not result in 
measurable changes on flows in the lower Platte River and thus will 
result in little change to the amount of habitat available to pallid 
sturgeon.  However, given that short-term connectivity could be 


                                                           
16 The “Alternative Analysis of Program Activities” in the Final Stage Change Study evaluated a 
hydrologic scenario against all six habitat classifications during both the spring (spawning 
period) and the fall (overwintering and upcoming spawning movements). 


problematic under certain, but infrequent, hydrological conditions, 
and assuming the biological significance of habitat connectivity for 
pallid sturgeon16 above 4,000 cfs, the study tool could be used by the 
Program to implement proactive measures (e.g. altering excess-to-
target-flow diversion timing or duration) to prevent potential negative 
impacts on habitat connectivity. 


BQ #9 – Do Program flow management actions in the central Platte River avoid adverse 


impacts to pallid sturgeon in the lower Platte River? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #1: 
No change from 2013.  The final peer-reviewed stage change study approved by the 
Governance Committee is now publicly available and ready for Program use such as evaluating 
possible operational scenarios for the J-2 reregulating reservoir. 
 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/FINAL%20PRRIP%20Stage%20Change%20Study.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/FINAL%20PRRIP%20Stage%20Change%20Study.pdf





 


18 


Protocol/Activity 2014 Status 


1. A summary of existing information on the pallid sturgeon. 


 Objective is to understand the existing knowledge on pallid sturgeon biology range wide, but 
with particular emphasis on the Platte River 


Complete –  
Pallid Sturgeon 


Literature Review 


2. Micro- and macro-habitat use/selection by adult and juvenile pallid sturgeon, relative to 
conditions. 


 Objectives are to: 1) determine what habitats pallid sturgeon use (and select for) in the 
Platte River, and what are the similarities and difference with habitat use and selection in 
other parts of the species’ range; and 2) does use and selection change with changes in river 
conditions, and if so how? 


Not started 


3. Identify the physical effects of subtly different rates of flow (stage and associated elements) over 
time on connection, construction, maintenance, and evolution of pallid sturgeon habitat 
components.  Data need is pursuant to developing appropriate offsets for flow reductions 
stemming from implementation of the Program and New Depletions Plans. 


 Objective is to quantify and identify how the distribution of existing macro- and meso-
habitats change over time and flow conditions. 


Complete –  
Final Stage Change 


Study 


4. Characterization of selected water quality parameters in the lower Platte and tributary 
conditions. 


 Objective is to determine what the range and variation, both spatially and temporally, of 
selected water quality parameters (particularly temperature, turbidity, dissolved oxygen, 
and specific conductivity) are in the lower Platte River under a range of flow conditions, as 
well as the relative contributions of the individual sub-basins. 


Complete –  
Lower Platte River 


water quality 
monitoring 


5. Periodic evaluation and peer review of information. Ongoing 


Table 1.  Pallid sturgeon monitoring and research protocols/activities, from the Adaptive Management Plan, Integrated Monitoring & Research Plan.17 


 
Answering BQ #9 during the First Increment 


Further Program actions for the pallid sturgeon (e.g. pallid sturgeon 


habitat use/selection research18) are squarely a policy decision that is 


at the sole discretion of the Governance Committee (GC).  Some 


Program participants requested development of a manuscript on the 


stage change study for publication in a refereed scientific journal.  In 


March 2014, the GC decided to move forward with several other 


potential manuscripts as publication test cases in 2014.  A decision to 


                                                           
17 Pallid sturgeon item V.K.3.2, Integrated Monitoring and Research Plan (IMRP), Adaptive Management Plan (Page 45). 
18 Ibid. 


move forward on a stage change study manuscript will be re-visited in 


2015.  The GC could also consider additional pallid sturgeon activities 


as described in the Integrated Monitoring and Research Plan (Table 1) 


found in the Program’s Adaptive Management Plan.


 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/Pallid%20Sturgeon%20Literature%20Review.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/Pallid%20Sturgeon%20Literature%20Review.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/FINAL%20PRRIP%20Stage%20Change%20Study.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/FINAL%20PRRIP%20Stage%20Change%20Study.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20Water%20Quality%20Monitoring%20Baseline%20Date%20Summary%20Report%202009,%202010,%20and%202011.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20Water%20Quality%20Monitoring%20Baseline%20Date%20Summary%20Report%202009,%202010,%20and%202011.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20Water%20Quality%20Monitoring%20Baseline%20Date%20Summary%20Report%202009,%202010,%20and%202011.pdf

https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20Attachment%203%20-%20adaptive_management_plan.pdf





 


19  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
Implementation of the Program continues to serve as the Reasonable 
and Prudent Alternative for the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s Final 
Biological Opinion on the Platte River and thus is helping to secure 
“defined benefits for the target species and their associated habitat to 
assist in their conservation and recovery”.19 The Program has met the 
First Increment Land Objective of acquiring and managing 10,000 
acres, is moving forward on water projects like the J-2 reregulating 
reservoir, and is moving toward the final “Adjust” step of adaptive 
management on several key Big Questions and related hypotheses.


                                                           
19 See Page 1 of the Final Program Document, Program Purposes. 


 
 
Through projects like the Whooping Crane Telemetry Tracking Project, 
the Whooping Crane Stopover Study, and synthesis of several lines of 
evidence related to terns and plovers on the AHR including 
comparisons with other river systems, the Program is also actively 
working with parties in other locations to develop assessment 
mechanisms for the significance of the central Platte River in overall 
recovery of the three target bird species.


BQ #10 – How do Program management actions in the central Platte River cumulatively 


contribute to least tern, piping plover, and whooping crane recovery? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #10: 
No change from 2013.  Continued implementation of the Program’s Land Plan, Water Plan, and 
Adaptive Management Plan is considered a contribution toward recovery of the target species.  
The Program also continues to engage with entities in other river systems and locations to 
assess the significance of Program management actions and the resulting bird response on the 
overall populations of all three target species. 
 


Larger Scale Issues – Application of Learning 


 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/Platte%20River%20Recovery%20Implementation%20Program%20Document.pdf





 


20 


 
Answering BQ #10 during the First Increment 
This question was re-worded in 2014 to read “…cumulatively 
contribute…” as recommended by the ISAC.  The ISAC recommended 
this change to ensure the language of the question is consistent with 
Broad Hypothesis S-1 in the Adaptive Management Plan, which reads: 
 


A combination of flow management, sediment management, 
and land management (i.e. Clear/Level/Pulse or FSM) will/will 
not generate detectable changes in the channel morphology of 
the Platte River on Program lands, and/or habitats for 
whooping crane, least tern, piping plover, pallid sturgeon, and 
other species of concern”.20 


 
In 2015, Program staff and the Technical Advisory Committee will work 
with the ISAC to develop a strategy for evaluating the cumulative 
benefits of Program management actions on scales more amenable to 
the scale of Program implementation and the scale of Program 
decision-making. 


                                                           
20 PRRIP Adaptive Management Plan, page 14. 


 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20Attachment%203%20-%20adaptive_management_plan.pdf






 


1 


Adaptive Management on the 
Platte River 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


11/20/2014 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program  
Adaptive Management Plan (AMP)  
2014 “State of the Platte” Report 
(updated primarily with 2013 data) 


 


 
 


Prepared by the Executive Director’s Office of the 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 


4111 4th Avenue, Suite 6 
Kearney, NE  68845 


www.PlatteRiverProgram.org  



http://www.platteriverprogram.org/





 


2 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 
2014 “State of the Platte” 


 
The Platte River Recovery Implementation Program’s (“Program” or “PRRIP”) Executive Director’s Office (EDO) developed this annual document for the 


Governance Committee (GC).  It is intended to serve as a synthesis of Program monitoring data, research, analysis, and associated retrospective analyses to provide 


important information to the GC regarding key scientific and technical uncertainties.  These uncertainties form the core structure of the Program’s Adaptive 


Management Plan (AMP) and are directly related to decisions regarding implementation of management actions, assessment of target species’ response to those 


management actions, how best the Program can spend its resources (money, land, water, etc.), and ultimately the success or failure of the Program. 


 


A “quick reference” assessment for each of eleven “Big Questions” is provided in Table 1 below, followed by a new feature in the 2014 report – individual “Report 


Cards” for each Big Question.  The Report Cards are intended to provide the GC with information that highlights scientific learning since 2013, key conclusions, 


and a forecast of when (or if) the EDO expects each Big Question will be answered during the First Increment.  The Report Cards provide the most succinct summary 


of the status of each Big Question and how Program data is being utilized to evaluate the Big Questions and their underlying priority hypotheses. 


 


The Report Cards are followed by detailed write-up for each Big Question.  Each detailed assessment includes information noting any updates or changes from the 


2013 version.  This document contains a large number of endnotes as a way to identify key documents or data sets that are important to read and understand when 


reviewing this report.  In general, those endnotes include hyperlinks to 


information available in the Public Library section of the Program’s web site.   


 


The 2013 State of the Platte Report included assessments incorporating 


Program data from years 2007-2012.  The 2014 report primarily incorporates 


an additional year of data from 2014, though where noted some observations 


and/or data from 2014 were included to provide context or insight.   
 


With the exception of Big Question #6, 2012 data did not lead to changes in 


the Big Question assessments in 2013.  Of the eleven Big Questions, one 


answer is conclusive (#8), five are trending positive (#3, #4, #6, #9, and #10), 


one is trending negative (#1), and four remain inconclusive and open to 


further investigation (#2, #5, #7, and #11).  As in 2013, assessment of the Big 


Questions in 2014 reveals the Program is on track towards meeting the AMP 


management objectives. 


 


This report was discussed with and reviewed by the Program’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and the Program’s Independent Scientific Advisory Committee 


(ISAC) several times during 2014 and early 2015.  As noted in Appendix A, the ISAC generally agreed with the 2014 Big Question assessments.  Feedback from 


the TAC on the 2014 Big Question assessments is included in Appendix B.  The map below details the Program’s Associated Habitat Area in the central Platte 


River, highlighting Program habitat complexes in the western half of the 90-mile reach (top map) and the eastern half (bottom map).  Program implementation, data 


collection, and analysis described in the 2014 assessments of the Big Questions largely center on management actions taken at Program habitat complexes. 


Figure 1.  Map depicting Program area, including the Associated Habitat Reaches on the central and 
lower Platte River. 







 


3 


 


 


 


  


Figure 2.  Program habitat complexes in the Associated Habitat Reach. 







 


4 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 
2014 “State of the Platte” Report 


Table of Contents 


2014 Big Question Table…………...………………………………………………………………………………………………………………6  


 


2014 Big Question Report Cards………………………………...………………………………………………………………………………..9 


 


Big Question Assessments………………………………………………………………………………......................................................25 


 


Appendix A……………………………………………………………………………………………………....................................................26 


 


Appendix B………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….27 


 


Appendix C………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….28 


 


Appendix D………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….39 


 


Appendix E……………………………………………………………………………………………………....................................................52 


 


Endnotes……………………………………………………………………..................................................................................................55 







 


5 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


2014 “State of the Platte” Report 
 


“Quick Reference” Guide 
To assist the GC with quickly evaluating the 2014 Big Question assessments, the icons below are used to visually summarize the basic conclusion for each question.  


Thumbs up or down indicate a trend in the affirmative or negative and may point to the need to re-evaluate management actions based on collected data and analysis.  


The unknown “character” is used when there is not enough evidence to indicate a trend in either direction and more time is needed to collect appropriate data and 


conduct analyses.  These icons are intended to provide the GC with a quick and visual means to see where the Program stands each year in moving towards resolution 


of the Program’s most significant scientific questions as they relate to management decision-making. 


 


Icon Trend or Answer Explained by Icon 


 


 Big Question and underlying hypotheses answered conclusively in the affirmative 


 Foundational documents, analysis, and other references on which this assessment is based have undergone peer 
review through the PRRIP peer review process and/or publication in refereed journals 


 Governance Committee should consider adjustments to decisions related to PRRIP management actions 


 


 Affirmative answer or trend, but Big Question and underlying hypotheses NOT answered conclusively 


 Assessment can be based on draft documents and analysis, but peer review and/or publication may be pending 


 To the extent possible, consider what information is necessary to change this designation 


 


 Evidence thus far is inconclusive; no affirmative or negative answer/trend to Big Question and underlying 
hypotheses 


 Assessment can be based on draft documents and analysis, but peer review and/or publication may be pending 


 To the extent possible, consider what information is necessary to change this designation 


 


 Negative answer or trend, but Big Question and underlying hypotheses NOT answered conclusively 


 Assessment can be based on draft documents and analysis, but peer review and/or publication may be pending 


 To the extent possible, consider what information is necessary to change this designation 


 


 Big Question and underlying hypotheses answered conclusively in the negative 


 Foundational documents, analysis, and other references on which this assessment is based have undergone peer 
review through the PRRIP peer review process and/or publication in refereed journals 


 Governance Committee should consider adjustments to decisions related to PRRIP management actions 







 


6 


PRRIP Big Questions = What we 
don’t know but want to learn 


Broad Hypotheses1 
Priority 


Hypotheses2 
2012 


Assessment 
2013 


Assessment 
2014 


Assessment 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


1. Will implementation of SDHF3 
produce suitable4 tern and plover 
riverine nesting habitat on an 
annual or near-annual basis? 


PP-1a:  Flows of 5,000 to 8,000 
cfs magnitude in the habitat reach 
for a duration of three days at 
Overton on an annual or near-
annual basis will build sandbars to 
an elevation suitable for least tern 
and piping plover habitat. 


Flow #1 
    


2. Will implementation of SDHF 
produce and/or maintain suitable 
whooping crane riverine roosting 
habitat on an annual or near-
annual basis? 


PP-1b:  Flows of 5,000 to 8,000 
cfs magnitude in the habitat reach 
for a duration of three days at 
Overton on an annual or near-
annual basis will increase the 
average width of the vegetation-
free channel. 


Flow #3, Flow #5 
   


3. Is sediment augmentation 
necessary for the creation and/or 
maintenance of suitable riverine 
tern, plover, and whooping crane 
habitat? 


PP-2:  Between Lexington and 
Chapman, eliminating the 
sediment imbalance of 
approximately 400,000 tons 
annually in eroding reaches will 
reduce net erosion of the river 
bed, increase the sustainability of 
a braided river, contribute to 
channel widening, shift the river 
over time to a relatively stable 
condition, and reduce the potential 
for degradation in the north 
channel of Jeffrey Island resulting 
from headcuts. 


Sediment #1 
   


  


                                                           
1 From the Final Program Document, Adaptive Management Plan (AMP), Broad Hypotheses, Pages 14-17. 
2 From the Final Program Document, Adaptive Management Plan (AMP), Table 2, Pages 70-78.  See Appendix C for the specific language of each Priority Hypothesis listed as well as the associated 


X-Y graph. 
3 Short-Duration High Flows (SDHF) = 5,000-8,000 cfs at Overton for 3 days.  This is the only flow-related management action specified in the AMP. 
4 The term “suitable” is defined by the Program either as a function of habitat suitability criteria developed by the Technical Advisory Committee (see Appendix D) or Department of Interior (DOI) 


target habitat criteria in Land Plan Table 1 (see Appendix E). 



http://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20AMP%20Broad%20Hypotheses.pdf

http://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20AMP%20Priority%20Hypotheses.pdf

http://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%20AMP%20FSM%20and%20MCM%20Management%20Actions.pdf





 


7 


PRRIP Big Questions = What we 
don’t know but want to learn 


Broad Hypotheses 
Priority 


Hypotheses 


2012 
Assessment 


2013 
Assessment 


2014 
Assessment 


4. Are mechanical channel 
alterations (channel widening and 
flow consolidation) necessary for 
the creation and/or maintenance 
of suitable riverine tern, plover, 
and whooping crane habitat? 


PP-3:  Designed mechanical 
alterations of the channel at select 
locations can accelerate changes 
towards braided channel 
conditions and desired river 
habitat. 


Mechanical #2 
   


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 


5. Do whooping cranes select 
suitable riverine roosting habitat 
in proportions equal to its 
availability? 


WC-1:  Whooping cranes that use 
the central Platte River study area 
during migration seasons prefer 
habitat complexes (Land Plan 
Table 1) and use will increase 
proportionately to an increase in 
habitat complexes.  WC-4:  In the 
central Platte River study area, 
whooping cranes prefer conditions 
created by species target flows 
and annual pulse flows. 


WC1, WC3 
   


6. Does availability of suitable 
nesting habitat limit tern and 
plover use and reproductive 
success on the central Platte 
River? 


TP-1:  In the CPR study area, 
terns and plovers prefer/do not 
prefer riverine habitats as 
described in Land Plan Table 1 
and use will/will not increase 
proportionately to an increase in 
habitat complexes. 


T1, P1 
   


7. Are both suitable in-channel and 
off-channel nesting habitats 
required to maintain central Platte 
River tern and plover 
populations? 


TP-2:  The maintenance of tern & 
plover populations in the central 
Platte requires/does not require 
that sandpits & river continue to 
function together to provide 
nesting and foraging habitat.  TP-
3:  Ephemeral river nesting areas 
are/are not needed for long-term 
nesting success of tern & plover. 


TP1 
   


  







 


8 


PRRIP Big Questions = What we 
don’t know but want to learn 


Broad Hypotheses 
Priority 


Hypotheses 


2012 
Assessment 


2013 
Assessment 


2014 
Assessment 


8. Does forage availability limit tern 
and plover productivity on the 
central Platte River? 


TP-4:  Existing river flows do/do 
not provide a sufficient forage 
base throughout the central Platte 
River study reach for populations 
of terns and plovers during the 
nesting season. 


T2, P2 
 


N/A – question 
answered in 


2012  


9. Do Program flow management 
actions in the central Platte River 
avoid adverse impacts to pallid 
sturgeon in the lower Platte 
River? 


PS-2:  Water related activities 
above the Loup River do/do not 
impact pallid sturgeon habitat. 


PS2 
   


Larger Scale Issues – Application of Learning  


10. How do Program management 
actions in the central Platte River 
contribute to least tern, piping 
plover, and whooping crane 
recovery? 


S-3:  Program management 
actions will/will not have a 
detectable effect on target species 
use of the associated habitats. 


S1b 
    


11. What uncertainties exist at the 
end of the First Increment, and 
how might the Program address 
those uncertainties? 


N/A N/A 
   


The Program’s “Big Questions”, associated Broad Hypotheses from the AMP, and associated Priority Hypotheses from the AMP.  







 


9 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
How does this Big Question relate to Program priority hypotheses? 
Based upon the SedVeg model and associated assumptions in the FSM management strategy, it is hypothesized that under a balanced sediment budget, flows of 5,000 to 8,000 cfs 
magnitude for three days (SDHF) will build sandbars to an elevation that is suitable for tern and plover nesting. The Program’s minimum height suitability criterion is 1.5 ft above 
the 1,200 cfs stage and represents the minimum height thought necessary for nest initiation. 
 


What the science says in 2014: 


 Observed sandbar heights in the AHR are somewhat lower than 
was assumed in the original analysis of SDHF performance.  


 Three peak flow events (2010, 2011 & 2013) that exceeded SDHF 
magnitude and duration did not produce sandbar habitat 
exceeding the minimum height criterion. 


 Two out of the total of three nests initiated on natural riverine 
sandbars formed by these peak flow events were inundated during 
the late spring rise, which often occurs during the nesting season. 


 The Niobrara is the only regional river that supports species 
densities that approximate proposed AHR recovery objectives. 


 The wide channels and large sandbars (~30 ac) used by these 
species on the Niobrara River are absent from the AHR.  


 


We estimate with confidence that: 


 Sandbars created by a full SDHF magnitude of 8,000 cfs would be 
0.5 – 1.0 ft lower than the minimum height criterion and would be 
inundated at flows experienced in the AHR during most nesting 
seasons. 


 Flow magnitudes of 11,000 - 15,000 cfs would be necessary to 
produce sandbars exceeding the minimum height criterion. 


 Even at these discharge magnitudes, suitably-high sandbars would 
be small in size and total suitable sandbar area would be well 
below the AMP objective of 10 acres per river mile. 


 The lack of large sandbars in the AHR is likely related to bed 
material grain size and the mode of sediment transport. 
Sufficiently fine sediment is not available to shift the AHR into the 
range observed in the Niobrara


BQ #1 – Will implementation of Short-Duration High Flow releases produce suitable tern 


and plover riverine nesting habitat on an annual or near-annual basis? 


2014 EDO Assessment for BQ #1: 
 Natural high flow events since 2007 have been of suitable magnitude and volume to test the hypothesis 


that SDHF will create suitably-high sandbars (see graphic).  


 Full SDHF magnitude of 8,000 cfs is not sufficient to create sandbars that exceed the PRRIP’s minimum 
height suitability criterion and sandbars created by SDHF releases will be inundated during the nesting 
season in most years. I.e., SDHF will produce sandbars with low probability of use and low productivity. 


 An exploratory comparison of regional river segments has identified potentially intractable differences 
between the AHR and segments with greater observed species use. Given these differences, it is highly 
unlikely that the PRRIP can manage AHR flow and sediment to create and maintain channel characteristics 
capable of supporting adequate levels of species use and/or productivity. 


 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 







 


10 


 
 


 


 
First Increment peak flow event magnitudes and volumes in relation to SDHF. Acres of suitable habitat created and species response (nest incidence) are provided for each event. 


 
Remaining uncertainties include: 


 Given variability in channel geometry and discharge, it is difficult to 
accurately identify the portion of the AHR that is in sediment 
balance on an annual basis.   


 The duration/volume of natural high flow events have greatly 
exceeded SDHF. Accordingly, it is not known if SDHF duration is 
sufficient to mobilize existing bedforms and produce new 
sandbars.  


 On-channel species productivity in other regional river segments is 
not well documented.  


 


 
Answering BQ #1 during the First Increment 


 Remaining uncertainties are not critical in answering BQ #1. 


 Six tern/plover habitat synthesis chapters, now in peer review, will 
serve as the best source for synthesized reference data for this 
question. 


 Once peer review is complete, Program staff expect Big Question 
#1 to be answered with a definitive “two thumbs down” in 2015.   


 The Governance Committee will be presented information 
suggesting that decision-making should move into the final 
“Adapt” stage of adaptive management. 







 


11 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
How does this Big Question relate to Program priority hypotheses? 
Based upon the SedVeg model and associated assumptions in the FSM management strategy, it is hypothesized that under a balanced sediment budget flows of 5,000 to 8,000 cfs 
magnitude for three days on an annual or near annual basis (SDHF) will increase the average width of the vegetation-free channel to a width that is suitable for whooping crane 
roosting. Various unvegetated width metrics have been proposed including a minimum suitability criterion of 280 ft and width targets of 750 and 1,150 ft.  
 


What the science says in 2014: 


 The original analysis of SDHF performance did not include the 
exotic strain of phragmites that was primarily responsible for 
channel narrowing during the drought of 2001 – 2007. 


 Directed research indicates that phragmites is extremely erosion-
resistant and SDHF flow depths and velocities are only sufficient to 
scour the very weakest individual plants. 


 Phragmites occurrence and percent cover declined during the 
period of 2009-2012 and were stable in 2013. The reduction is 
positively correlated with herbicide application and not correlated 
with peak flow magnitude or inundation duration. 


 Mean total channel width did not change during the period of 
2009-2013. Mean unvegetated channel width increased in 2010- 
2011 and decreased in 2012-2013.  


 Change in unvegetated channel width was most highly correlated 
with mean discharge during the seed germination season. 


 The fall 2013 natural high flow event, which exceeded SDHF in 
magnitude and duration, did not effectively scour vegetation and 
mobilize bedforms in much of the AHR (see graphic).  


 
We estimate with confidence that: 


 Implementation of SDHF and sediment augmentation in absence 
of active phragmites control efforts will not maintain unvegetated 
channel width and may exacerbate channel incision and vertical 
accretion of vegetated bar forms. 


 If phragmites is actively controlled, flow releases during the 
germination season would likely be the most effective in 
maintaining unvegetated channel width. 


BQ #2 – Will implementation of Short-Duration High Flow releases produce and/or 


maintain suitable whooping crane riverine roosting habitat on an annual or near-


annual basis? 


 
2014 EDO Assessment for BQ #2: 
 Phragmites has been a “surprise” that was not contemplated when SDHF was 


hypothesized to be competent to increase the width of the vegetation-free 
channel. 


 SDHF flow depths and velocities are not capable of eroding mature phragmites 
plants or plant patches.  
Therefore, SDHF will not increase or maintain the width of the vegetation-free 
channel in absence of active phragmites control efforts. 


 In absence of phragmites, flow releases during the germination season would likely 
be the most effective in maintaining unvegetated channel width. 
 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 







 


12 


 


 
Comparison of channel bedforms at River Mile 205 prior to and immediately after the fall 2013 natural high flow 


event. Note the persistence of vegetation (red color) and bedforms following the high flow event. 


Remaining uncertainties include: 


 The use of flow to prevent plant establishment during the 
germination season and/or cause inundation mortality has not 
been well explored to date. 


 The duration/volume of natural high flow events have greatly 
exceeded SDHF. Accordingly, it is not known if SDHF duration is 
sufficient to mobilize existing bedforms even if they are lightly 
vegetated. 


 Baseline assumptions about the frequency and efficacy of future 
phragmites control efforts are currently lacking. 


 


Answering BQ #1 during the First Increment 


 The Program’s directed scour research, now in manuscript 
development, will serve as the best source for synthesized 
reference data for this question. 


 Once the studies are published, Program staff expect Big Question 
#2 to be answered with a definitive “two thumbs down” in 2015. 


 The Governance Committee will be presented information 
suggesting that this Big Question be revised to reflect the ongoing 
necessity of some level of mechanical/herbicide control of 
phragmites.


 







 


13 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


How does this Big Question relate to Program priority hypotheses? 
Based on the SedVeg model and associated assumptions in the FSM management strategy, it is hypothesized that eliminating the existing sediment deficit through sediment 
augmentation is necessary to reduce channel narrowing and incision, contribute to channel widening, and increase the sustainability of a braided channel morphology. 
 


What the science says in 2014: 


 Monitoring strongly indicates portions of the AHR upstream of 


Kearney are degradational with an average annual sand deficit on 


the order of 100,000 tons.  


 The annual sand deficit is highly variable with the majority of the 


degradation occurring during high discharge years. 


 Approximately 180,000 tons of sediment was augmented in 2012-


2013 to test augmentation means and methods. Mechanical 


augmentation through island leveling and channel widening is a 


more cost-efficient and flexible method than sand pumping. 


  Mechanically widened and managed reaches like the Cottonwood 


Ranch habitat complex function as sediment traps that accumulate 


augmented sand.  


 


We estimate with confidence that: 


 Observed narrowing and incision in degradational reaches is a 
strong indicator that it will be difficult to sustain a wide, braided 
channel morphology in those reaches without augmentation. 


 The presence of scour-resistant vegetation severely limits the 
potential for the channel to widen in response to sediment 
augmentation and could exacerbate the rate at which vegetated 
bar forms accrete into islands. 


 Sand augmentation at one or two locations near the upstream end 
of the AHR will likely not have the intended beneficial effect of 
bringing the entire AHR into sediment balance. This due to the 
high degree of variability in channel characteristics and sediment 
transport capacity.  


 
 


BQ #3 – Is sediment augmentation necessary for the creation and/or maintenance of suitable 


riverine tern, plover and whooping crane habitat? 


 


2014 EDO Assessment for BQ #3: 
 Monitoring strongly indicates the reach upstream of Kearney is degradational with an average annual sand 


deficit on the order of 100,000 tons. However, there appears to be a high degree of variability within the reach 
including short segments, like the Cottonwood Ranch reach that are likely aggradational. 


 Sand augmentation is necessary in degradational areas to reduce channel narrowing and incision and increase 
the sustainability of braided channel morphology. 


 Sand augmentation at one or two locations at the upstream end of the degradational reach will not bring the 
entire reach into balance given the high variability in channel characteristics and sediment transport capacity. 


 Sand augmentation in absence of mechanical vegetation removal will not contribute to channel widening and 
could increase the rate at which vegetated bar forms accrete into islands. 
 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 







 


14 


 
 
 


Example of mechanical augmentation (left) and sand pumping augmentation (right). Mechanical augmentation provides 
the ability to distribute sediment evenly across the channel. Point-source sand pumping produces limited capacity to 
entrain augmented material.


 
Remaining uncertainties include: 


 Annual deficits may range from almost 0 tons in drought years to 
400,000 tons in high-discharge years. It is not known if the entire 
deficit can be offset during high-discharge years. 


 It is not known how the variability in channel characteristics and 
sediment transport capacity will affect the number and location of 
sediment augmentation sites. 


 The speed and magnitude of channel response to augmentation is 
still unknown. Minor changes in channel geometry were observed 
during the pilot project but long-term augmentation will be 
necessary to better evaluate response. 


Answering BQ #1 during the First Increment 


 The Program is currently preparing to develop a full scale sediment 
augmentation design and obtain the necessary permits and 
authorizations.  


 Full scale operations and response monitoring will likely begin in 
2015.  
 


 
  







 


15 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 
How does this Big Question relate to Program priority hypotheses? 
Based on the SedVeg model and associated assumptions in the FSM management strategy, it is hypothesized that designed mechanical channel alterations like mechanical clearing 
and leveling of islands, channel widening, vegetation clearing from banks are needed to accelerate the creation of, and/or to maintain suitable riverine habitat. 
 


What the science says in 2014: 


 The original analysis of FSM performance assumed that the 


geometry of the AHR would freely adjust to changes in flow and 


sediment and mechanical alterations would accelerate that 


process. 


 The AHR channel has historically not substantially re-widened in 


response to increased discharge and stream power following 


episodes of narrowing during drought periods (see graphic). This 


has been attributed to the vegetation “ratchet” effect. 


 Phragmites is extremely erosion-resistant and SDHF flow depths 


and velocities are only sufficient to scour the very weakest 


individual plants. Ability to scour woody vegetation decreases 


dramatically in the year following seed germination. 


 Mechanically-managed reaches of the AHR are significantly wider 


than unmanaged reaches whether or not flow is consolidated. 


 
We estimate with confidence that: 


 The persistence of scour-resistant vegetation and the lack of re-
widening following previous narrowing events are strong indicators 
that mechanical clearing and leveling will be necessary to create 
unvegetated channels of suitable width. 


 The PRRIP controls approximately 20% of the main channel length 
of the AHR. Conservation organizations control another 20%. PRRIP 
flow and sediment management will likely have little beneficial 
effect in increasing total and/or unvegetated channel width in the 
60% to 80% of the AHR that currently cannot be mechanically 
managed.  


 


BQ #4 – Are mechanical channel alterations necessary for the creation and/or maintenance of 


suitable riverine tern, plover and whooping crane habitat? 


 


2014 EDO Assessment for BQ #4: 
 Peak flows in the AHR are not competent to remove mature woody vegetation 


or erosion-resistant species like phragmites.  


 Mechanical clearing and leveling are necessary to create suitable channel 
configurations and facilitate channel adjustments to changes in flow and 
sediment. 


 Flow and sediment management actions will likely not increase total and/or 
unvegetated channel width in portions of the AHR that are not mechanically 
treated prior to flow releases. 
 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 







 


16 


 


 
Relationship between stream power and channel width in the Shelton to Wood River bridge segment 1900-2010. Increases in peak 
and mean daily stream power during wet cycles in the 1980s and 1990s did not result in channel widening. This is an example of the 
vegetation “ratchet” effect.


 
Remaining uncertainties include: 


 Baseline assumptions about the frequency and efficacy of future 
phragmites control efforts are currently lacking. 


 The frequency of mechanical intervention that will be necessary to 
maintain unvegetated channel widths under various hydrologic 
conditions and/or flow management actions has not been 
evaluated. 


 


Answering BQ #1 during the First Increment 


 The Program is developing a manuscript focusing on planform 
management that will serve as the best source for synthesized 
reference data for this question. 


 One this manuscript is peer reviewed, Program staff expect Big 
Question #4 to be answered with a definitive “two thumbs up” in 
2015.


 







 


17 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
How does this Big Question relate to Program priority hypotheses? 
It is hypothesized that when whooping crane roosting habitat availability increases, the proportion of the whooping crane population using the central Platte River 
and the length of those stays will increase (i.e., roosting habitat is limiting). 
 


What Does the Science Say in 2014? 


 In spring 2014, a record number of individuals (41) including four 
radio-marked whooping cranes were documented using the Platte 
River, both of which represent 12.5% of the population.5  


 Though variable, the proportion of the whooping crane population 
documented within the AHR during the spring migration increased 
significantly over the past 14 years. 


 Fall use of the Platte River remained fairly constant over the past 
13 years.6 


 
                                                           
5 PRRIP Spring 2014 Whooping Crane Monitoring Report. 


We can say with confidence 


 Program habitat management efforts have been implemented to 
increase whooping cranes use of the Program Associated Habitat 
Area and include tree removal, bank line and channel disking and 
widening, flow releases, sediment augmentation and wet meadow 
creation and maintenance.  


 Whooping crane use (proportion of the population and crane use 
days) of the Platte River during spring has increased significantly 
since 2001. 


6 PRRIP Fall 2013 Whooping Crane Monitoring Report. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


BQ #5 – Do whooping cranes select riverine roosting habitat in proportions equal to its 


availability? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #5: 
 We observed a record number of whooping cranes within the 


AHR during the spring 2014 migration season.   


 Long-term monitoring and data analyses indicate whooping 
crane use of the AHR increased during spring migration season 
and remained steady during the fall.  


 
 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 







 


18 


 
 
 


 


Figure 6. Trends (dashed lines) in the proportion (blue line) of the whooping crane population observed on the Platte River during spring (left) and fall (right) migration, 2001-2014. 
Radio-marked whooping cranes not detected are not included. Black lines represent Program-defined suitable in-channel habitat acres 2008-2013 (spring) or 2007-2012 (fall). 


 
Remaining uncertainties include: 


 If current levels of roosting and foraging habitat limit whooping 
crane use of the Associated Habitat Reach. 


 If whooping cranes select or avoid wet meadow habitat, palustrine 
wetlands, specific channel characteristics, habitat complexes as 
described in Table 1 of the Program’s Land Plan, or flow. 


 If and what Program management activities influence whooping 
crane use of the Program Associated Habitat Area. 


 If the Program can collect enough of the right data to evaluate all 
Program priority hypotheses with statistical certainty.   


 


Answering BQ #5 during the First Increment 


 Addressing remaining uncertainties will change BQ assessment. 


 Habitat selection analyses will be complete in 2015 and should 
provide evidence to change the assessment of this Big Question.   


 Peer review of data analyses (monitoring, telemetry, and stopover 
study data, habitat availability assessments, and IGERT research) 
should provide information for a definitive assessment by 2017. 


 The Governance Committee will be presented information 
suggesting decision-making should progress to the final “Adapt” 
stage of the adaptive management cycle. 


  


 







 


19 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


How does this Big Question relate to Program priority hypotheses? 
It is hypothesized that when in-channel (sandbars) and off-channel (sandpits) nesting habitat availability increase, tern and plover use and productivity will 
increase (i.e., habitat is limiting). 
 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 


 Off-channel nesting habitat availability has increased. 


 Tern and plover breeding pair counts increase at a similar rate as 
habitat availability does. 


 Increase in numbers of tern and plover breeding pairs is significant. 


 In-channel nesting habitat availability and tern and plover use and 
productivity decreased from 2007-2010 and in-channel habitat 
availability increased in 2013 and 2014. 
 
 


                                                           
7 See PRRIP 2012-2013 Tern and Plover Monitoring Report; also relies on provisional 2014 
monitoring data. 


We can say with confidence: 


 There is a strong, positive correlation between tern and plover 
breeding pair counts and habitat availability. 


 Increases in off-channel habitat has resulted in an increase in 
breeding pairs within the Associated Habitat Reach.7 


 Increases in breeding pairs are the result of high use and 
productivity within the Program Associated Habitat Area. 


 Habitat availability was limiting plover, and possibly tern, use and 
productivity within the Associated Habitat Area. 
 


                                                                                                                                    


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


BQ #6 – Does availability of suitable nesting habitat limit tern and plover use and reproductive 


success on the central Platte River? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #6: 
 Long-term monitoring and data analyses indicate there is a strong positive correlation 


between Program-defined suitable nesting habitat and tern and plover breeding pair counts. 


 Nearly all successful nesting during the First Increment occurred on off-channel sandpits 
making for a thin comparison with on-channel island nesting.  


 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 



https://www.platteriverprogram.org/PubsAndData/ProgramLibrary/PRRIP%202012-2013%20Tern%20and%20Plover%20Monitoring%20and%20Research%20Report.pdf





 


20 


 
 


 
 


 


Figure 1. Tern (left plot) and plover (right plot) Program, non-Program, and total breeding pair counts (solid lines) and Program and non-Program habitat availability, 2007-2014. 


 
Remaining uncertainties include: 


 If current levels of off-channel nesting habitat limits further growth 
and expansion of the plover population within the Associated 
Habitat Reach. 


 How many tern breeding pair current levels of off-channel nesting 
habitat can support. 


 If in-channel nesting habitat can support similar breeding pair 
densities and productivity levels as off-channel nesting habitat has. 


 
 
 


Answering BQ #6 during the First Increment: 


 Remaining uncertainties are not likely to change BQ assessment. 


 Peer review or publication of the tern and plover breeding pair 
manuscript, productivity manuscript, and habitat availability 
assessment results will serve as the best source of information for 
answering this Big Question. 


 Once peer review is complete, Program staff expect Big Question 
#6 will be answered with a definitive “2-thumbs up” in 2015. 


 The Governance Committee will be presented information 
suggesting decision-making should progress to the final “Adapt” 
stage of the adaptive management cycle.


  


 







 


21 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
How does this Big Question relate to Program priority hypotheses?
It is hypothesized that ephemeral, in-channel nesting islands (sandbars) are needed for long-term nesting success of terns and plovers on the central Platte and 
when available, terns and plovers will select sandbars over sandpits for nesting.  It is also hypothesized that tern and plover nesting is more successful on in-
channel than off-channel habitat which could eliminate the need to maintain off-channel habitat.


 
What Does the Science Say in 2014? 
 Since 2007, off-channel nesting habitat has resulted in consistent use 


and productivity. 


 Off-channel nesting habitat has supported 659 tern and 253 plover 
breeding pair and resulted in 652 and 251 fledglings, respectively.  


 Since 2007, in-channel habitat availability and tern and plover 
nesting and productivity have been sporadic. 


 In-channel nesting habitat has supported 22 tern and 12 plover 
breeding pair which resulted in 15 and 21 fledglings, respectively. 


 Tern breeding pairs have increased nearly 5-fold (21 to 98) while 
plover breeding pairs have tripled (10 to 30) since 2007. 


 


We estimate with confidence that: 


 The Program can maintain off-channel nesting habitat in the 
Associated Habitat Reach that terns and plovers use.   


 Tern and plover populations can be maintained at elevated levels 
with current numbers of acres of off-channel nesting habitat. 


 Constructing and maintaining in-channel nesting habitat is difficult.  
 In-channel habitat has not resulted in adequate levels of use and 


productivity to maintain tern and plover populations. 
 The river plays and important role in providing an adequate source 


of forage for terns and plovers. 


 Similar increases have not been observed within the species range.  


 


BQ #7 – Are both suitable in-channel and off-channel nesting habitats required to maintain 


central Platte River tern and plover populations? 


2014 Assessment for BQ #7: 
 Long-term monitoring and data analyses indicate off-channel nesting habitat is adequate for 


maintaining the central Platte River population of terns and plovers.  


 In-channel nesting habitat is not needed to maintain terns and plovers in the Associated Habitat Reach 


 The persistence of, and increases in tern and plover populations on the central Platte River is the result 
of long-term availability of off-channel nesting habitat.  


 Observational data indicate the river provides an abundance of forage for both species which likely 
contributes to high levels of productivity on off-channel nesting sites.  


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 


 







 


22 


 
 


 


Figure 1. Annual tern (left plot) and plover (right plot) total, riverine, and sandpit breeding pair counts, 2001-2014. Trend lines (dashed lines) represent significant 


increases in tern and plover breeding pair counts during 2001-2014 with the most substantial increases occurring since inception of the Program.


 
Remaining uncertainties include: 


 Whether or not in-channel nesting habitat could result in 
similar levels of use and productivity. 


 If the Platte River is critical foraging habitat for survival and 
productivity of terns and plovers within the Associated Habitat 
Reach. 


 Persistence of off-channel nesting habitat if Program 
management actions were to cease. 


 
 
 
 


Answering BQ #7 during the First Increment 


 Remaining uncertainties are not likely to change the BQ 
assessment. 


 Peer review or publication of the tern and plover breeding pair 
manuscript and productivity manuscript will serve as the best 
source of evidence for this question. 


 Once peer review and/or publication is complete, Program staff 
expect Big Question #7 will be answered with a definitive “2-
thumbs down” in 2015. 


 The Governance Committee will be presented information 
suggesting decision-making should progress to the final “Adapt” 
stage of the adaptive management cycle.


 
 


 







 


23 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 
How does this Big Question relate to Program priority hypotheses? 
Priority hypotheses T2 and P2 states that flows less than 800 cfs from May ‒ September limit the number of prey fish for least terns and invertebrates for piping plovers. As a result 
of limited forage availability, population productivity of terns and plovers would be constrained. 
 


What the science says in 2014: 


 If forage availability limits productivity, we expect this would 
impact least tern chicks most severely.  


 Intensive monitoring data collect from 2001‒2013 shows that 
of 471 broods monitored, 362 broods fledged at least one 
chick, 48 resulted in an unknown status and 61 failed.  


 Of the 61 broods that failed, 34 had an unknown cause of 
failure, 8 failed due to weather, and 19 failed due to predation 


 Of the 423 broods that had a known fate (i.e., ‘fledged’ or 
‘failed’), 419 included records of the number of chicks that 
hatched and fledged. These 419 broods produced 947 chicks, 
of which 738 [78%] chicks fledged. 


 Of 419 broods, 315 had fates determined when the flow was 
<800 cfs. These 315 broods produced 703 chicks, of which 550 
[78%] chicks fledged. 


We estimate with confidence that: 


 Productivity, as measure by the percentage of chicks that 
fledge is high within the AHR. 


 Most mortality of least tern chicks can be attributed to 
predation and adverse weather or high-flow events. 


 There is no causal link between flow and invertebrate forage 
populations for piping plovers. Productivity of piping plovers is 
also high.  


 If forage availability does become limiting for populations of 
least terns and piping plovers, intensive nest and brood 
monitoring that is currently planned during the first increment 
should detect increased rates for mortality which would initiate 
revisiting BQ #8. 


BQ #8 – Does forage availability limit tern and plover productivity on the central Platte River? 


 


2014 EDO Assessment for BQ #8: 
 Least tern and piping plover productivity has been high over the period 2001-2014. 


 This high level of productivity has been sustained even in years of extremely low flow. 


 During the time period 2001‒2013, over 78% of least tern chicks fledged when flows were less than 800 cfs. 


 Most nest failures and chick mortalities can be attributed to predation and adverse weather and high-flow events. 


 To date there has been no known chick mortality due to lack of forage. 


 Future monitoring of nests and broods would likely be able to detect mortality due to lack of forage. 


 There is no further research planned to investigate BQ #8   
 


 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 


 







 


24 


 


 
Figure 1. Results from data analysis showing the relationship between flow and tern productivity. Not the grey “+” signs shows 
the proportion of chicks that fledged for each brood (i.e., number of fledglings/number of eggs that hatched).  Note the green 
line shows that most broods experienced flows less than 800 cfs in the 7 days before they fledged or failed. 


 
Remaining uncertainties include: 


 Determining population levels of least tern and piping plovers 
the forage base can support in the AHR. This would involve 
answering the question: At what population size would terns 
and plovers be limited by forage availability?    


 Fates of broods that failed with unknown causes, such as the 
34 least tern broods, that failed over the period 2001‒2013.  


 
 
 
 
 


Answering BQ #8 during the First Increment 


 Remaining uncertainties are not likely to change BQ #8 
assessment. 


 A report or manuscript will be prepared examining the 
productivity of least terns and piping plovers within the AHR. 


 Once peer review is complete, Program staff expect Big 
Question #8 to be answered with a definitive “two thumbs 
down” in 2015.   


 The Governance Committee will be presented information 
suggesting decision-making should move into the final “Adapt” 
stage of adaptive management.


 
 


 


 







 


25 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 
2014 “State of the Platte” Report 


Big Question Assessments 
  







 


26 


 


APPENDIX A 
 


ISAC COMMENTARY ON THE 2014 BIG QUESTION 
ASSESSMENTS  







 


27 


APPENDIX B 
 


2014 TECHNICAL COMMENT AND RESPONSE TABLE  







 


28 


APPENDIX C 
 


TIER 1 PRIORITY HYPOTHESES & ASSOCIATED X-Y 
GRAPHS 







 


29 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


1. Will implementation of 
SDHF produce suitable 
tern and plover riverine 
nesting habitat on an 
annual or near-annual 
basis? 


Flow #1:  ↑ the 


variation between 
river stage at peak 
(indexed by Q1.5 
flow @ Overton) 
and average flows 
(1,200 cfs index 
flow), by ↑ the 
stage of the peak 
(1.5-yr) flow 
through Program 
flows, will ↑ the 
height of sandbars 
between Overton 
and Chapman by 
30% to 50% from 
existing conditions. 


Flow magnitudes and 
channel compilations are 


insufficient to generate bars 
high enough to provide 


habitat for ILT and PP.  Bars 
may become quickly 


vegetated, making them 
poor habitat for target 
species.  Bars can be 


created or maintained by 
mechanical or other means. 


 


 


Q1.5 for a given flow regime in main channel (cfs)


D
iff


e
re


n
ce


 in
 r


iv
e


r 
st


a
g


e
 b


e
tw


e
e


n
 in


d
e


x 
flo


w
 o


f 
1


,2
0


0
 c


fs
 


a
n


d
 Q


1
.5


 p
e


a
k 


flo
w


 b
e


tw
e


e
n


 O
ve


rt
o


n
 a


n
d


 C
h
a


p
m


a
n


 (
ft


)


Increasing the variation between river stage at peak flow (indexed by Q1.5 flow 


at Overton) and average flows (1,200 cfs index flow), by increasing the stage 


of the peak (1.5-yr) flow through Program flows, will increase the height of 


sand bars between Overton and Chapman by 30% to 50% from existing 


conditions, assuming balanced sediment budget.


Flow 1: Increasing river stage variation will 


increase sand bar height


0


Existing channel conditions 


(no mechanical actions)


With proposed balanced 


sediment budget and 


mechanical actions


0.8


1.2


5,000 8,0001,200







 


30 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


2. Will implementation of 
SDHF produce and/or 
maintain suitable 
whooping crane riverine 
roosting habitat on an 
annual or near-annual 
basis? 


Flow #3:  ↑ 1.5-yr Q 


with Program flows will 
↑ local boundary shear 
stress and frequency 
of inundation @ 
existing green line 
(elevation at which 
riparian vegetation can 
establish).  These 
changes will ↑ riparian 
plan mortality along 
margins of channel, 
raising elevation of 
green line.  Raised 
green line = more 
exposed sandbar area 
and wider unvegetated 
main channel. 


Insufficient Program 
flows to adequately 
increase shear stress on 
banks.  Plant mortality 
can be achieved by other 
means. 


 


Flow #5:  ↑ magnitude 


and duration of a 1.5-
yr flow will ↑ riparian 
plan mortality along 
the margins of the 
river.  There will be 
different relations 
(graphs) for different 
species. 


Insufficient Program 
flows to adequately 
increase shear stress on 
banks.  Plant mortality 
can be achieved by other 
means. 


 


 


Flow 3: Increased peak (1.5 yr) flow = raised green line (the 


lowest elevation at which vegetation can establish on river banks and sand 


bars) = more exposed sand bar area and wider unvegetated 


main channel.


Q1.5 in main channel at Overton (cfs)


E
le


va
tio


n 
of


 ri
pa


ria
n 


pl
an


t s
ur


vi
va


l (
gr


ee
n 


lin
e)


 a
bo


ve
 


st
ag


e 
of


 in
de


x 
flo


w
 a


t 1
,2


00
 c


fs
 (f


ee
t)


Increasing the 1.5-yr peak flow regime (indexed by Q1.5 flow at Overton) with 


Program flows will increase the local boundary shear stress and frequency of 


inundation at the existing green line (elevation at which riparian vegetation 


can establish). These changes will increase plant mortality along the margins 


of the channel, raising the elevation of the green line.  A raised green line 


results in more exposed sand bar area and wider unvegetated main channel.


Existing 


channel, no 


mechanical


Proposed 


channel with 


mechanical 


actions


.6?


.1


.8?


.4?


5,000 8,000
1,200


 


Flow #5: Increased magnitude and duration of flow 


increases riparian plant mortality


Flow magnitude needed to remove vegetation


90
%


 ri
pa


ria
n m


or
ta


lity
 o


n 
a 


se
ed


ed
 b


ar
 fo


r a
 g


ive
n 


sp
ec


ie
s


Increasing magnitude and duration will increase riparian plant mortality along 


the margins of the river.  There will be different relations (graphs) for different 


species. 


15 days


1 hr


6 days


1 day


1 yr old


2 yr old


3 yr old


Existing 


Q1.5


Proposed 


Q1.5







 


31 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


3. Is sediment augmentation 
necessary for the creation 
and/or maintenance of 
suitable riverine tern, 
plover, and whooping 
crane habitat? 


Sediment #1:  


Average sediment 
augmentation near 
Overton of 185,000 
tons/yr. under existing 
flow regime and 
225,000 tons/yr. under 
GC proposed flow 
regime achieves a 
sediment balance to 
Kearney. 


Augmentation greater 
than or less than 225,000 
tons/year is needed to 
balance the sediment 
budget and increase 
exposed bar area.  There 
is no sediment 
imbalance.  Exposed bar 
area or occurrence of 
braiding will not be 
affected by increased 
sediment.  Sediment 
balance is insignificant 
except in local instances.  
Satisfactory bar areas 
can be created and 
maintained through 
strictly mechanical 
actions. 


 


 


Average annual sediment augmentation near 


Overton (tons/year)


S
e


d
im


e
n


t 
b


u
d


g
e


t


Sediment augmentation near Overton to 185,000 tons/yr under existing flow 


regime and 225,000 tons/year under the Governance Committee proposed 


flow regime achieves a sediment balance to Kearney.


Sediment 1: Sediment augmentation 


balances the sediment budget.


185,000 t/y 225,000 t/y


Balanced sediment 


budget thresholds 


under existing and 


proposed flow regime


Proposed flow regime


Existing flow regime 


deficit


balanced
Objective


surplus







 


32 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Implementation – Program Management Actions and Habitat 


4. Are mechanical channel 
alterations (channel 
widening and flow 
consolidation) necessary 
for the creation and/or 
maintenance of suitable 
riverine tern, plover, and 
whooping crane habitat? 


Mechanical #2:  


Increasing the Q1.5 in 
the main channel by 
consolidating 85% of 
the flow, and aided by 
Program flow and a 
sediment balance, 
flows will exceed 
stream power 
thresholds that will 
convert main channel 
from meander 
morphology in 
anastomosed reaches, 
to braided morphology 
with an average 
braiding index > 3. 


Higher stream power 
(higher 1.5 yr. Q and/or 
more consolidation of 
side channels) needed to 
convert channel to 
braided morphology.  
Lower stream power will 
convert channel to 
braided morphology. 


 


 


Q1.5 in main channel


Increasing the Q1.5 in the main channel by consolidating 85% of the 


flow, and aided by Program flow and a sediment balance, flows will 


exceed stream power thresholds that will convert the main channel from 


a meander morphology in anastomosed reaches to a braided 


morphology with an average braiding index greater than 3.


Mechanical (channel manipulation) 2: Stream 


power determines braided channel morphology 


(this focuses on channel consolidation rather 


than increased releases)


C
h
a


n
n


e
l S


lo
p


e


Proposed sediment 


regime (balanced 


sediment budget) with 


mechanical actions 


Existing sediment regime 


with no mechanical 


actions


0.00005


0.1


meandering


braiding







 


33 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 


5. Do whooping cranes 
select suitable riverine 
roosting habitat in 
proportions equal to its 
availability? 


WC1:  Whooping 


crane use will increase 
as function of Program 
land and water 
management activities. 


Whooping crane use will 
not increase as function 
of Program land and 
water management 
activities. 


 


WC3:  Whooping 


crane use is related to 
habitat suitability.  The 
prediction of habitat 
suitability for whooping 
crane in channel 
habitat as a function of 
water depth (preferred 
depth?) and channel 
width (define as wetted 
width, open width, 
other?). 


Whooping crane use is 
not related to habitat 
suitability.  The prediction 
of habitat suitability for 
whooping crane in-
channel habitat is not a 
function of water depth 
(preferred depth?) and 
channel width (define as 
wetted width, open width, 
other?). 


 


 


P
ro


p
o
rt


io
n
 o


f 
W


C
 p


o
p
u
la


tio
n
 


u
si


n
g
 c


e
n
tr


a
l P


la
tt


e


a


b


WC 1. Whooping Crane use will increase as function of 


Program land and  management activities.


Program activities


a. The amount of whooping crane use days will increase as Program activities 


increase. 


b. Whooping crane use days will not increase with Program activities.  


Analysis and consideration will be needed to investigate Program activities and non 


Program activities (e.g., Trust land management).  Analysis could also be done on 


a bridge segment basis as well as a system basis.


W
C


 U
se


 d
a
ys


 o
n
 t


h
e
 c


e
n
tr


a
l 


P
la


tt
e


 
WC 3. Whooping crane use is related to habitat suitability


The prediction of habitat suitability for whooping crane in channel 


habitat as a function of water depth and unobstructed channel width. 


FWS Instream flow recommendation for fall and spring whooping 


crane migration season is 2,400 cfs.  Farmer et al. estimates that peak 


suitability is achieved at 1700 cfs.


W
C


 u
s


e


Suitability as a function of water depth and 


channel width (weighted usable area)







 


34 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 


6. Does availability of 
suitable nesting habitat 
limit tern and plover use 
and reproductive success 
on the central Platte 
River? 


T1:  Additional bare 


sand habitat will ↑ 
number of adult least 
terns. 
 
P1:  Additional bare 


sand habitat will ↑ 
number of adult piping 
plovers. 


Bare sand is not 
currently limiting number 
of adults. 


 


 


Amount of bare sand (Acres) 


as measured at 1200 cfs


N
u
m


b
e
r 


o
f 


a
d
u


lt
 l
e
a


s
t 


te
rn


s


300


0


0 1000


Green line is island densities from central Platte constructed islands using only years when 


birds were present on islands densities would be approximately half this if we use all years 


islands were present.


Black line using estimated acres and 96 bird average on 81 acres of sandpits last 4 years


Red line is bare sand not currently limiting so additional acres has no effect.


T1: Additional bare sand habitat will increase the number 


of adult least terns.  


River


Pits


100


200


 


N
u
m


b
e
r 


o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 p


ip
in


g
 p


lo
v
e
rs


125


0
0 350


Green line is island densities from central Platte constructed islands using only years when 


birds were present on islands densities are approximately half this is we use all years islands 


were present.


Black line using estimated acres and 30 bird average on 81 acres sandpits last 4 years


Red line bare sand not limiting so additional acres no effect


P1. Additional bare sand habitat will increase the number of 


adult piping plover.


Amount of bare sand (Acres) 


as measured at 1200 cfs


PitsRiver







 


35 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 


7. Are both suitable in-
channel and off-channel 
nesting habitats required 
to maintain central Platte 
River tern and plover 
populations? 


TP1:  Interaction of 


river and sandpit 
habitat. 


ILT and PP show no 
preference for the river 
over sandpits. 


 


 


Acres of bare sand nesting substrate 


on river


N
u


m
b


e
r 


o
f 
n


e
s
ti
n


g
 p


a
ir


s
 o


n
 r


iv
e


r 
is


la
n


d
s


N
u


m
b


e
r 


o
f 
n


e
s
ti
n


g
 p


a
ir


s
 o


n
 s


a
n


d
p


it
s


As river habitat increases, additional birds will 1) move into the region, 


and birds will continue to use the sandpits at current number or 2) 


move from sandpits to the river.


The relationship between use and location (river, sandpit) may 


indicate a relative preference for nesting location.


TP 1. There is an Interaction of river and 


sandpit habitat.







 


36 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 


8. Does forage availability 
limit tern and plover 
productivity on the central 
Platte River? 


T2:  Tern productivity 


is related to the 
number of prey fish 
(<3 inches) and fish 
numbers limit tern 
production below 800 
cfs from May-Sept. 


Prey fish do not limit tern 
production at 799 cfs or 
tern production is limited 
by summer flows of < 50 
cfs. 


 


P2:  Plover productivity 


is related to the 
number of suitable 
macroinverts and 
macroinverts limit 
plover production 
below 800 cfs from 
May-Sept. 


Macroinverts do not limit 
plover production at 799 
cfs or plover production 
is limited by summer 
flows of < 50 cfs. 


 


Number of Fish


Te
rn


 P
ro


du
ct


iv
ity


Current Conditions


Fish limit tern 


production below 


800 cfs


Fish not limiting


tern productivity 


once past a 


lower threshold


T2. Tern productivity is related to the number of prey fish 


(<3 inches) and fish numbers limit tern production below 


800 cfs from May-Sept.


One of the USFWS target flows is related to fish populations for tern prey base.  If the prey 


base is limiting terns, and flows are released to increase the prey base, tern numbers should 


increase.  If fish numbers are not limiting the tern population, increased numbers of fish will 


not increase tern numbers.


Factors that may limit fish populations include: temperature, nutrients, ambient air 


temperature, solar energy, fish movement, species composition, etc.


800 cfs


Number of Macroinverts


Pl
ov


er
 P


ro
du


ct
iv


ity


Current Conditions


Macroinverts limit 


tern production 


below 800 cfs


Macroinverts not 


limiting plover 


productivity once past 


a lower threshold


P2. Plover productivity is related to the number of suitable 


macroinverts and macroinverts limit plover production 


below 800 cfs from May-Sept.


If the prey base is limiting plovers, and flows are released to increase the prey base, plover 


numbers should increase.  If macroinvert numbers are not limiting the plover population, 


increased numbers of macroinverts will not increase plover numbers.


Factors that may limit macroinvert populations include: temperature, nutrients, ambient air 


temperature, solar energy, species composition, etc.


800 cfs







 


37 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Effectiveness – Habitat and Target Species Response 


9. Do Program flow 
management actions in 
the central Platte River 
avoid adverse impacts to 
pallid sturgeon in the 
lower Platte River? 


PS2:  Program water 


management will result 
in measurable 
changes on flow in the 
lower Platte River. 


Program water 
management will result in 
statistically insignificant 
changes on flow in the 
lower Platte River. 


 


PS 2:  Program water management will result in measurable 


changes on flow in the lower Platte River. 


Program flow management results in measurable change in the lower Platte flows.  


The probability of detecting flow changes in the lower Platte as a result of Program 


water management activities (e.g., new depletions plans, summer flow augmentation) 


is improbable. 


Program pulse flow management will have the greatest chance of resulting in 


measurable changes in the lower Platte.  


Relative flow (cfs) in central Platte due to Program flow 


management


R
e
la


ti
v
e
 f
lo


w
 r


a
te


  
in


 L
o
w


e
r 


P
la


tt
e


Undetectable until a 


higher threshold


Undetectable until a 


lower threshold


Range of Program flow 


management







 


38 


PRRIP “Big Questions” 
Priority 


Hypotheses 
Alternative 
Hypotheses 


X-Y Graphs 


Larger Scale Issues – Application of Learning 


10. Do Program management 
actions in the central 
Platte River contribute to 
least tern, piping plover, 
and whooping crane 
recovery? 


S1b:  Program land 


management 
actions (i.e. 
restoration into 
habitat complexes) 
will have a 
detectable effect on 
target bird species' 
use of the 
associated 
habitats. 


Cannot detect a significant 
effect on indicators. 


 
11. What uncertainties exist at 


the end of the Second 
Increment, and how might 
the Program address 
those uncertainties? 


N/A N/A N/A 


1 


 


S1b  Program land management actions (i.e., 


restoration into habitat complexes) will have a 


detectable effect on target birds species use of the 


associated habitats


Achieving habitat features on Program lands with characteristic 


approximating the guidelines in Table of the Land Plan (Habitat Complexes) 


and the Mgt. Joint Study will be an efficient and biologically effective long-


term land conservation and management strategy on the Platte River for the 


target bird species.  Overall habitat complex approach 


Distribution – 3 complexes distributed throughout study reach


Location – 6,400 ac above Minden; 2,800 ac below Minden


Channel – 2 miles long; 1,150 ft channels (overall 30% increase in channels 
>750 ft); maintained by clear/level/pulse approach  


Wet Meadows – 640 ac per complex (10% increase in central Platte region)


Buffers – Up to 0.5 miles wide but may be variable


Restoration – At least 50% of land would undergo restoration


1


3


2


T
a


rg
e


t 
b


ir
d


 s
p


e
c


ie
s


 u
s


e
 o


f 
th


e
 c


e
n


tr
a


l 
P


la
tt


e


Habitat Complexes


9,200 acres
No detectable change


First Increment


No detectable change


No detectable change







 


39 


APPENDIX D 
 


PRRIP HABITAT SUITABILITY CRITERIA 
 


WHOOPING CRANES 
& 


INTERIOR LEAST TERNS/PIPING PLOVERS  







 


40 


DISCLAIMER: Preliminary Habitat Suitability Criteria were based on an evaluation of Cooperative Agreement and Program 
whooping crane data collected between 2001 and spring 2011 and generally were set to incorporate 90% of whooping 
crane observations.  These criteria are subject to revision based on Program evaluation of future monitoring and research 
data. 


 
PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 
Whooping Crane Habitat Suitability Criteria Descriptions 


Terminology for Quantifying Whooping Crane Habitat Availability 


 Obstruction – Object ≥1.5 meters above ground level at a reference point or the waterline for wetted areas.   


 Unobstructed Channel – Along a line perpendicular to the channel that extends from obstruction to obstruction 


and passes through a reference point, the unobstructed channel is the area that lies between the vegetation lines of 


the island or bank that contain the obstructions that lie on the line and on each side of the reference point.   


 Disturbance Feature – Road, town, residence, out-building, etc. that may influence whooping crane use of an area.  


Bridges are an in-channel disturbance feature only. 


 Benchmark Flows – To be determined by the Program’s Technical Advisory Committee.  Year-1 Assessment will 


be conducted @ 1,700cfs, 2,400cfs, and observed flows. 


Whooping Crane In-channel Minimum Habitat Suitability Criteria (Appendix 1) 


1. Channel Depth ≤8 inches 


2. Suitable Channel Area ≥40% of the channel ≤8 inches or bare sand 


3. Distance to Disturbance Feature ≥160 feet and ≥1,320 feet (¼ mile) from a bridge 


4. Distance to Obstruction ≥75 feet 


5. Unobstructed Channel Width ≥280 feet 


6. Wetted Channel Width ≥250 feet 


7. Unobstructed View Width ≥330 feet 


Channel Depth  


 Definition – Depth of channel from the surface of the water to the bed of the channel at benchmark and observed 


flows.   


 Criterion – Channel areas ≤8 inches deep at benchmark and observed flows are habitat if the areas meet all 


additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Suitable Channel Area  


 Definition – Proportion of the channel ≤8 inches deep or bare sand. 


 Criterion – Areas where ≥40% of the channel is ≤8 inches deep or bare sand at benchmark and observed flows are 


habitat if the areas meet all additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Distance to Disturbance  


 Definition – Distance from a point in any direction to the nearest disturbance feature. 


 Criterion – Areas within individual channels that are ≥160 feet from all disturbance features and ≥1,320 feet (¼ 


mile) from a bridge are habitat if the areas meet all additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Distance to Obstruction  


 Definition – Distance from a point in any direction to the nearest obstruction (Figure 1).   







 


41 


   


 


 Criterion – Areas within individual channels that are ≥75 feet from an obstruction are habitat if the areas meet all 


additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Unobstructed Channel Width  


 Definition – Measured width of the unobstructed channel at benchmark or observed flows (Figure 2).  Unobstructed 


channel width measurements start and end at the vegetated portion of islands or banks containing the obstruction in 


either direction from the reference point (i.e., unobstructed channel width does not extend beyond vegetated bank 


lines).  Unobstructed channel width includes bare sand areas and vegetated sandbars that do not contain an 


obstruction that lies on a line running perpendicular to the channel.   


 


      


 Criterion – Areas with unobstructed channel widths ≥280 feet at benchmark or observed flows are habitat if the 


areas meet all additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria.  


Island  
>1.5m tall 


B
an


k 
>1


.5
m


 t
al


l 


Island <1.5m tall 


Bank  
<1.5m tall 


Bank  
<1.5m tall 


B
an


k 
>1


.5
m


 t
al


l Island  
>1.5m tall 


Island  
>1.5m tall 


Bank  
<1.5m tall 


Island  
<1.5m tall 


Figure 1. Distance to Obstruction 


Figure 2. Unobstructed Channel Width 


Figure 2. Unobstructed Channel Width 







 


42 


Wetted Channel Width  


 Definition – Distance within the unobstructed channel that is covered by water at benchmark or observed flows 


(Figure 3).  Wetted channel width measurements exclude bare sand and vegetated sandbar areas within the 


unobstructed channel. 


   


 


 Criterion – Areas with wetted channel widths ≥250 feet at benchmark or observed flows are habitat if the areas 


meet all additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Unobstructed View Width  


 Definition – Along a line perpendicular to the channel that extends from obstruction to obstruction and passes 


through a reference point, the unobstructed view width is the distance between the obstructions (Figure 4).  


Unobstructed view width includes all island/bare sand, vegetated sandbars, and banks between the first 


obstruction on either side of the reference point. 


 


 


 Criterion – Areas with unobstructed view widths ≥330 feet at benchmark or observed flows are habitat if the areas 


meet all additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Bank  
<1.5m tall 


B
an


k 
>1


.5
m


 t
al


l Island  
>1.5m tall 


Island  
>1.5m tall 


Bank  
<1.5m tall 


Island  
<1.5m tall 


B
an


k 
>1


.5
m


 t
al


l 


Island <1.5m tall 


Bank  
<1.5m tall 


Figure 3. Wetted Channel Width 


Figure 4. Unobstructed View Width 







 


43 


Whooping Crane Off-channel Minimum Habitat Suitability Criteria (Appendix 2) 
1. Area ≤3.5 miles of main channel or ≤2 miles of side channel 


2. Landcover Type and Structure  


i. Corn, soybean, alfalfa, wheat, grassland, wet meadow, and palustrine wetland 


1. Suitable grassland acres determined by visiting a sample of sites 


2. Suitable cropland acres determined by reports of percent of crop fields harvested prior to the migration 


season 


ii.Wet Meadow Criteria 


1. Wet Meadow Working Group (WMWG) identified potential wet meadow areas 


2. Habitat availability assessment contractor classify all grassland types as grassland 


i. Identified grasslands that conform to the Program’s Wet Meadow Habitat Guidelines (Appendix 3) 


and meet all Program WC Minimum Habitat Criteria will be classified as whooping crane wet 


meadow habitat by the habitat availability assessment contractor; however, the WMWG will make 


the final determination of whooping crane wet meadow areas on a site-by-site basis. 


iii. Palustrine Wetland Criteria (Roost Habitat) 


1. ≥5 acres of water area ≤18 inches deep 


2. ≥25% of the water area ≤12 inches deep 


3. at least 1 water area that is 500 feet × 500 feet 


3. Distance to Obstruction ≥75 feet 


4. Unobstructed View Width ≥330 feet 


5. Distance to Disturbance Feature ≥285 feet  


Area  


 Definition – Program Associated Habitat Area   


 Criterion – Areas ≤3.5 miles of the main channel or ≤2 miles of side channel or the Platte River are habitat if the 


areas meet all additional minimum habitat criteria. 


Landcover Type and Structure 


 Definition – Landcover types suitable for whooping crane use   


 Criterion – Areas of corn, soybean, alfalfa, wheat, grassland, wet meadow, and palustrine wetland are habitat if the 


areas meet all additional off-channel minimum habitat criteria.   


o Cropland – Suitable acres of cropland will be determined by reducing the total acres by the proportion of 


each crop type reported to have been harvested prior to 1 November each year. 


o Grasslands – Suitable acres of grassland will be determined by visiting a sample of grassland sites and 


reducing the total acres by the proportion of the sample that were of unsuitable structure for whooping crane 


use.   


o Wet Meadow – Wet Meadow areas will be delineated by the Program’s Wet Meadow Working Group.  


Once an area is classified wet meadow habitat, it will remain wet meadow until management activities 


change the landcover type. 


o Palustrine Wetland – ≥5 acres of water area ≤18 inches deep with ≥25% of the water area ≤12 inches deep 


and at least 1 water area that is 500 feet × 500 feet.  







 


44 


Distance to Obstruction  


 Definition – Distance from a point in any direction to the nearest obstruction (Figure 5).   


 


 


 Criterion – Areas that are ≥75 feet from an obstruction are habitat if the areas meet all additional off-channel 


minimum habitat criteria. 


Unobstructed View Width  


 Definition – Along a line passing through a reference point in any direction, unobstructed view width is the distance 


between obstructions (Figure 6).  Unobstructed view width includes the area between the first obstruction on each 


side of the reference point.     


 


 


 Criterion – Areas with unobstructed view widths ≥330 feet are habitat if the areas meet all additional off-channel 


minimum habitat criteria.  


Figure 6. Unobstructed View Width 


Figure 5. Distance to Obstruction 







 


45 


Distance to Disturbance Feature 


 Definition – Distance from a point in any direction to the nearest human disturbance feature (Figure 7).   


  


 


Criterion – Areas that are ≥285 feet from a disturbance feature are habitat if the areas meet all additional off-channel 


minimum habitat criteria.  


Figure 7. Distance to Disturbance Feature 







 


46 


Appendix 1. Percentiles for in-channel habitat metrics collected at whooping crane roost locations on the central Platte River, 2001 – Spring 2011. 


Metric 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% 100% 


Channel Depth (in) 0.5 1.1 1.7 2.2 3.3 3.9 4.3 4.7 5.2 6.1 6.9 6.9 7.1 7.8 8.6 10.1 10.6 12.1 17.0 21.3 


Suitable Channel Area 19% 38% 45% 50% 54% 59% 64% 67% 68% 73% 79% 81% 86% 90% 94% 96% 97% 99% 100% 100% 


Distance to Obstruction (ft) 46 72 98 118 135 135 138 161 190 197 233 249 292 302 328 394 479 584 630 787 


Unobstructed Channel Width (ft) 212 281 350 390 440 467 521 550 591 620 632 683 714 751 751 813 846 891 950 1207 


Wetted Channel Width (ft) 208 256 290 328 341 370 402 417 473 493 516 553 571 614 646 652 689 781 868 1310 


Unobstructed View Width (ft) 253 331 381 472 530 622 666 722 750 766 810 840 878 920 1031 1092 1175 1175 1237 1537 


Flow (cfs) 94 154 175 220 256 342 427 487 582 698 830 965 1074 1161 1183 1480 1720 2568 3670 4240 


Sandbar Roost Height (in) 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.8 0.8 1.0 1.0 2.0 2.1 2.4 3.4 3.6 4.2 5.2 6.8 8.2 10.2 


Average Distance to Obstruction (ft) 173 215 258 272 290 300 335 376 433 448 490 497 530 554 621 650 791 809 1166 1351 


Channel Openness (acres) 3 4 5 7 8 10 13 14 16 17 20 22 27 31 35 37 47 58 126 241 


Transect Channel Depth (in) 4.3 4.5 5.1 5.7 5.7 6.0 6.6 7.0 7.4 8.2 8.4 8.7 9.6 10.1 10.6 11.5 12.6 14.8 17.2 25.5 


 


Appendix 2. Percentiles for off-channel habitat metrics collected at whooping crane use locations along the central Platte River, 2001 – spring 2011. 


Metric 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% 100% 


Distance to Obstruction (ft) 33 49 82 164 164 197 210 246 322 328 328 328 361 492 656 820 984 1312 1640 4921 


Distance to Disturbance (ft) 105 164 328 328 361 492 656 820 935 984 984 1312 1312 1640 1640 2297 2625 2625 3937 5905 


Habitat Type Channel Sandbar Corn Soybean Alfalfa Wheat Grassland Wet Meadow Palustrine Wetland 


  







 


47 


Appendix 3.  Initial guidelines for classifying Program Wet Meadow Habitat (Revised by the WMWG 2-15-12) 


 


Wet Meadow Habitat Characteristics When to measure 


Location Within 3.5 miles of main channel or 2 miles of a side channel of the Platte River 
During land review 


process 


‘Gold Standard’ acreage  
≥40 acres not less than 0.25-mile from potential disturbance or appropriately 
screened from roads, railroads, occupied dwellings, bridges, etc. 


During land review 
process 


Distance from 
disturbance 


Wet meadow habitat areas for whooping cranes will be ≥285 feet from a potential 
disturbance feature and will conform to the Gold Standard acreage requirements; 
sites evaluated by WMWG on a case-by-case basis 


During land review 
process 


Vegetation composition 
Manage for native prairie grasses and herbaceous vegetation; mosaic of wetland 
(hydrophytic) and upland (non-hydrophytic) plants 


Survey after acquisition, 
after application of 
management, and 
annually thereafter 


Hydrology 
Continuously saturated soils during the WC migration season 2 out of 3 years if 
possible 


Survey after application of 
management and annually 


thereafter 


Water management 
Between February and April, mean monthly groundwater levels are at or above 
the ground surface in swales 25% to 75% of the time 


Survey after application of 
management and annually 


thereafter 


Topography and soils 
Level or low undulating surface with swales and depressions; wetland soils with 
low salinity in swales and non-wetland soils in uplands 


Survey after acquisition 
and after application of 


management 


Flora and fauna 
Supports characteristic aquatic, semi-aquatic, and terrestrial fauna and flora 
(especially aquatic invertebrates, beetles, insect larvae, and amphibians) 


Survey after acquisition, 
after application of 
management, and 
annually thereafter 


Whooping crane habitat 
requirements 


Size – 640 contiguous acres or more when possible  
Unobstructed view area – As far as possible (330 feet = minimum habitat criteria) 
Low vegetative structure area – As much as possible 
Water area – As much as possible while maintaining wet meadow flora and fauna 


During land review 
process then evaluate 


annually 


 







 


48 


DISCLAIMER: These are draft habitat suitability criteria and are subject to revision based on Program evaluation of 
monitoring and research data. 


 
PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 


Tern and Plover Habitat Suitability Criteria Descriptions 


Terminology for Quantifying Tern and Plover Habitat Availability 


 Bare Sand – River island or sandpit site with <20% vegetative cover.  Bare sand areas can be composed of dry 


sand or gravel substrate and nest furniture may be present.  


 Predator Perch – Tree, power line, power pole, etc. ≥10 feet tall that could be used by an avian predator to view 


the potential nesting area. 


Tern and Plover In-channel Minimum Habitat Suitability Criteria 


8. Suitable Nesting Area – ≥1/4-acre sandbar ≥18 inches above river stage @ 1,200cfs. 


9. Channel width – ≥400 feet 


10. Water Barrier – ≥50 feet 


11. Distance to Predator Perch – ≥200 feet  


Suitable Nesting Area  


 Definition – ≥0.25-contiguous acres of bare sand 18 inches above river stage @ 1,200cfs with ≥1.5 acres of exposed 


bare sand within a ¼-mile reach of channel. 


 


 Criterion – all sandbar areas ≥1/4-acre in size and ≥18 inches above river stage @ 1,200cfs are suitable nesting 


habitat if there is ≥1.5 acres of exposed bare sand within a ¼-mile reach of channel and the areas meet all additional 


in-channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Channel Width   


 Definition – Along a line perpendicular to the channel extending through the center of a potential nesting island, 


channel width is the entire open-channel area, including sand, which lies between the vegetation lines of the island 


or bank on each side of the sandbar.   


Figure 1. Suitable nesting area (green) with ≥1.5 acres  


of exposed bare sand within a ¼ mile stretch of channel. 







 


49 


  


 


 Criterion – Sandbar areas in channels ≥400 feet wide at 1,200cfs and observed flows are suitable nesting habitat if 


the areas meet all additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria.  Bare-sand areas within channels <400 feet wide 


contribute to the 1.5 acres of bare sand within a ¼-mile reach of river, but are not suitable nesting habitat. 


 


Distance to Predator Perch  
 Definition – Distance from the edge of potentially suitable nesting habitat in any direction to the nearest potential 


predator perch.   


 


 


Criterion – Sandbar areas ≥200 feet from a predator perch are suitable nesting habitat if the areas meet all additional 


in-channel minimum habitat criteria.  Bare-sand areas <200 feet from a predator perch contribute to the 1.5 acres of 


bare sand within a ¼-mile reach of river, but are not suitable nesting habitat. 


Water Barrier  


 Definition – Width of individual threads of channel, measured perpendicular to flow, that lie between the bank and 


potential nesting habitat (Figure 4). 


Figure 2. Channel width measured perpendicular to flow  


from the center of potentially suitable nesting areas. 


Figure 3. 200-foot buffer around predator perches (red area).   







 


50 


 


 


 Criterion – Sandbar areas with a ≥50-foot contiguous water barrier between each shoreline and edge of bare sand 


are suitable nesting habitat if the areas meet all additional in-channel minimum habitat criteria.  Bare-sand areas 


with a water barrier <50 feet contribute to the 1.5 acres of bare sand within a ¼-mile reach of river, but are not 


suitable nesting habitat.  


≥50 
feet 


≥50 
feet 


≥50 
feet 


Figure 4. Channel width measured as the shortest distances  


across water from the edge of potentially suitable nesting areas  


to the bank lines on each side. 







 


51 


Tern and Plover Off-channel Minimum Habitat Suitability Criteria 


3. Area – ≤3.5 miles of main channel or ≤2 miles of side channel 


4. Minimum Habitat Size – ≥1.5 acres of suitable nesting habitat per site; contributing habitat must be ≥0.25 


acres in size. 


5. Distance to Predator Perch – ≥200 feet 


6. Off-channel sites delineated annually; must contain sand with adjacent water areas 


7. Suitable Nesting Area – Delineated by monitoring crew annually 


Area  


 Definition – Program Associated Habitat Area   


 Criterion – Areas ≤3.5 miles of the main channel or ≤2 miles of side channel of the Platte River are habitat if the 


areas meet all additional minimum habitat criteria. 


Minimum Habitat Size  


 Definition – Total of ≥1.5 acres of conforming habitat per site    


 Criterion – ≥¼-acre patches of dry bare sand and/or gravel are suitable nesting habitat if there is ≥1.5 acres of 


suitable nesting habitat total within a site and the areas meet all additional off-channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Distance to Predator Perch  


 Definition – Distance from potentially suitable nesting habitat in any direction to the nearest potential predator 


perch.   


 Criterion – Bare-sand areas ≥200 feet from a predator perch are suitable nesting habitat if the areas meet all 


additional off-channel minimum habitat criteria.   


Water-Sand Criteria  


 Definition – Off-channel sites will be delineated on an annual basis.  


 Criterion – Sites with sand and adjacent water areas are suitable nesting habitat if the site meets all additional off-


channel minimum habitat criteria. 


Suitable Nesting Area 


 Definition – Delineation of areas within each site that, according to the monitoring crew, are suitable habitat for 


nesting.   


 Criterion – Monitoring personnel will hand delineate suitable nesting areas within sites that are monitored to 


exclude sand and gravel piles and active mining areas that are not conducive to tern and plover nesting.  The 


habitat availability assessment contractor will identify suitable habitat through application of the various filters, 


document spatial extent and availability of habitat identified via image interpretation, and apply the hand-


delineated polygon layer as a final filter to remove unsuitable nesting areas within each site.  







 


52 


APPENDIX E 
 


DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR TARGET HABITAT 
CRITERIA 


 
LAND PLAN TABLE 1  







 


53 


 


Table 1. Target Habitat Complex Guidelines' 


l . Riretine Habitat Characteristics 


Location Between Lexington and Chapman, NE 


Channel area Approximately 2 miles long, I, !50 feet v.~de and includes both sides of the 
river. "Channel area" represents the portion of the river that conducts flow 
and is bounded either by stable banks or permanent islands that obstruct 
view. At low flows, the challllel area includes interc01mected small 
challllels and exposed saud or gravel bars and nou-permanelll islands. 


Water depth A range of depths v.~th approxiutately 40 percent of the chamel area less 
than 0.7-foot deep during whooping crane migration periods 


Wetted width 90 - I 00 percent of channel area inundated during migration periods. 


Water velocity Velocity is variab:e with depth. During whooping crane migration and 
least tern aucl pipi:lg plover nesting seasons, velocity should be less than 4 
utph in shallow ar-~s. 


Sandbars and Non-pemJaUent sandbars and low, non-permanent islands throughout the 
Channel challllel area, high enough to provide dty saud during the temlplover 
Morphology nesting season and free of vegetation that inhibits nesting or creates vis\Jal 


obstructions to whooping cranes. Diverse channel morphology providing a 
variety of submerged saud bars and other ntacrohabitats, including 
bacl.:water areas and side channels intmdated by discharge .. 


Proximity to wet Within 2 miles, but contiguous is preferred. 
meadow forage habitat 
Distance from disnlfbauce For whoopine cranes: In general, not less than 0.5-mile distant or 


appropriately screened from potential disturbances. Potential disnlfbances 
may include roads, railroads, occupied dwellings, bridges or other activities 
that would disnlfb whooping cranes from using a site. 
For l~.st tt'rn/p in inp p1ovt'"f· Pott":ntiat rli~ntrh;anc-P5: s.hmttrl he f':\taht;atM 
case-by-case. In general, not less than 0.25 mile distant, or appropriately 
protec.ted from htlllJaU disturbances. 


Unobstructed View Good visibility upstream, downstream, and across the challlle!. 


Fligln Hazards Overhead lines sbluld be avoided, if possible. Overhead lines tvithiu 0.5 
mile of complex boundaries should be et>alttated during the screening 
process to determine whether marking would be appropriate. 


Secttity Sufficient control to avoid huruau disturbance to target species. 


~e Paries have agreed to use these habitat complex chatactetistics as an initial acquisition, restoration and 
mainte.aance target The states and July 1997 Cooperative AgreemW Land CommitteE continue to disagreE that 
these cbracte.ristics represent the "best" habitat or necessary habitat for the target species, or that the Program will 
be ab!eto sus tam the char actensbcs solely wtth tlow tnillligement. The states and July l !:l~:fl l:oop eratlve .!lgrHment 
Land Advisory Committee believe that an approach based on acquiling and developing habitat with a range of 
characP..ristics is justified. 


December 7. 2005 15 







 


54 


  


2. Wet Meadow Habitat Characteiistics 


Location Within 2 miles of the above-described channel area. 


Size Approximately 640 contiguous acres or more. 


Distance from In general, not less than 0.5-mile distant or appropriately screened from 
Disturbance potential disturbance. Potential disturbances may include roads, railroads, 


occupied dwellings, bridges or other activities that would disturb target 
species from using a site. 


Vegetation Native prairie grasses and herbaceous vegetation, lacking or mostly lacking 
Composition sizable trees and shrubs, occurring in a mosaic of wetland (hydrophytic) 


and upland (non-hydrophytic) plants. 
Hydrology Swales subiiTigated by ground water seasonally near the soil surface and 


by precipitation and surface water, with the root zone of the soil 
continuously saturated for at least 5- 12.5% ofthe growing season. Except 
immediately following precipitation events, higher areas may remain dry 
throughout the year. 


Topography and The topography is generally level or low undulating surface, dissected by 
Soils swales and depressions. Mosaic of wetland soils with low salinity in swales 


and non-wetland soils occulTing in uplands. 
Food Sources Capable of supporting aquatic, semi-aquatic, and teiTestrial fauna and flora 


characteristic of wet meadows; especially aquatic invertebrates, beetles, 
insect larvae, and amphibians. 


3. Buffer Characteiistics 


That portion of a complex used to isolate channel areas and wet meadows 
from potential disturbances. In general, it is up to 0.5 miles wide, but is 
variable depending on topography, screening, and other factors. Buffer 
areas may include an extended wet meadow or channel area, upland 
grassland, pasture, hay land, cropland, palustrine wetland, woodland, 
managed sandpits, or a combination of these and other compatible land 
features. 


December 7, 2005 Land Plan 16 







 


55 


PLATTE RIVER RECOVERY IMPLEMENTATION PROGRAM 
2014 State of the Platte Report Endnotes 


 
 
 
 








  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 1 of 18 
 


 1 


Independent Science Advisory Committee (ISAC) 2 


 3 


Responses to Questions Posed by the Platte River Recovery 4 


Implementation Program (PRRIP) in October 2014 5 


 6 
Islands in Platte River near Elm Creek during high flows, Oct 2, 2013. 7 


 8 


Submitted to 9 


PRRIP Governance Committee  10 


 11 


C/o Dr. Jerry Kenny, Executive Director,  12 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 13 


Headwaters Corporation,  14 


4111 4th Avenue, Suite 6 15 


Kearney, Nebraska 68845 16 


 17 


Prepared by 18 


 19 


ISAC 20 


Mr. David Marmorek, ESSA Technologies Ltd. (Chair) 21 


Dr. Ned Andrews, University of Colorado and USGS 22 


Dr. Brian Bledsoe, Colorado State University 23 


Dr. Adrian Farmer, Wild Ecological Solutions, Fort Collins, CO 24 


Dr. David Galat, University of Missouri (Retired) 25 


Dr. Jennifer Hoeting, Colorado State University 26 


 27 


 28 


November 16, 2014  29 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 2 of 18 
 


The Platte River Recovery Implementation Program (PRRIP or Program) requested written input from the 30 


Independent Science Advisory Committee (ISAC) on six questions. These questions were the focus of 31 


discussions during the ISAC meeting on October 16, 2014 in Omaha, NE, which immediately followed 32 


the Adaptive Management Plan (AMP) Reporting Session on October 14-15, 2014.  To enable the 33 


Program to easily extract ISAC recommendations from our overall discussion of the questions posed to 34 


us, we have put our most important recommendations in blue bolded text. These recommendations are 35 


contained within the context of the overall discussion of each question so that our rationale is clear.  36 


 37 


General Questions 38 


1) Are the 2014 Big Question assessments logical based on your understanding of Program data 39 


and consistent with what you have learned during your involvement with the Program? 40 


Reference Document – 2014 State of the Platte Report Cards 41 


 42 


We have the following high level comments and recommendations on the Big Question (BQ) 43 


assessments:  44 


 45 


 In general, the ISAC likes the new format, and adds the following recommendations: 46 


o the graphic is very important and will be main piece read by the Governance 47 


Committee, so making this graphic scientifically correct and easily understood is 48 


essential 49 


o slider bars should have the key metrics related to each big question (e.g., habitat for 50 


BQ 1, not # nests on third bar) 51 


o include more explanation in assessment caption for slider bars (e.g., relationship to 52 


objectives; showing Short-Duration High Flows (SDHF) on bars, meaning of red 53 


and green) 54 


o you may not need green on some bars, just red (more not always better) 55 


o include report cards at the front of State of the Platte Report so that previous lines 56 


of evidence are not lost, with updates to the State of the Platte report included in the 57 


main report 58 


 With respect to the text included in the report cards (and the overall State of the Platte report) we 59 


recommend that the Program use phrases which distinguish among different levels of 60 


evidence, such as: 61 


o We’re certain of the following…  62 


o We estimate with confidence that… 63 


o Current models predict…  64 


o Remaining uncertainties include… 65 


o Our judgment is that… 66 


o Our predictive ability would be enhanced if… 67 


 68 


The ISAC has the following specific comments on individual assessments of the Big Questions: 69 


 70 


 BQ #1 - Will implementation of Short-Duration High Flow releases produce suitable tern and 71 


plover riverine nesting habitat on an annual or near-annual basis? 72 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: One thumb down now, possibly two thumbs down 73 


after peer review of 6 tern / plover synthesis chapters 74 


o ISAC comments and recommendations:  75 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 3 of 18 
 


 ISAC agrees with 2014 report card conclusions on BQ #1.  76 


 Figure 1 should list the amount of suitable in-river habitat created next to 77 


each point, not the number of nests.  78 


 Including cost on Figure 1 (top x axis) is misleading, since many of the high 79 


flow events were natural, and such high volumes would not have been 80 


purchased; the cost of water can and should be discussed in the text. 81 


 BQ #2 – Will implementation of Short-Duration High Flow releases produce and/or maintain 82 


suitable whooping crane riverine roosting habitat on an annual or near-annual basis? 83 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: Scratchy head; uncertain 84 


o ISAC comments and recommendations:  85 


 Without effective spraying and mechanical actions, SDHF could make things 86 


worse by causing an incised channel and depositing vegetation on existing bar 87 


forms. 88 


 SDHF on its own (as stated in BQ #2) will not be able to produce sufficient 89 


channel widths and suitable roosting habitat for whooping cranes in the Central 90 


Platte River. SDHF may be able to maintain sufficient channel widths, if (and 91 


only if) such flows follow Phragmites control and mechanical actions to remove 92 


vegetation, and SDHF are applied during the germination season.  93 


 We support the Program's proposal to adjust the current rating to 1 thumb down 94 


based on the above comments and the weight of evidence. 95 


 In 2015, the Program should consider revising BQ #2 to BQ #2a: “If applied 96 


after herbicide and mechanical actions to remove vegetation, will SDHF 97 


during the vegetation germination season be able to maintain suitable 98 


whooping crane riverine roosting habitat on an annual or near-annual basis?”  99 


 The USGS telemetry data presented by Aaron Pearse is very relevant to BQ#2. 100 


The report card should describe the 10th percentile and median channel widths 101 


used by satellite-tracked whooping cranes, since these data help to inform the 102 


definition of “suitable” in BQ#2. These values could be included on the slider 103 


diagram.  104 


 The Program should describe a process and timeline for revising habitat 105 


suitability criteria for whooping cranes. First, the Program should 106 


communicate a process and timeline for how they will use telemetry data results, 107 


(e.g., slides 35-43 from Aaron Pearse’s PowerPoint) to evaluate and possibly 108 


refine their minimum habitat use criteria for whooping cranes.  Second, the 109 


program needs to refine its understanding of the relationship between channel 110 


width and suitable habitat.  At this point in time, it isn’t clear whether the cranes 111 


select for channel width or for habitat that meets the use criteria identified by the 112 


Program.  Note that developing habitat that meets the habitat use criteria may be 113 


a consequence of channel width, but could also be achieved by other means.  114 


There may be a mismatch between SDHF creating a 750’ minimum channel 115 


width and the Program’s minimum habitat criteria for cranes. None of the 116 


minimum habitat criteria include channel width (see pg. 76 in 2014 State of the 117 


Platte Report).  The implied assumption of the Program is that creating a 750’ 118 


wide unvegetated channel width will yield all or most of the minimum habitat 119 


criteria.  Is this valid?  Is it being tested? 120 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 4 of 18 
 


 Further ISAC suggestions on vegetation monitoring and habitat suitability are 121 


found at the end of this report in parts d and e (respectively) of section 9) other 122 


ISAC Suggestions. 123 


 The caption for Figure 2 should indicate that pink areas are vegetated. 124 


 125 


 BQ #3 – Is sediment augmentation necessary for the creation and/or maintenance of suitable 126 


riverine tern, plover, and whooping crane habitat? 127 


 128 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: One thumb up. Various complexities noted. 129 


 130 


o ISAC comments and recommendations:  131 


 ISAC generally agrees with 2014 report card assessment of BQ #3, but we think 132 


that sediment augmentation needs to be thought through more carefully. It 133 


appears that sediment augmentation is necessary upstream of Kearney, an area 134 


which is definitely in sediment deficit. The PRRIP plan was to add sediment near 135 


J2 and make the whole Associated Habitat Reach come to sediment balance. 136 


Unfortunately, it appears that large flow events create degradation, which then 137 


requires much more sediment.  138 


 Based on the modelling work by Tetra Tech presented by Bob Mussetter in 139 


Omaha on Oct. 14, it's challenging to determine whether or not the river is in 140 


balance in other areas (i.e., lots of samples required, uncertainty as to whether 141 


survey locations are representative of the overall reach and adequately cover 142 


spatial variability). If a reach were in sediment balance, then by the original 143 


definition of Flow-Sediment-Mechanical treatments (FSM) you would not need 144 


sediment augmentation to create / maintain habitat. Using green LIDAR to assess 145 


changes in channel geometry and aggradation / degradation over time (see ISAC 146 


comment in section 9) should provide better spatial coverage, even though it’s 147 


less precise than data from cross-sections. 148 


 149 


 We recommend addressing sediment augmentation on a small scale rather 150 


than on a 90 mile scale (e.g., in 5 miles below J2 reservoir, using finer 151 


sediment grain size; or at Shoemaker Island). This will be a much more 152 


tractable adaptive management experiment, with stronger spatial and 153 


temporal contrasts, that can be intensively monitored to accurately 154 


determine changes in sediment transport and storage as well as bar 155 


formation. 156 


 157 


 BQ #4 – Are mechanical channel alterations necessary for the creation and/or maintenance of 158 


suitable riverine tern, plover and whooping crane habitat? 159 


 160 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: One thumb up 161 


 162 


o ISAC comments and recommendations: 163 


 In general, we concur with the conclusion on BQ #4 – mechanical channel 164 


alterations are necessary. However, there are some subtleties which need to be 165 


discussed in either the report card or the State of the Platte report, as outlined 166 


below.  167 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 5 of 18 
 


 The required frequency of channel maintenance may be somewhat different for 168 


whooping crane (WC) vs piping plover (PP) and least tern (LT) habitats. 169 


Whooping crane habitat was apparently maintained at Rowe Sanctuary, but it 170 


appears to be much more difficult to maintain piping plover and least tern nesting 171 


islands.   172 


 Is there a “Goldilocks bar height” of mechanically created islands for piping 173 


plovers and least terns– not so high that turtles colonize them, yet high enough to 174 


not be frequently washed away during the nesting season, and low enough to 175 


remain islands (rather than peninsulas) so that birds use them? Or is that difficult 176 


to achieve in most of the Central Platte reaches for reasons outlined in the 177 


synthesis chapters, including flow timing / nesting conflicts, resulting in the need 178 


to apply mechanical treatments annually? What is the persistence of “Goldilocks” 179 


bars?   180 


 If there is no such “Goldilocks bar height” for some reaches, then the answer to 181 


BQ #4 will need to elaborate on the frequency of mechanical channel 182 


alterations required to create and maintain in-river piping plover and least 183 


tern habitat on a sustainable basis in these reaches.   184 


 Minor comments: 185 


 In the section “Answering BQ #4 in the First Increment” the phrase “if 186 


published in a peer-reviewed journal” should be changed to “if 187 


successfully peer-reviewed according to the Program’s peer review 188 


process” (see ISAC 2013 report on the PRRIP).  189 


 The second y-axis in Figure 4 should have units of Watts/m2. This is a 190 


very important figure. 191 


 The caption on Figure 5 states that Rowe Sanctuary retained “high 192 


habitat suitability”. Please clarify whether this is for whooping cranes 193 


only or also for terns and plovers 194 


 195 


 BQ #5: Do whooping cranes select riverine roosting habitat in proportions equal to its 196 


availability? 197 


 198 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: Uncertain – scratchy head 199 


 200 


o ISAC comments and recommendations: 201 


 We understand that the habitat selection study is not yet complete, and so this 202 


conclusion is reasonable at this time.  The assessment should include inferences 203 


from both USGS telemetered birds and local data.   204 


 Once the present crane telemetry results are evaluated, it should be determined 205 


how useful local and telemetry monitoring has been in addressing crane-related 206 


Program Big Questions and if each form of monitoring should be continued, 207 


reactivated, redesigned, or discontinued (if past data are sufficient).   208 


 As stated, the phrasing of BQ #5 apparently refers to the proportion of the total 209 


area that is made up of riverine roosting habitat (i.e., a spatial comparison). This 210 


is subtly different than hypothesis WC-1, which states: “Whooping cranes that 211 


use the central Platte River study area during migration seasons prefer habitat 212 


complexes (Land Plan Table 1) and use will increase proportionately to an 213 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 6 of 18 
 


increase in habitat complexes” [emphasis added].  WC-1 hypothesizes that both 214 


the area of Program habitat complexes and whooping crane use will increase over 215 


time. BQ #5 and WC-1 imply different kinds of data analyses. The Program 216 


should clarify which question they really want to answer – WC-1 or BQ #5 217 


(or both). 218 


 For BQ #5 as stated, if the analysis shows that whooping cranes are selecting 219 


particular habitats and preliminary analyses suggest that they appear to select 220 


managed lands despite using a wide range of habitats).  The Program should first 221 


define a criterion for what constitutes selection (e.g., biologically and statistically 222 


significant differences between use and availability). If such differences are 223 


observed, the Program might reconsider their current ranking.  For example, if 224 


managed lands make up 20% of the area, but have 40% of the cranes and this 225 


mean use is statistically different than availability then the birds are not selecting 226 


Program habitats in proportion to their availability.  227 


 It will be important to explain to the Governance Committee that a 1-thumb 228 


down answer to this BQ (with birds selecting managed lands over other lands) 229 


actually means that the Program efforts to create habitat are effective (a 230 


confusing outcome). Are there other options like rephrasing the question (e.g., 231 


Do whooping cranes select suitable habitat in proportions greater than its 232 


availability?) The percent of the total whooping crane population using the Platte 233 


is a very useful secondary indicator of the suitability of roosting habitats for 234 


whooping cranes in the Central Platte (Figure 6).   235 


 It is important that the Program not equate ‘use’ with ‘preference’.  For example, 236 


if managed lands make up 20% + a confidence interval (CI) of available area, but 237 


cranes use managed lands 40% + CI of the time or 40% + CI of the cranes were 238 


recorded on managed lands, it is incorrect to conclude that they ‘prefer’ managed 239 


lands over other habitats along the central Platte. ‘Preference’ implies selection 240 


of a particular habitat (i.e., any potentially limiting resource like food, habitat, 241 


mates) when ALL suitable habitats are available to choose from.  It is unlikely 242 


that all suitable habitats for migrating cranes are present within the Central Platte 243 


Program Area, thus preference cannot be determined.  In the above example 244 


cranes are ‘selecting’ managed lands, perhaps because they are the most suitable 245 


of the options present within the Program, although they might prefer some other 246 


conditions.  One benefit of the telemetry study is that it provides a larger sample 247 


of available habitats for the cranes to select from and thereby provide the 248 


Program with a more accurate measure of selection.    249 


 Further suggestions on data analyses for BQ #5 are found at the end of this report 250 


in part e of section 9) Other ISAC Suggestions. 251 


 252 


 BQ #6 – Does availability of suitable nesting habitat limit tern and plover use and reproductive 253 


success on the central Platte River? 254 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: One thumb up 255 


 256 


o ISAC comments and recommendations: 257 


 Patterns of change in the Central Platte River are consistent with the hypothesis 258 


that more habitat leads to more birds, but there are alternative explanations which 259 


should be acknowledged and addressed.  260 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 7 of 18 
 


 The above point was discussed in both the October 2013 and May 2014 ISAC 261 


reports, and was presented by the ISAC to the Governance Committee in June 262 


2014 (Figure 1). As stated in the May 2014 ISAC report (page 3, point 6):  263 


“As described in previous ISAC comments (PRRIP 2013 State of the Platte 264 


Report, pg. 46), there are other alternative mechanisms which might explain 265 


the observed patterns of increased nests and breeding pairs, including: 266 


increases in the overall meta-population; decreases in other habitats (e.g., 267 


Lake McConaughy) has caused birds to move to the Central Platte; improved 268 


predator control in off channel sand and water (OCSW) habitats (rather than 269 


increased habitat area) has resulted in improved survival and increased 270 


numbers of nests… The Program should acknowledge these alternative 271 


explanations in the State of the Platte Report and evaluate them to the 272 


greatest degree possible given available data.” 273 


 274 


 We understand that Program scientists “are still working through how to 


acknowledge these alternative explanations” (statement in the document “PRRIP 


Responses to May 2014 ISAC report”).  There isn’t much to work through. The 


State of the Platte report could simply quote or paraphrase text from the October 


2013 or May 2014 ISAC reports as alternative explanations of the observed 


patterns. If alternative explanations are not acknowledged (even if they can’t be 


tested with current data), it will likely be difficult for the published analyses of 


BQ #6 to pass successfully through a peer review. Peer reviewers need to see that 


scientists have openly considered all plausible explanations of observed patterns, 


not only their preferred hypothesis. The ISAC recommends that the Program 


implement our previous recommendations from our October 2013 and May 


2014 reports, and illustrate alternatives using  comprehensive conceptual 


ecological models for each species, as recommended in the ISAC’s 2009 


report (pages 7, 15-18).        


 275 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 8 of 18 
 


 276 


 277 


Figure 1: Illustration of alternative hypotheses to explain increasing numbers of nests and birds 278 


on Program Lands. (Source: ISAC presentation to Governance Committee on June 10, 2014).  279 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 9 of 18 
 


 BQ #7 – Are both suitable in-channel and off-channel nesting habitats required to maintain 280 


central Platte River tern and plover populations?  281 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: One thumb down 282 


 283 


o ISAC comments and recommendations: 284 


 285 


 We agree with the one thumb down assessment. Furthermore, Jason Farnsworth's 286 


very helpful analysis (Table 1) showed that fledging birds on off-channel habitat 287 


is more cost-effective than fledging birds on in-channel habitat.  288 


 Jason’s analysis assumed that the fledge ratio of birds nesting on in-river islands 289 


was equal to fledge ratios on off-channel habitats. The synthesis papers show that 290 


the height of bars and timing of peak flows in the Central Platte unfortunately 291 


increase the risk of nest loss, so in-river habitats likely have lower fledging rates 292 


and higher costs / fledgling than indicated in Table 1. It would be good for Jason 293 


to show a range of costs / fledgling that incorporate a range of reasonable 294 


assumptions about fledgling rates.  295 


 In addition to the metrics in Table 1, it would be helpful to show the cost per 296 


fledgling based on the sum of both terns and plovers. 297 


 298 


Table 1: Comparison of the costs of creating off-channel and in-channel habitat. (Source: Jason 299 


Farnsworth, Land Presentation at 2014 AMP Session)  300 


 301 


 302 


 BQ #8 – Does forage availability limit tern and plover productivity on the central Platte River? 303 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: One thumb down 304 


o ISAC comments and recommendations: 305 


 ISAC agrees with this conclusion, and has comments on the draft journal article 306 


(see more detailed responses below under ISAC question #6).  307 


 The most important finding is that tern fledging does not decline at low flows 308 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 10 of 18 
 


 BQ #9 – Do Program flow management actions in the central Platte River avoid adverse impacts 309 


to pallid sturgeon in the lower Platte River? 310 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: One thumb up 311 


o ISAC comments and recommendations: 312 


 ISAC agrees with this conclusion.  No new information was presented to change 313 


this assessment.   314 


 BQ #10 – How do Program management actions in the central Platte River cumulatively 315 


contribute to least tern, piping plover, and whooping crane recovery? 316 


o Current rating in 2014 report card: One thumb up 317 


o ISAC comments and recommendations: 318 


 ISAC agrees with this conclusion 319 


 The word “How” should be removed from BQ #10, so that the question can 320 


be answered either positively or negatively. 321 


 322 


2) Is the PRRIP (stakeholders, EDO, and contractors) implementing Adaptive Management Plan 323 


management actions, research and monitoring, and data synthesis in a way that facilitates 324 


hypothesis/Big Question testing and evaluation of the FSM management strategy?  325 


 326 


 The ISAC believes that the Program is doing adaptive management as intended in the Adaptive 327 


Management Plan. In both this and previous reports the ISAC has made various recommendations 328 


for improving the design and implementation of actions, as well as monitoring and evaluation 329 


methods. The Program has been very responsive to the ISAC’s recommendations, and such 330 


iterative improvements are a hallmark of rigorous adaptive management. 331 


 Adaptive management involves iterative learning from management actions, research and natural 332 


variability. The Program has been intensively involved in such learning, as evident through the 333 


annual Adaptive Management Plan reporting sessions, and periodic changes in actions, 334 


modelling, monitoring, analyses and conclusions.  335 


 The program is implementing AM as described in the U.S. Department of Interior technical guide 336 


to adaptive management (Williams et al. 2009) and is consistent with other earlier guides to 337 


adaptive management (Holling et al. 1978, Taylor et al. 1997, Sit and Taylor 1998, BC Ministry 338 


of Forests 2000). 339 


 Adaptive management hypotheses can be tested using unexpected natural events as well as 340 


deliberately implemented management experiments (Taylor et al. 1999, Melis et al. 2006). For 341 


example, as described in the ISAC Oct 2013 report (answers to BQ 1), the Program does not need 342 


to have exactly SDHF magnitude and duration of flows to gain knowledge about the efficacy of 343 


SDHF for habitat creation and maintenance. Flows in excess of SDHF have occurred 344 


opportunistically, and where there is sediment balance these events are reasonable tests of SDHF 345 


and provide useful information for BQ 1. Further suggestions on tests of SDHF and geomorphic 346 


monitoring are found at the end of this report in part c of section 9) Other ISAC Suggestions. 347 


 We recommend that the Program concisely document each of the AM steps that have been 348 


completed for each of the Big Questions in each year of the program (conceptually 349 


illustrated in Table 2), including documenting the learning that has occurred from both 350 


planned and unplanned/natural experiments. This would be a valuable synthesis for both the 351 


Platte Program and other large AM programs. To be valuable for Program learning, this 352 


documentation will require a detailed description of exactly how hypotheses were tested, a candid 353 


assessment of the challenges encountered, and various iterations to revise previous steps in the 354 


AM cycle (i.e., the devils are in the details). To lessen the burden of this task, we suggest that the 355 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 11 of 18 
 


EDO go through a first pass at a high level in a concise format, and then evaluate the most 356 


appropriate form and timing for a more detailed description.  357 


 We also advise the Program to conduct periodic evaluations of all existing research and 358 


monitoring programs to assure they are yielding information capable of discriminating 359 


among alternative priority hypotheses that address Big Questions, and revise or eliminate 360 


those that do not. 361 


 362 


Table 2. Conceptual illustration of documenting AM steps completed by the Program for each Big 363 


Question. The arrows in 2012 and 2013 illustrate hypothetical revisions of hypotheses, experimental 364 


designs, monitoring and evaluation.   365 


 366 


Big 
Question 


AM Step 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 


1 1-Assess Step 1.1 Step 1.2    Step 1.3   


 2-Design  Step 2.1 Step 2.2   Step 2.3   


 3-Implement   Step 3.1 Step 3.2     


 4-Monitor   Step 4.1    Step 4.2  


 5-Evaluate   Step 5.1    Step 5.2  


 6-Adjust      Step 6.1   


2          


…          
 367 


 368 


3) Given existing channel conditions and multiple outside influences on performance (e.g. 369 


extensive vegetation encroachment and associated management), how can the Program best test 370 


the hypotheses underlying Big Question #2 and arrive at an answer? 371 


Reference Document – 2014 State of the Platte Report Cards 372 


 373 


 The ISAC’s view is that the range of flows and channel width responses experienced over the last 374 


several years is sufficient to answer BQ #2 and test hypothesis PP-1b. The ISAC supports the 375 


Program's proposal to change the answer to both BQ #2 and hypothesis PP-1b to 1 thumb down. 376 


 Figure 4 in the Big Questions report cards illustrates that SDHF is not sufficient on its own to 377 


increase the width of the vegetation-free channel. SDHF could only work in concert with 378 


Phragmites control (spraying, grazing, drying) and other mechanical actions. It is worth 379 


exploring biological controls on Phragmites including cattle, though we recognize the 380 


challenges of keeping cattle out of the river.  Additional ideas are given here: 381 


http://greatlakesphragmites.net/files/JGilbert-Phrag-talk_April-5-2013.pdf 382 


 The best test of alternative combinations of actions would involve measures of biological 383 


effectiveness, cost effectiveness, and persistence over time. 384 


 385 


4) How should the Program evaluate the “cumulative contribution” of management actions to 386 


target species recovery and thus develop an assessment for Big Question #10? 387 


Reference Document – 2014 State of the Platte Report Cards 388 


 389 


 As stated above, the Program should remove "How" from start of big question 10 since in its 390 


current form the question can’t be answered either positively or negatively. 391 



http://greatlakesphragmites.net/files/JGilbert-Phrag-talk_April-5-2013.pdf





  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 12 of 18 
 


 To answer BQ10, work through cause-effect pathways in conceptual models for each species 392 


(i.e., from implementation of actions to habitat change to biological response measures), 393 


evaluating the likelihood of each step being true, and also examining the likelihood of other 394 


explanations (e.g., Figure 2, Table 3)  395 


 396 


 397 


 398 


Figure 2. Example of a conceptual model that summarizes the likelihood of different causes for observed 399 


changes in a species. The topic illustrated is declines in the productivity of sockeye salmon in the 400 


Fraser River, with twelve hypothesized causes that interact cumulatively to affect different life 401 


history stages (middle part of diagram).  The sockeye conceptual model and possible mechanisms 402 


of change are much more complicated than the Platte conceptual models.  The width and color of 403 


the arrows designates the likelihood of each possible cause (see legend in upper left).  Table 3 404 


shows the same analysis in tabular form. Source: summary presentation of Marmorek et al. 2011.  405 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 13 of 18 
 


Table 3. Tabular representation of the likelihood of different causes for observed changes in a species 406 


(alternative form to summarize the information in Figure 2). Source: Marmorek et al. 2011  407 


 408 


 409 


 410 


5) Are the assumptions, methods, results, and conclusions in the sixth Tern and Plover Habitat 411 


Synthesis chapter reasonable? 412 


Reference Document – EDO memo on channel width and nest incidence 413 


 414 


 Yes. ISAC members have provided the EDO with detailed suggestions on how to improve the 415 


presentation of these results. 416 


 417 


6) Are the assumptions, methods, results, and conclusions in the Forage Fish Analysis manuscript 418 


reasonable? 419 


Reference Document – Forage Fish Analysis manuscript  420 


 421 


 ISAC has some questions on the draft manuscript’s assumptions, but generally agrees with the 422 


overall conclusion that forge fish availability does not limit tern fledgling success (productivity). 423 


The most convincing evidence in the paper is in Figure 3 (relationship between fledgling success 424 


and flow), which does not require using the forage fish data. There are alternative hypotheses that 425 


could explain the paper’s conclusions that were unable to be tested given the design of the forage 426 


fish monitoring program.  Detailed comments and suggestions which we think would greatly 427 


improve the manuscript have been provided to the EDO.   428 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 14 of 18 
 


 We recommend that once this manuscript is revised to include multiple lines of evidence 429 


(USGS Sherfy report data; tern bioenergetics model), that it undergo the Program’s 430 


internal peer review process as recommended by ISAC guidelines (2013 Report on the 431 


Platte River Recovery Implementation Program, pgs. 11-16) prior to submitting for 432 


publication.  433 


 434 


 We reiterate previous recommendations over the approach taken to address forage fish 435 


availability that are specific to this Big Question, but applicable to Program monitoring in general 436 


(ISAC 2009 Report on the Platte River Recovery Implementation Program; e.g. pg. 29: It is 437 


recommended that a forage fish evaluation program be designed to explicitly test PRRIP interior 438 


least tern (ILT) foraging priority hypotheses, and be based primarily on the tern’s perspective not 439 


the fishes’.).  Robust AM requires monitoring programs be designed and implemented to yield 440 


results that explicitly assess performance of management actions at achieving Program objectives 441 


(see Block et al 2001, Nichols and Williams 2006, Lyons et al 2008 for general guidance on 442 


designing monitoring for AM).  Legacy monitoring such as the Nebraska Public Power District 443 


and Central Nebraska Public Power and Irrigation District’s forage fish monitoring protocol were 444 


adopted to address Big Question 8, “Does forage availability limit tern and plover productivity on 445 


the central Platte River?. However, these legacy monitoring programs did not provide information 446 


specifically designed to serve Program needs.   Preparing this product as a manuscript to illustrate 447 


how surveillance monitoring data can be statistically analyzed for an AM/decision analysis case 448 


study, perhaps better illustrates the importance of designing targeted effectiveness monitoring 449 


capable of discriminating among alternative priority hypotheses at a program’s outset. 450 


 451 


7) Are the assumptions, methods, results, and conclusions in the Planform Management 452 


manuscript reasonable? Reference Document – Planform Management manuscript 453 


 454 


 The ISAC felt that the oral presentation at the AMP Reporting Session was much stronger than 455 


draft manuscript.  456 


 The Planform Management manuscript needs much more work before it is ready to be 457 


submitted for peer review or to a journal. Specifically, the manuscript should: 458 


 459 


o have a clearly stated objective that leads to evidence and a conclusion (the paper at 460 


present has a very “meandering” form); 461 


o use more recent planform literature (many of the references cited in Table 1 are no longer 462 


considered valid hypotheses, and are therefore not worthy of evaluation); 463 


o clarify the purpose of Table 1 with a more informative caption, which clarifies the 464 


meaning of the symbols (e.g., increasing the relationship variable is related to an increase 465 


(+) or decrease (-) in width, depth, etc.)   466 


o recognize that a lot of planforms that are called “braiding” may not be whooping crane 467 


habitat; and 468 


o respond to other detailed comments provided to the EDO by the ISAC.  469 


 There is a worthwhile journal article here though it will require a fresh start. The available data 470 


sets for the Central Platte are unusually rich, and include records of channel change, planform and 471 


dimensions, together with flows, sediment transport, and vegetation. The focus on older 472 


references throughout is misguided. There are a number of significant independent variables 473 


which need to be considered, well beyond what even more recent contributions have considered, 474 


(e.g., the relative importance of flows during seed germination versus the annual peak). The 475 


authors should consider focusing the paper on rejection of oversimplified planform models / 476 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 15 of 18 
 


discriminators in making decisions in the Platte as even the more mechanistic planform predictors 477 


do not capture some of the key processes that affect unvegetated width (the most direct physical 478 


metric related to the biological endpoint).  479 


 A recommended path forward would be to have a revised version of the paper put through the 480 


Program’s internal peer review process and then decide if it’s appropriate to be published in a 481 


journal.  482 


 483 


 484 


8) Do you have any recommendations for revisions or updates to the Target Flow Process 485 


recommended by the ISAC to the Governance Committee in 2012? 486 


Reference Document – Target Flow Scope of Work 487 


 488 


 Adaptive management involves learning. The ISAC has changed its view since 2012 on the best 489 


Target Flow Process in response to Program research and monitoring and the improved 490 


understanding of the system.  491 


 Our current view is that the best possible use of program resources within the First Increment is 492 


to assess what combinations of actions (flow, sediment, mechanical) are likely to be most 493 


effective in achieving Program goals and objectives within currently available amounts of land 494 


and water, rather than focusing only on tools for determining target flows. 495 


 This assessment should be accomplished through structured decision analysis, as recommended in 496 


comments 10 and 11 from our May 2014 report, including both cost and biological effectiveness 497 


of different actions. 498 


 Such a decision analysis would explore a range of alternative combinations of actions, including 499 


changing the frequency, magnitude, timing and location of interacting flows, sediment and 500 


mechanical actions.  501 


 The models used within the decision analysis could include a variety of tools and approaches 502 


which would have been explored under the original target flow process. Additionally, it will 503 


require more comprehensive conceptual ecological models (CEMs) built around the life-history 504 


of each of the target species that the Program specific CEMs currently in use (See main findings 505 


on CEMs from ISAC 2009 pgs. 7, 15-18).  506 


 While it will be essential to externally review a completed decision analysis, the ISAC believes 507 


that this structured decision making process could be accomplished by the EDO working with the 508 


TAC and ISAC and using advice from an outside decision analysis expert as needed, rather than 509 


bringing in many outside experts through a workshop process as suggested in the 2012 target 510 


flow process. 511 


 512 


9) Other ISAC suggestions 513 


 514 


 The ISAC has the following additional suggestions to improve the Program: 515 


a. Format of AMP reporting sessions:  516 


i. have presentations link back to big questions and hypotheses, either via the 517 


EDO or directly 518 


ii. have documents and 3-page executive summaries intended for review 519 


distributed at least 10 days prior to ISAC meetings, so that ISAC members have 520 


time to review them,  521 


iii. distribute all PowerPoint files 24-hours prior to presentations; and 522 


iv. use hyperlinks in documents. 523 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 16 of 18 
 


b. The cost analysis provided by Jason Farnsworth (Table 1) was very helpful. It may be worth 524 


putting this material into a separate document, or under BQ 10.  See ISAC comments 10 and 525 


11 from our May 2014 report. 526 


 527 


c. ISAC thoughts and recommendations on geomorphic sampling:  528 


i. The Tetra Tech geomorphic assessment delivered orally on October 14th indicated 529 


that given what has been learned to date, the current monitoring regime will not 530 


deliver enough observations within an acceptable time frame (both sediment 531 


transport and cross-sections). It’s likely not feasible to assess year to year changes in 532 


sediment storage and transport. The monitoring of both cross-sections and sediment 533 


transport could be improved by more intensive, site-specific sampling on a rotating 534 


annual schedule (e.g., once every 5 years), rather than making a couple of 535 


observations each year at every site. Sediment transport sampling needs to span a 536 


wide range of discharges, including high flows. Intensive sampling will still 537 


encounter high variance, but will be able to develop more reliable estimates of any 538 


changes over time in mean sediment transport.  539 


ii. Similar slope, discharge and grain size means that there isn’t much difference in 540 


cross sections within a reach, and also little change from year to year. Variability 541 


within a year is however a concern. 542 


iii. The ISAC recommends more intensive sampling within a year at fewer places 543 


(e.g. 20-30 samples over 1 year across a wide range of discharges including high 544 


flows), with a 5-year sampling frequency to see if the sediment-discharge 545 


relationship has changed. The sampling frequency may need to be adapted to flow 546 


conditions (i.e., sampling in years with a wide range of flows will be much more 547 


informative than sampling during a very low flow year), though we recognize that it 548 


isn’t possible to accurately predict water year conditions in advance.   549 


iv. Shoemaker Island is an example of a high priority reach which could be a focus 550 


for more intensive sampling 551 


v. Continue LIDAR (ideally green LIDAR) and aerial photography every year to 552 


get system wide estimates of changes in topography  553 


vi. It would be worth exploring the ability to create contrasts in FSM (i.e., some 554 


F&M, some FSM), and to further clarify the purpose of FSM (i.e., to build bars, 555 


to prevent channel degradation, to remove vegetation, or all of these).  First, if 556 


there is a decision to tinker with the low flow regime to suppress vegetation 557 


encroachment through inundation (during germination) and/or drying, then those 558 


flows will be expressed differently (e.g. depth, duration, hydroperiod, soil moisture) 559 


in varying cross-section / floodplain geometries across program lands.  These sites 560 


may have diverse assemblages of plant species with different tolerances that occupy 561 


elevational gradients that vary in frequencies and durations of inundation / drying 562 


across sites.   Flows that drown one species may help another by increasing soil 563 


moisture later on.  Second, mechanical approaches may include spraying, grazing, 564 


and heavy equipment.  This would seem to lend itself to some systematic testing of 565 


different combinations of these F&M treatments, and sediment augmentation might 566 


also contribute to setting up some contrasts.  The right set of contrasts depends on the 567 


objectives, which could be either: 1) taking another shot at getting the river to build 568 


higher bars with finer sand (challenges with stage-discharge and flow timing relative 569 


to nesting notwithstanding); or 2) simply offset a probable trend of reach wide 570 


degradation. Mechanical approaches are clearly necessary –we don’t need to look at 571 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 17 of 18 
 


treatments without mechanical as non-Program channels will shrink over time. The 572 


river is evolving to “pearls on a string” (the wide places where mechanical 573 


interventions have widened the channel). Contrasts could include different 574 


combinations of mechanical treatments (with and without sediment augmentation in 575 


areas of likely channel degradation).    576 


vii. the Program should explore the feasibility of acquiring finer sand (but not too 577 


fine), to build higher bars (building on the physical comparison synthesis paper), 578 


though the stage-discharge relationship may still preclude the creation of sufficient 579 


bars in the Central Platte reach  580 


 581 


d. ISAC thoughts and recommendations on vegetation sampling: 582 


i. The vegetation sampling seems disconnected from program goals and big questions. 583 


Identifying all of the different vegetation species on thousands of quadrats seems 584 


very labor intensive, and these data are not being used to test any specific Program 585 


hypotheses or big questions.   586 


ii. The key performance measure of interest is unvegetated width, which does not 587 


require enumerating other species. The Program is interested in understanding what 588 


happens to distribution and abundance of undesirable species (e.g., Phragmites, 7 589 


others), but enumerating all other species is not required. 590 


iii. The sampling frequency (annual) is insufficient to detect the causes of vegetation 591 


change (e.g., ice, flows, herbicide, mechanical).  592 


iv. It is worth rationalizing the vegetation sampling to focus on the species which 593 


the Program hopes to remove with flows and other actions, with less detailed 594 


observations at each quadrat for the system scale monitoring.  Monitoring 595 


should focus on testing the effectiveness of specific actions (e.g., dry flows, 596 


inundation) for killing particular species of undesired vegetation.  597 


v. Get a system wide picture of Phragmites and other plants, and get a detailed 598 


picture of mechanisms of vegetation scour etc. at a smaller intensively 599 


monitored site such as Shoemaker Island. 600 


vi. Flying LIDAR and hyper spectral imagery to assess vegetation, and then ground 601 


truthing with vegetation sampling of key undesirable species might save lots of 602 


money. 603 


 604 


e. Monitoring of whooping crane habitat selection for BQ #5: 605 


 606 


i. It is worth finishing local analyses that are in progress by WEST, and to clearly 607 


understand the uncertainty in conclusions given the small sample sizes 608 


ii. USGS analyses of GPS data  for whooping cranes were very worthwhile in informing 609 


Program habitat criteria and should be given a high weight in future Program 610 


decisions on habitat suitability criteria for whooping cranes (see detailed comments 611 


on BQ #5 under ISAC question 1) 612 


iii. once local and GPS analyses are completed, then it’s worth assessing what is the 613 


most cost effective investment (i.e., more money into GPS work vs local work in 614 


the CPR) 615 


 616 


  617 







  
 


October 2014 ISAC responses to PRRIP Questions  Page 18 of 18 
 


References 618 


 619 


BC Ministry of Forests 2000. An Introductory Guide to Adaptive Management for Project Leaders and 620 


Participants. http://www.for.gov.bc.ca/hfp/amhome/Training/am-intro-guide.htm  621 


 622 


Block, W. M., A. B. Franklin, J. J.P. Ward, J. L. Ganey, and G. C. White. 2001. Design and 623 


implementation of monitoring studies to evaluate the success of ecological restoration on wildlife. 624 


Restoration Ecology 9:293-303. 625 


 626 


ISAC (Independent Science Advisory Committee). 2009. 2009 Report on the Platte River Recovery 627 


Implementation Program. Prepared for the PRRIP Governance Committee. 38 pp. 628 


 629 


ISAC (Independent Science Advisory Committee). 2013. 2013 Report on the Platte River Recovery 630 


Implementation Program. Prepared for the PRRIP Governance Committee. 17 pp. 631 


 632 


ISAC (Independent Science Advisory Committee). 2014. Responses to Questions Posed by the Platte 633 


River Recovery Implementation Program (PRRIP) in April 2014. 10 pp. 634 


 635 


Lyons, J. E., M. C. Runge, H. P. Laskowski, and W. L. Kendall. 2008. Monitoring in the context of 636 


structured decision-making and adaptive management. Journal of Wildlife Management 72:1683-1692. 637 


 638 


Marmorek, D., D. Pickard, A. Hall, K. Bryan, L. Martell, C. Alexander, K. Wieckowski, L. Greig and C. 639 


Schwarz. 2011. Fraser River sockeye salmon: data synthesis and cumulative impacts. ESSA Technologies 640 


Ltd. Cohen Commission. Tech. Rep. 6. 273p. Vancouver, B.C. www.cohencommission.ca  641 


 642 


Melis, T.S., S.J.D. Martell, L.G. Coggins, W.E. Pine III and M.E. Andersen. 2006. Adaptive management 643 


of the Colorado River ecosystem below Glen Canyon Dam, Arizona: using science and modeling to 644 


resolve uncertainty in river management. Adaptive Management of Water Resources. AWRA Summer 645 


Specialty Conference, Missoula, Montana. June 26-28, 2006. 646 


http://www.gcmrc.gov/library/reports/Synthesis/Melis2006.pdf  647 


 648 


Nichols, J. D., and B. K. Williams. 2006. Monitoring for conservation. Trends in Ecology and Evolution 649 


21:668-673. 650 


 651 


Sit, V. and B. Taylor (editors). 1998. Statistical Methods for Adaptive Management Studies. Res. Br., 652 


B.C. Min. For., Res. Br., Victoria, BC, Land Manage. Handb. No. 42. 653 


 654 


Taylor, B., L. Kremsater, and R. Ellis. 1997. Adaptive management of forests in British Columbia. B.C. 655 


Min. For., For. Practices Br., Victoria, B.C. 656 


 657 


Williams, B. K., R. C. Szaro, and C. D. Shapiro. 2009. Adaptive Management: The U.S. Department of 658 


the Interior Technical Guide. Adaptive Management Working Group, U.S. Department of the Interior, 659 


Washington, DC. 660 



http://www.for.gov.bc.ca/hfp/amhome/Training/am-intro-guide.htm

http://www.cohencommission.ca/

http://www.gcmrc.gov/library/reports/Synthesis/Melis2006.pdf






  ARCHITECTS   ENGINEERS   CONSULTANTS   


  


  


 


 


 


 Medicine Bow Mountains, North Platte River Basin 


  


 Relationships of Hydro-Climate Indices 
(HCI) to Volumetric Flow in North Platte 
River Basin 
 


COLORADO WATER CONSERVATION BOARD 


MARCH 14, 2014 


  
  


 


 


 


 


 


Submitted by: 


Dewberry  
990 S. Broadway, Suite 400 
Denver, CO 80209 
303.951.0620 


Submitted to: 


Colorado Water Conservation Board 
1580 Logan St. Suite 200 
Denver, CO 
303.866.3441 x3219 
 
Platte River Recovery Implementation Program 
4111 4th Avenue, Suite 6 
Kearney, NE 68845 
308.237.5728 
 
  







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  2  


 


 CONTENTS 
INTRODUCTION ........................................................................ 3 


THE NEED.................................................................................. 3 


Colorado Needs .......................................................................................................... 3 


Nebraska Needs ......................................................................................................... 3 


DATA .......................................................................................... 4 


Hydro-climate Indices ................................................................................................ 4 


METHODOLOGY ....................................................................... 5 


Analyzing Gauge Data for the North Platte for Years 1941-2013 ............................ 5 


Evaluation of the HCI relative to the North Platte Basin spring 
 volumetric flow .......................................................................................................... 6 


Model Development .................................................................................................... 6 


CONCLUSIONS ......................................................................... 8 


APPENDIX A – DATA USED IN HCI AND FLOW REGIME  
ANALYSIS.................................................................................. 11 


 


 
 
 
 
Contributors 
John F. Henz, CCM 
Senior Meteorologist 
jhenz@dewberry.com 
720.840.1602 
 
Brad Workman 
Staff Meteorologist 
bworkman@dewberry.com 
303.951.0632 
 
Stuart Geiger, CFM 
Project Manager 
sgeiger@dewberry.com 
303.951.0620 
 
Gerald Blackler, PE, 
PhD 
Senior Engineer 
gblackler@dewberry.com 
303.951.0643 



mailto:jhenz@dewberry.com

mailto:bworkman@dewberry.com

mailto:sgeiger@dewberry.com

mailto:gblackler@dewberry.com





CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  3  


INTRODUCTION 
In January 2012, a Dewberry team prepared a report 
entitled, “On the Predictive Value of Hydroclimate Indices to 
Water Supply – A Technical White Paper” (Henz and Geiger, 
2012) for the Platte River Restoration and Implementation 
Program (PRRIP). It dealt with the potential value of using 
hydro-climate indices (HCI) during the first half of the Water 
Year (WY) for anticipating periods of very low stream flow 
volume in June on the Platte River system. During the period 
of 1947 – 2011 the Platte River system experienced four 
multi-year low flow periods as identified by a comparison of 
June streamflow discharge. A repeatable pattern developed 
in three hydroclimate indices (HCI) during these periods. 
The Pacific Decadal Oscillation (PDO), Multi-variate ENSO 
Index (MEI) and the Atlantic Multi-Decadal Oscillation were 
all in a negative phase when the multi-year low flow periods 
occurred in the Platte Basin. Later, strong relationships were 
noted between the Arctic Oscillation and the Palmer Drought 
Severity Index (PDSI) with above average and below average 
Platte River flow regimes.  
 
Both the Colorado Water Conservation Board (CWCB) and 
the PRRIP expressed an interest in whether a repeatable 
relationship existed between HCI and flow in the Platte River 
basin. If such a relationship existed, could it be used in 
January to anticipate whether the Spring runoff volume 
would be above or below average flow values? The need for 
this information is discussed briefly in the next section.     
 


THE NEED 
 
Colorado Needs 
The Platte River basin acts as a major water source for 
Colorado, Nebraska and Wyoming. In Colorado, the South 
Platte River and its tributaries provides water supplies for 
the heavily populated Front Range region that stretches from 
Fort Collins to the Denver metro area as well as the extensive 
agricultural areas in northeastern Colorado. The Colorado 
Water Conservation Board (CWCB) plays an active role in 
the Platte Basin during both drought and flood periods. 
CWCB administers flood plain regulation and flood 
insurance programs which are very crucial during flood 
periods. CWCB also acts as a focal point for Colorado’s 
Drought Mitigation and Response Plan. Advanced 
knowledge of periods of flood or drought and their impacts 


on water supply is an active and continuing interest of the 
CWCB. Figure 1 shows the Platte River system in Colorado, 
Wyoming, and Nebraska. This project focuses on the early 
Water Year anticipation of North Platte River Basin flows. 
 
The CWCB has expressed an interest in developing more 
quantitative and reliable means of anticipating periods of 
drought and flooding based on short term climate patterns.  
This need was highlighted by the lack of advance anticipation 
of the “flash drought” of 2012 that impacted the entire state 
of Colorado. The state’s agriculture, water supply and 
tourism industries were severely impacted by the drought. 
 


Nebraska Needs 
In Nebraska, the impacts are similar with the Platte River 
acting as a major water source for the state’s agricultural 
business and many near-river communities that stretch the 
length of the state.  The Platte River Recovery 
Implementation Program (PRRIP) plays an active role in 
three key activities impacted by climate impacts on water 
supply: increasing stream flows in the central Platte River 
during relevant time periods, enhancing, restoring, and 
protecting habitat lands for the target bird species and 
accommodating certain new water-related activities. 
 
The program’s objective is to use incentive-based water 
projects to provide sufficient water to and through the 
central Platte River habitat area to assist in improving and 
maintaining habitat for the target species. Flow re-timing 
will be accomplished in part by releases from the 
Environmental Account (EA) in Lake McConaughy. The EA 
is a portion of the water stored in Lake McConaughy that is 
set aside and managed by the Fish and Wildlife Service for 
the benefit of the target species.  
 







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  4  


Figure 1 shows the PRRIP program areas in Wyoming, 


Colorado and Nebraska.  Since the flow in the Platte at 
Grand Island is a key factor in the PRRIP’s success, the 
development of a process that could anticipate the onset and 
end of dry/drought periods and wet/flood conditions would 
be very helpful to the program in establishing its annual 
target flow requests. This project represents the first step in 
developing a capability to anticipate flow volumes.  
 


DATA 
Hydro-climate Indices 
The hydro-climate indices used in this study were pre-
screened from a set of over a dozen potential predictors. Due 
to the limited resources for this study, the key selected HCI 
showed the strongest relationships and are listed below: 
 


1. Pacific Decadal Oscillation (PDO):  
http://jisao.washington.edu/pdo/PDO.latest 
 


2. Arctic Oscillation (AO): 
http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/precip/C
Wlink/daily_ao_index/monthly.ao.index.b50.curre
nt.ascii.table 
 


3. Mutli-Variate ENSO Index (MEI): 
http://www.esrl.noaa.gov/psd/enso/mei/table.htm


l 


 
4. Palmer Drought Severity Index (PDSI): 


 
Lower Platte 
http://www.esrl.noaa.gov/psd/cgi-
bin/data/timeseries/timeseries.pl?ntype=2&typedi
v=3&state=+48&averaged=11&division=8&year1=1
948&year2=2013&anom=0&iseas=0&mon1=0&mo
n2=0&typeout=1&y1=&y2=&plotstyle=0&Submit=
Create+Timeseries 
 
Upper Platte 
http://www.esrl.noaa.gov/psd/cgi-
bin/data/timeseries/timeseries.pl?ntype=2&typedi
v=3&state=+48&averaged=11&division=10&year1=
1948&year2=2013&anom=0&iseas=0&mon1=0&m
on2=0&typeout=1&y1=&y2=&plotstyle=0&Submit
=Create+Timeseries 


 


The link which follows the HCI identification provides the 
data sources used in this study. Each data source reports the 
updated monthly HCI values between the 10th and 20th of the 
month. The process which is described strives to allow flow 
volume regime identification between January 10th and 20th 
of the new Water Year. 
 
 


Figure 1 – Diagram of the Platte River system in Wyoming, Colorado, and Nebraska.  
 



https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fjisao.washington.edu%2fpdo%2fPDO.latest

http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/precip/CWlink/daily_ao_index/monthly.ao.index.b50.current.ascii.table

http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/precip/CWlink/daily_ao_index/monthly.ao.index.b50.current.ascii.table

http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/precip/CWlink/daily_ao_index/monthly.ao.index.b50.current.ascii.table

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fenso%2fmei%2ftable.html

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fenso%2fmei%2ftable.html

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d8%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d8%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d8%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d8%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d8%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d8%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d10%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d10%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d10%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d10%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d10%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries

https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/redir.aspx?C=0226f76ac4c6416ca105a14b9f9226de&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.esrl.noaa.gov%2fpsd%2fcgi-bin%2fdata%2ftimeseries%2ftimeseries.pl%3fntype%3d2%26typediv%3d3%26state%3d%2b48%26averaged%3d11%26division%3d10%26year1%3d1948%26year2%3d2013%26anom%3d0%26iseas%3d0%26mon1%3d0%26mon2%3d0%26typeout%3d1%26y1%3d%26y2%3d%26plotstyle%3d0%26Submit%3dCreate%2bTimeseries





CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  5  


 
 


METHODOLOGY 
 


This study focused on examining combinations of physically 
related hydro-climate indices that could be used to identify if 
a water year’s spring volumetric flow in the North Platte 
Basin would be average, below average or above average in 
January. Dewberry examined many HCI and upper air flow 
parameters, singularly and in combination, to identify which 
ones related most strongly to volumetric flow regimes in the 
North Platte Basin. Discussions on the analysis processes 
and development of a “forecast volumetric flow” model 
follow. 
 


Analyzing Gauge Data for the North Platte for 
Years 1941-2013 
To determine a normal year versus dry or wet years in the N. 
Platte Basin, gauge data for the N. Platte at Lewellen, NE was 
analyzed to determine the average, median, and standard 
deviations of the data set.  A single value for the “runoff year” 
was developed by taking the daily mean for each day, 
converting it into acre feet per day, and then summing each 
daily volume for the months of May, June, and July, which 
results in a volume of runoff for the runoff season.  The 
volume was then sorted and ranked by occurrences for 
statistical analysis.  Applying a normal distribution, a high 


skew in the data set resulted in an exceptionally large 
standard deviation that was larger than the mean.  If one 
standard deviation below the mean was computed it results 
in a value that was less than the lowest recorded value on 
record.   
 
A different method was used to select an average year by 
computing the geometric mean.  The geometric is commonly 
applied to datasets with large outliers to gain a better 
representation of what the average or above average value 
may be.  For this data set, the geometric mean fit closely with 
the median of the data set, which is more in line with what 
would be expected when a normal distribution is applied for 
analysis. 
 
The largest flow volume per runoff year on record is 85 
percent greater than the geometric mean, while the lowest 
flow volume per runoff year is 380 percent less than the 
geometric mean.  A break[1] in the data set for lower 
volumes occurs at the 20th percentile or a flow volume of 
100,000 acre-feet per runoff season.  At this value, there is 
an 80 percent chance that the flow will be equaled or 
exceeded in any year.  100,000 acre-feet per runoff year also 
correlates with being 80 percent less than the geometric 
mean of all years. 
 
Wet and Dry Years were based the development of an 
exceedance curve of total streamflow volume moving past 


10,000 


100,000 


1,000,000 


10,000,000 


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 


To
ta


l A
cr


e-
Fe


et
 (M


ay
-Ju


ly
) 


Chance of Exceedance 


North Platte River at Lewellen, NE 


Figure 2 - Exceedance graph for the May-June-July volumetric flow measured at Lewellen NE gauge 



https://webmail.dewberry.com/owa/?ae=Item&t=IPM.Note&id=RgAAAADvkgkFF5a7TbnlHgHS2iRfBwBwV7jRGdSCSrHeAD9bWISxACNCcbGYAABwV7jRGdSCSrHeAD9bWISxAC5GxsYJAAAJ#x__ftn1





CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  6  


the NE DNR gage at Lewellen, NE. This volume was 
calculated using the total volume over the months of May, 
June, and July, and is presented in units of acre-feet (af). 
Dry years were classified as those years with a probability of 
exceedance greater than 85% (100,000 af), while wet years 
were classified as those with a probability of exceedance less 
than 20% (350,000 af). The remaining years were classified 
as average. The next step in the analyses was to relate these 
flow regimes and values to the various selected HCI. 


Evaluation of the HCI relative to the North 
Platte Basin spring volumetric flow 
Henz, et al, 2012 identified that various HCI were either 
singularly or in combination related to high and low flow 
regimes in both the North and South Platte River basins. 
Further it was noted that if these HCI were in phase or out of 
phase the collective relationship changed. This study 
evaluated the quantitative relationship between the flow 
regimes and the HCI. The results of these evaluations are 
noted in the following paragraphs. 
 
PDO/MEI Phase – Are the indices of PDO and MEI in 
phase? Yes or no? 
 
PDO – Pacific Decadal Oscillation, MEI – Multivariate 
ENSO Index 
To determine if PDO and MEI were in phase, the phase of 
each index was considered (PDO for February of the 
previous year, MEI for September and October of the 
previous year). If PDO was in cold phase and MEI was in La 
Nina phase, then PDO and MEI were defined as in phase. 
Likewise, if PDO was in warm phase and MEI was in El Nino 
phase, then PDO and MEI were defined as in phase. If PDO 
was in cool phase and MEI was in El Nino phase, then PDO 
and MEI were defined as out of phase. Likewise, if PDO was 
in warm phase and MEI was in La Nina phase, then PDO and 
MEI were defined as out of phase. If PDO was neutral and 
MEI was neutral, PDO and MEI were defined as neutral, but 
out of phase for the purpose of this study.  
 
“Basin” Palmer Drought Severity Index (Basin 
PDSI) – Basin Average was calculated using the 
November/December Upper Platte Average + 
November/December Lower Platte Average. The average 
from those two basins is our basin average PDSI used in our 
decision flow chart. Values greater than, or equal to, 2” are 


considered wet conditions, and values less than, or equal to, -
2” are considered drought or dry conditions. Values between 
-2” and 2” were considered average within the goals of the 
research. 
 
4-month Arctic Oscillation (AO) – Four month AO was 
calculated as the AO average for the months of September – 
December. Values greater than 0.5 (positive AO), and values 
less than -0.5 (negative AO) are evaluated within our 
decision flow chart. Values between 0.5 and -0.5 were 
considered neutral. 
 
The results of these evaluations are tabulated in the attached 
spreadsheet by WY and resulted in the development of a 
simple flow regime forecast model that could be applied 
during January of the WY. 
 
Model Development 
Analysis began by plotting the variable values against each 
other. From these comparisons, we were able to determine, 
by percentage, variables that would lead to a reasonable 
answer for a wet or dry year. The variables that we found to 
be of reasonable significance include: PDO/MEI in 
phase/out of phase, Basin Average Palmer Drought Severity 
Index, and 4-month AO average (September – December). 
The descriptions above indicate how each of these variables 
was evaluated on an individual basis. By utilizing the 
statistics calculated from variable comparisons, we created 
the decision flow chart that led to 3 possible flow solutions; 
wetter than average, average, or drier than flow regimes. 
Figure 3 shows the resulting step-by-step application of the 
flow forecast.  
 
The values for each of the HCI are available from the web 
links provided earlier in this report. The historic values used 
in this study are included in the attached spreadsheet and 
are summarized in Appendix A. The result of the model 
forecast is non-quantitative and simply identifies the spring 
flow regime as wetter average or drier than average. The 
verification of the forecast process is shown in Table 1 and 
listed by WY in Appendix A. While the process is simple, it 
provides a 73 percent correct forecast, for the time period 
evaluated. 
 
The table notes if the forecast misses are “positive” or, in 
effect, predict a drier outcome than actually observed. In that 







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  7  


case the forecast flow outcome is rather robust. Such a 
qualitative result can be made more useful by looking at the 
stratification of the PDSI and the observed spring flow values 
for each of the climate regimes identified.  
 
A key factor in determining the climate regime for winter 
precipitation involves whether the PDO and the MEI are 
either in or out of phase. If they are in-phase then the left 
branch of the decision-tree is followed; if they are out-of-
phase the right branch is followed. Depending on the value of 
the PDSI, a different set of flow regimes is determined. It is 
clear that the PDSI has a strong impact on determining the 
actual flow regime of the spring runoff.  
 
Dewberry stratified the PDSI values and the observed spring 
flow for each of the flow regimes: “drier”, “average” and 
“wetter” in Figures 4-6 respectively. Dewberry notes that, 
while the R-squared values are low, some quantitative 
estimate of the spring flow volume is attainable by using the 
figures. Using the flowchart shown previously, we are able to 
make forecasts for the upcoming water year. Let’s work 


through an example for the 2013/2014 Water Year we are 
currently experiencing.  
 
If we go to the existing HCI links we can obtain values for the 
current year and then work through the forecast flow chart.  
Information is available in Appendix A for the reader to 
facilitate this example. For example, if we were to forecast 
for this upcoming 2014 water year, this is how our forecast 
would be determined: 
 
Is PDO/MEI in phase? No. 
Is AO > 0.5? Yes. 
Is PDSI < or = -2? No. 
Is PDSI > or = 2? No. 
 
Using the flowchart and the answers to those four 
conditions, our forecast would identify 2014 as an “Average” 
run-off year. If we go to the diagram for average years and 
then go to the x-axis showing PDSI values at 1.31 and go up 
to the line, an estimated spring volumetric flow would be 
~225,000 acre feet. The forecast range would be ~150,000 to 
290,000 acre feet (af) for the WY13/14 spring runoff volume. 


Table 1 -  Verification of the simplified HCI-North Platte Spring Flow model for WY 50/51 to WY12/13 
 
Years of Record Number of Hits Number of Positive 


Misses 
Hits + Positive 


Misses 
Number of Total 


Misses 
63 46 10 56 7 


 73% 15.9% 88.8% 11.2% 
 
*  a “positive miss” occurs when the actual result is greater than the forecasted result. The two cases examined here occur 
when a “dry” forecast results in an “average” year and when an “average” year ends as a “wet” year. 
 


Figure 3 - HCI process model to determine the May-June-July volumetric flow regime measured at Lewellen NE gauge 
 







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  8  


Clearly the answer won’t be known until early July but for 
planning purposes at PRRIP, the flow appears to average to 
slightly above average. Similarly the same exercises could be 
accomplished for other climate outcomes. It is quite likely 
that a deeper evaluation of the data could result in a more 
quantitative approach to the forecast spring runoff volume 
forecast. 


CONCLUSIONS 
The evaluation shows that a clear and strong relationship 
exists between hydro-climate indices and the spring runoff 
volume on the North Platte River basin. The resulting mid-
January forecast of the spring runoff volume in terms of 
above, below and average values is about 73 percent or 
almost three out of four. A proxy technique to estimate the 
spring flow volume was developed for use until a more 
detailed model can be developed. 
 
An important corollary to this study is that similar 
relationships are very likely to exist on the South Platte River 
basin and other major Colorado river basins. Given the 
critical nature of spring runoff volume to river managers this 
technique offers a very positive outcome for evaluation 
compared to other techniques that wait until the April 
decision window. 







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  9  


 


Figure 4 - Plot of the PDSI and the observed spring volumetric flow in acre feet for the North Platte River Basin at Lewellen 
gauge for average year’s regime 
 


 


Figure 5  - Plot of the PDSI and the observed spring volumetric flow in acre feet for the North Platte River Basin at Lewellen 
gauge for dry year’s regime 
 
 


y = 18013x + 203339 
R² = 0.3627 


0 


50000 


100000 


150000 


200000 


250000 


300000 


350000 


400000 


-6 -5.5 -5 -4.5 -4 -3.5 -3 -2.5 -2 -1.5 -1 -0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4 4.5 5 5.5 6 


M
JJ


 T
ot


al
 V


ol
um


e 


PDSI 


MJJ Total Volume 


Linear (MJJ Total Volume) 


y = 3604.3x + 84367 
R² = 0.1059 


0 


20000 


40000 


60000 


80000 


100000 


120000 


-7 -6.5 -6 -5.5 -5 -4.5 -4 -3.5 -3 -2.5 -2 -1.5 -1 -0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 


M
JJ


 T
ot


al
 V


ol
um


e 


PDSI 


MJJ Total Volume 


Linear (MJJ Total Volume) 







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  10  


 


Figure 6 - Plot of the PDSI and the observed spring volumetric flow in acre feet for the North Platte River Basin at Lewellen 
gauge for wet flow year’s regime 
 
  


y = 108648x + 577219 
R² = 0.4565 


0 


200000 


400000 


600000 


800000 


1000000 


1200000 


1400000 


-3.5 -3 -2.5 -2 -1.5 -1 -0.5 0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4 4.5 5 5.5 6 6.5 


M
JJ


 T
ot


al
 V


ol
um


e 


PDSI 


MJJ Total Volume 


Linear (MJJ Total Volume) 







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  11  


APPENDIX A – DATA USED IN HCI AND FLOW REGIME ANALYSIS 
 


Year 
Decision 


Tree 
Water 
Year 


May-June-
July Total 


Volume (af) Forecast 
Actual 
Result Hit/Miss 


Positive 
Miss? 


1950 YNN 1951 253,205.68  Avg Avg Hit 


 1951 YNYY 1952 360,356.33  Wet Wet Hit 


 1952 NNYN 1953 146,511.23  Avg Avg Hit 


 1953 NNN 1954 87,452.52  Avg Dry Miss Minus 


1954 NNN 1955 134,318.65  Avg Avg Hit 


 1955 YYN 1956 98,720.78  Dry Dry Hit 


 1956 YNN 1957 241,937.41  Avg Avg Hit 


 1957 NNN 1958 259,402.13  Avg Avg Hit 


 1958 YNN 1959 123,881.48  Avg Avg Hit 


 1959 NNYN 1960 72,588.17  Avg Dry Miss Minus 


1960 NNN 1961 108,731.50  Avg Avg Hit 


 1961 NNYN 1962 300,301.90  Avg Avg Hit 


 1962 YNN 1963 117,992.46  Avg Avg Hit 


 1963 YYN 1964 99,658.97  Dry Dry Hit 


 1964 NNN 1965 372,257.33  Avg Wet Miss Plus 


1965 YNN 1966 121,794.83  Avg Avg Hit 


 1966 NNYN 1967 307,384.98  Avg Avg Hit 


 1967 NNN 1968 243,246.52  Avg Avg Hit 


 1968 YNN 1969 160,782.51  Avg Avg Hit 


 1969 YNN 1970 294,861.16  Avg Avg Hit 


 1970 NNN 1971 1,160,783.87  Avg Wet Miss Plus 


1971 YNN 1972 294,498.18  Avg Avg Hit 


 1972 YNN 1973 1,056,312.93  Avg Wet Miss Plus 


1973 NNN 1974 343,230.79  Avg Avg Hit 


 1974 YNN 1975 217,768.47  Avg Avg Hit 


 1975 YNN 1976 154,453.16  Avg Avg Hit 


 







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  12  


1976 YYN 1977 148,800.19  Dry Avg Miss Plus 


1977 YNN 1978 243,851.49  Avg Avg Hit 


 1978 YNN 1979 173,254.76  Avg Avg Hit 


 1979 NYNN 1980 404,487.22  Avg Wet Miss Plus 


1980 YNN 1981 126,904.33  Avg Avg Hit 


 1981 YYY 1982 162,625.18  Dry Avg Miss Plus 


1982 NYNY 1983 1,148,327.49  Wet Wet Hit 


 1983 YNYN 1984 1,145,887.79  Wet Wet Hit 


 1984 YNN 1985 169,615.04  Avg Avg Hit 


 1985 NNYN 1986 691,626.62  Avg Wet Miss Plus 


1986 NNN 1987 245,535.48  Avg Avg Hit 


 1987 YNN 1988 225,611.22  Avg Avg Hit 


 1988 YYY 1989 81,150.94  Dry Dry Hit 


 1989 YYN 1990 96,604.38  Dry Dry Hit 


 1990 NYNN 1991 193,974.40  Avg Avg Hit 


 1991 NYNN 1992 101,331.06  Avg Avg Hit 


 1992 YNN 1993 153,197.61  Avg Avg Hit 


 1993 YNYN 1994 148,867.63  Wet Avg Miss Minus 


1994 YNN 1995  490,301.37  Avg Wet Miss Plus 


1995 YNYN 1996 327,146.59  Wet Avg Miss Minus 


1996 NNYN 1997 621,263.94  Avg Wet Miss Plus 


1997 NNN 1998 220,533.46  Avg Avg Hit 


 1998 YNYN 1999 688,367.72  Wet Wet Hit 


 1999 YNN 2000 193,198.85  Avg Avg Hit 


 2000 YYN 2001 194,835.24  Dry Avg Miss Plus 


2001 YYN 2002 37,355.26  Dry Dry Hit 


 2002 NNYN 2003 65,481.29  Avg Dry Miss Minus 


2003 YYY 2004 38,172.46  Dry Dry Hit 


 2004 YNN 2005 89,541.14  Avg Dry Miss Minus 







CWCB/PRRIP  |  Relationships of HCI to Volumetric Flow in North Platte River Basin |  13  


2005 YYN 2006 56,764.89 Dry Dry Hit 


 2006 NYY 2007 52,397.98  Dry Dry Hit 


 2007 NNN 2008 107,730.15  Avg Avg Hit 


 2008 NNN 2009 178,341.05  Avg Avg Hit 


 2009 YNYY 2010 599,311.03  Wet Wet Hit 


 2010 YNYY 2011  1,205,079.19  Wet Wet Hit 


 2011 YNN 2012 94,693.00 Avg Dry Miss Minus 


2012 YYN 2013 70,173.00 Dry Dry Hit 


  


 





		introduction

		The Need

		Colorado Needs

		Nebraska Needs



		DATA

		Hydro-climate Indices



		Methodology

		Analyzing Gauge Data for the North Platte for Years 1941-2013

		Evaluation of the HCI relative to the North Platte Basin spring volumetric flow

		Model Development



		Conclusions

		APPENDIX A – DATA USED IN HCI AND FLOW REGIME ANALYSIS






Program Land Acquisition Objective Progress
12/3/2014


Table 1 :SUMMARY


Status Acres Dollars
Purchased 7,109.66 19,707,771.48$          
Sponsorship/Lease 2,665.00 37,500.00$                 
Agreements 372.00 -$                            


Total 10,146.66 19,745,271.48$     


Complex Acres 9,404.89
Non Complex Acres 741.77


Acres remaining for 1st Increment Goal (146.66)


Total Acres Controlled or Contracted 10,379.66


1404 Odessa Complex 233.00 1,350,000.00$                 
Total Under Contract 233.00 1,350,000.00


In Active Negotiations Acres Negotiated Value
880.51 (414,480.82)$                 


Total Dollars Spent or Under Contract 21,095,271.48$     


Table 2 : ACTIVE 


In Active Negotiations Acres Negotiated Value
Broadfoot 1221 NGPC     Non-Complex (117.53) (560,618.10)$                 


832 Odessa Complex 251.04 1,240,000.00$                
1407 Trade Ft. Kearny Complex (530,000.00)$                 
1406 Trade Ft. Kearny Complex (710,000.00)$                   
1227 Trade Ft. Kearny Complex 747.00 1,496,137.28$                
1408 Trade Alda Complex (1,350,000.00)$              


Total Active Acres 880.51 (414,480.82)$                 







93% 


7% 


Complex vs Non Complex 
Complex Acres Non Complex Acres


70% 


26% 


4% 


Ownership by Type 
Purchased Sponsorship/Lease Agreements







COMPLEX
Complex Total 9,404.89 $16,470,006.16


Goal 9,200.00
Acres remaining for 1st Increment Goal (204.89)


PLUM CREEK
Complex Total 716.30 $2,090,000.00


Purchased Acres Dollars
Dyer 2009003 (0804) 360.30 1,200,000.00$                
Cook 2009007 (0815) 356.00 890,000.00$                   


2009003-10001 (0924) (3.38) -$                               
2009003-10002 (0922) 3.38 -$                               
2009003-12001 (1111) (0.09) -$                               
2009003-12002 (1108) 0.09 -$                               


Total 716.30 2,090,000.00$                


COTTONWOOD RANCH
Complex Total 3,552.00 2,388,676.00$       


Purchased Acres Dollars
Stall 2009006 (0903) 337.00 1,116,676.00$                
Morse 2010001 (0839) 565.00 1,272,000.00$                


Total 902.00 2,388,676.00$                
Sponsorship/Lease Acres Dollars
2008002 Cottonwood Ranch 2,650.00 -$                               


Total 2,650.00 -$                                  


ELM CREEK
Complex Total 1,584.90 4,360,200.00$       


Purchased Acres Dollars
Bartels 2009002 (0803) 139.00 420,000.00$                   
McCormick 2009005 (0850) 218.21 530,000.00$                   
Sullwold 2012001 (1101)
Johns 2012002 (1102) 947.65 3,420,000.00$                


2012002-12001 (1213) (1.96) (9,800.00)$                     


Total 1,302.90 4,360,200.00$                
Agreement Acres Negotiated Value
01 - Aten Family 20.00 -$                               
02 - D. Johnson 48.00 -$                               
03 - G. Hubbard 84.00 -$                               
04 - NGPC 15.00 -$                               
06 - NPPD 115.00 -$                               


Total 282.00 -$                               







ODESSA COMPLEX
Complex Total 0.00 -$                      


Purchased Acres Dollars


Total 0.00 -$                               
Agreement Acres Negotiated Value


-$                               
Total 0.00 -$                               


FORT KEARNY
Complex Total 1,519.81 2,607,087.76$       


Purchased Acres Dollars
Fox 2009001 (0842) 181.59 582,442.76$                   
Hickory Farms 2009001-1401 (     )
Hostetler 2009004 (0847) 331.62 696,920.00$                   


2009004-10001 (0925) (0.30) -$                               
2009004-10002 (0923) 0.34 -$                               


Sherrerd 2010003 (0805) EASEMENT 304.37 304,370.00$                   
Wyoming 2008001 455.29 -$                               
Blessing 2012003 (1110) 195.90 1,023,355.00$                
Younkin 2014001 51.00 -$                               


Total 1,519.81 2,607,087.76$                


SHOEMAKER ISLAND
Complex Total 1,745.88 3,674,042.40$       


Purchased Acres Dollars
Binfield 2010004 (0918) 1,525.88 3,674,042.40$                
Leaman West 2011001 (1001) 130.00 770,370.40$                   


Total 1,655.88 3,674,042.40$                
Agreement Acres Negotiated Value
07 - WCMT 40.00 -$                               
08 - Foote & Osborne 50.00 -$                               


Total 90.00 -$                               


ALDA TO GRAND ISLAND
Complex Total 286.00 1,350,000.00$       


Purchased Acres Dollars
M. Meadows 2012005 (1210) 286.00 1,350,000.00$                


Total 286.00 1,350,000.00$                







NON COMPLEX
Non Complex Total 741.77 3,275,265.32$       


Goal 800.00
Acres remaining for 1st Increment Goal 58.23


OFF CHANNEL SAND AND WATER
Off Channel Non Complex Total 487.75 2,320,265.32$       


Goal 400.00
Acres remaining for 1st Increment Goal (87.75)


Purchased Acres Dollars
Broadfoot N. 2009008 (0849) 523.49 2,105,150.00$                


2009008-11001 (1020) (3.45) -$                               
2009008-11002 (1006) 1.46 -$                               
2009008-11003 (1009) (0.91) (4,100.00)$                     


Leaman East 2011001 (1001) 140.00 829,629.60$                   
Follmer Alda pit 2011002 (1019) 75.00 400,000.00$                   
Hoskins 2013002 (1017) 5.00 8,000.00$                       
Auction 2011001-14001 (1217) (55.00) (201,541.00)$                 
Sale 2009008-14001 (1205 & 1206) (212.84) (854,373.28)$                 


Total 472.75 2,282,765.32$                
Leased Acres Dollars


Broadfoot K. 2010002 (0818 ) 15.00 37,500.00$                     
Total 15.00 37,500.00$                      


PALUSTRINE WETLANDS
Palustrine Non Complex Total 254.02 955,000.00$          


Goal 400.00
Acres remaining for 1st Increment Goal 145.98


Purchased Acres Dollars
DeBore 2012004 (1203) 100.72 376,000.00$                   
Liehs 2013001 (1114) 153.30 579,000.00$                   


Total 254.02 955,000.00$                    





		Sheet2



